
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
May 9, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, the City Council is conducting its public 
meeting in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Members of the public may view and 
provide public comment during the meeting in person at City Hall, via the online 
platform zoom (link below), or via telephone (number below). The public may also view 
the meeting live on the City’s YouTube channel. 
 

Remote access 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82404901385 

Zoom Webinar ID: 824 0490 1385 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

 
Guiding Principles 

• Are we raising the bar? 
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past? 
• Are we building connections with outside partners? 
• Is the decision-making process positively impacting diversity, equity, and 

inclusion? 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. Please keep your comments respectful and no personal attacks. This is a 
comment period and not a question-and-answer session. When recognized by the Mayor, please 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 
from your keypad to raise your hand.  
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments 
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Riding Mower for 

the Equipment Rental Revolving Fund 500 (Lang) Page 4 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Combination 

Jet/Vacuum Truck from the Equipment Rental Revolving Fund 500 
(Lang) Page 15 

E. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Materials to 
Construct Electric Vehicle Charging Stations for the City’s Fleet of 
Electric Vehicles (Lang) Page 24 

F. Approval of the April 14, 2023, Council Retreat Minutes Page 39 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 
 

Councilmembers: 
Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair   
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Transportation Committee 
KRCC-alt 

 
 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Lodging Tax, Chair  

 

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 
 

Jay Rosapepe  
Finance Committee,  
Land Use Committee 
KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-
alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,  
 

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

 

Tony Lang 
Public Works Director 
 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 
 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 
 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

 
 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
 
 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82404901385


Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 
The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 

Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 
May 9, 2023, Meeting Agenda      Page 2 of 3 

5. PRESENTATION

6. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Blueberry Apartments Development Agreement for Traffic Impact Fee Credits (Bond) Page 75

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The
topic(s) and the session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.

8. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way, an Alley Commonly

Known as Mystery Lane, and the Westerly Portion of Harrison Avenue (Wallace/Archer) Page 77
B. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving a Development Agreement with Blueberry Apartments, QOZB,

LLC (Bond) Page 120
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Miles Resources, LLC for the 2023 Citywide Asphalt

Repair Project (Lang) Page 145
D. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC Chapter 2.60 Related to Council Compensation (Lund) Page

191 
E. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC 20.26.020 and 20.132.060 to Include Signage as an Eligible

Development Standard Addressed through a Development Agreement (Bond) Page 197
F. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC 20.24.040 Addressing Counter Completeness and

Electronic Permit Submittals (Bond) Page 208
G. Adoption of an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Bond) Page 212
H. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting Personnel Policies Related to Purchasing of Clothing and Work

Boots (Lund) Page 230
I. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with Kitsap Regional Library

for Design Work for the Community Event Center (Archer) Page 233
J. Approval of Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. 066-20 with Rice Fergus Miller for Design Work to

Library Space for the Community Events Center (Archer) Page 239
K. Approval of Road Closure for a Special Event:  Fathom’s 54th Grand Parade (Wallace) Page 267
L. Approval of Road Closure for a Special Event:  South Kitsap Grad Parade (Wallace) Page 303
M. Approval of Road Closure for a Special Event:  Unforgotten Run (Wallace) Page 322
N. Approval of Parking Lot Closure for a Special Event:  Fathoms O’ Fun Summer Festival (Wallace) Page

341 
O. Approval of the April 25, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes Page 353

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)

10. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES

11. REPORT OF MAYOR

12. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS

13. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state 
your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to raise your hand.) 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

May 9, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

Economic Development and Tourism  May 15, 2023: 9:30am Remote Access 

Utilities  June 13, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Finance May 9, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation May 23, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Festival of Chimes & Lights May 15, 2023; 3:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  May 10, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  TBD, 2023 Remote Access 

Sewer Advisory  TBD, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving the  Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Purchase of a Riding Mower for the   Public Works Director 
 Equipment Rental Revolving Fund 500     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: May 3, 2023 

 
Summary:  A City mower is scheduled for replacement in 2023 as part of the Equipment Rental and Revolving 
Fund 500 (ER&R) replacement process. The expense for replacement is budgeted in the 2023-2024 Biennial 
Budget, which included $50,000 for the purchase.  
 
The City has an interlocal agreement with purchasing cooperative Sourcewell (City Contract No. C075-14).  
Pursuant to the City’s fleet standardization policies staff identified a mower manufactured by The Toro 
Company as the desired equipment for purchase. The City’s Public Works Department identified Western 
Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western, as an Authorized dealer of The Toro Company and as an 
approved vendor for the desired equipment, awarded via Sourcewell Contract No. 031121-TTC. Staff 
reviewed the procurement process utilized by Sourcewell for this contract, confirming the procurement 
requirements were met and obtained necessary documentation regarding procurement. On April 26, 2023, 
pursuant to the City’s Procurement Procedures Policies adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, 
Public Works staff requested and received a quote of $44,685.80 (applicable tax included) from Western 
Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western for a Toro Proline H800 Mower.    
 
On April 27, 2023, the City Public Works Department completed the Interlocal Agreement Purchase Checklist 
for Western Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western. Staff confirmed the quoted price is 
consistent with the pricing set out in the Sourcewell contract and that all applicable statutory procurement 
requirements were met.  The ER&R equipment listed in the quote meets the City’s fleet standardization 
policies, and at a cost of $44,685.80, is within the limits of the Biennial Budget.  The City’s Procurement 
Policies require City Council authorization for purchasing items costing $35,000 or more.  The ER&R Purchase 
Request including Vendor Quote attached as Exhibit A is for the purchase of a mower in an amount that 
exceeds the $35,000 authorization limit.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approving a Resolution approving the purchase of a Toro Proline H800 
Mower in accordance with the City’s fleet standardization policies and the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
 

Page 4 of 358



Consent Agenda 4C 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase of a Toro 
 Proline H800 Mower in accordance with the City’s fleet standardization policies and the 2023-
 2024 Biennial Budget.” 
 
 Fiscal Impact:  The Toro Mower is budgeted in the 2023-2024 Budget (GL Code 
 500.10.594.76.60) 
 
 Alternatives:      Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
 Attachment:    Resolution  
            Exhibit A:  ER&R Purchase Request including Vendor quote. 
             ILA Checklist 
 

Page 5 of 358



        
RESOLUTION NO. ____  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE PURCHASE OF A RIDING MOWER FOR THE EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
REVOLVING FUND 500 AND DOCUMENTING PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES.  
  
WHEREAS, a City mower is scheduled for replacement in 2023 as part of the Equipment 

Rental and Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) replacement process; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City has an interlocal agreement with purchasing cooperative Sourcewell 

(City Contract No. C075-14) which allows the City to utilize the contracts procured by 
Sourcewell for services and purchases, so long as the City confirms the contract complies with 
all applicable statutory procurement requirements for the purchase or service, per RCW 
39.34.030; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s fleet standardization policies staff identified a mower 

manufactured by The Toro Company as the desired equipment for purchase; and 
 
WHEREAS, consistent with City Contract No. C075-14 and the City’s Procurement 

Procedures Policies, adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Public Works 
Department identified Western Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western as an 
Authorized dealer of The Toro Company and as an approved vendor for the desired equipment, 
awarded via Sourcewell Contract No. 031121-TTC; and 

 
WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by Sourcewell for this 

contract to confirm the procurement requirements were met and obtained necessary 
documentation from Sourcewell and the vendor to confirm statutory procurement 
requirements were met; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2023, Public Works staff requested and received a quote from 
Western Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western of $40,883.64 (plus applicable tax) 
for a total purchase price of $44,685.80; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 27, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department completed the 
Interlocal Agreement Purchase Checklist for the selected vendor and confirmed the quoted 
price was consistent with Sourcewell Contract No. 031121-TTC; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget includes $50,000 in Equipment Rental and 

Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) for the purchases of the Riding Mower, respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for 

purchasing items costing $35,000 or more; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Western Equipment Distributors Inc. DBA Turf Star Western quote 

attached as Exhibit A is for the purchase of ER&R Equipment in an amount that exceeds the 
$35,000 authorization limit; and 

Page 6 of 358



Resolution No. ____ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein 
for this purchase by Resolution; now, therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
 THAT: The City Council approves the purchase from Western Equipment Distributors Inc. 

DBA Turf Star Western in the amount of $44,685.80 (applicable tax included).  The Mayor 
or his designee is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the purchase 
consistent with this authorization. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of May 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 

Page 7 of 358



RCW 43.19.648 – Requires all local governments to convert their vehicle fleets to electricity or 
biofuel. Local governments are required to transition all vehicles to electricity or biofuels to the 
extent practicable. WAC 194-29-030 provides further guidance regarding this issue. If it is not 
practical for local governments to use electricity or biofuel for police, fire or emergency response 
vehicles, including utility vehicles frequently used for emergency response, it is encouraged to 
consider alternate fuels and vehicle technologies to displace gasoline and diesel fuel use.  

Please attach the quote for vehicle / equipment. 

Description of item: 

Procurement method: 

Department 

  Water  Sewer   Storm  Street      Public Works   DCD   Police   Admin 

Addition or Replacement 

Addition to Fleet - Please state business case for addition: 

Replacement Vehicle / Equipment being replaced: 

Fleet Standardization 

Requested Vehicle / Equipment follows fleet standardization 

Requested Vehicle / Equipment DOES NOT follow Standardization.  List items that are 
not fleet standard and reason for addition. 

ER&R 

Replacement or Addition 
Purchase Request

B
Remove Watermark

Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 8 of 358

http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


Requested Vehicle / Equipment does not have a standard 

Cost 

Fleet standard cost 
Additional cost for consideration and business case: 

TOTAL 

STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES 

Police Department Standard Vehicle 
Model Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford Sedans Automatic Black City Decal Lights 

SUV 2WD Vehicle Number Radios 

4WD Antennas 

AWD 

Public Works and Planning Standard Truck 
Model Chassis Cab Size Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford 1/2 Ton Regular Automatic White City Logo Lights 

3/4 Ton Extended 2WD Truck Number Radios 

1 Ton Crew Cab 4WD Antennas 

Tool Boxes 

Administration and Planning Standard Vehicle 
Type Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Electric Sedans Automatic White City Logo Lights 

Biofuel SUV 2WD Vehicle Number Radios 

4WD Antennas 

AWD 

I have reviewed the vehicles / equipment listed above and request approval for purchase. 

_____________________________ _________________________ 
Department Director Date 

Remove Watermark
Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 9 of 358

http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


Approved for purchase by: 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
ER&R Representative   Date 

Remove Watermark
Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 10 of 358

http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


Date: April 26, 2023
Quotation for City of Port Orchard

Quote No:8078834-00

1 | P a g e

Prepared For: Chris Esguerra Quote No: 8078834-00
City of Port Orchard iQuote No: 131298
216 Propsect Street
Port Orchard, CA  98366-5326

Sales Person: Alex Hedlund
alex.hedlund@turfstar.com
(360) 296-8668

031121-TTC   Sourcewell

Summary

Configuration Name Qty Unit Price Sub Total Sales Tax            Total

 010-Proline H800 1 $40,883.64 $40,883.64 $3,802.16 $44,685.80

Totals: $40,883.64 $3,802.16 $44,685.80

Remove Watermark
Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 11 of 358

http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


Date: April 26, 2023
Quotation for City of Port Orchard

Quote No:8078834-00

2 | P a g e

Configuration Product Details
010-Proline H800

Model Product Description Qty Unit Price Extended Sales Tax       Total  

31051 Proline H800 1 $39,000.00 $39,000.00 $3,627.00 $42,627.00

134-4690 Kit Debris Suppression 1 $311.20 $311.20 $28.94 $340.14

FSD1 Setup 1 $786.22 $786.22 $73.11 $859.33

FSD2 Delivery 1 $786.22 $786.22 $73.11 $859.33

Totals: $44,685.80

Remove Watermark
Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 12 of 358

http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


Date: April 26, 2023
Quotation for City of Port Orchard

Quote No:8078834-00

3 | P a g e

Standard Terms and Conditions
Prices including all finance options are subject to change based on Turf Star Western’s receipt of product and 
estimated shipments. Currently, product availability is a minimum of 6-18 months. Your Final Price will be 
determined at time of shipment. Delivery is FOB point of origin unless otherwise stated.

Office Locations

Northern California:                              Southern California:                            Pacific Northwest:       

3928 N.Blattela Lane                               79-253 Country Club Drive                   1750 Industrial Dr.NE
Fresno, CA 93727                                     Bermuda Dunes, CA 92203                  Salem, OR 97301
Fax: (559) 277-7123                                 Fax: (760) 345-4297                              Ph: (503) 691-0250  

2438 Radley Court                                    955 Beacon Street                                  5869 South 194th
Hayward, CA 94545                                 Brea, CA 92821                                     Kent, WA 98032
Fax: (510) 785-3576                                 Fax: (800) 775-8873                              Fax: (253) 872-6942  

11373 Sunrise Gold Circle                        2110 La Mirada Ste 100                        2824 East Garland
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742                     Vista, CA 92083                                    Spokane, WA 99207
Fax: (800) 241-1997                                  Fax: (760) 734-4285                             Fax: (509) 483-7563     

WARNING:
Cancer and Reproductive Harm-http://www.P65Warnings.ca.gov
For more information, please visit http://www.ttcoCAProp65.com

CALIFORNIA SPARK ARRESTER WARNING
Operation of this equipment in the State of California may create sparks that can start fires around dry vegetation. A spark arrestor may be required. 
The operator should contact local fire agencies for laws or regulations relating to fire prevention requirements.

Remove Watermark
Wondershare
PDFelement

Page 13 of 358

http://www.p65warnings.ca.gov/
http://www.ttcocaprop65.com/
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db
http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db


CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
PURCHASES THROUGH INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS 

 

City Contract No.: 075-14   
Interlocal Agreement with the Host Agency (government agency or Purchasing Co-Op name):  Sourcewell 
 

Item Description: _______Toro Proline H800 Mower__________        
               
               
 

Do you have an Interlocal agreement signed with the Contract (host) Agency? 
☒  If yes, where is it filed:  __City Clerk______  
  If no, get a mutually signed Agreement in place before you continue. 

 

State OSP Contract No.#: Sourcewell #031121-TTC     
If you have an Office of State Procurement (OSP) contract number you may skip the remainder of this test 
because the OSP contracts comply with remaining requirements and retain the documentation on hand for 
SAO to review in the OSP offices. 
 

Is this a technology contract?     
  If yes, do your own rules allow for technology contracts to be negotiated? 
  If your own rules allow for negotiated IT contracts, you can skip this test. 

 

Is this a services contract?     
  If yes, do your own rules allow services to be negotiated? 
  If your own rules allow for negotiated services, you can skip the remainder of the test. 
 

Are you using this as only one of multiple quotes, for a small purchase?     
  If yes, you can skip the remainder of the test.  Your purchase will not mandate the sealed bid rules. 
 
 

Checklist for Required Compliance 
Is the Host agency a public agency1?  ☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, what state laws apply to Host Agency: 

Minnesota 
Does the host agency have a requirement 
to run a newspaper ad in their local paper 
and did they comply 

☒  Yes ☐ No Federal and State contract rules usually don’t 
require a newspaper ad.  For others, attach the 
ad or place into the file 

Did they list on the public agency’s 
website?  

☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, state when and the address, and proof 
of date, address shall be attached or placed into 
the file. If No, you cannot use the bid. 

Did the bid & award comply with the 
Host agency’s state procurement laws? 

☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, obtain documentation to support answer 
from Host Agency.  If No, you cannot use the 
bid. 

 

 
1 RCW 39.34.020 (1), “public agency” means any agency, political subdivision, or unit of local government of this state including, but 
not limited to, municipal corporations, quasi municipal corporations, special purpose districts, and local service districts; any agency 
of the state government; any agency of the United States; any Indian tribe recognized as such by the federal government; and any 
political subdivision of another state 

Page 14 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving the  Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Purchase of a Combination Jet/Vacuum   Public Works Director 
 Truck from the Equipment Rental      Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
 Revolving Fund 500 Atty Review Date: May 4, 2023 

 
Summary:  The Public Works Department has identified new equipment necessary for continued operations 
in 2023. In particular, staff identified the need to purchase a Combination Jet/Vacuum Truck (“the Vehicle”) 
to replace ER&R No. 1059 (Ford LT8501 Vac-Con) that is scheduled for replacement in 2023 from the 
Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund 500 (“ER&R”). The 2023-2024 ER&R budget includes $600,000 for the 
purchase of the replacement vehicle.  
 
The City is a member of purchasing cooperative Sourcewell (City Contract No. C075-14) which allows the City 
to utilize the contracts procured by Sourcewell for services and purchases, so long as the City confirms the 
contract complies with all applicable statutory procurement requirements for the purchase or service, per 
RCW 39.34.030.  Consistent with City Contract No. C075-14 and the City’s Procurement Procedures Policies, 
adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Public Works Department identified Enviro-Clean 
Equipment, as an authorized Vac-Con, Inc dealer and as an approved vendor for the vehicle, awarded via 
Sourcewell Contract No. 101221-VAC (“Sourcewell Contract”).  
 
On April 13, 2023, staff requested a quote from the vendor, and on April 17, 2023, the City received a quote 
of $597,230.47 from Enviro-Clean Equipment for the vehicle and operating add-ons. Staff confirmed the 
quote was consistent with the Sourcewell Contract pricing. Staff also confirmed the vehicle, and all operating 
add-ons, meets the City’s fleet standardization policies and at a cost of $597,230.47 is within the limits of the 
2023-2024 Biennial Budget. On April 20, 2023, the City Public Works Department completed the Interlocal 
Agreement Purchase Checklist for Vac-Con, Inc. - Sourcewell. Staff reviewed the procurement process utilized 
by Sourcewell for the Sourcewell Contract and confirmed the applicable procurement requirements were 
met and obtained all necessary documentation from Sourcewell and the vendor regarding procurement. 
 
Further, staff has identified additional expenses associated with the vehicle after delivery that are necessary 
to prepare the vehicle for service. These expenses include the purchase/installation of a CB radio and City 
logo decals. These items are all estimated to cost $2,186.00 (within the $600,000 ER&R budget authority for 
the vehicle purchase). However, these items are not included in the Sourcewell Contract and staff will follow 
the City’s Procurement Procedures Policies for the purchase of these items. 
 

Page 15 of 358



Consent Agenda 4D 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 The City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for purchasing budgeted items 
 that cost $35,000 or more. 
 
 Recommendation:  Staff recommends adopting a Resolution authorizing the purchase of a 
 vehicle and associated equipment in accordance with the City’s procurement policies, fleet 
 standardization policies, and the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget. 
 
 Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
 
 Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the purchase of a vehicle 
 and add-ons from Vac-Con, Inc via Enviro-Clean Equipment.” 
 
 Fiscal Impact:  Combination Jet/Vacuum Truck and operating add-ons: $597,230.47 (excluding 
 registration fees) are included in the 2023-2024 Budget (GL Code: 500.10.594.35.60).   
 
 Licensing/CB radio/logo and decals (not included in this approval but listed as a 

component cost of the vehicle, included here for transparency): $2,186.00 are 
included in the 2023-2024 Budget (GL Code: 500.10.594.35.60).   
 
Total Estimated Cost of vehicle and all related equipment/items: $599,416.47. 

 
 Alternatives:      Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
 Attachment: Resolution  
          Exhibit A-Quote 
          Dealer Authorization Letter 
           Interlocal Agreement Checklist 
          ER&R Purchase request  
 

Page 16 of 358



        
RESOLUTION NO. ________  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A COMBINATION JET/VACUUM 
TRUCK AND ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT FROM THE EQUIPMENT 
RENTAL REVOLVING FUND 500 AND DOCUMENTING 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES.  

  
WHEREAS, a City Vac-Con Truck (ER&R #1059) is scheduled for replacement in 2023 as 

part of the Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) replacement process; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City is a member of the purchasing cooperative Sourcewell, formally 

known as the National Joint Power Alliance (NJPA), a Minnesota Public Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS; consistent with City Contract No. C075-14 and the City’s Procurement 
Procedures Policies, adopted as Resolution No. 036-22, as amended, the City’s Public Works 
Department identified Enviro-Clean Equipment, as an authorized Vac-Con, Inc dealer and an 
approved vendor for the desired Jet/Vacuum Truck and associated equipment through 
Sourcewell Contract No. 101221-VAC (Sourcewell Contract); and 

 
WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by Sourcewell for the 

Sourcewell Contract, confirmed the statutory procurement requirements were met, and 
obtained all necessary documentation from Sourcewell and the vendor regarding procurement; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2023, Public Works staff requested a quote and on April 17, 
2023, received a quote from Vac-Con, Inc via Enviro-Clean Equipment of $544,758.64 (plus 
applicable tax), for a total purchase price of $597,230.47; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 20, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department completed the 
Interlocal Agreement Purchase Checklist for the selected vendor and confirmed the quote was 
consistent with the Sourcewell Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget includes $600,000 in the Equipment Rental 

and Revolving Fund 500 (ER&R) for the purchase of a replacement Vac-Con Truck; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for 

purchasing budgeted items that cost $35,000 or more and for unbudgeted purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Vac-Con, Inc (via Enviro-Clean Equipment) Quote, attached as Exhibit A, 

is for the purchase of ER&R Equipment in an amount that exceeds the $35,000 authorization 
limit; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein 
for this purchase by Resolution; now, therefore, 
 

Page 17 of 358



Resolution No. _____ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT: The City Council approves the purchase of a Combination Jet/Vacuum Truck and 
 associated equipment from Vac-Con, Inc via Enviro-Clean Equipment in the amount of 
 $597,230.47 (applicable tax included). The Mayor or his designee is authorized to take all 
 actions necessary to effectuate the purchase consistent with this authorization. 
 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of May 2023.   
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 358



04/17/2023 NEW SOURCEWELL SINGLE ENGINE COMBINATION JET/VACUUM SEWER CLEANER
Sourcewell Contract: 101221-VAC

Customer: CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PUBLIC WORKS Shipping: WASHINGTON
 Requirement Specification

Combination jet/vacuum sewer cleaner with all standard equipment V311HEN/1000 L H A -P

Sourcewell discount

11 Yard debris body

Freightliner model 114SD chassis with a 475 HP Cummins X12 Engine, Allison 3500RDS Transmission  *Special Order Chassis 

Body mounting on Chassis 

10" Aluminum telescoping boom with pendant control station 

Front mounted articulating hose reel, 600' (1") Capacity, articulating to drivers side

600' x 3/4" Jet rodder hose

50 GPM @ 3000 PSI Giant water system

1000 Gallon polyethylene water tank capacity with 10 year warranty 

6" Knife valve with center post and handle

A Flat style rear door in lieu of dome style door including hydraulic opener

Built in body prop

Debris tank drain screen placement

Electric vibrator 

Rear splash shield - rear flange mounted

Rubber pad on standard deflector

Screen assembly over drain port in debris tank 

Page 1 of  3
Page 19 of 358



 Requirement Specification

1/4 Turn ball valve water drain

50' capacity retractable hand gun hose reel

Air purge system

Centrifugal compressor fan flush out system 

Debris body “Power Flush” system, 8 jets

Hydro-excavation package 

Variable flow valve

Water pump remote oil drain 

Power guide “Reel Power” level wind guide

Behind cab boom support

Cone rack, hinges style/deck

Long handle storage placement - mounted in storage box under shelf

Rear mounted tow hooks

Remote boom grease zerk assembly

Remote debris tank grease zerk assembly

Tungsten infused carbide boom elbow and reducer

LED 4 Strobes (2) front bumper, (2) rear bumper 

LED Boom mounted flood lights with limb guard 

LED Flood light - Level wind guide

LED Mid body flood lights with guards

LED Rear mounted flood lights with limb guards

Two LED Strobes with limb guards, rear debris tank mounted

Two Mirror mounted LED strobe light with limb guard

Front hose reel camera placement

Low water alarm with light

Page 2 of  3
Page 20 of 358



 Requirement Specification

Omnibus Precision Power System 

Rear camera placement

Wireless remote control 

Traffic camera with color monitor

High-Pressure hand wand 51" x ½" stainless steel, pistol grip handle with adjustable handle

Hydro-X Lance Assembly 

Two High Pressure “Tommy Gun Style” HP wash down gun - ECE to Provide

Paper Vac-Con Manual 

Two 3/4" x 15' Length Leader Hose

Additional pipe rack 

Lazy Susan pipe rack 

Storage box behind cab 16" x 42" x 96"

Vac-Con unit painted: Elite Pepsi Blue

Safety Striping package - Green

Local dealer pre delivery and inspection

Delivery to customer facility

Additional discount offered by local dealer

TOTAL PRICE OFFERED TO SOURCEWELL MEMBER $544,758.64

Sales Tax - 9.3% $50,662.55

Vehicle Use Tax - 0.3% $1,634.28

Transfer Fee - $175.00 $175.00

TOTAL PRICE OFFERED TO SOURCEWELL MEMBER INCLUDING TAX $597,230.47

Delivery is _____ Days after receipt of order.
SOURCEWELL CONTRACT NO 101221-VAC
VENDOR/CONTRACT HOLDER: VAC-CON, INC. 969 HALL PARK RD GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043
CONTACT: M.J. DUBOIS EMAIL: MJDUBOIS@DUCOLLC.COM PHONE:  410-924-1004

THIS QUOTE IS VALID FOR (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF QUOTATION

Page 3 of  3
Page 21 of 358

mailto:MJDUBOIS@ATLANTICMACHINERYINC.COM


MORE POWER TO YOU 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CUSTOMER PO TO DEALER AUTHORIZATION LETTER 

 
Date April 17, 2023 
 
 
To: City of Port Orchard Public Works 
 Port Orchard, Washington 
  
 
RE: DEALER AUTHORIZATION TO RECEIVE SOURCEWELL MEMBER PO 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
We authorize your local dealer, Enviro-Clean Equipment to receive a Purchase Order from you 
for the purchase of a Vac-Con sewer cleaner model V311HEN/1000 as quoted to you on 
04/17/2023 according to the terms of our Sourcewell Contract Number 101221-VAC.  This letter 
is for a one-time authorized assignment of Contract Number 101221-VAC, and cannot be 
duplicated on future orders, or quotations without specific written consent of Vac-Con, Inc. 
Please provide us with a copy of your purchase order for our records.  You may email the 
Purchase Order to mjdubois@ducollc.com.  
 
Should you have any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

M.J. DuBois 
 
MJ DuBois 
Contract Administrator 
 

 

 
969 Hall Park Drive 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Tel: 904.284.4200 ● Fax: 904.284.3305 
www.vac-con.com 
 

Page 22 of 358



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
PURCHASES THROUGH INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS 

 

City Contract No.:  C075-14    
Interlocal Agreement with the Host Agency (government agency or Purchasing Co-Op name): Sourcewell 
 

Item Description: ______Vac-Con truck and equipment________       
               
               
 

Do you have an Interlocal agreement signed with the Contract (host) Agency? 
☒  If yes, where is it filed:  _Clerk’s_______  
  If no, get a mutually signed Agreement in place before you continue. 

 

State OSP Contract No.#: Sourcewell #101221     
If you have an Office of State Procurement (OSP) contract number you may skip the remainder of this test 
because the OSP contracts comply with remaining requirements and retain the documentation on hand for 
SAO to review in the OSP offices. 
 

Is this a technology contract?     
  If yes, do your own rules allow for technology contracts to be negotiated? 
  If your own rules allow for negotiated IT contracts, you can skip this test. 

 

Is this a services contract?     
  If yes, do your own rules allow services to be negotiated? 
  If your own rules allow for negotiated services, you can skip the remainder of the test. 
 

Are you using this as only one of multiple quotes, for a small purchase?     
  If yes, you can skip the remainder of the test.  Your purchase will not mandate the sealed bid rules. 
 
 

Checklist for Required Compliance 
Is the Host agency a public agency1?  ☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, what state laws apply to Host Agency: 

Minnesota 
Does the host agency have a requirement 
to run a newspaper ad in their local paper 
and did they comply 

☒  Yes ☐ No Federal and State contract rules usually don’t 
require a newspaper ad.  For others, attach the 
ad or place into the file 

Did they list on the public agency’s 
website?  

☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, state when and the address, and proof 
of date, address shall be attached or placed into 
the file. If No, you cannot use the bid. 

Did the bid & award comply with the 
Host agency’s state procurement laws? 

☒  Yes ☐ No If Yes, obtain documentation to support answer 
from Host Agency.  If No, you cannot use the 
bid. 

 

 
1 RCW 39.34.020 (1), “public agency” means any agency, political subdivision, or unit of local government of this state including, but 
not limited to, municipal corporations, quasi municipal corporations, special purpose districts, and local service districts; any agency 
of the state government; any agency of the United States; any Indian tribe recognized as such by the federal government; and any 
political subdivision of another state 

Page 23 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4E Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Prepared by: Tony Lang 

 Purchase of Materials to Construct  Public Works Director 
 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations for the      Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
 City’s Fleet of Electric Vehicles Atty Review Date: May 4, 2023 

 
Summary:  In an effort to lessen the City’s carbon footprint, as older vehicles in the City’s fleet age out of 
useful condition, the City has chosen—whenever feasible—to purchase Electric Vehicles (EV) for the fleet.  
The growing EV fleet requires charging stations to ensure the vehicles are continuously charged and ready 
for service. The EV Charging Station project (the “Project”) will be designed and constructed by Public 
Works Staff and located at the Public Works Shop facility.  Consistent with the City Procurement policies, 
adopted as Resolution 036-22, as amended, Public Works staff provided a materials list and requested 
quotes from three (3) vendors for the materials to construct the project. Three (3) quotes for the Charging 
Station Project material list were received. North Coast Electric provided the best price for the materials 
required for the project in the amount of $53,734.63 (applicable tax included).   
 
The proposed purchase, inclusive of estimated labor, is within 2023-2024 Biennial Budget authority. The 
City Council has approved procurement policies which require City Council authorization for purchases 
costing $35,000 or more.  The quote attached as Exhibit A is for the purchase of materials in an amount that 
exceeds the $35,000 authorization limit.  The Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the 
State Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein for this 
purchase by Resolution. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends adopting a Resolution to purchase materials in the amount of 
$53,734.63 (applicable WSST included) from North Coast Electric for the EV Charging Station Project. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Chapter 9- Capital Facilities 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution approving the purchase of materials for the EV 
Charging Station Project in the amount of $53,734.63.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  The EV Charging Station Project is included in the 2023-2024 Biennial budget. 
(GL Codes: 302.05.594.16.60, 411.05.594.34.30, 421.05.594.31.60 and 431.05.594.35.60) 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the resolution and provide alternative guidance.  
 
Attachments:   Resolution 

  Exhibit A- Vendor quote     

Page 24 of 358



        
RESOLUTION NO._____  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE PURCHASE OF MATERIALS TO CONSTRUCT ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING 
STATIONS FOR THE CITY’S FLEET OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES AND DOCUMENTING 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES.  
  
WHEREAS, to lessen the City’s carbon footprint, as older vehicles in the City’s fleet age 

out the City has chosen, whenever feasible, to purchase Electric Vehicles (EV) for the fleet; and     
 
WHEREAS, the growing EV fleet requires charging stations to ensure the vehicles are 

continuously charged and ready for service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the EV Charging Station project (the “Project”), will be designed and 

constructed by Public Works Staff and located at the Public Works Shop facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, consistent with the City procurement policies, adopted as Resolution 036-22, 

as amended, Public Works staff prepared a materials list and requested quotes from three (3) 
vendors for the materials to construct the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, three (3) quotes for the Charging Station Project material list were received; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 30, 2023, North Coast Electric provided the best price for the 

materials required for the project in the amount of $53,734.63 (applicable tax included); and 
 
 WHEREAS, funding for this project was authorized during the 2023-2024 Biennial 
Budget process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed purchase is within budgeted authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has approved procurement policies which require City 

Council authorization for purchasing items costing $35,000 or more; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Coast Electric’s quote attached as Exhibit A is for the purchase of 

materials in an amount that exceeds the $35,000 authorization limit; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein 
for this purchase by Resolution; now, therefore, 
 
  

Page 25 of 358



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
 THAT: The City Council approves the purchase of the materials listed in the document 

attached hereto in Exhibit A.  The Mayor or his designee is authorized to take all actions 
consistent with this authorization to effectuate this purchase. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of May 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 26 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 1 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

********* Shipping Instructions **********
* Contact: Mike Deline (360) 536-8330 *
******************************************

2ea HAM SG3N0075LE D16 SNTL-G3 1PH 3333.23/e 6666.46
75KVA 240X480-120/240V AL 60HZ 150C
3R

1ea MILB CT364811-HC 11X36X48 HNG ENCL 849.95/e 849.95
1ea MILB UC3433-XL 20A 13MTR SKT 355.32/e 355.32
1ea MILB K4722 600V ENCL MNTG RACK 474.38/e 474.38
1ea SIEM HF365NRA HDSS FUS 3P4W 600V 2135.60/e 2135.60

400A N3R SERIES A
6ea MFZ TRS400R 400A 600V RK5 TD FUSE 145.47/e 872.82

120FT PVC 1-1/2-IN-SCH-80-CONDUIT-10FT 387.10/c 464.52
*** SCHEDULE 80 ***

5ea PVC 1-1/2-IN-45D-SCH80-PLAIN 780.15/c 39.01
ELBOW PLAIN END

9ea PVC 1-1/2-IN-90D-SCH80-PLAIN 842.56/c 75.83
ELBOW PLAIN END

6ea PVC 1-1/2-IN-END-BELL 321.91/c 19.31
6ea PVC-TA1-1/2-KIT TA-LN-PB 161.76/c 9.71

CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING
************** Kit Components ***************
* 1 - PVC 1-1/2-IN-TERM-ADPT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 105-S 1-1/2 STL CND LKNT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 325 1-1/2 105D PLSTC BUSH *
*********************************************

20ea PVC 1-1/2-IN-COND-CPLG 64.58/c 12.92
100FT PVC 2-1/2-IN-SCH-80-CONDUIT-10FT 745.05/c 745.05

*** SCHEDULE 80 ***
5ea PVC 2-1/2-IN-90D-SCH80-BELLED 3207.99/c 160.40

ELBOW BELLED END
*** Continued on Next Page ***

Page 27 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 2 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

5ea PVC-TA2-1/2-KIT TA-LN-PB 479.32/c 23.97
CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING
************** Kit Components ***************
* 1 - PVC 2-1/2-IN-TERM-ADPT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 107-S 2-1/2 STL CND LKNT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 327 2-1/2 105D PLSTC BUSH *
*********************************************

20ea PVC 2-1/2-IN-COND-CPLG 225.32/c 45.06
300FT PVC 3/4-IN-SCH-80-CONDUIT-10FT 180.70/c 542.10

*** SCHEDULE 80 ***
2ea PVC 3-IN-END-BELL 499.40/c 9.99
16ea PVC-TA3-KIT TA-LN-PB 604.19/c 96.67

CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING
************** Kit Components ***************
* 1 - PVC 3-IN-TERM-ADPT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 108-S 3IN STL CND LOCKNUT *
* 1 - BRDGPORT 328 3-IN 105D PLSTC BUSH *
*********************************************

12ea PVC 3-IN-90D-SCH80-BELLED 3551.27/c 426.15
ELBOW BELLED END

26ea PVC 3-IN-COND-CPLG 241.51/c 62.79
4ea PVC CEMENT QT GRAY W/DAUBER 1384.91/c 55.40

LOW VOC
10ea B-LINE B2015PAZN 3" PIPE/CONDUIT 353.05/c 35.31

CLAMP, PRE-ASM, RIGID, 3", ZN PLTD
10ea B-LINE B2014PAZN 2 1/2" 322.57/c 32.26

PIPE/CONDUIT CLAMP, PRE-ASM, RIGID,
2 1/2", ZN PLTD

8ea B-LINE B2012PAZN 1 1/2" 255.85/c 20.47
PIPE/CONDUIT CLAMP, PRE-ASM, RIGID,
1 1/2", ZN PLTD

*** Continued on Next Page ***

Page 28 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 3 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

130ft B-LINE B22SH-120GLV CHNL, 1 5/8" X 468.81/c 609.45
1 5/8", 9/16" X 1 1/8" S-HOLES, 12
GA, 120

2ea B-LINE B280SQZN POST BASE 1 5/8" X 4204.30/c 84.09
1 5/8" CHNL, 6" X 6" X 3 1/2" BAS

60ea B-LINE TN224ZN TWIRL-NUT, 1/4"-20 201.31/c 120.79
THREAD, 1/4" NUT

60ea B-LINE TN228ZN TWIRL-NUT, 3/8"-16 214.22/c 128.53
THREAD, 3/8" NUT

100ea CUL 55424J 3/8-16 X 1-1/2 HEX HEAD 27.54/c 27.54
BOLT Z

100ea CUL 55420J 3/8-16 X 1-1/4 HEX HEAD 26.47/c 26.47
BOLT Z

100ea CUL 40743J 3/8 X 1-1/4 FENDER 12.54/c 12.54
WASHER ZP

100ea CUL 40335J 3/8 FLAT CUT WASHER ZP 5.50/c 5.50
100ea BRDGPORT 100 3/8 STEEL LOCKNUT 68.85/c 68.85
100ea CUL 55024J 1/4-20 X 1-1/2 HEX HEAD 14.78/c 14.78

BOLT Z
100ea CUL 55020J 1/4-20 X 1-1/4 HEX HEAD 13.29/c 13.29

BOLT Z
100ea CUL 40725J 1/4 X 1-1/4 FENDER 9.31/c 9.31

WASHER ZP
100ea CUL 40325J 1/4 FLAT CUT WASHER ZP 3.26/c 3.26

WE DO NOT STOCK 1/4-IN LOCKNUTS
5ea GRN DTAP3/8-16 3/8-16 DRILL/TAP 9.36/e 46.80

LIKELY SUBJECT TO TAX
5ea GRN DTAP1/4-20 DRILL/TAP,1/4-20 8.72/e 43.60

LIKELY SUBJECT TO TAX
1ea CRC 14050 16OZ CUTTING OIL 10.11/e 10.11

WE DO NOT STOCK THE GREASE.
*** Continued on Next Page ***

Page 29 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 4 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

4ea ERC 615880 5/8X8FT CU GROUND ROD 17.98/e 71.92
6ea ERC CP58 GRD ROD CLAMP,SIL BRZ,STD 2.65/e 15.90
4ea FOGTITE SP-1 GROUND ROD WELL 150.68/e 602.72

280ft WIRE XHHW-4/0-BRN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 5277.97/m 1477.83
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 140 ft

280ft WIRE XHHW-4/0-ORN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 5653.12/m 1582.87
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 140 ft

280ft WIRE XHHW-4/0-YEL-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 5653.12/m 1582.87
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 140 ft

280ft WIRE XHHW-4/0-GRY-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 5653.12/m 1582.87
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 140 ft

120ft WIRE THHN-4/0-BRN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 4908.09/m 588.97
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 60 ft

120ft WIRE THHN-4/0-ORN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 4908.09/m 588.97
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 60 ft

120ft WIRE THHN-4/0-YEL-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 4908.09/m 588.97
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 60 ft

120ft WIRE THHN-4/0-GRY-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 4908.09/m 588.97
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 2 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-1-BRN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 2065.80/m 123.95
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-1-ORN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 2065.80/m 123.95
*** Continued on Next Page ***

Page 30 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 5 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-1-YEL-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 2065.80/m 123.95
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-1-GRY-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 2065.80/M 123.95
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-250-BLK-37STR-CU-CUT REEL 5687.24/m 341.23
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-250-RED-37STR-CU-CUT REEL 5687.24/m 341.23
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

60ft WIRE THHN-250-WHT-37STR-CU-CUT REEL 5687.24/m 341.23
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 60 ft

500ft WIRE XHHW-6-BLK-7STR-CU-CUT REEL 899.36/m 449.68
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 500 ft

500ft WIRE XHHW-6-RED-7STR-CU-CUT REEL 899.36/m 449.68
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 500 ft

500ft WIRE XHHW-6-GRN-7STR-CU-CUT REEL 899.36/m 449.68
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 500 ft

200ft WIRE THHN-2-GRN-19STR-CU-CUT REEL 1897.87/m 379.57
Cut Ticket Comment
Cuts: 1 @ 200 ft

100ft WIRE BARE-SD-6-SOL-CU-CUT REEL 656.04/m 65.60
Cut Ticket Comment

*** Continued on Next Page ***

Page 31 of 358



��������������������,��������������������������
� QUOTE DATE � QUOTE NUMBER �
��������������������<�������������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������4�����������,�������������$
� � PAGE NO. �
� ��������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
��������������������������������4��������������

����������������,���������������������������������������������,�����������������������������������������,������������������������������������������������������
� CUST NO. � CUSTOMER ORDER NUMBER � RELEASE NUMBER � SALESPERSON �
����������������<���������������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������<�����������������������������������������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
����������������4�����������������������������,���������������4���������������������,�������������������4�����������������������������������,�����������������$
� WRITER � SHIP VIA � TERMS � FREIGHT ALLOWED �
����������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������������<�����������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������,�������������������������4�������������������������������������4���������������������������,�����������������������,���4�����������������$
� ORDER QTY � DESCRIPTION � Net Prc � Ext Prc �
��������������������<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
��������������������4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�����������������������<���������������������$

� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������<���������������������$
� � �
� � �
� � �
������������������������4����������������������

Quotation

239 Bruenn Ave
BREMERTON WA 98312-3107
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

03/30/23 S012503866
ORDER TO:

117 NORTH COAST ELECTRIC

239 Bruenn Ave

BREMERTON WA 98312-3107 6 of 6
360-479-5425 Fax 360-479-8470

QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
216 PROSPECT ST. 1535 VIVIAN CT.
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 PORT ORCHARD, WA 98367-6400

88290 EV CHARGING SERVICE 117 HOUSE

Lito Bocanegra Net No

Cuts: 1 @ 100 ft
1ea LOT SIEMENS 17403.00/e 17403.00
1ea LOT CROUSE-HINDS PRODUCTS 3716.60/l 3716.60

PM2CO4001703N3RPS
TAXES NOT INCLUDED

Subtotal 49162.52
S&H Chgs 0.00

Total 49162.52

This quote is conditioned on buyer�s acceptance of
North Coast Electric Company�s Standard Terms and
Conditions Applying to all Sales set out in form
NC055 available at https://www.northcoastelectric.com/
TermsandConditions or upon request.

9.3% WSST 4572.11
53,764.63TOTAL

Page 32 of 358



RCW 43.19.648 – Requires all local governments to convert their vehicle fleets to electricity or 
biofuel. Local governments are required to transition all vehicles to electricity or biofuels to the 
extent practicable. WAC 194-29-030 provides further guidance regarding this issue. If it is not 
practical for local governments to use electricity or biofuel for police, fire or emergency response 
vehicles, including utility vehicles frequently used for emergency response, it is encouraged to 
consider alternate fuels and vehicle technologies to displace gasoline and diesel fuel use.  

Please attach the quote for vehicle / equipment. 

Description of item: 

Procurement method: 

Department 

  Water  Sewer   Storm  Street      Public Works   DCD   Police   Admin 

Addition or Replacement 

Addition to Fleet - Please state business case for addition: 

Replacement Vehicle / Equipment being replaced: 

Fleet Standardization 

Requested Vehicle / Equipment follows fleet standardization 

Requested Vehicle / Equipment DOES NOT follow Standardization.  List items that are 
not fleet standard and reason for addition. 

ER&R 

Replacement or Addition 
Purchase Request

B

Page 33 of 358



Requested Vehicle / Equipment does not have a standard 

Cost 

Fleet standard cost 
Additional cost for consideration and business case: 

TOTAL 

STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES 

Police Department Standard Vehicle 
Model Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford Sedans Automatic Black City Decal Lights 

SUV 2WD Vehicle Number Radios 

4WD Antennas 

AWD 

Public Works and Planning Standard Truck 
Model Chassis Cab Size Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Ford 1/2 Ton Regular Automatic White City Logo Lights 

3/4 Ton Extended 2WD Truck Number Radios 

1 Ton Crew Cab 4WD Antennas 

Tool Boxes 

Administration and Planning Standard Vehicle 
Type Chassis Drive Train Color Graphics Accessories 

Electric Sedans Automatic White City Logo Lights 

Biofuel SUV 2WD Vehicle Number Radios 

4WD Antennas 

AWD 

I have reviewed the vehicles / equipment listed above and request approval for purchase. 

_____________________________ _________________________ 
Department Director Date 

Page 34 of 358



Approved for purchase by: 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
ER&R Representative   Date 

Page 35 of 358



04/17/2023 NEW SOURCEWELL SINGLE ENGINE COMBINATION JET/VACUUM SEWER CLEANER
Sourcewell Contract: 101221-VAC

Customer: CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PUBLIC WORKS Shipping: WASHINGTON
 Requirement Specification

Combination jet/vacuum sewer cleaner with all standard equipment V311HEN/1000 L H A -P

Sourcewell discount

11 Yard debris body

Freightliner model 114SD chassis with a 475 HP Cummins X12 Engine, Allison 3500RDS Transmission  *Special Order Chassis 

Body mounting on Chassis 

10" Aluminum telescoping boom with pendant control station 

Front mounted articulating hose reel, 600' (1") Capacity, articulating to drivers side

600' x 3/4" Jet rodder hose

50 GPM @ 3000 PSI Giant water system

1000 Gallon polyethylene water tank capacity with 10 year warranty 

6" Knife valve with center post and handle

A Flat style rear door in lieu of dome style door including hydraulic opener

Built in body prop

Debris tank drain screen placement

Electric vibrator 

Rear splash shield - rear flange mounted

Rubber pad on standard deflector

Screen assembly over drain port in debris tank 

Page 1 of  3
Page 36 of 358



 Requirement Specification

1/4 Turn ball valve water drain

50' capacity retractable hand gun hose reel

Air purge system

Centrifugal compressor fan flush out system 

Debris body “Power Flush” system, 8 jets

Hydro-excavation package 

Variable flow valve

Water pump remote oil drain 

Power guide “Reel Power” level wind guide

Behind cab boom support

Cone rack, hinges style/deck

Long handle storage placement - mounted in storage box under shelf

Rear mounted tow hooks

Remote boom grease zerk assembly

Remote debris tank grease zerk assembly

Tungsten infused carbide boom elbow and reducer

LED 4 Strobes (2) front bumper, (2) rear bumper 

LED Boom mounted flood lights with limb guard 

LED Flood light - Level wind guide

LED Mid body flood lights with guards

LED Rear mounted flood lights with limb guards

Two LED Strobes with limb guards, rear debris tank mounted

Two Mirror mounted LED strobe light with limb guard

Front hose reel camera placement

Low water alarm with light

Page 2 of  3
Page 37 of 358



 Requirement Specification

Omnibus Precision Power System 

Rear camera placement

Wireless remote control 

Traffic camera with color monitor

High-Pressure hand wand 51" x ½" stainless steel, pistol grip handle with adjustable handle

Hydro-X Lance Assembly 

Two High Pressure “Tommy Gun Style” HP wash down gun - ECE to Provide

Paper Vac-Con Manual 

Two 3/4" x 15' Length Leader Hose

Additional pipe rack 

Lazy Susan pipe rack 

Storage box behind cab 16" x 42" x 96"

Vac-Con unit painted: Elite Pepsi Blue

Safety Striping package - Green

Local dealer pre delivery and inspection

Delivery to customer facility

Additional discount offered by local dealer

TOTAL PRICE OFFERED TO SOURCEWELL MEMBER $544,758.64

Sales Tax - 9.3% $50,662.55

Vehicle Use Tax - 0.3% $1,634.28

Transfer Fee - $175.00 $175.00

TOTAL PRICE OFFERED TO SOURCEWELL MEMBER INCLUDING TAX $597,230.47

Delivery is _____ Days after receipt of order.
SOURCEWELL CONTRACT NO 101221-VAC
VENDOR/CONTRACT HOLDER: VAC-CON, INC. 969 HALL PARK RD GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043
CONTACT: M.J. DUBOIS EMAIL: MJDUBOIS@DUCOLLC.COM PHONE:  410-924-1004

THIS QUOTE IS VALID FOR (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF QUOTATION

Page 3 of  3
Page 38 of 358

mailto:MJDUBOIS@ATLANTICMACHINERYINC.COM


 
 

1 

City of Port Orchard: City Council Strategic Planning Session Summary 
April 14, 2023 | 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. | Port Orchard City Hall 

 
Purpose: The 2023 strategic planning session will focus on prioritizing budget amendments for 
the 2022-2023 budget. 
 
Welcome  
Sophie Glass, facilitator, welcomed the City Council and Mayor Putaansuu to their 2023 strategic 
planning session. Below is a list of City Council members in attendance: 

• Shawn Cucciardi 
• Jay Rosapepe 
• Scott Diener 
• John Clauson 

• Cindy Lucarelli 
• Fred Chang 
• Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tem) 

 
Presentation by the Mayor  
Mayor Rob Putaansuu provided updates on the recent accomplishments and current activities 
within the City, as described below: 

• State of the City: Port Orchard’s 2022 accomplishments and current work efforts. See 
Attachment A. 

• Capital Projects: status of and funding for Port Orchard’s capital projects. See Attachment 
B. 

• Sales Tax Collections: information regarding sales tax collection within Port Orchard. See 
Attachment C. 

• Guiding Principles Placard: a draft design of the placard with guiding principles for the 
Council Chambers. See Attachment D. 

• Permanent Supportive Housing Plans: draft architectural drawings of the 22 Riverstone 
house. See Attachment E. 

 
Midyear Review: Brainstorm 
Mayor Putaansuu reviewed the capital projects and personnel requests as part of the midyear 
review. See Attachment F. The Council discussed these requests and prioritized the results, as 
described in the section below.  
 
Capital Projects 
High Priority 

• Fully fund street paving 
• Reserve and set aside funds for the 2025/2026 Bay Street Construction Project 
• Orchard Street Plaza Design - $140K from park impact fees – Fund when available 

Page 39 of 358



 
 

2 

• Givens Sports Court - RCO grant & Rotary funded – Cost overruns funded by city 
• Key Card Project - $11K Department of Community Development proceed now - $44K 

for City Hall include in remodel project 
• LEED Commissioning Consultant - $6.7K now & $46.7K during construction 
• Elements of 2nd Sidney Force Main – Find funding as needed 

 
Mid-Priority 

• N/A 
 
Low Priority 

• Public Works Shop Expansion 
• Fire District Property Purchase 

 
As a policy directive, the City Council emphasized the importance of finishing capital projects 
underway before initiating new efforts. 
 
Personnel Requests 
High priority 

• Assistant Planner to Environmental Planner – Proceed now 
• GIS Specialist to GIS Coordinator – Part of Salary Survey 
• HR Specialist to HR Analyst - Part of Salary Survey 
• Senior Planner to Principal Planner - Part of Salary Survey 

Mid-Priority 
• HART Coordinator – Develop job description and salary range as part of Salary Survey 

 
Low-Priority 

• Police Department Office Manager - Develop job description and salary range as part of 
Salary Survey 

• Public Works Office Assistant 
• Accounting Position 
• Police Officers 
• Public Information Consultant Contract 

Discussion of Community Needs 
The City Council held a discussion regarding the high-level needs within the community, and 
some associated projects or policies to meet those needs. 
 

Page 40 of 358



 
 

3 

High-Level Needs Associated Projects 
Improve transportation (including traffic) • Sedgwick Roundabouts 

• Signal improvements 
• Dedicated taxes for transportation (e.g. 

transportation benefit district) 
• Bike and pedestrian investments  

Infrastructure for water and utilities • Avoid burdensome rate increases 
Provide sufficient housing • Support subsidized housing 
Support for vulnerable populations • Mile Hill Shelter annexation 

• Site for safe parking 
• Site for tent cities 
• Also recognize the limits of the City’s role 

as a social service provider 
Improve parks • Consider recreational facilities  
Enhance customer service • Make it easy for residents and businesses 

to get what they need from the City 
Improve safety • Address crime 

 
Wrap Up and Adjourn 
Mayor Putaansuu thanked the City Council for their excellent work. Councilmembers expressed 
appreciation for the collegial and supportive environment on the Council. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:40 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 358



2023 
State of the City
Mayor’s Report

03.9.2023

ATTACHMENT A

Page 42 of 358



2022 City 
Accomplishments

Law Enforcement

• Conducted a survey and heard that Law Enforcement & Crime reduction 
should be our highest priority.

• Hired 6 new officers

• Created a 5th Sergeant position to provide more oversite and supervision 

• Launched the police departments first independent social media site.

• Identified, purchased & launched a body-worn camera program.

• Supported the Marine Patrol unit to remove 35 derelict vessels from Sinclair 
inlet.

• Two additional police officers added in the 2023 budget. 

Page 43 of 358



New Police 
Officers

Page 44 of 358



2022 City 
Accomplishments

Comprehensive Planning

• Completed our Comprehensive Park Plan & updated our Park Impact Fee

• Completed our water rate study changing to a consumption model

Page 45 of 358



2022 City 
Accomplishments

Grants & Awards 

• $1 million Federal Appropriation for Bay Street Design
• $2.2 million KRCC award for Bay Street reconstruction
• $500,000 State grant for shoreline restoration related to the Community

Center Project
• $650,000 TIB grant for the Pottery pedestrian improvements at Cedar Heights

Middle School
• $1.4 million Safe Routes to Schools award for Sidney Road at Sidney Glenn

Elementary School
• $700,000 TIB award for the design of Tremont Phases II & III
• $400,000 for pavement overlay of Old Clifton Rd

Page 46 of 358



2022 City 
Accomplishments

Local Transportation Funding 

• 1/10th sales tax measure passed for the design and construction of Bethel Rd 
Phase I 

• More than $1.3 million in funding for road preservation and maintenance

Page 47 of 358



2023-2024 Budget

CAPITAL NEW HIRES PAVING STREET/TRANSPORTATIN 
PRESERVATION

Page 48 of 358



Capital Construction Funds Budgeted for 2023-2024~$41 million 

Capital Projects Number of Projects Funded

Parks & Facilities Capital Projects 4 $2,178,400

Transportation Capital Projects 11 $12,385,700

Water Capital Projects 6 $10,368,700

Storm Drainage Capital Projects 2 $1,200,000

Sewer Capital Projects 5 $14,832,900

Total Capital Projects 28 $40,965,700
Page 49 of 358



Capital Highlights 
• $18 million Marina Pump Station Project 

• $3 million for the Bethel/Lincoln & Mitchel/Lincoln Round-Abouts

• $7 million City Hall reskin and weatherization 

• $4 million Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway Phase II

• $8.7 million Well #11 Construction 

• $2 million new water treatment system Well #7 

• $650,000 modernization of sewer lift station controls

• $500,000 Melcher water pumpstation rebuild

• $500,000 new water pumpstation Sidney South Area

Page 50 of 358



Personnel Adjustments in 2023-2024 
• Public Works: 1 FTE - Engineering 1
• Dept. of Community Development: 1 FTE - Code Enforcement
• Dept. of Community Development: 0.5 FTE - Office Assistant I
• Police: 2 FTE - Patrol Officers

Page 51 of 358



2023-2024 Transportation 
Maintenance, Operations, Preservation

Fund 002 $6.235 million
• Including-Pavement Preservation: $1.352 million+
• Including-Lund Bridge Maintenance $338k+
• Including-Sidewalks, Traffic Control: $210k+

Page 52 of 358



Major 
Projects in 
Design Phase

Bethel Phase I

Bay Street Reconstruction related to sea level rise

Port Orchard Community Events Center

Shoreline Restoration related to the Community 
Center

Sewer improvements for Ruby Creek Sub Area

Page 53 of 358



Page 54 of 358



Page 55 of 358



Page 56 of 358



Page 57 of 358



Page 58 of 358



Page 59 of 358



Page 60 of 358



City Leadership

Mayor Rob Putaansuu, President of 
the Association of Washington 

Cities. Executive Board Puget Sound 
Regional Council.

Finance Director Noah Crocker, 
President of the Washington Public 
Treasures Association & Chair of the 

Association of Washington Cites 
Retro Advisory Committee.

City Clerk Brandy Wallace, AWC-
RMSA Operating Committee

Police Chief Matt Brown, Chair, 
WASPC Professional Services 

Committee, Chair, Kitsap County 
Law Enforcement Executive Group, 

Executive Board, Kitsap Critical 
Incident Response Team, Executive 
Board, Kitsap Law & Justice Council. 

Planning Director Nick Bond, PSRC 
Regional Staff Committee 

HR Director Debbie Lund, AWC 
Employee Benefits Advisory 

Committee 

Public Works Director Tony Lang, 
Solid Waste Advisory Committee. 

Page 61 of 358



Questions?

Page 62 of 358



HARD I

Capital ProjectS
Council Retreat

04.14.2023
Note: This is not a financiatty constrained pLan. This is intended to iltustrate the project estimates and potential. funding

ATTACHMENT B

Page 63 of 358



Community Events Center: Project Update Estimated Costs

Cateqory Expense Budget Expense Actuats

53,997

s2,509,073

Remaininq

51,003Misceltaneous 55,ooo

Property Purchase 52,508,073 s-

RFM Contract(Design) 52,760,688 51 ,293,577 51,467,111

Construction s22,826,239 s- s22,826,239

Total Estimated S 24,100,000 53,805 ,647 524,294,353

Page 64 of 358



r "- - :''

Source of Funds

Category Budset Actuats Remaining

A
a&

w

Page 65 of 358



Park lmpact Fee History: 2015-2023 YTD(as of 03.31.2023)"

Fiscal Period Budget Actuals

2024

2023* 2 574 300 s 821 642
2022

2021

2020

2019

201 8

2017

2016

2015

Page 66 of 358



Project is compteting the ROW Phase to acquire and then comptete the construction of the Bay Street Pedestrian Pathway (Segment 1,6-
1 1).

ROW-Consutting Services

Approved ROW-Purchase

Remaining ROW Purchases-Est

Construction

Total

s81 3,200

s3,229,000

s1,000,000

s5,000,000

51o,o4z,2oo

5573,200

s3,1 1 0,000

So

SO

s3,693,200

s240,000

51 1 9,000

s1,000,000

55,ooo,ooo

s6,35g,ooo

Funding Sources Remaininc Amount Cash/Debt Budgeted Funding Available

No

.REET 1 balance
as of 02.28.2023
-Sooo*
"'.".3?l :5
n-t^!i-"1 n ^n-i'-.; ," .-. - :

s75i,ci5

Page 67 of 358



Sales Tax Collections

Over/Under

Budget
Actual

Summary of Budget to
Actuals

2022

$ 2.443.763

7,783.763

5,340,000

$ (4.6s0.881)

1.914.119

6,565,000

2023 202/

$ (6.895.000)

6,895,000

$ {1 1 .545.881)

1.914.119

13,460,000

Biennial

14%

Percentage of Biennial
Budget Received

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

$ 543,145
626,678
524,545
548,1 1 8

665,944
682,922
668,890
742.304
707,709
693,521
730,655
649.332

2022

Actuals

$ o5tt, /1 1

684,990
572,419

2023 2024

$ 1.914,1 19

$
$
$
$
$
$

$

s

4

b

s 664,99U
$ 656./11

Biennial

$ 219,751

Year over Year
Change

$

$

$

1 '13,566

58,312
47.874

Actuals

12.97%

Change

20.91%
9.30%
9]3%

$ 6.565.UU0

$
b

$
$

$
$
$
a

$

$
$

$

491,484
591,156
456,559
439,218
543.259
539,409
582,239
611.427
587,557
577,620
600,359
544.712

2023 estimated
based on syr avg

Budget

s 3t4,92U

$
b

b

165,226

93,834
1 15,860

Budget vs Actual
(Over/Under)

24.36%

33.6%
15-9%

25.4o/o

#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUEI
#VALUE!

#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!

OverlUnder

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) Gollections

Over/Under

Budget
Actual

$ 1,808,000 $ 800,000 $ 800,000

1,945,903 377,088

Summary of Budget to
Actuals

2022

$ 137.903 $ (422.5121

2023 2024

$ (800.000) $ (1,222,9121
$ 377,088

$ 1.600.000

Biennial

$

$
$

$

(s46)
(29,01 5)
(45,857)

Year over Year
Ghange

Actuals

-'t .1 5'/o

-17A6%
-22.43%

Change

24o/o

Percentage of Biennial
Budget Received

January
February
March
Aprtl
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

$ 82.213
166,226
204,469
126,410
151,824
'190,761

)ao ott
172,743
181,406
151,035
121 ,635
147,258

2022

Actuals

$ 81,265
137,211
158,612

2023 2024

s 377.0UU
$
$

$
$
$
s
$
$

$
$ 'l5B,tt1z
$ 137,211
s 61.2b5

Biennial

$ 800,000

$
$
$
$
$
$
b

$
$
$
$
b

40,204
61 ,301
67,397
59,145
54,140
69,833

1 15,834
66,740
77,911
64,260
47,001
76.232

2023 estimated
based on Syr avg

Budget

$ 208,187

$
$
$

41,062
75,910
91,215

Budget vs Actual
(Over/Under)

123%

102.1%
123.8%
135.3%

#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUEI
#VALUE!
#VALUE!
#VALUE!

Over/Under

Page 68 of 358



ATTACHMENT C

Page 69 of 358



2b'

c{

c{ -l

o

o

+

q{
+

l
14',-5 5t1b" 11'-6 11t16"

zo PRELIM!NARY PLAN
FOR STUDY ONLY

HIU

LIT

SINE KIISAF

22 RIVERSTINE

PAEE

1

[F FI]UR

13L11'X 9,{"
BEDROOM #1

€
@
@N

5068-

HALL
@
@o

CLOSET
7'1" X2',-1'

40401S

2668

GARAGE
25'.{t'X l0'-2"

.+

\o
c.{

(f)

PoBcH
5'-1 1'e( 1 0L2"

o

a

KEENAN DESIGN, INC.
5458 CHTCO WAY NW

BREMERTON, WA 98312
360-4110-0813

bkeenan1563@gmail am

P11[

5gB

5BB

PI
SF

SF

SED P LAN

?Ffl SF= 1454 SF

ATTACHMENT D

Page 70 of 358



2b' b
ro

CT
12'-10" 4', 11',-2"

n\
*
(rl
ro

ct

c{ c{

ul

'n-
(f!
o
s

c{

ro
rn

b

o
.o

10'-111tB 3|4 5tb" 13'-b 1t4"

2b'

HIUSING KIISAF

LIT 22 RIVERSTINE

PAEE

2
OF FI]UR

=

PANTRY
2:Ll-33l8: o

N

w2430L

s83621 32
o

4D81521
I

I

BATH #1
10'-5" X 4'-1't"

Noo

@

-'l
I

J

J

?

40842

e{
\r}

od(zu
ULzu
u0a

G-tIt sl-E

'k_l

N
6

v
Fo
ps
H 3P

>i
5g
3P

J
zt

KITCHEN
10'4'X 14'-g'

)o
N

3
LIVING

16'$' X 14',-3"

9'-5" X 2L1"

so68-

CLOSET

2668

@Jo
o

a

KEENAN DESIGN, INC.
5458 CHTCO WAY NW

BREMERTON, WA 98312
360-440-0813

bkeenanl5b?@email com

FllIFISEO PLAN

5gB SF

5BB SF

?FR SF= t45[ SF

SECOND LEVEL

Page 71 of 358



3A'

r_- 2' 10'-1" 2',

o
cI

lfr
(()

(o .t

i\

ct
o

c{

+
c{

_l

c{ ct

c.l

c{
(o

ct

to
o

a
o
t-

c{

.o
c{

L__ ___l
13'-b 1t2" q'401t2 b'-5"

30'

KEENAN DESIGN, INC.
5458 CHTCO WAY NW

BREMERTON, WA 98312
360-440-0813

bkeenanlSA3@gmail com

HIU

LIT

SINE KITSAP

22 RIVERSIINE

PRIFISED PLAN

538 SF

5BB SF

7ER SF= t454 SF

a)o
o

ilo)
€

L
Sr

.o
(o

I
I

S
(n
h!

N

@

N

- 66-

1

DN

HALL

4868

4'-2" X 9'-1 0"

-2668-

o
@
N

oo
N

No
6
a

BEDROOM #4
8'-6'X 10'-9"

CLOSET
4jb$:.X"C{-

OFFICE
8'-6" X 6'6'

LAUNDRY
4'-8' X 2'-1 1"

BEDROOM #2
9'-9" x 9'-1 0"

a
Jo
o

CLOSET
5'-7'X2'JJ'

L
BEDROOM #3

10'-8" X 7'-5"

PAEE

3
[F FI]UR

Page 72 of 358



KEENAN DESIGN, INC.
5458 CHTCO WAY NW

BREMERTON, WA 98312
360-440-0813

bkeenanlSb3@email am

HIUSINE KITSAP

LII zz RIVERSTINE

PAEE

4
OF FOUR

FRI

5gB

5BB

PISED PLAN

SF

SF

7ER SF= 1454 SFPage 73 of 358



Mayor’s Budget ~ Mid-Year Review Highlights 

Mid-Year Review 
• Court Security – Not needed at this time.

• City Hall Construction Funding (Spring 2023) – Currently out to bid.

• Orchard Street Plaza Design – Consultant selection underway.

• Public Works Shop Expansion – In house design is the first step.

• SR166/Bay Street Construction – 2025/2026 Budget. Set money aside at mid-year?

• Well #7 - Preconstruction loan pending - $7M total project cost

• Water System Pipe Survey – Federally mandated lead service line survey.  Staff time only.

• Bay Street Lift Station – Pursuing grants and loans for preconstruction.

• Fire District Property Purchase at McCormick Village Park – Property has little value.

• Givens Sport Courts (RCO Grant-City Match) Rotary working to fund.

• Elements of 2nd Sidney Force Main - Related to Pottery complete Street.

• Key Card Entry 720 and additional Facilities – DCD $11K – City Hall $44K

• LEED Certification for Community Center $229,800 – Contract Already Approved

• LEED Commissioning Consultant $6.7K now - $46.7K during construction

Personnel Requests 

• Police Officers – Chief believes the Office Manager is a bigger need.

• Community Health Navigator – Redefine position similar to HART Coordinator.

• Permit Center Overlap – 60 days of overlap for a retirement.

• Public Works Office Assistant – Additional coverage provided by interns during the summer.

• Accounting Position – Position needs to be better defined.

• HR Specialist Promotion to HR Analysist – Promotion warranted.

• Police Department Office Manager

• Senior Planner Promotion to Principal Planner

• Assistant Planner to Environmental Planner

• GIS Specialist/Development Review to GIS Coordinator/Public Works Inspector. – Salary Survey

• Public Information Consultant Contract – Additional funding may be needed.

• Public Events Coordinator – After we open the Community Center 2027?

• Safety Coordinator – Request from HR to reduce L&I claims & exposure – 2025/2026

• City Administrator – 2025/2026

ATTACHMENT E

Page 74 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Public Hearing 6A Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Blueberry Apartments Development  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond, AICP 

 Agreement for Traffic Impact Fee Credits   DCD Director 
      Atty Routing No.: Development-Matter 11 
  Atty Review Date: March 30, 2023 

 
Summary:  The City has negotiated a development agreement for traffic impact fee credits with Blueberry 
Apartments QOZB, LLC. This agreement, if approved, would provide traffic impact fee credits to the developer 
of a 108-unit multifamily development located at the northwest corner of the intersection of SE Blueberry Rd 
and Bethel Rd SE (Blueberry Apartments) in exchange for the dedication of right-of-way for the future 
development of Bethel Road SE consistent with the adopted Bethel Sedgwick Corridor Plan.  
 
The Blueberry Apartments development consists of 108 multifamily units in six buildings with associated off-
street parking and amenities. The Development Agreement applies to the property as described in Exhibit A 
and identified in Exhibit B. The developer shall dedicate the portion of the property identified in Exhibit C, but 
the final alignment of the dedication will be determined following the completion of the final design for the 
roadway project. The benefit the developer receives through this Development Agreement is relief from the 
minimum ground floor elevation required of apartment building in POMC 20.32.100. In this instance, the 
property’s topography does not lend itself to providing the minimum ground floor elevation. However, the 
project still provides equal or better ground floor privacy for residents. 
 
The City and Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC have agreed to an estimated maximum traffic impact fee credit 
of $245,245.84 which will require payment at the time of building permit issuance. Blueberry Apartments 
QOZB, LLC will be required to pay all other related impact fees including park impact fees. Additionally, the 
developer is required to dedicate that portion of right-of-way for Bethel Rd SE prior to the issuance of any 
Certificate of Occupancy related to the development.  
 
POMC 20.26 (Development Agreements) outlines the process for development agreement approval.  In this 
case, the application for the development agreement was filed by Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC on March 
27, 2023. The City determined the application to be complete on March 31, 2023. The City of Port Orchard’s 
SEPA Responsible Official issued a Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance for the associated development 
on September 16, 2022, and the City advertised the May 9, 2023 Public Hearing on April 27, 2023 consistent 
with the requirements of Port Orchard Municipal Code 20.26.050. The Department of Community 
Development has not received any comments in response to the Notice of Hearing. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The Development Agreement includes Project 2.04A on the City impact 
fee schedule which is identified in the Bethel Sedgwick Corridor Plan as incorporated into the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Page 75 of 358



Public Hearing 6A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing on the Blueberry 
 Apartment development agreement for traffic impact fee credits.  
 
 Fiscal Impact: The proposed agreement will result in the developer dedicating property necessary for the 
 construction of Bethel Road SE as described in the Bethel Sedgwick Corridor Plan saving the city money 
 for property acquisition and staff resources.  

 
 Alternatives:  Do not approve the Development Agreement; request changes to the Development 
 Agreement. 
 
 Attachments:  Please see the following items as attached to the corresponding business item in the City 
 Council packet for 5/9/23 (Business Item 8B):  Ordinance; Blueberry Apartments Development 
 Agreement; Exhibits to Blueberry Apartments Development Agreement. 

 

Page 76 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8A Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Approving     Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 
 the Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way,  City Clerk 
 an Alley Commonly Known as Mystery     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0005 
 Lane, and the Westerly Portion of Atty Review Date: April 6, 2023 
 Harrison Avenue   

 
 
Summary:  On April 11, 2023, a public hearing was held to take testimony on whether the City Council 
should vacate City Right-of-Way (ROW), an alley commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly 
portion of Harrison Avenue, depicted as follows:  
The City received the petition for these 
vacations from the owners of two of the parcels 
that would benefit from these vacations: (1) 
William and Virginia Anderson, owners of Parcel 
No. 4060-008-022-0105; and (2) Marcailla 
Barden, owner of Parcel No. 352401-1-004-
2000.  
 
The public hearing was closed, and Council 
moved to direct this item to a future council 
meeting agenda.  
 
The Petitioners submitted sworn statements of 
support from abutting property owners who 
would also benefit from the vacation of these 
areas.  
Consistent with the requirements of POMC 
Chapter 12.08, Staff has determined the 
following with regards to the proposed street 
vacation:   
 
The area sought to be vacated was added to the 
City by the Town Council, on April 6, 1891. To 
date the City has not opened the ROW.  
 
The City Engineer has reviewed the street vacation petition and has indicated the following: 

Page 77 of 358



Business Item 8A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

1. The area sought to be vacated is not needed for public travel now or in the foreseeable future.  
2. The functionality of the area sought to be vacated for public purposes is nonexistent.  
3. The vacation of the area would not adversely affect any City utilities, such as water, sewer, or 

storm.  
4. The City has not included any projects within the proposed vacation area as part of its six-year 

road plan, nor has the City any scheduled capital facilities projects on this property. 
 

The Community Development Director stated the following: 
1. Vacation of the proposed area does not create potential or actual land uses that are inconsistent 

with City growth plans and goals.  This area has not been identified in the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

The Petitioners, represented by legal counsel, have requested a waiver of the City’s requirement to pay 
an amount not to exceed the appraised value of the area to be vacated prior to the vacation. The bases 
for the request are stated in the letter of support submitted by Petitioners’ legal counsel. POMC 
12.08.050 makes the payment of compensation a mandatory requirement. If the City Council desired to 
waive the compensation requirement, staff would need to prepare an ordinance amending POMC 
12.08.050 to allow for a modification to that code section.   
 
Recommendation: Based on the report provided to the Council, staff recommends approving the street 
vacation petitions, as presented.  
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt an Ordinance, vacating the City’s right-of-way, an alley 
commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  To be determined. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the street vacation based on the need of the City. 

 
Attachments: Ordinance  

 Petition and Supporting Documents 
 Kitsap Law Group Letter of Support 
 RESOLVE Appraisal  
    

Page 78 of 358



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
VACATING A PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE, UNOPENED CITY RIGHT-
OF-WAY AN ALLEY COMMONLY KNOWN AS MYSTERY LANE AND THE 
WESTERLY PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE IN PORT ORCHARD, 
WASHINGTON; ESTABLISHING THE CONDITIONS OF SUCH VACATION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, associated petitions to vacate City right-of-way (ROW), an alley 
commonly known as Mystery Lane and the westerly portion of Harrison Avenue, was 
submitted to the City by William C. and Virginia Anderson, owners of 812 Mystery Lane 
Street, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4060-008-022-0105 and Macailla Barden, owner of 
1145 Sidney Avenue, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 352401-1-004-2000 (“Petitioners”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Petitioners sought signatures to join the petition by adjoining 
property owners, which collectively represent the owners of more than two thirds of 
the abutting property, and all have signed and are in support of the petition; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 14, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 025-23, 
fixing April 11, 2023, as the date for a public hearing on the street vacation petition, 
which is not more than 60 days or less than 20 days after passage of the Resolution 
(POMC Section 12.08.010(3) and RCW 35.79); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk provided public notice of the pending street vacation 
petition and public hearing thereon as required by law (POMC Section 12.08.020(1) and 
RCW 35.79); and  
 

WHEREAS, staff reviewed the petition and, in light of the provisions of POMC 
chapter 12.08.060, determined this proposed street vacation is not subject to the 1889-
1890 Laws of Washington, Chapter 19, Section 32 (the nonuser statue) as it was part of 
the original creation of the City boundaries in 1890; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on April 11, 2023, on the 
proposed street vacation; now, therefore, 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.    Non-user Statute.  Under POMC Section 12.08.060(5), staff has 
determined the area proposed for vacation has not been vacated by lapse of time under 
the non-user statute. 
 

Page 79 of 358



Ordinance No. _____ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 Section 2.   Public Notice.  The City Council finds that the City Clerk provided 
at least 20 days’ and not more than 60 days’ notice of the pendency of the street 
vacation petition and the public hearing thereon, as required by POMC Section 
12.08.020 and RCW 35.79, including notice being posted on the street or alley sought to 
be vacated. 
 
 Section 3.    Staff Report.  Staff has prepared a report and recommendation on 
the proposed vacation, which is dated April 11, 2023.  A copy of this report was available 
to the public prior to the public hearing. 
 
 Section 4. Public Hearing. The public hearing was held on the petition for 
street vacation on April 11. 2023.   
 
 Section 5.   Testimony at Public Hearing.  The Public Hearing was held and no 
one from the public commented on this street vacation. 
 
 Section 6. City Council Findings.  After hearing the testimony of the public, if 
any, and considering the staff report and all other relevant facts, the City Council finds 
as follows:   
 

a. The area sought to be vacated was added to the City by the Town Council, on 
April 6, 1891. To date the City has not opened the ROW.  

b. The area sought to be vacated is not needed for public travel now or in the 
foreseeable future.  

c. The functionality of the area sought to be vacated for public purposes is 
nonexistent.  

d. The vacation of the area would not adversely affect any City utilities, such as 
water, sewer, or storm.  

e. The City has not included any projects within the proposed vacation area as part 
of its six-year road plan, nor has the City any scheduled capital facilities projects 
on this property. 

f. Vacation of the proposed area does not create potential or actual land uses that 
are inconsistent with City growth plans and goals.  This area has not been 
identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 Section 7. City Council Conclusions.  The City Council has determined that 
the area proposed for vacation may be vacated and hereby approves the street vacation 
petition. 
 
 Section 8. Compensation and Recording.  A certified copy of this Ordinance 
vacating the proposed area shall be recorded by the City Clerk with the Kitsap County 
Auditor’s office, as required by RCW 35.79.030, upon receipt by the City of 
compensation from property owners adjacent to the area to be vacated in an amount 
which does not exceed the full appraised value of the area so vacated. 

Page 80 of 358



Ordinance No. _____ 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 Section 9.   Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   
 
 Section 10.   Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved 
summary consisting of the title.  
 
 Section 11.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
and effect five days after publication, as provided by law. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor 
and attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 
2023. 
 
            
             

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR:    
    
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Charlotte Archer, City Attorney   Scott Diener, Councilmember 
 
 
 
PUBLISHED:     
EFFECTIVE DATE:    
 

Page 81 of 358



KrSAP
LAw Gnoup

3212 NW Byron Street #101 . Silverdale, WA 98383
Telephone (360)692-6415 . Fax (360) 692-1257

www.kitsaplawgroup.com

January 23,2023

City Clerk
City of Port Orchard
216 Prospect Street
Porl Orchard, WA 98366

Petition to Vacate City Right-of-Way Application
Block 8, Sweany's Second Addition

Greetings:

On behalf of William C. Anderson, Virginia Anderson and Macailla Barden, we are submitting
the enclosed Petition to Vacate City Right of Way, together with the following documents:

o Map of the area to be vacated, with dimensions and new legal descriptions;
o Summary Appraisal Report by Anthony Gibbons;
. Support for Vacation of Right-of-Way Petition by Abutting Property Owners;
. Application processing fee of $120;
o The appraisal fee of $500 is requested to be waived in light the Gibbons' Appraisal

To give full consideration of the merits of this application, as well as the Petitioner's request that
the City of Port Orchard not require payment of compensation in connection with this Petition,
some background is in order.

The neighborhood subject to this Petition has long been known by local surveyors, the City of Port

Orchard and the Kitsap County Assessor's office to have boundary line problems. A simple review
of the Kitsap County Assessor's website depicts property lines running through many of these

property owners' residences. Most recently, these problems manifested themselves in the lawsuit
brought by Ms. Ann Wiggins under Kitsap County Superior Court Case No. 19-2-00985-18 to
quiet title to the'ouse and occupancy lines" of her home, which deviated from the legal description
of her property in her deed.

In this lawsuit, three neighbors to Ms. Wiggins and the City of Port Orchard were brought in as

defendants. In addition to these neighbors and the City, three different title insurance companies,

and several local surveyors, including Lyle "Reed" Mueller, Fred Kegel, Steve Ottmar and Dan

Johnson have become involved to find a solution to this problem. In the Wiggins lawsuit, the
parties worked together to resolve her boundary line problems by order entered in February 2020.
But in doing so, all involved quickly became aware there was a larger problem that needed to be

dealt with. Should this problem continue to be ignored, we would expect the City and these

William H. Broughton
David P. Horton
David A. Weibel

fohn R. Brennan
jay T. Dutcher
Ronald C. T empleton - r etir ed

Re

JAN .$ 0 2023

D
REc

crry OF PORT

s

Page 82 of 358



January 25,2023
2lP age

neighbors to repeatedly be brought into further litigation in the years to come. Rather than waiting
for the next lawsuit to be filed, First American Title Insurance Company, Fidelity National Title
Insurance Company and the affected neighbors have chosen to proactively work together to resolve
this problem by virtue of a boundary line agreement provided for under RCW 58.04.007. It is our
sincere hope that the City both appreciates and will cooperate with this effort as well.

As part of this process, surveyors Reed Mueller, Fred Kegel and Steve Ottmar researched the
underlying problem and then proceeded to mark out the "use and occupancy lines" for each

affected property owner. Understanding the underlying boundary line problem necessarily begins
in 1890, shortly after the establishment of Sidney (now the City of Port Orchard) when there were
several subdivision plats established within Section 35, Township 24 North, Range I East, W.M.,
including the plat of Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney (the "Plat") that was recorded in 1 89 I .

From the early 1900s to the 1950s, surveys of this area were generally consistent. However, more
recent surveys, i.e., 1980-2000s, have not honored the historic layout of the area. Rather, they
have relied upon a section subdivision breakdown, dividing the section using measured dimensions
to accepted existing perimeter section control monuments, resulting in the property line "chaos"
that is readily apparent in the Kitsap County Assessor's aerial photographs of these properties.

In February 2021, surveyor Fred Kegel with N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc. completed the
necessary field and drafting work to complete a preliminary suvey drawing of the affected
properties. The "use and occupancy lines" were then staked so each owner could see where their
proposed property lines would be located. However, this survey work also disclosed that there is
an unopened alley and a portion of a street (Harrison Street) dedicated under the original 1891

Sweany's Second Addition to Sidney Plat that are being used and occupied by these residences

and garages of these properties. Consequently, to fully resolve this problem a petition to vacate

is required.

In support of this Petition, we engaged the services of appraiser Anthony Gibbons, with RE-
SOLVE, to complete an appraisal of the area to be vacated who determined its value to be

$16,900.

Port Orchard Municipal Code 12.08.050(1)(a) generally requires compensation be paid to the

City for avacated right of way in the amount of one-half of this value:

(1) Ordinances vacating any street, alley, public place or portion thereof shall not
be adopted by the city council until the owners of the property abutting such area

shall compensate the city in the amount required by this section.
(a) If the street, alley, public place or portion thereof has not been part of adedicated
public right-of-way for 25 years or more, or if the subject property to be vacated

was not acquired at public expense, the owners of property abutting the street shall
compensate the city in an amount that does not exceed one-half of the appraised

value of the street.

Page 83 of 358



January 25,2023
3lPage

However, the compensation may be waived in the case of In-Lieu Transfers under POMC
12.08.050(2):

(2) In-Lieu Transfers of Property. Conveyances of other property acceptable to the

city may be made in lieu of the payment required by this section, whether required
to mitigate adverse impacts of the vacation or otherwise. When such a transfer is

proposed for street purposes, the value of the property (as determined in subsections
(lXa) through (c) of this section) shall be credited to the required payment. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel is less than the payment required by subsection (l)(a)
through (c) of this section, the petitioners shall pay the difference to the city. When
the value of the in-lieu parcel exceeds the payment required by subsections (1)(a)

through (c) of this section, the city shall pay the difference to the petitioner. In
addition, the petitioner shall be responsible for all costs associated with this
transfer, in the same manner as a property purchase, including but not limited to,

title insurance, attorney review of the title,hazardous materials/waste testing, etc.

If the Petition is approved, we will then take the final step in this process of completing a
boundary line agreement and/or an agreed order to quiet title to these property line changes and

to remove any cloud on title to these properties, which necessarily would include the City's
ULID parcel no. 4060-008-037-0009. In the case of this parcel, Kitsap County Assessor's aerial

photographs reflect that the property owner's home to the south is located within the City's
parcel. Petitioners respectfully submit that this proposed neighborhood BLA essentially amounts

to an in lieu transfer of property and so no compensation should be charged for the vacation. No

compensation fee should be assessed also because, as a result of the considerable time, effort and

resources already committed to this venture by Petitioners, the City stands to avoid repeated,

expensive and time-consuming litigation over this issue for years to come.

We are available, as needed, to answer questions or provide any additional information needed to

process this petition.

Very truly yours,

KITSAP LAW GROUP FIDELITY NATIONAL LAW GROUP

/s/David A. Weibel /s/Janis G. White

David A. Weibel
Attorney for William & Virginia
Anderson
3212 NW Byron St., Suite 101,

Silverdale, WA 98393
Office: 360-692-6415
Email: dweibel@kitsaplawgroup.com

Janis G. White
Attorney for Macailla Barden
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House
Litigation
701 5th Avenue, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Office: (206)224-6004
Email: Janis.White@fnt.com

Cc: Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney

Page 84 of 358



a

EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK B AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE.

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE,

VACATE PLAT A
OF 17 FEET SROU FI ST.

SCALE: 1" 1 OO'

N
V
O()

J
00

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131 L!

Ld
Z-
O
a

LOT AREA OT VACATED PORTIONS:
LLEY - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.t

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = J787 S.F.t
A

TA\ N.L. Olson & Associates,Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

L(

A

B

C
J

K

m

v
Or\
Ja

D

L

r
I

\,

M

LJ

?a
O

-)Of;a6
Mo
M6
<3r

52

JOB NO.: 11367
2451 Bcthel Avcnuc, P.O. tsox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

Page 85 of 358



EXHIBIT E

PORTION OF TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 2OO8O4O4O131 , WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(

FREDERICK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTRATION NO. 14065

q ,1 ,^

Page 86 of 358



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MAT]AS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

lsls !-q, rNcLUsrlE, BLooK I oF S$EANyS 2N0 ADo|T|ON TO StoNEy, AS
Pqr PLAT RECORDED tN VOLUME 2 0F pLATS, PAGE 18. RECoRoS 0F
{!TS4P cguNry, wAsHtNGroN, As suR\EyED AND STAKED , AND AS SHOW},I
ON SUR\EY RECORDEO IN IOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SUR\IEYS, AFN
TOGEIHER WlH 1HAT PORIION OF AI,I.EY TIIIHIN SAIO

BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTIONNO.---

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008-004-0008

lqls 4-6, rNcLUSt\€, BLOCK 8 OF SVGANTS 2N0 ADDII|ON T0 SlDNEy. As
PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PL{TS, PACE 18, RECORDS OF
K SAP COUNTY. WASHINGTON. AS SURIEY€O AND STAKED , ANO AS SHOI4II
ON SUR\EY R€CORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES 

- 

Of SUR!EIs, AfN
TOGEIHER III1H IHAT PORIION OF ATIEY ITIIHIN SAID

BLOCK E THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUNON
NO.-.-.-...,.--.----

DAVIO NESSETH 4060-008-007-0005

LOTS 7 AND 6, AND IHE NORIH 10 FEET Of' LOT 9, ELOCK 6 OF SI4EANYS
?ryq A9DrnqN To srDNEy, As pER pLAr RECoRDE0 tN VOLUME 2 OF pLArS,
PACE !8, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINCTON, AS SUR\€YED AND
STAKEO . AND AS SHOWT.I ON SUR\EY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PACES

- 

OF SURVE\6, AFN TOGEfiER I1IIH IHAT
PORNON OF ALITY IIIIHIN SAID BLOCK 8 IHAT WAS VACATED PER CITY OF
PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009-0003

LOT 9, EXeEPT rHE NORIH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, ANo LOTS 10-1,+, tNCLuStlE,
BLOCK 8 OF SVEANYS zND ADDINOiI IO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO
IN VOLUME 2 OF PLAIS. PAGE 18, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNW.
WASHINGTON, AS SUR\EYED AND STAKEO , ANO AS SHOT1TI ON SIJRIEY
RECORDEO IN VOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

Of SUR\EYS. AFN
TOGETHER V?ITH IHAT POR'IION OF AUTY WIHIN SAID

BLOCK 8 fiAT WAS VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.---_

E ELITE EDGE CONSULTING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

15 16, BLOCK 8 OF S'{EANYS 2NO ADDITION 10 SDNEY, AS PER
PAGE 18. RECOROS OF KITSAP2oF
STAKEO . ANO AS SHO|JiI.I ON

OF AFN

8 THAT VACATEO PER CIIY

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERTIES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

2

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 21 AND IHE SOU1H ONE-HAI.f OF LOT 19, SLOCK 8 OF
S]'VEANYS 2ND AODI]ION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECOROEO IN VOLUME 2
OF PLATS, PAGE 16, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY. WASHINOTON, AS
srJR\ElEo AND STAKED , ANO AS 51t0WN ON SUR!€Y RECORDED tN
voLUME+ PAGES _ OF SUR!E\s, AFN +
TOGFII{ER HlH IHAT POR'TION OF AUTY $ITHIN SAID BLOCK 8 1HAT WAS
VACAIEO PER CIW OF PORT ORCfIARD RESOI.UIION NO.-_

H MACAILLA BAROEN 352401 -1 -004-2000 usE BLAIOC0 FOR gARoENy'l/lcctNs rED

CIry OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

LlE 37-+21|NCLUS1!E' BLOCK I 0F SWEANYS 2ND AoDlTloN TO StDNEy,
AS PER PLAT RECOROED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE T6, RECORDS OF'
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AS SUR\E\GD AND STAKED , AND AS SHOI.TII
Ot.I SURVEY RECORDEO IN VOLUME- PACES 

- 

OF SUR!E\s. AFN
TOOEIHER ITIfi "IHAT PORIION OF HARRISON A\E.

ADJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT WAS VACAIED PER CIfi OF PORT
ORCHARO RESOLUTION NO._---_ ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH fiAT PORTION
oF ALLEY VilIHlN SAID SLOCK 8 IHAT WAS vAcArED PER CITY 0F PORT
ORCHARD RESOLUTION NO.-

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-008-0J3-0003

LOTS 33-T6, INCLUSIIE, BLOCK 8 OF SI'IEANYS 2NO ADDITION TO SIDNEY,
AS PER PLAT RECORDEO IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18, RECOROS OF
KITSAP COUNry WASHINGTON, EXCEPT IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT J5,
AS SUR\€\€O AND STAKED . AND AS SHOIIN ON SURIEY RECOROEO IN
voLUME_ PAGES _ 0F SIJR\EYS, AFN --.---TOCEIHER W]H I}IAT PORIION OF HARRISON AI/E, AOJACENT TO SAID
BLOCI( 8. THAT WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.- ALSO TOGEIHER IIIIH IHAT PORIION OF AUEY TIIIHIN SAIO
BLOCK 8 HAT ViAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIIONNO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32, INCLUS!€, TOGE1HER YIIIH THE SOUIH 20.90 FEST OF LOT
33, ELOCK 8 OF SV€ANVS 2ND AOOIIION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT
RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS. PAGE 18, RECOROS OF KITSAP COUNTY.
WASHINGION, EXCEPT IHE SOU]H 17.20 FEET OF LOT 30. AS SUR\EYED
1'Nq 9rAK€0 , AND As SHoriN oN SUR\EY REC0RoED lN V0t-uME-
PACES 

- 

OF SURIEYS, AFN 

- 

BEING A REFERENCE
TO PARCEL 3 ON SUR!€YS IN VOLUME 88. PAGE 224, TOGEIHER UrH
IHAT PORTION OF HARRISON A!8, AOJACENT TO SAID BLOCK 8, IHAT I/VAS
VACATED PER CIW OF PORT ORCI{ARO RESOLI,JIION NO.- ALSO
TOCEIHER IVIIH IHAT PORTION OF AUTY W]HIN SAID BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS
VACA'IED PER CIW OF PORT ORCHARO RESOLUTON NO.---_

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

LOTS 27-29, INCLU$VE. AND lHE SOUIII 17.20 FEET OF LOT 50, BLOCK 6
oF swEANyS 2ND ADorIloN TO StDNEy, AS pgR PLAT RECORDEO tN
vqLuMq ? 0f pLATs, pAcE 16, RECORoS oF KtrsAp couNTy, wAsHtNoToN.
AS SUR\EYED ANO STAKEO , ANO AS SHOVN ON SUR\EY RECOROED INyqlu!4E- eAcEs _ oF s1,R\€15, AFN _ BE|No A
REFERENCE TO PARCIL 2 ON SUR!€Y IN VOLUME 8€, PAGE 224,'TOGEfiER
IIIIH ]HAT POR'TION OF HARRISON A!8. AO,'AC€NT TO SAIO BLOEK 8, THAT
WAS VACAIED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO.__-
ALSO TOGEIHER III'IH IHAT PORTION OF ALEY TTIIHIN SAID BLOCK E ]HAT
WAS VACA.IEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD RESOLUTIONNO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060- 008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN 8LA/OCD TBD

N ANN WGGINS 352401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, pAcE 141 IBD

Page 87 of 358



RE.SOLVE

Anthony Gibbons, MAI
Direct Dial 206 909-1046
Email: agibbons@realestatesolve.com

Janis G. White
Senior Trial Counsel, In-House Litigation
Fidelity National Law Group
701 5th Avenne, Suite 2710
Seattle, WA 98104
Email: Janis. White@fnf.corn

GIBBONS & RIELY PLLC
Real Estate Appraisal, Counseling & Mediation

261 Madison Avenue South, Suite 102
Bainbridge, Washington 9 81 1 0 -257 9

September 23,2021

David A. Weibel
Attorney-at-law
Templeton Horton Weibel & Broughton,PLLC
3212 NW Byron St Ste 101

Silverdale, WA 98383-9 1 54
Email : dweibel@kitsaplaweroup.com

Harrison & Alley Vacation
South of Sroufe Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane
Port Orchard, WA

Dear Ms. White and Mr. Weibel

At your request, we have prepared an appraisal of certain unused rightof-way, consisting of an unimproved

17' alley, and the west 7.5' of an unimproved section of Harrison Avenue, in Porl Orchard, WA. The

property is intended for vacation, and will accrue to neighboring ownerships, for purposes of clearing

certain title issues and set-back encroachrnents. The property intended for vacation comprises 1 1,304sf.

This appraisal has been prepared in accordance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice (USPAP). It is presented as a summary Appraisal Report and complies with the reporting
requirements of USPAP for such reports. The scope of our work is limited to the Sales Comparison

Approach to value. Use of this report is limited to the client.

The property is appraised according to the value accrued to each property as a consequence ofthe vacation,

with the use of a traditional Before & After methodology. Our conclusion reflects the market value of the
property in question.

As a result of our investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following market value for the

subject property, as of the date of value, September 15tfi,2027, the date of inspection:

Market Value (11,304sf @ $1.50/sf) $16o9oo

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony Gibbons, MAI

RE

Rel:21094

RE.SOLVE

Page 88 of 358



APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENT
Presented in a

SUMMARY APPRAISAL REPORT

Identity of Property

The subject ofthis report is certain right-of-way located adjacent to
l2-properties (A through G, I through M), located south of Sroufe

Street, in the vicinity of Mystery Lane, Port Orchard, WA 98366.

Client and Intended Users

The client and intended Llsers are Janis White and David Weibel, as

clients, as well as authorized associates, representatives or agents.
There are no other intended users.

Intended Use

This appraisal is to be used for the purpose of arriving at a market

value for purposes ofstreet vacation. Please note that the concluded

value is developed prior to any discounts as may be required by

ordinance in the vacation of right-of-way.

Property Rights Appraised

Fee simple interest. The property is appraised based on the value that will accrue to it, when adjoined to

each ofthe 12 neighboring parcels.

Type of Value

The purpose of this appraisal is to establish the market value of the subject property. The term "market

valne" is defined in The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal6th Edition (2015) as follows:

"The most probable price that a property should bring in a competitive and open market

under all conditions requisite to afair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and

knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this

definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specffied date and the passing of title from
seller to the buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and seller are typically motivated;
Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider

their best interests;
A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market,'

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial
arrangements comparable thereto; and
The price represents the normal considerationfor the property sold unaffected by

special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated

with the sale."

a.

b.

d.

e.

L

I

Jfl
t

*fl

I

tg

c

D

E

F

G

a
(J
o
!
co il

L

M

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORllONSr
\ALL€Y - 505' r t7' = 8585 s,F.r

HARRISON Avg. .- 505' x 7.5' a 3787 S.F.*

L.l

l-uz
af
6

FEE'
AYE.

A\

l.(J
o
J
@

lob No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 89 of 358



Conditions of Appraisal

There are three Extraordinary Assurnptions and one Hypothetical Condition, all required for reasonable

analysis.

1. EA 1 : Our appraisal assumes that the subject ROW would be approved for vacation.
2. EA2: ln our Before and After evaluation of the 12-parcels, we have not appraised improvements

situated on the subject properties, considering only land in our valuation.
3. HC 1: A Before and After analysis, for a simple transition, is developed on the same day - that is

the After condition assumes that the ROW is part of the individual properties. This condition is
required for purposes ofreasonable analysis.

Please note, that in our analysis of each property, our evaluation is limited to a determination of the

reasonable value that would accrue through the incremental addition of acreage. The development of the

Before and After values is only for the pllrposes of opining on the value of the property to be vacated.

The date of value is the date of inspection, September 75tt',2020

Sales and Listing History

The subject property has been under city ownership for decades.

Scope of Work

The scope of work performed in this appraisal is in compliance with the specific guidelines of the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).

The subject land area is based on survey, and excludes a small portion of the alley that was previously

vacated.

The property appraised is not capable ofindividual development on account ofshape and property condition
(raw condition, lack of utilities, and slope). The highest and best use of the property is then determined to
be assemblage, and the property is appraised on this basis, as though assembled by neighboring ownerships.

2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 90 of 358



Proposed
Alley

vacallon Proposed
Harlion
Vacatlon

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

Assessor Plat Map

Vertical west at

, next to Mystery Lane cul-de-sac Harrison

J

Drone view from south - note

View from the north

from Lane

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 91 of 358



MARKET ANALYSIS

The subject property is located in Port Orchard, in an attractive residential neighborhood. Average home

pricing in the Port Orchard neighborhood is around S405,000, which is a little below the South Kitsap

Average and that for the county as a whole. As with many other areas of Kitsap Courtty, price increases

have been relatively significant, particularly since the onset of the pandemic, representing a shift in activity
away from urban living to more suburban and rural markets.

Within the specific neighborhood of the subject, average horne pricing is close to the city average, with
properties on the market for typically around a week. The housing stock is largely post-war, with the

average for the latest set of sales coming in at a vintage of around 1960, with a home size of approxirnately
1,500sf. Most homes are on lots of under a quarter of an acre. Lot prices are typically around $40,000 to

$50,000, but can get up to $70,000-$90,000 for larger lots with good utility, and few if any site constraints.

,S Are 2017 20t8 2019 2O2O Aus.'21

seaBsk Holly ;il:e
145 oZ chanqe

$319,024

185

$331,s00

174

$425,000

159

$385,000 $s16,500

178

t6v"4Vo l0V.
103

22V"

Chico
146

$379,000 $421,000 $415,000 $526,750 $657,500Price

Units
oZ change tv"

5675
25v.

68

l10A 27Vn

Price

Bremerton Units
148 oZ chmse

$228.37s
473

$253,725

455

$282,800

449

$335,000

496

$408,000

386

11.t, ltyo 18.1,

$278,075

303
Retsil - Price

Nllnchestcr Units
144 oZ chanse

$300,000 s332;oo $378,500 $44l,ooo
265
80 l4v.

t68

ll%o 17Vo

s260,000

359

Price

I'ort Orchrrd tinrts
ll3 9i, chanqe

s370,000

392

slo5,ooo
301

9'%, 9"1,

316

l1'1, | 1"1,

sl97,o0o s325,ooo

S Kitsap Price

WHrvy 16 Units
l4l 7o change

$318,465 $353,986 $400,000 $433"333 $535,000

520 442 311

130/o 230/0

415

8"h
532

11Vo

$340,000

371

S Kitsap Price

E/Hwy 16 Units
142 7o chmqe

$379,000 $4,ro,ooo $569,900

263 3t9 201
$360,000

336
I 60/" 300/o6V. 5Vo

South Kitsflp Price

Average Units
7o chmge

$303,277 $331,030 $359,871 $4t5,512 $504,700

9V. 9Vo 15"/. 2lv"
County Price

Units
$rop00 s345,000

110/"

$377,352

9Vo

$418J17 $485,000

Rcsidential Median IIome Prices

$700,000

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0
2017 2018 2019

-Retsil 
- Nlanchester 

-Bremeton -Chico
-KitsapCounty -SKitsapWHwy 

l6*-SeaBeckHolly

2020

-Port 
Orchard

' S Kitsap E/Hsy 16

Atrg. '21

165

16t

il

t60

1& 149

145
18

147

SubFcl

4

JobNo 21094 RE.SOLVE Fideli[l - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 92 of 358



SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRITPION

Present Use

The subject right-of-way is raw, heavily treed, and sloped in most areas. It is largely undeveloped, although

it runs into the back yard of some residences in a few instances.

Access and Location

The subject is accessed from Sroufe and Mystery Lane, and adjacent private property

Land Area and Shape

The survey below provides the total area of the right-of-way, either vacated already, or intended for

vacation. Below, that portion of the site that has already been vacated is subtracted, to provide for the

current land that is the subject ofthe proposed vacation.

AI

B

c
J

K

m

v(]
o
J

D

a

I

E
L

F

tr

M

hJ

?p
z)
OHn6
0au
0.5<zr

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:\lttry - sob' x 17' * 85Bs s,F.t
HARRISON AVE, - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.n

FES

]<()
o
Je

Lri

IJ
z.
Cf
a

VACATE PIAT

VACAIE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

17 FEET

5

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 93 of 358



ROW to be vacated:

Width Length Total

Harrison 7.5-lf 505-lf 3,787sf

This property may also be allocated according to the property to which it will be joined. Please see the

calculation of allocation below.

Property Alley
leneth 8.50'

Harrison
leneth 7.50'

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

77.73'

71.73',

57.82',

t33.45',

47.82',

6lOsf
61Osf

49lsf
l, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
l, 1 58sf

659sf
659sf
774sf
508sf

59.78'

136.20',

77.s0'
77.50',

91.00'
59.78',

0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf
0sf

1,019sf
58lsf
581sf
683sf
923sf

135.90'

77.50',

77.50',

91.00'
123.00'

7,5l7sf 504.9 3,787sf

Thus the following Before and After Land Areas are established

11

6

Propertv After
Land Area

Before Added

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

17,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,731sf
10,019sf
10,019sf
ll,76lsf
l2,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf
491sf

1,134sf
406sf

0sf
508sf

2,177sf
7,240sf
7,240sf
1,456sf
l,43lsf

I 0, I 93sf

I 0, I 93sI

7,896sf.
18,994sf

6,940sf
8,712sf.

4,864sf"
20,908sf
ll,259sf.
11,259sf.

73,217sf.

73,628s1

Job No. 2 1094 REASOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 94 of 358



Topography and Vegetation

The property is sloping with some critical areas Please see the County's critical area map presented below,

which essentially duplicates that of the local jurisdiction, the city of Port Orchard.

Views

This is not view property

Easements & Restrictions

The subject is Right-of-way, but is appraised in fee simple estate, which is the estate that will be conveyed

with no retained city or public rights.

Utilities

Power, water and sewer are available through public utility.

Improvements

The subject is unimproved.

7

| 994.1J9

ttlfit.hti
111.?

1115 |

,tiiit rJ4 1

---, , i

i
l
I

:. ttzd
ttLs.{io

39
I

4e

19.Otl u+r

llatlrd Ar€t
lloderate Hazatd Aria

FnriGb outllo€s
Parcelr (frfis & Addrcss)

Pan€l Labelr LiEhr

Frrx Parcel Libols Dsrk

High Hiztrd Ataa

4ress

Hrard rrp.i

Doundary

Souf,drry

boundrry

Elgh l{r5t5

ilsnrgc Liyr.t

Ioatery
Bsundtry

Soundary

Boundsrt 1998

sr
I

l.

'&(x*
!t
vl

:i
'i

i

j
\.

!
i

I
1

I

I
I
i

'

I

I
I

I

!

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 95 of 358



Zoning

The righlof-way is not zoned, but typically vacated property would take on the zoning of the adjacent
parcels. The surrounding private ownerships are zoned Residential 2 (R2). According to the city code:

"The R2 district is primarily intended to accommodate detached house, duplex, qnd town
house development with a minimum lot size that varies based on building type. The R2
district is intended to implement the residential medium density comprehensive plan
designation. Additional building types that are allowed include baclryard cottage
(detached accessoty dwelling unit), cottage court, duplex and attached house. Uses

that would substantially interfere with the residential nature of the district are not
allou,ed."

The minimum lot size is 5,000sf if accessed from aprimary street, and 3,000sf if accessed from an alley.
Lot widths are 50', with street access, and 30' with alley access; duplex lots require an extra l0' in each

case.

Assessed Value & RE Taxes

The subject is not assessed, as publicly owned, and a property to which typically there is no attached value.

For information purposes only, I have included the prevailing assessment of the surrounding propefiies,
given the fact that, once vacated, the assessor would include the square footage with these holdings, and

perhaps re-assess accordingly.

The current taxation rate is about $10.55 mills - i.e. about 1.05% of assessed value.

Property
Account #

Assessed Values
Land Improvement Total

A
B
C

D
E

F

G

I
J

K
L
M

4060-008-00 1 -000 I
4060-008-004-0008

4060-008-007-0005

4060-008-009-0003

4060-008-0 I 5-0005

4060-008-0 I 7 -0102

4060-008-0 1 9-000 I
4060-008-037-0009
4060-008-033-0003

4060-008-030-0006
4060-008-027-000 1

4060-008-022-010s

$56,420 $241,870 $298,290
s56,420 5179,210 s235,630

$53,650 $208,030 $261,680

$65,880 $333,410 $399,290
$52,550 $73,110 5125,660
$55,320 $33 1,820 $387,140

$44,540 5229,150 5273,690
Port Orchard ULID No assmt

$50,970 $330,430 $381,400

$50,970 s297,040 $348,010

$52,840 $300,700 $353,540
$53,270 $380,950 $434,220

8

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelily - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 96 of 358



OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

Highest and Best Use

The subject property is essentially unusable as right-of-way, and its highest and best use, assuming the

necessary approvals are obtained, is for assemblage with adjacent parcels. This conclusion comes with the

reasonable expectation ofthe vacation being approved by city Council. This is ofcourse an Extraordinary
Assumptiontof this appraisal. In the After case, the surrounding properties are appraised as though now
owning the land adjacent, which would reflect a Hypothetical Condition2, required for purposes of analysis.

Comparable Data

Valuation of the subject propefty is based on a series of lot sales in the neighborhood, this considered a

reasonable measure of the value right-of-way intended for assemblage with such a lot. The data has been

used to develop a relationship between lot value and size, such that the incremental value of additional
square footage within a lot can be measured.

The data is presented below, together with our conclusion of $16,900 total, about $1.50/sf. An explanation
of the result follows on the following page.

1 Something not known to be true, but likely to be true.
2 Something not presently true but a prospective future condition, and required for analysis purposes, in order to be able to value

the subject parcels in the condition that they would be in, were the vacation approved.

9

Sales Analysis

# Address
Site

Utilitv Lot size

Price
Date

Sohlyr up to
Sen-15-21 Land Value

I 1398 Canyon Lane
4056-01 1-015-00-05

2 E WilliamsLane#x2
4536-004-012, -010

3 Arnold Ave East Ave E
4536-004-012, -010

4 1667 SE Crawford Rd

012301-3-038-20-07

5 601 Radey St

4047 -001 -012-04-07

6 Lot 10 SE Serenade Wy
4794-000-0 l 0-04-06

7 1783 Sidney Ave
352401-3-073-20-02

8 Decatur Ave
4027-009-004-00-08

9 Arnold Ave E
4027 -017 -002-00-03

Good location, br.rt

restricted w/slope

Resticted due to slope

but with building pad

Water view, slope

restriction

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Good utility, flat,
rectangular

Nice quiet cul-de-sac,

level, peekaboo view

Gentle slope, good

access, good utility

Steep slopes, limited
access

Srnall bLrilding pad at

base ofsteep slope

23,958sf

29,621sf

6,098sf

4,792sf

9,583sf

9,l48sf

13,068sf

30,056sf

6,098sf

$32,500
Feb-21

$35,000
Jul-21

$37,000
Itn-27

$50,000
Apr-21

$66,900
Jun-21

$67,000
Apr-21

$92,000
Sep-20

$15,000
Itn-27

$17,000
Aug-21

$33,500
1.03

$35,400
l.0l

$37,400
1,01

$51,100
1.02

$67,600
1.01

$68,300
1.02

$96,600
1.05

$15,200
l.0l

$17,100
1.00

$33,500 $1.40/sf

$35,400 $1.20lsf

$37,400 $6.13/sf

$51,100 $10.66lsl

$67,600 $7.05/sf

$68,300 $7.471sf

$96,600 $7.39lsf

$15,200 $0.51/sf

$17,100 $2.80/sf

Subject 11,304sf $16,900
Sep-21

$16,900
1.00

$160900 $1.50/sf

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 97 of 358



Property Valuation

The comparisons have been divided into restricted sites (by virtue of topography or access) and
unconstrained properties, with the value divide between these being quite significant: the former sell for
between $0.50/sf and $3.00/sf, while the latter fall in a range of $6 to $10/sf. The data also reveals a clear
issue of economies of scale, meaning that for a site of say 5,000sf, the incremental addition of 500sf is not
likely to come at a pro-rata value of the lot as a whole, as the additional land does not materially alter the
market for the property, itjust provides additional yard or buffer. It is an axiom ofreal estate, that, all other
things being equal, a larger site will sell for less on a square-footage basis than a smaller site.

The properties are graphed below, displaying this relationship, with the red dotted best fit line in the center
ofthe graph representing the average ofthe two different data sets. Based on the sales, different before and

after values for the surrounding lots A through M (but no G) are calculated, with the curve providing an

indication of the probable lift in value generated by tlie addition of an increment of land in adjacent (and in
this case) largely sloping topography.

Following the curve, the resulting values are calculated.

10

Site Size v. $/sf of Land
$12.00/sf

T

il, , ..,..,:..

$10.00/sf

c

$8.00/sf
.. I

$6.00/sf X
'..?&...q

$4.00/sf
'),'

X

$2.00/sf
x:
I$0.00/sf

Osf 5,000sf 10p00sf 15p00sf 20,000sf 25,000sf 30,000sf 35,000sf

@ Subject Before
o Subject After
I Good Utility Sites
X Poor Utility Sites

""""' Log.(Comps)
'" Log. (Good Utility Sites)

""""' Log.(Poor Utilify Sitcs)

a

ProDertv
Land Area

Before Added Af,ter

Difference

$ 1,500

$1,500
$2,000

$400

$r,900
$0

$2,400
$200

$1,500
$1,500
$2,000
$2,000

Before

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

I 8,73 I sf
10,019sf
l0,0l9sf
I l,761sf
l2,l97sf

$59,000

$59,000
$s2,000
$67,000
$49,000

$56,000
$40,000
$67,500
s60,000

$60,000
$62,500
$63,000

$6. l6lsf
$6. l6lsf
$7.021sf

$3.75lsf
$7.50/sf
$6.43lsf
$9.18/sf
$3.60/sf

$5.99lsf

$5.99lsf
$5.3 l/sf
$5.17lsf

Aftcr

$60,500

$60,500
$54,000
$67,400
$50"900

$56,000

$42,400
$67,700

$61,500
$6 1,s00

$64,500
$65,000

l0,l93sf
I 0, l93sf
7,896sf

1 8,994sf
6,940sf
8,7l2sf
4,864sf

20,908sf
I l,259sf
I l,259sf
13,217 sf
I 3,628sf

$5.94lsf
$5.94lsf
$6.84/sf
$3.55/sf
$7.33/sf
$6.43lsf
$8.72lsf
$3.24lsf
$5.46lsf
$5.46lsf
$4.88/sf
$4.771sf

A
B
C

D
E
F

G
I
J

K
L
M

9,583sf
9,583sf
7,405sf

I 7,860sf
6,534sf
8,7l2sf
4,356sf

18,73 l sf
10,019sf
10,019sf

ll,76lsf
12,l97sf

61Osf

61Osf

491 sf
1, I 34sf

406sf
0sf

508sf
2,l77sf
l,240sf
l,240sf
I,456sf
1,43 I sf

I 0,193sI
I 0,193sf
7,896s1

I 8,994sf
6,940s1

8,7l2sf
4,864s1

20,908sf

I l,259sf
11,259s|

13,217 sI
I 3,628sf

$16,900

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 98 of 358



The conclusion of value for the right of way at around $1.50/sf is reasonable as the value of incremental

acreage, and in fact appropriately aligns with typical site values for sites of restricted utility, this of course
quite representative of the nature of the right-of-way in this case - narrow, sloping, and access constrained.

Value Conclusion

As a result of this investigation and analysis, we have concluded with the following value for the property
to be vacated:

MarketValue -ll,304sf @ $1.50/sf $16,900

Effective Date of Value

September 15,2021, date of inspection.

Exposure Time

This concept does not really apply to a right-of-way vacation. However, in application to lots adjacent, it
is noted that the market is quite strong, and an exposure of less than a month would be anticipated.

1l

Job No. 21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 99 of 358



APPRAISER'S CERTIF'ICATION

I ceftify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
.8. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct;
n The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting

conditions and are my personal, imparlial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions;
l' I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no personal

interest with respect to the parties involved.

'i' I have no bias with respect to the properly that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this
assignment.

* My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.
* My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of a

predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount ofthe value opinion,
the attainment ofa stipulated result, or the occurence ofa subsequent event directly related to the intended
use ofthis appraisal.

* The appraisal was made, and the appraisal report prepared, in conformity with the Appraisal Foundation's
Uniform Standards for Professional Appraisal Practice.

* I have made a personal inspection of the properfy that is the subject of this repoft.
* Persons providing significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report are identified herein.
, The use of this report is subj ect to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly

authorized representatives.
{' This appraisal has been made in conformity with the appropriate State and Federal laws and requirements;
A I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the properly that is the

subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment;
* As of the date of this report, Anthony Gibbons has completed the Standards and Ethics Education

Requirement of the Appraisal Institute for Designated Members.

RESTRICTION UPON DISCLOSI'RE & USE:
Disclosure of the contents of this appraisal report is governed by the By-Laws & Regulations ofthe Appraisal Institute.
Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the
appraiser or the firm with which (s)he is connected, or any reference to the Appraisal Institute or to the MAI
designation) shall be disseminated to the public through advertising media, public relations media, news media, sales
media or any other public means of communication without the prior written consent and approval of the undersigned.
No part of this report or any of the conclusions may be included in any offering statement, memorandum, prospectus
or registration without the prior written consent of the appraiser.

The property has been appraised for its fair market value as though owned in fee simple. The opinion of value
expressed below is the result of, and is subject to, the data and conditions described in detail in this report.

Anthony Gibbons made a personal inspection of the subject property on September 75th,2021.

The Date of Value for the subject of this appraisal is February 28th,2020, per client instruction.

Per the MARKET VALLIE definition herein, the concluded market value diminution for the properly that is the subject
ofthis appraisal is on a cash basis and is:

Nurn", @
Certified General Real Estate Appraiser. Lic No 1100854

Signature:

Date Signed: Seotember 23. 2021

t2

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 100 of 358



General Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

This appraisal report has been made with the following general assumptions:

1. No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided or for matters pertaining to legal or title
considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.

2. The property is appraised free and clear ofany or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated.

3. Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed.

4. The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable, but no warranty is given for its accuracy

5. All engineering studies are assumed to be corect. The plot plans and illustrative material in this report are
included only to help the reader visualize the property.

6. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions ofthe property, subsoil, or structures that
render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for obtaining the
engineering studies that may be required to discover them.

7. It is assumed that the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local
environmental regulations and laws unless the lack of compliance is stated, described, and considered in the
appraisal report.

8. It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions unless
a non-conformity has been identified, described, and considered in this appraisal report.

9. It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates ofoccupancy, consents, and other legislative or
administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the opinion of value contained in this report is

based.

10. It is assumed that the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or property lines
ofthe property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report.

I 1 . Unless otherwise stated in this reporl, the existence of hazardous materials, which may or may not be
present on the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of the
existence ofsuch materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such
substances. The presence ofsubstances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, and other
potentially hazardous materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimated is predicated on
the assumption that there is no such material on or in the propefty that would cause a loss in value. No
responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to
discover them, The intended user is urged to retain an expeft in this field, if desired.

This appraisal repofi has been made with thefollowing general limiting conditions:

If the subject is improved: Any allocation of the total value estimated in this report between the land and
the improvements applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separate values allocated to the
land and buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

2. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication.

3. The appraiser, by reason ofthis appraisal, is not required to give further consultation or testimony or to be

in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously
made,

l3

JobNo.21094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 101 of 358



4. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this reporl (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of
the appraiser, or the firm with which the appraiser is connected) shall be disseminated to the public through
advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the prior written consent of the appraiser

Thefollowing assumptions and limiting conditions mey apply to this assignment:

Any opinions ofvalued provided in the repoft apply to the entire property, and any proration or division of
the total into fractional interests will invalidate the opinion ofvalue, unless such proration or division of
interests has been set forth in the report.

2. In the case of proposed developments: If only preliminary plans and specifications were available for use
in the preparation ofthis appraisal; the analysis, therefore, is subject to a review ofthe final plans and
specifications when available.

3. In the case of proposed developments, and the assignment of values to a propefty at the completion of
construction, all proposed improvements are assumed to have been completed unless otherwise stipulated,
so any construction is assumed to conform with the building plans referenced in the reports.

4. In the case ofirnproved properfy: The appraiser assumes that the reader or user ofthis report has been
provided with copies of available building plans and all leases and amendments, if any, that encumber the
property.

5. Ifno legal description or survey was furnished, the appraiser used the county tax plat to ascertain the
physical dimensions and acreage of the property. Should a survey prove this information to be inaccurate,
it may be necessary for this appraisal to be adjusted. If a legal description has been provided, the appraiser
is not responsible for the accuracy of the description. The property appraised is assumed to be as

delineated on county maps, as noted in this appraisal.

6. The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates contained herein are based on current market conditions,
anticipated short-term supply and demand factors, and a continued stable economy. These forecasts are,

therefore, subject to changes with future conditions.

7, If the subject is improved: The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26,1992.
The appraiser has not made a specific compliance survey or analysis of any improvements on the property
to determine whether or not it is in conformity with the various detailed requirements of ADA. It is
possible that a compliance survey of the property and a detailed analysis of the requirements of the ADA
would reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of the act. If so,

this fact could have a negative impact upon the value of the property. Since the appraiser has not direct
evidence relating to this issue, possible noncompliance with the requirements of ADA was not considered
in estimating the value of the properfy.

14

Job No. 2 1094 RE.SOLVE Fidelity - Port Orchard Vacation

Page 102 of 358



EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK 8 AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

VACATE PLAT
OF 17 FEET SRO UF T.

SCALE: 1" : 100'

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131

N
v
Oo
J
00

Lr-i

Lrl
Z.rl
a

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:
Y - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.*

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.*

L{ ^t\ 
N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

2453 Bclhcl Avcnuc, P.O. lJox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

A

J

K

0o

\<
Oo
J
a0

B

C

D

I

U E
L

F

G

z

M

L!)^
<F

C)--7>
LE
oha6
Eo
M.E<zr

52

JOB NO.: 11367

Page 103 of 358



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

Page 104 of 358



PARCEL OWNER TAX PARCEL NO. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A SUSANA MATIAS COUP 4060-008-001 -0001

LOTS t-J,
PLAT

8 0F SllEANyS SIDNEY, AS
2

IN
sHow!

OF
TOEEIHER

BLOCK 8 'IHAT WAS VACAIEONO,--.__
OF ALT.EY
ORCHARO

HTHIN
PER RESOLUNON

B DONALD RYAN 4060-008- 004-0008

!9Js^1-_9,,t!lglt!E, BLoCK 8 0F swEANys 2ND ADDtTtoN To slDNEy. As
eE.! eLAT REooRDEo tN voLUME 2 0F pLATs, plcr ts, iiicdRo5 di '
Ms4?_99u{Ty, wAsHtNGToN, As siJR!€t€o elo srlr'eo , Ali-o-es snowtl
ON SURIEY RECORDED IN VOLUME- PAGES OF'SUR\iEid A'i}I_ ToGETHER wTH IHAT poRTtoN oF luev tttlltN'sAto
BLocK I THAT wAs vAcAlEo pER ctry oF poRT oRcHARD nrsor_unotiNO,_-_.-..--.---

a
DAVID NESSETH 4060-o08-007-0005

lg.Is .Z AltS 6, AND IHE NoRIH 10 FEET of LoT 9, BIOC( s oF suEANys
?ryq_Ag_Drto-!! To stoNEy, As pER eLAT REconoeo iH vol0uL i oi FLiis,pAcE ts, RECoRDS OF KtTSAp couNTy, wAsHtNcToH, es sui-tnwti AHo
STAKED , AND AS sHovir.l oN sURlEy REcoRoEo tN VoLuUe_- pAcl!'
: -qF .quBl/E\S. AFN rocelrrR vnrx-rxei--
lg!!ot'1 gF ALLEv tlnHtN sAtD BLocK a IHIT wAs vAciiio piC crw or
PORT ORCHARO RESOLUIION NO.-

D
GERALO ALEXANDER 4060-008-009- 0003

LOT 9, EXCEPT IHE NORTH 10 FEEr fiEREOF, AND LONi 1O-1,+, INCLUSIVE,
Plgcl! 8 oF SIIEANYS 2ND AoDtnoN To slDNEy, As pER PLAT RECoRDED
ll!.y_o.-Ly_!{E ? q q4Ts, eAGE rs, REcoRDs or krrslp Coulrv,"---'-
Ir4qlryqloN, As suR\EyED AND srAKEo , AND As sHo\ol oru brnrnv
RECOROED IN VOLUME_ PAGES OF SUR!E\S. AFN

ToGEIHER wlH 'IHAT poRIoN oF AarEy $ttTHtN sAto
sLocK 8 r{AT vtAS vAcArEo pER ctry oF eoni on+nno'nliiiilunoilNO._

E ELITE EDGE CONSULIING, LLC 4060-008-01 5-0005

!gT-s_ 8,4{q !6, SLoqK 8 oF sn€ANrS 2ND ADOtnoN TO stDNEy, As pER
pLATfiEcoRDED tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, proe ra, neconoi bil(iTSAp
QoV.tlly,,{4sHtNcT0N, As suR\€r€o ANb srAKEo , mio ASs+rorii.i-oir
slJR\Ey REcofiDEo tN voLUME_ pAGEs _ oF suRlEls_ AFfu-_ TOcErltER wrH 1HAT ponnoN oF ALLEY tfliilN SA|O
BLOCK 8 IHAT I,YAS VACATEO PER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD NiSOLUTIOII
NO,.__-.----------------...

F
FISCHER RENTALS PROPERNES, LLC 4060-008-01 7-01 02

LO']'S 17. 1E AND IHE NORIH ONE-HAI.F OF LOr 19, BLOCK 8 OF
9!E4N!! 2ND ADDtTtoN TO stDNEy, As pER PLAT nECOnOsO tN VoLUME 2
oF pLATs, pAGE 16, REcoRos oF itTSAp Couxrv. Gsiiruaioii. li--
suRrEy€D ANo STAKEo , AND As sHovr.r oN suR!€y ngconDeD ir.tygquq- PAGES _ OF srJR\Eys, AFN - " ---. -

I_ggqtrER_lLTH IHAT poRnoN or eury'firHru suo aEEk-TTtnr wns
VACATED PER CITY OF PORT ORCI{ARD RESOLUIION NO. "''" "

G GREGORY EBBERS 4060-008-01 9-0001

LOTS 20, 2I AND fiE SOU1H ONE-HALF Or LOT 19. ELOCK 8 OF
SIIiEANYS 2ND AODIIION TO SIDNEYI AS PER PLAT NECONOEO IN VOLUME 2oF pLATS, pAGE 18, REcoRos or *rrsrp counrv. w{sliificioili. is --
slJR\EyEo AND STAKED , AND As slttottl,t ot sun-wy niconoEo tu
Y9!UME: l]\cEs _ oF slJR!E\'tS. AFN
T_ocErHER-wTH IHAT poRnoN or au.ev wrHrN sero aLoEkT-iiar wes
VACAIEO PER CITY OF PORT OROIARD RESOI.UIION NO. ' '''' -'

MACAILLA BARDEN J52401 -1 -004-2000 USE BLAIQCD FOR lE0

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 4060-008-037-0009

OF SWEANYS 2ND

STAKED
OF

sHow{
AFN

TOGETHER HARRISON

ORCHARD
8, IHAT CITY OF PORTN0.-_

BLOCK 8 IHAT
ALSO 1HAT PORNON

OF ALLEY OF PORT
ORCHARD

J ABIGAIL WARDLE 4060-00E- 033-0003

|o_Tl_13:lg. ryglqgt!€, BLocK I 0F s$,EANt'S 2ND ADD|nON TO StDNEy,

^9_ 

qqR eLAT REcoRDEo tN voLUME 2 oF pLATs, preE ia, nEcdnod or'
[[s4r_.cllu]!ry lvAsHtNGToN, ExcEpT THE sourir zo.so r'en bF'[or-ss,
al..qgB\E\€q 4!D STAKED , ANo As sHovru oN suRlEy nlionoro irVOLUME_ PAGES 

- 

OF SIJRVEYS. AFN
rocErHER wlrH IHAT poRnoN oF xmnrsor,r Aw-lTdildEfriE-srro
BLocK 8. IHAT wAs vAcArED pER ctw oF ponr oncxAno agsoltlnor.rNo._-...-------- ALso TooEIHER lvrH IHAT poRloN oF lugv wttxil slro
BLocK 8 rHAr wAs vAcArEo pER ctry oF ponr oncxrnrintsotlrib't
NO.--

K JOSHUA GOUCHER 4060-008-030-0006

LOTS 30-32,
33, SLOCK 8
RECORDED IN

INCLUS!8, $lH IHE SOUIH 20.90 FEET OF LOT

AND AS

ON
OF SURIEYS,

SURVEYS IN
IHAT 8, 1HAT WAS

TOCEIHER
VACAIED

ALSO
6 l9AS

L PHILIP SQUIER 4060-008-027-0001

0F LoT 30, ELOCK 6

NO.--

M WLLIAM ANDERSON 4060-008-022-01 05 USE RESULTANT PARCEL ANDERSON/BARDEN BLA/OCD IBO

N ANN WGGINS J52401 -1 -005-2009 usE scc 19-2-00985 AND R.O.S. VOL.89, PACE t4t IBD

Page 105 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 89s-90 o cityhall @cityofportorchard. us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

PETITION TO VA CITY RIGHT.OF.WAY
APPTI

(PoMc 12.08 / Re

TION
lution No. 030-17)

This document is considered o public record and is to public disclosure lsws in Chopter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner's Name(s) William C. Anderson inia Anderson & Macailla Barden

2164 NE Eton Lane B rton WA 9831 1Mailing

Contact

Street

lnformation 698-2618

City

rbilloal com

State zip

Phone Email

Address of Requested 812 M Lane
Street or nearest cross

Parcel Number of Requested 4060-008-02 105

1. The undersigned, owner of real property a ing upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port hard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet conta ing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-way by a licensed surveyor:

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County Kitsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of th owners of more than two-thirds of the real
property abutting the requested vacation a ; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

2. State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way' occupancy/boundary line adjustment

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 106 of 358



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and attached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

>r*A- /fzJ^- J,/,e,/AZz
Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Applicant Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed dnd documents sre submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property
abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along
with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting
such area);

o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applica ble;
o Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tZO; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon
Councilapproval),

FOR CITY CLERK'S OFFICE USE ONLY

$L20Vacation Fee Received Yes _ No Receipt N

5500 Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.:-

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Property Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date:

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the Cifi Council Yes _No

Page 2 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 107 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure ldws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) er/ ).L ta^ 4t'UaC)aS CrJ
First and Last Name

3Ut> 6 ft 2 Ct E ..^^ €/.. can/ 743 p,22s.42.. c.oeContact lnformation
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation

Email

8l I ,-^ lr z-cx,r' z /IJ rd

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

A)/ a c /a ,u 4 :t/Oc:7?J ail

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)
Managing Member No. L

.>r/.^Z/* a
(Signature and/or Title)

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing Address:
Street City State Zip

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Contact lnformation:
Phone Email

Page 108 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
215 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98356

t360].876-4407 r FAX (350) 895-9029 r cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorcha rd.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document ls cansldered a publlc record ond ls subtect to publlc dlsclosure ldws ln Chopter 42.56 nAAl.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {p"ud"".,), M Ac A-{ {. L 4 8a/ d Ar) btLu t.}'n
First and Last Name

t0 NI mdA{Contact
Phone

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested

Parcel Number of Requested

Email '(n{hr
Vacation:

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sisn this document, This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfJVe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o llAre are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
. l/We understand that lArVe may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

8u / Lvn
First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporatian lif applicable)
Managing Member No. 1

{ tx",.
and/orTitle)

First and Last Name {Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (f opplrcoblel
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature andlor Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailing 8 3t(
Street

nt"+ v1/\? R\l .t tnN)
Zio

(^
City State

,b5b13L
€ll'otOl,i L {-o(n'

Contact lnformation

Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 109 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 . cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAV
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)
First and Name

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation: d^;(rrnr INJA V lltta (ttrI,^tt*,/#s '1JUI
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) andlor spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

NJ/A
First an N (Printed) Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of 'Corporation (if applicobte)

Managing Me er No. 1

(si and/or Title)

First anJ Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title) 4obo -oob -o3 3 -OOo3'

UK
Property Add Qvztotr Tax Parcel Number

Mailing
q .T

Street 7ipCity

E

Contact lnformation
Phone

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 110 of 358



€n*\l 5**is , L',fa Q-fNt **
City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street port Orchard, WA 99366
(360) 876-4407 c FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhail@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTV OWNERS

Thls document is considered a public record and is subiect to public disclosure Isws in chapter 42,s6 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation ( )o*",) n. {?
First and Last Name

Contact 36o - 6+b* t*\S e-6,na;L , (o-^-
Phone Email

signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area {Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owne(s) and/or spouses, or torpor"t" officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, lfffe declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of washington that:r l/we are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated,r UWe understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

' l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

)o**.) M. Ayenl /pt:lesTe<

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Va Ourr'l v//13 s )"
Parcel Number of Requested Vacation to - \ob - 0a'{ * oao g

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing No.

and Last Name (Printed) of property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicable)
Managing Member No. Z

(Signature and/or Title)

Property Address Tax Parcel Number

First

Mailing

Street State

lnformation:_
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

ZipCity

Contact

Page 111 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

{360) 876-4407 r FAX {350) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www.cityofportorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation {Petitione Phrtti vraf
First and Last Name

Contact (:s: 170-1 It9 s utcr
^@

vlrd { { , co r",..,

Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested ?L l'4 ftc la'ne ?o.t OrcLa,nA VA q\36 6

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation +ob> - 00? - 027 *000 I

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
. l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on myfour tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated rlght-of-way,

hiil i \ utcL.
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No. 1

(Signature Title)

First and fast Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if opplicoble)
Managing Member No, 2

(Signature and/or Title)

Y)[ MV!.r1 La ue 40leD - 00!- 0?7- 0001
Property Address Tax Parcel Number

Mailins Add ?(, M Lare r[ 0rc6
q\

zipStateStreet City

Contact
Phone

0- il
Email

x S qrcr t4,.At .co

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 112 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
2L6 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366

(360)876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorchard, us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner)

First and Last Name

Contact lnformation
Phone

t

^4R

M

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Reqr.restecl Vacaticn:$- R>IFE sa ..i ttAREtsa,o AvE,

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.

r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way
petition is approved.

. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

First and Last Name (Pri Officer Name of on (if applicable)

Man

and/or

pn
First and Last

Managing Me

(Sign d/or Title)

Property Address

rate Officer Name of Corporation (if applicoble)

Tax Parcel Number

o.2
nted)

Mailing
Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone

City

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 113 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 o cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityofportorcha rd. us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chdpter 42,56 RCW.

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (

First and Last Name

,aContact I

Phone Email 5rneei I COn-.
Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation S, t1€

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation: 4DvO - l)Ok' lJll- DIOT

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have
an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers
authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
r l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
r l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

N ico \<- Y,sd-'ol-
First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer
Managing Member No. 1

ch<-r
Name of Corporation (if opplicable)

t ..rp.-H-(S

P",n#.

(Signature and/or Title)

l.fAca 6, F6 e-k-e-v +-- t
First and Lastilame (Printed) of Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporation (if qpplicoble)

Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

L+Dt/o- DD*-Dt1-Dtoz
Property Address

bn D.r>v )^ 2 GCc sa
Tax Parcel Number

r^''1- I I ^Mailing Address
Street

3vo
zip

\rv"rar'.--r 
t, C oa-r-r

City State

Contact lnformati
Phone

cL.11
Email

Page 3 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 114 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 o FAX (360) 895-9029 e cityhall@cityofportorchard.us
www,cityof portorchard.us

SUPPORT FOR VACATION OF RIGHT.OF.WAY
PETITION BY ABUfiING PROPERTY OWNERS

This document is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure lows in Chapter 42,56 RCW,

Property Owner Seeking Vacation (Petitioner) , William C. Anderson & Virginia Anderson

First and Last Name

MRBtLLOA1943@MSN.COMContact lnformation . (206) 615-3104
Phone Email

Street or Nearest Cross Street of Requested Vacation ,812 Mystery Lane

Parcel Number of Requested Vacation 4060-008-022-0105

Signatures of owners of real property abutting requested vacation of right-of-way area (Note: all persons who have

an ownership interest must sign this document. This includes co-owner(s) and/or spouses, or corporate officers

authorized by the corporation.

By signing, l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that:
o l/We are the true and correct owner(s) of real property abutting the street or alley sought to be vacated.
o l/We understand that l/We may see an increase on my/our tax assessment if this vacation of right-of-way

petition is approved.
. l/We understand l/We may be required to pay for a portion of the vacated right-of-way.

Troy Se'l'land Edge Elite consulting ulc member

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of corporation (if qpplicable)

Managing Member No. 1

Membe r
(Signature and/or

First and Last Name (Printed) of Property Owner/Corporate Officer Name of Corporalion (if applicable)
Managing Member No. 2

(Signature and/or Title)

1133 Sidney Avenue, Port Orchard 4060-008-01 5-0005

Property Address

8035 1sth Avenue

Tax Parcel Number

Seattle WA 98115-4337
Mailing Address

. Troy Selland

City

tragotroy@gmail.com

Street State zip

Contact lnformation
Phone Email

Page 3 of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 115 of 358



City of Port Orchard
City Clerk's Office
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360) 876-4407 r FAX (360) 895-9029 r cityhal I @cityofportorchard,us
www.cityofportorchard.us

PETITION TO VACATE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY
APPTICATION

(POMC 12.08 /Resolution No. 030-17)
This document is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chopter 42.56 RCW,

Propefi Owner's

Mailing 5
Street State 7ipCity

Contact I
Phone Email

Address of Reouested Vacation:
Street or nearest cross street

Parcel Number of Requested

1. The undersigned, owner of real property abutting upon that public street/alley described
below, does hereby petition the City of Port Orchard to vacate said street/alley, described as

follows (you may attach a separate sheet containing the legal description):

Legal description of the requested right-of-woy prepared by a licensed surveyor:

See Exhibit A

all situated in the City of Port Orchard, County cf l(itsap, State of Washington; declares that this
petition is supported by the signatures of the owners of more than two-thirds of the real

property abutting the requested vacation area; and requests that said City Council by

Resolution fix a time and place when this petition shall be heard and determined by that
authority, which time shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than twenty (20) days after
passage of such Resolution (RCW 35.79.010)

State the proposed use of the vacated right-of-way: The two vacated areas will accue to neighborins
ownerships for purposes of clearing certain title issues and set-back encroachments. The Washington
Supreme Court recentlv acknowledged and approved a "resurvey to rediscover the boundaries according to the
plat..." Ernelro1d v. ,Renne. 429 P.3d 154. 159 (Wa. 2021) (quotine Sfaaf v. Bilder. 68 Wn.2d 800. 803. 415 P.2d
650 (1966). The petitioners commissioned a resurvev of Block 8 to "retrace the boundarv lines laid down in
the plat." Id.

Page 1 of 3
Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

2

Page 116 of 358



3. Provide a map of the proposed right-of-way area to be vacated with the following
information:

a. Approximate width of the area to be vacated
b. Approximate length of the area to be vacated
c. Approximate total square footage of the area to be vacated

l/We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the
foregoing information and'aittached documentation is true and correct, and that l/We are the
true and correet owner(s) of real property abutting the requested vacation of City right-of-way.

Signature of

,{htcrt Z1 Za zz
Date

Signature Date

When submitting this application, please make sure the following requirements dre
completed and documents are submitted:

. Support for Vacation of City Right-of-Way Petition form(s) signed by the owners of real property

abutting upon the part of the street or alley sought to be vacated (these owners must, along

with the Petitioner, constitute the owners of at least two-thirds of the real property abutting

such area);
o New legal description to include the requested right-of-way;
o Documentation supporting the fair market value of the street or alley sought to be vacated, if

applicable;
e Documentation supporting the application of the Non-User Statute, if applicable;
o Dimensions of area proposed to be vacated;
. Map of the proposed right-of-way to be vacated outlined or highlighted;
. Application processing fee of $tzo; and

o $500 appraisal fee refundable deposit (Petitioner shall pay the actual cost of the appraisal, upon

Councilapproval).

FOR CITY CLERKOS O}'FICE USE ONLY

$L20 Vacation Fee Received Yes 

- 

No Receipt No.:_

S5OO Vacation Appraisal Fee (Refundable Deposit) Received Yes 

- 
No Receipt No.

Support for Vacation Petition By Abutting Propefi Owners form(s) Received Yes 

- 
No

Public Hearing Date

Notices Posted by: Date of Noticing:

Approved by the City Council Yes 

-No
Page? of 3

Vacation of City Right-of-Way Application

Page 117 of 358



EXHIBIT A
SKETCH OF PROPOSED VACATION

OF ALLEY IN BLOCK 8 AND PORTION OF HARRISON AVE

VACATE 7.50 FEET
HARRISON AVE.

VACATE PLAT
OF 17 FEET SRO UF T.

SCALE: 1" : 100'

PORTION OF ALLEY
VACATED BY ORDINANCE

NO. 010-08
AFN 200804040131

N
v
Oo
J
00

Lr-i

Lrl
Z.rl
a

LOT AREA OF VACATED PORTIONS:
Y - 505' x 17' : 8585 S.F.*

HARRISON AVE. - 505' x 7.5' = 3787 S.F.*

L{ ^t\ 
N.L. Olson & Associates, Inc.
Engineering, Planning and Surveying

(360) 895-2350 or (360) 876-2284

2453 Bclhcl Avcnuc, P.O. lJox 637, Port Orchard, WA 98366

A

J

K

0o

\<
Oo
J
a0

B

C

D

I

U E
L

F

G

z

M

L!)^
<F

C)--7>
LE
oha6
Eo
M.E<zr

52

JOB NO.: 11367

Page 118 of 358



EXHIBIT B

PORTION OF ALLEY TO BE VACATED

ALL OF THE ALLEY LYING WITHIN BLOCK 8, SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

SAID ALLEY IS 17 FEET IN WIDTH , PER PLAT, AND ADJOINS LOTS 1-22 AND
LOTS 42-23.

NOTE: THIS VACATION SUPERCEDES AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUS
VACATION OF ALLEY, AND IS TO CORRECT THE ALLEY WIDTH AS PREVIOUSLY
NOTED IN CITY ORDINANCE 01O-08, PER AFN 200804040131, WHICH IS IN
ERROR.

PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE TO BE VACATED

THE WEST 7.50 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF HARRISON AVENUE WHICH IS
ADJOINING BLOCK 7 AND BLOCK 8 OF SWEANEY'S SECOND ADDITION TO
SIDNEY, ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED ]N VOLUME 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 18,
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.

(_.

FREDER]CK A. KEGEL, P.L.S.
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTMTTON NO. 14065

q 'b ,/

Page 119 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8B Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Approving a  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond, AICP 

 Development Agreement with Blueberry  DCD Director 
 Apartments, QOZB, LLC     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City has negotiated a development agreement for traffic impact fee credits with Blueberry 
Apartments QOZB, LLC. This agreement, if approved, would provide traffic impact fee credits to the developer of 
a 108-unit multifamily development located at the northwest corner of the intersection of SE Blueberry Rd and 
Bethel Rd SE (Blueberry Apartments) in exchange for the dedication of right-of-way for the future development 
of Bethel Road SE consistent with the adopted Bethel Sedgwick Corridor Plan.  
 
The Blueberry Apartments development consists of 108 multifamily units in six buildings with associated off-
street parking and amenities. The Development Agreement applies to the property as described in Exhibit A and 
identified in Exhibit B. The developer shall dedicate the portion of the property identified in Exhibit C, but the 
final alignment of the dedication will be determined following the completion of the final design for the roadway 
project. The benefit the developer receives through this Development Agreement is relief from the minimum 
ground floor elevation required of apartment building in POMC 20.32.100. In this instance, the property’s 
topography does not lend itself to providing the minimum ground floor elevation. However, the project still 
provides equal or better ground floor privacy for residents. 
 
The City and Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC have agreed to an estimated maximum traffic impact fee credit of 
$245,245.84 which will require payment at the time of building permit issuance. Blueberry Apartments QOZB, 
LLC will be required to pay all other related impact fees including park impact fees. Additionally, the developer is 
required to dedicate that portion of right-of-way for Bethel Rd SE prior to the issuance of any Certificate of 
Occupancy related to the development.  
 
POMC 20.26 (Development Agreements) outlines the process for development agreement approval.  In this case, 
the application for the development agreement was filed by Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC on March 27, 
2023. The City determined the application to be complete on March 31, 2023. The City of Port Orchard’s SEPA 
Responsible Official issued a Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance for the associated development on 
September 16, 2022, and the City advertised the May 9, 2023 Public Hearing on April 27, 2023 consistent with 
the requirements of Port Orchard Municipal Code 20.26.050. The Department of Community Development has 
not received any comments in response to the Notice of Hearing. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The Development Agreement includes Project 2.04A on the City impact fee 
schedule which is identified in the Bethel Sedgwick Corridor Plan as incorporated into the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 120 of 358



Business Item 8B 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council adopt an ordinance authorizing the mayor to 
 execute a development agreement with Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC as presented. 
 
 Suggested Motion: “I move to adopt an ordinance authorizing the mayor to execute a development 
 agreement with Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC as presented.” 
 
 Fiscal Impact: The proposed agreement will result in the developer dedicating property necessary for the 
 construction of Bethel Road SE as described in the Bethel Sedwick Corridor Plan saving the city money for 
 property acquisition and staff resources.  
 
 Alternatives:  Do not approve the Development Agreement; request changes to the Development 
 Agreement. 
 
 Attachments:  Ordinance; Blueberry Apartments Development Agreement; Exhibits to Blueberry 
 Apartments Development Agreement. 

 

Page 121 of 358



ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH BLUEBERRY 
APARTMENTS QOZB, LLC FOR THE BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS DEVELOPMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70B.170, the City Council has the authority to review and 
enter into development agreements that govern the development and use of real property within 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted standards and procedures governing the City’s 

use of development agreements, codified at Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 
(POMC); and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 20.26 POMC is consistent with State law; and 

WHEREAS, Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC applied for a Development Agreement under 
Chapter 20.26 POMC on March 27, 2023 and such Agreement has been processed consistently 
with the POMC and State law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement by and between the City of Port Orchard and 

Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC , relates primarily to the development of property owned by 
Owner at 4330 and 4336 Bethel Rd SE, Port Orchard, Washington (Kitsap County Tax Parcels 
#022301-4-043-2007, 022301-4-012-2004, 022301-4-026-2008) (hereinafter, the “Property”); 
and 

  
WHEREAS, Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC proposes to develop the Property with a 

multi-family development consisting of 108 multifamily units within six buildings, parking for 183 
vehicles, landscaping, outdoor amenity areas, and associated site improvements (collectively, the 
“Development Project” or City Permit No. PW22-005); and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2022 the City issued a demolition permit (22-668) to Blueberry 

Apartments QOZB, LLC for two detached houses on the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the calculation of traffic impacts and upon demolition or termination of a 

use, POMC 20.180.005(4) allows capacity evaluation credit for the net increase of impacts to City 
road facilities; and  

  
WHEREAS, the Development Project creates a net increase of impacts to City road 

facilities from 106 multifamily units; and  

Page 122 of 358



  Ordinance No. ___ 
  Page 2 of 4 

     
 
 

WHEREAS, Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC proposes dedicate certain property 
(“Transportation Improvement Project Property”) to the City for the purpose of the City’s 
construction of a portion of a City transportation improvement defined as Project 2.04A on the 
impact fee study as defined herein as the “Transportation Improvement Project” which property 
dedication is eligible for a transportation impact fee credit pursuant to RCW 82.02.060(4) and 
POMC 20.182.080; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Transportation Improvement Project Property dedication is necessary for 

the City’s development of the Transportation Improvement Project which will benefit the 
Development Project and the general public; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement governs the dedication of the Transportation Improvement 

Project Property to the City and the respective transportation impact fee credits that will result 
from Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC dedicating the Transportation Improvement Project 
Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, POMC 20.32.100 requires a minimum ground floor elevation of two feet for 

all “Apartment” building types and the City and Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC agree that, as 
proposed, the Development Project provides an equal or better ground floor privacy for residents 
and aesthetic screening than could be provided with strict adherence to the Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City agrees that Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC may depart from the 

requirements of POMC 20.32.100 to the extent where no minimum ground floor elevation shall 
be applied; and 

 
WHEREAS, except with regard to the Transportation Improvement Project Property 

dedication and the respective applicable transportation impact fee credits, and the departure 
from POMC 20.32.100, the Agreement does not establish or modify the standards or conditions 
for the underlying Development Project which is being undertaken in accordance with applicable 
code and regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the benefits conferred by this new Agreement, which 

reflect the current plans of both the City and Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC and include a 
transportation impact fee credit calculation, the Parties deem it in their best interests to enter 
an Agreement and the City Council finds that approving the Agreement is in the public interest; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on  September 16, 2022, the City’s SEPA official issued a Mitigated 

Determination of Non-significance for the development and no appeals were filed in a timely 
manner; and 

 

Page 123 of 358



  Ordinance No. ___ 
  Page 3 of 4 

     
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on May 9, 2023 regarding this 
Agreement and (comments received/not received, etc); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the Development Agreement 

and all public comments and testimony, finds that the Development Agreement is consistent with 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A RCW, and that the Agreement in the best interests of the residents of the City; 
now, therefore,  

 
WHEREAS, after a public hearing, by Ordinance No. [xxx], the City Council authorized the 

Mayor to sign this Agreement with the Owner. 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Findings. The City Council adopts all of the “Whereas” sections of this 
ordinance and all “Whereas” sections of the Development Agreement as findings in support of 
this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  Authorization. The City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to 

execute a Development Agreement with Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC as provided in “Exhibit 
A” of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 4.  Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this Ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, Ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 

 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper 

of the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after posting and publication as required 
by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the entire Ordinance, 
as authorized by state law. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 

 

Page 124 of 358



  Ordinance No. ___ 
  Page 4 of 4 

     
 
 

 
 

                       
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       SPONSOR: 
 
 
                       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney    Scott Diener, Council Member 
 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   
 
 
EXHIBIT A:   DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

AND BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS QOZB, LLC FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND 
FUNDING OF CERTAIN TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

Page 125 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 1 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD AND BLUEBERRY 

APARTMENTS QOZB, LLC FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING OF 
CERTAIN TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
            THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this    day of 
 , 2023, by and between the City of Port Orchard, a non-charter, optional 
code Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter the “City,” and Blueberry Apartments 
QOZB, LLC, a Washington limited liability company, hereinafter the “Owner” (individually, a 
“Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).  The Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has authorized the execution of a 
development agreement between a local government and a person having ownership or control of 
real property within its jurisdiction (RCW 36.70B.170(1)); and 
 

WHEREAS, a development agreement must set forth the development standards and other 
provisions that shall apply to, govern, and vest the development, use and mitigation of the 
development of the real property for the duration specified in the agreement (RCW 
36.70B.170(1)); and 
 

WHEREAS, a development agreement must be consistent with the applicable 
development regulations adopted by a local government planning under chapter 36.70A RCW 
(RCW 36.70B.170(1)); and 

 
WHEREAS, Port Orchard adopted Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 

(“POMC” or “Code”) which establishes the standards and procedures for Development 
Agreements in Port Orchard; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 20.26 POMC is consistent with State law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner has applied for a Development Agreement under Chapter 20.26 

POMC on March 27, 2023 and such Agreement has been processed consistently with the POMC 
and State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement by and between the City of Port Orchard and 
the Owner (hereinafter the “Development Agreement” or “Agreement”), relates primarily to the 
development of property owned by Owner at 4330 and 4336 Bethel Rd SE, Port Orchard, 
Washington (Kitsap County Tax Parcels #022301-4-043-2007, 022301-4-012-2004, 022301-4-
026-2008) (hereinafter, the “Property”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Owner proposes to develop the Property with a multi-family development 
consisting of 108 multifamily units within six buildings, parking for 183 vehicles, landscaping, 

Page 126 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 2 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

outdoor amenity areas, and associated site improvements (collectively, the “Development Project” 
or City Permit No. PW22-005); and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2022 the City issued a demolition permit (22-668) to the Owner 

for two detached houses on the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the calculation of traffic impacts and upon demolition or termination of a 

use, POMC 20.180.005(4) allows capacity evaluation credit for the net increase of impacts to City 
road facilities; and  

  
WHEREAS, the Development Project creates a net increase of impacts to City road 

facilities from 106 multifamily units; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City is undertaking review of the Development Project pursuant to the 

POMC and has undertaken State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”) review for the Development 
Proposal with the issuance of a Mitigated Determination of Non-significance issued on September 
16, 2022 (“MDNS”).  The MDNS for the Development Project was not timely appealed; and  

 
WHEREAS, associated the Development Project, the Owner proposes dedicate certain 

property (“Transportation Improvement Project Property”) to the City for the purpose of the 
City’s construction of a portion of a City transportation improvement defined as Project 2.04A on 
the impact fee study as defined herein as the “Transportation Improvement Project” which 
property dedication is eligible for a transportation impact fee credit pursuant to RCW 82.02.060(4) 
and POMC 20.182.080; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Transportation Improvement Project Property dedication is necessary for 
the City’s development of the Transportation Improvement Project which will benefit the 
Development Project and the general public; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement governs the dedication of the Transportation Improvement 
Project Property to the City and the respective transportation impact fee credits that will result 
from the Owner dedicating the Transportation Improvement Project Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, POMC 20.32.100 requires a minimum ground floor elevation of two feet for 

all “Apartment” building types and the Parties agree that, as proposed, the Development Project 
provides an equal or better ground floor privacy for residents and aesthetic screening than could 
be provided with strict adherence to the Code, therefore, the City has agreed that Owner may depart 
from the requirements of POMC 20.32.100 in the following manner: no minimum ground floor 
elevation shall be applied; and 
 

WHEREAS, except with regard to this Transportation Improvement Project Property 
dedication and the respective applicable transportation impact fee credits, and the departure from 
POMC 20.32.100 as described herein, this Agreement does not establish or modify the standards 
or conditions for the underlying Development Project which is being undertaken in accordance 

Page 127 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 3 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

with applicable code and regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the benefits conferred by this new Agreement, which 
reflect the current plans of both the City and the Owner and include a transportation impact fee 
credit calculation, the Parties deem it in their best interests to enter into this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on May 9, 2023 regarding this 
Agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, after a public hearing, by Ordinance No. [xxx], the City Council authorized 
the Mayor to sign this Agreement with the Owner. 

AGREEMENT 
 

Section 1. The Property.  The Property comprises 4330 and 4336 Bethel Rd SE, Port 
Orchard, Washington (Kitsap County Tax Parcels #022301-4-043-2007, 022301-4-012-2004, and 
022301-4-026-2008). The Property is described on Exhibit A which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full.  A map of the Property is shown Exhibit 
B on which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full.  

 
Section 2. Transportation Improvement Project Property.  Pursuant to this Agreement, 

Owner shall be responsible for the dedication of the Transportation Improvement Project Property 
to the City as described herein. 

 
a) Transportation Improvement Project Property. Owner shall dedicate certain property 

necessary for the City to construct a portion the Bethel Phase 1 Project located at the intersection 
of Blueberry Road and Bethel Avenue, Project 2.04A on the City impact fee study (defined herein 
as the “Transportation Improvement Project Property”) as shown in Exhibit C.  The exact 
dimensions and configuration of the Transportation Improvement Project Property will be 
determined following completion of final design of the Transportation Improvement Project. The 
roadway portion will be constructed by the City at a future date. The dedication of the 
Transportation Improvement Project Property shall be eligible for transportation impact fee credits 
as provided in Section 8 of this Agreement.  

 
b) Transportation Impact Fee Credit Applicability. The transportation impact fee credits 

authorized by this Agreement are only applicable to pending Building Permit application 22-671, 
22-672, 22-673, 22-674, and 22-675 for the Property(ies) identified on Exhibit B. 

 
Section 3. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms, phrases, and words 

shall have the meanings and be interpreted as set forth in this Section. 
 

a) “Adopting Ordinance” means the Ordinance which approves this Agreement, as 
required by RCW 36.70B.200 and Chapter 20.26 POMC. 

 
b) “Council” or “City Council” means the duly elected legislative body governing the 

Page 128 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 4 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

City of Port Orchard. 
 

c) “Development Project” means the development of the Property with approximately 
108 units of housing within six buildings, parking for 183 vehicles, landscaping, outdoor amenity 
areas, and associated site improvements, as shown in Exhibit B and approved by the City under 
Permit PW22-005 and associated with Building Permit No. 22-671, 22-672, 22-673, 22-674, and 
22-675.   
 

d) “Director” means the City’s Public Works Director. 
 
e) “Effective Date” means the effective date of the Adopting Ordinance. 

 
f) “Maximum credit” means the maximum amount of transportation impact fee credits 

to be provided by the City to the Owner for the Transportation Improvement Project Property 
dedication pursuant this Agreement.  
 

g) “Transportation Improvement Project” means the Transportation Improvement Project 
described above which serves both the Property and the greater community which will be 
undertaken by the City at a later date. 
 

Section 4.   Exhibits.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 

a) Exhibit A – Legal Description of the Property. 
 
b) Exhibit B – Map of the Property and the Development Project and with permits 
listed in Section 2 identified. 
 
c) Exhibit C – Transportation Improvement Project Property showing the 
approximate location of property to be dedicated by Owner. The final determination 
on the exact property to be dedicated shall occur at a later date after final design of the 
Transportation Project is complete. 
 

Section 5.  Parties to Development Agreement.  The Parties to this Agreement are: 
 

a) The “City” is the City of Port Orchard, whose office is located at 216 Prospect Street, 
Port Orchard, WA 98366. 
 

b) The “Owner” is a private enterprise which owns the Property in fee, and whose 
principal office is located at 7809 Pacific Avenue, Tacoma WA 98408. 
 

Section 6. Term of Agreement; No Vesting to Fees. This Agreement shall commence 
upon the Effective Date and shall continue in force for a period of five (5) years unless extended 
or terminated as provided herein. Provided, however, that the Owner shall complete the Property 
Dedications as set forth in Section 7 below which shall be prior to expiration of this Agreement. 

Page 129 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 5 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

The requirement to dedicate the Transportation Improvement Project Property shall survive 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. This Agreement does not vest the Owner to any fees. 
Fees shall be charged in accordance with the fee schedule that is in effect at the time that the 
building permits for the apartment complex are issued and all permit fees have been paid. 
Following the expiration of the term or extension thereof, or if sooner terminated, this Agreement 
shall have no force and effect except for such sections which are specifically intended to survive 
expiration or termination. 

 
Section 7. Property Dedication Schedule. The Owner will dedicate the Transportation 

Improvement Project Property which shown on Exhibit C, as it may be modified follow final 
design, to the City in a form acceptable to the City shall be completed within eighteen (18) months 
of the effective date of this Agreement. The Owner agrees that the City may withhold issuance of 
such Certificate of Occupancy (or any other Certificates of Occupancy for the Development 
Project) until such time as the dedications have been completed. If this property dedication is not 
exempt from real estate excise tax, then the City shall pay any real estate excise tax so due on this 
transfer. This section shall survive termination of the Agreement. 

Section 8. Impact Fee Credits for Transportation Improvement Project Property 
dedication.  

a) Transportation Impact Fee Credit. The maximum amount of the transportation impact 
fee credit for the Transportation Improvement Project Property dedication to be made 
by Owner under this Agreement shall be limited to the lessor of: the total 
Transportation Impact Fees due on the Project (currently calculated as an estimated 
$245,245.84), or the value of the Transportation Improvement Project Property 
dedication as determined in Section 9, or the City’s estimated cost for the portion of 
Project 2.04A ($1,740,094) (“Maximum Transportation Impact Fee Credit”). The 
credits provided under this Section are limited to this Maximum Transportation Impact 
Fee Credit. Once the Maximum Transportation Impact Fee Credit has been achieved 
through credits applied to Owner for the Development Project, Owner will be required 
to comply with the impact fee provisions of the Code for any further development of 
the Property that requires payment of transportation impact fees, including payment of 
any transportation impact fees incurred over and above the Maximum Transportation 
Impact Fee Credit.   

b) Credit Granted. The City hereby grants the Owner a credit against transportation impact 
fees for fair market value of the Transportation Improvement Project Property as set 
forth in this Agreement and as calculated under the provisions contained Sections 8 and 
9. The total estimated transportation impact fee required for the Development Project 
is currently estimated as $245,245.84. The Owner shall pay the transportation impact 
fees based on the rate schedule in effect at the time payment has been made to the City 
for building permits 22-671, 22-672, 22-673, 22-674, and 22-675. Such payment shall 
be made as set forth below in subsection “c” prior to issuance of such permits by the 
City.  

Page 130 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 6 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

c) Transportation Impact Fees to be Deposited into Escrow. The Parties agree that the 
estimated transportation impact fees due will likely substantially exceed the credit 
granted by the City for the dedication of the Transportation Improvement Project 
Property. Therefore, the Parties agree that Owner shall establish an escrow account at 
a Washington escrow company of its choosing and will deposit therein the full 
transportation impact fees due (no credit applied). The escrow agreement for such 
deposit(s) shall be in a form acceptable to the City. Such deposit(s) shall be made and 
evidence thereof presented to the City prior to issuance of any building permits for the 
Property. To the extent additional permits are issued at different times, additional 
deposits of the then-due transportation impact fees shall be made with evidence thereof 
provided to the City prior to permit issuance. The escrow agreement for holding the 
fees shall include the following provisions: (1) no funds shall be released to any Party 
until (a) a fair market value for the Transportation Improvement Project Property has 
been established in accordance with Section 9 below; (b) the dedication has been 
completed by the Owner and accepted by the City; and (c) the City has certified the 
total Maximum Transportation Impact Fee Credit due to the Owner and has provided 
such certification to the escrow company; (2) the escrow company will release the 
certified credit amount to the Owner and release the remaining escrow funds to the 
City; (3) any interest that has accrued on the escrow account shall be split and 
distributed according to the proportion released to each Party; (4) if the Owner fails to 
dedicate the Transportation Improvement Project Property to the City in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement, then the City may request and the escrow company 
shall release all funds and interest thereon to the City within 15 days of receipt of the 
City’s request.  

d) Owner shall dedicate the Transportation Improvement Project Property to the City 
generally as shown on Exhibit C, but in the final configuration as determined following 
the final design of the Transportation Improvement Project by the City. Owner shall 
complete such dedications no later than eighteen (18) months after the effective date of 
this Agreement  or prior to the City’s issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the 
first building permit for the Development Project, whichever time period is shorter.     

c) In the event Owner defaults on any requirement under this Agreement, or defaults on 
dedicating the Transportation Improvement Project Property, the City’s remedies 
include obtaining the release of transportation impact fee funds and interest thereon 
from escrow and/or holding any outstanding Certificates of Occupancy until such time 
the Transportation Improvement Project Property dedication is completed, including 
the Parties’ agreement on valuation, and any outstanding impact fees are paid in full or 
credited.  

d) The City agrees that these credits are consistent with RCW 82.02.060(4) and that they 
are consistent with POMC 20.182.080.   

Section 9. Valuation of Property Dedications. The Parties agree to value the 
Transportation Improvement Project Property to be dedicated will be set as the fair market value 

Page 131 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 7 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

as described in this subsection. The Parties shall value the Transportation Improvement Project 
Property as follows: The Owner shall hire a certified property appraiser, pay for the appraisal, and 
provide a copy of that appraisal report to the City. The date for valuation purposes, including but 
not limited to sales comparisons used for the valuation, shall be the effective date of this 
Agreement.  The City shall use its best efforts to review the appraisal report and provide a response 
to Owner on the valuation within 30 days of receipt. If both the City and the Owner agree that the 
appraisal is fair and reasonable, then the appraised value will be accepted as the Property value for 
transportation impact fee credit purposes. If the City disagrees with the appraisal, then the City 
may hire its own appraiser to perform a second appraisal at the Owner’s expense. The date for 
valuation purposes shall be the same as used in the Owner’s appraisal. The City shall use its best 
efforts to obtain an appraisal report within 60 days of notice to the Owner of its disagreement with 
Owner’s appraisal. If that second City-initiated appraisal is within twenty (20) percent of the value 
established by the first Owner-initiated appraiser, then the Parties will take the mid-point between 
the two appraisals and use that as the fair market value. If the appraisals are more than 20 percent 
apart, the Parties have the option of either agreeing to a value or establishing another method to 
set the fair market value of the Transportation Improvement Project Property. If the Parties are 
unable to agree, then they shall submit the valuation decision to binding arbitration with a mutually 
agreeable arbitrator, or if they cannot agree on an arbitrator then the Parties will submit the 
valuation dispute to Judicial Dispute Resolution, LLC. Each Party shall pay one half of the costs 
of arbitration.  

 
Section 10.  Other Impact Fees.  The Development Project is subject to the City’s impact fee 

requirements of POMC Ch. 20.182. Owner shall pay the applicable impact fees for the 
Development Project at the rates in effect at the time each fully complete building permit 
application is submitted.    

 
Section 11. Ground Floor Elevation Modification. The Development Project is not subject 

to the minimum two foot (2’) ground floor elevation requirement that is set forth in POMC 
20.32.100 as applicable to all “Apartment” building types, regardless of site topography or other 
design considerations. The Development Project provides equal or better ground floor privacy for 
residents and aesthetic screening than could be provided with strict adherence to the Code, 
therefore, the City has agreed that Owner may depart from the requirements of POMC 20.32.100 
in the following manner: no minimum ground floor elevation shall be applied. 
 

Section 12. Default. 
 

a) Subject to extensions of time by mutual consent in writing, failure, or delay by either 
Party to perform any term or provision of this Agreement shall constitute a default. In the event of 
alleged default or breach of any terms or conditions of this Agreement, the Party alleging such 
default or breach shall give the other Party not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, 
specifying the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said default may be cured. 
During this thirty (30) day period, the Party charged shall not be considered in default for purposes 
of termination or institution of legal proceedings. 
 

b) After notice and expiration of the thirty (30) day period, if such default has not been 

Page 132 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 8 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

cured or is not being diligently cured in the manner set forth in the notice, the other Party to this 
Agreement may, at its option, institute legal proceedings pursuant to this Agreement. In addition, 
the City may decide to file an action to enforce the City’s Codes, and to obtain penalties and costs 
as provided in the POMC for violations of this Agreement and the Code. 
 

Section 13. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate five (5) years after Effective Date.  
Upon termination and upon the request of the Owner, the City shall record a notice of such 
termination in a form satisfactory to the Parties that the Agreement has been terminated.  

 
Section 14. Extension and Modification. Any request for extension or modification, if 

allowed under the City’s code, shall be subject to the provisions contained in POMC Chapter 20.26 
POMC. 
 

Section 15. Effect upon Termination on Owner.  Termination of this Agreement as to the 
Owner shall not affect any of the Owner’s respective obligations to comply with the City 
Comprehensive Plan and the terms and conditions or any applicable zoning code(s) or other land 
use entitlements approved with respect to the Property, or obligations to pay assessments, liens, 
fees, or taxes. Furthermore, if the Agreement expires without the Transportation Improvement 
Project costs being fully recovered by impact fee credit or mitigation funds, the Owner will no 
longer be eligible to receive such credits. 

 
Section 16. Effects upon Termination on City. Upon any termination of this Agreement as 

to the Property, or any portion thereof, the City will be under no obligation to provide any 
additional credits or reimbursement to Owner even if the Transportation Improvement Project 
costs have not been fully recovered at the time of expiration or termination. 

 
Section 17.  Assignment and Assumption.  The Owner shall have the right to sell, assign or 

transfer this Agreement with all rights, title, and interests therein to any person, firm, or corporation 
at any time during the term of this Agreement with a sale of the underlying property. Owner shall 
provide the City with written notice of any intent to sell, assign, or transfer all or a portion of the 
Property, at least 30 calendar days in advance of such action; provided; however, failure to strictly 
comply with the 30 calendar day notice provision shall not be considered a breach of this 
Agreement.   

 
Section 18.  Binding on Successors; Covenants Running with the Land. The conditions and 

covenants set forth in this Agreement and incorporated herein by the Exhibits shall run with the 
land and the benefits and burdens shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties. The Owner and 
every purchaser, assignee or transferee of an interest in the Property, or any portion thereof, shall 
be obligated and bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and shall be the beneficiary 
thereof and a Party thereto, but only with respect to the Property, or such portion thereof, sold, 
assigned or transferred to it. Any such purchaser, assignee or transferee shall observe and fully 
perform all of the duties and obligations of the Owner contained in this Agreement, as such duties 
and obligations pertain to the portion of the Property sold, assigned, or transferred to it. 

 
Section 19. Amendment to Agreement; Effect of Agreement on Future Actions. No 

Page 133 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 9 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

waiver, alteration, or modification to any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding 
unless in writing, signed by the duly authorized representatives of the Parties, be consistent with 
Chapter 20.26 POMC, and, where considered substantive as determined by the Director, follow 
the same procedures set forth in Chapter 20.26 POMC. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent 
the City Council from making any amendment to its Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code, Official 
Zoning Map or development regulations after the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
Section 20. General release. Owner may free itself from further obligations relating to the 

sold, assigned, or transferred property, provided that the buyer, assignee, or transferee expressly 
assumes the obligations under this Agreement as provided herein, including the obligation to 
timely dedicate the Transportation Improvement Project Property.    

 
Section 21.  Notices. Notices, demands, correspondence to the City and/or Owner (as 

applicable) shall be sufficiently given if dispatched by pre-paid first-class mail to the addresses of 
the Parties as designated in “Written Notice” Section 33 below. Notice to the City shall be to the 
attention of both the City Clerk and the City Attorney. Notices to successors-in-interest of the 
Owner shall be required to be given by the City only for those successors-in-interest who have 
given the City written notice of their address for such notice. The parties hereto may, from time to 
time, advise the other of new addresses for such notices, demands or correspondence. 

 
Section 22. Reimbursement for Agreement Expenses of the City. Owner agrees to 

reimburse the City for actual expenses incurred over and above fees paid by Owner as an applicant 
incurred by City directly relating to this Agreement, including recording fees, publishing fees, 
attorneys’ fees, and reasonable staff and consultant costs not otherwise included within application 
fees; provided however, the City shall provide written notice to Owner if the expenses to the City 
are anticipated to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($25,000.00) and the 
Parties shall meet and confer regarding the City’s anticipated costs. Upon payment of all expenses, 
the Owner may request written acknowledgement of all fees. Such payment of all fees shall be 
remitted to the City, at the latest, within thirty (30) days from the City’s presentation of a written 
statement of charges to the Owner. 

 
Section 23. Applicable Law, Resolution of Disputes, and Attorneys’ Fees.  It is the Parties’ 

intent to work cooperatively and to resolve disputes in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  All 
disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved as follows:  
 

a) Settlement Meeting.  If any dispute arises between the Parties relating to this 
Agreement, then the Parties shall meet and seek to resolve the dispute, in good faith, within ten 
(10) working days after a Party’s request for such a meeting.  The City shall send the Mayor, 
Community Development Director, Public Works Director, and/or the Mayor’s designee and any 
persons with information relating to the dispute, and Owner shall send an owner’s representative 
and any consultant or other person with technical information or expertise related to the dispute. 

b) Court. If the Parties cannot resolve the matter in a settlement meeting, then 
jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap 
County, Washington, or the U.S. District Court for Western Washington, as applicable. This 

Page 134 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 10 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  The non-prevailing Party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay 
the other Parties' expenses and reasonable attorney's fees. 

Section 24. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
Agreement shall not create any rights enforceable by any party who is not a Party to this 
Agreement.  

 
Section 25. City’s right to breach. The Parties agree that the City may, without incurring any 

liability, engage in action that would otherwise be a breach if the City makes a determination on 
the record that the action is necessary to avoid a serious threat to public health and safety, or if the 
action is required by federal or state law. 

 
Section 26. Owner’s Compliance.  The City’s duties under the Agreement are expressly 

conditioned upon the Owner’s substantial compliance with each and every term, condition, 
provision, and/or covenant in this Agreement, including all applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations and the Owner’s obligations as identified in any approval or project permit for the 
property identified in this Agreement. 

 
Section 27. Limitation on City’s Liability for Breach.  Any breach of this Agreement by the 

City shall give right only to damages under state contract law and shall not give rise to any liability 
under Chapter 64.40 RCW, the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution, 
including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. §1983, or similar state constitutional provisions. 

 
Section 28. Third Party Legal Challenge. In the event any legal action or special proceeding 

is commenced by any person or entity other than a Party to challenge this Agreement or any 
provision herein, the City may elect to tender the defense of such lawsuit or individual claims in 
the lawsuit to Owner. In such event, Owner shall hold the City harmless from and defend the City 
from all costs and expenses incurred in the defense of such lawsuit or individual claims in the 
lawsuit, including but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and expenses of litigation. The Owner shall 
not settle any lawsuit without the consent of the City. The City shall act in good faith and shall not 
unreasonably withhold consent to settle. 

 
Section 29. Specific Performance. The Parties specifically agree that damages are not an 

adequate remedy for breach of this Agreement, and that the Parties are entitled to compel specific 
performance of all material terms of this Agreement by any Party in default hereof. 

 
Section 30. Recording. This Agreement shall be recorded against the Property with the real 

property records of the Kitsap County Auditor. During the term of the Agreement, it is binding 
upon the owners of the property and any successors in interest to such property.  

 

Page 135 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 11 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

Section 31.  Severability.  This Agreement does not violate any federal or state statute, rule, 
regulation or common law known; but any provision which is found to be invalid or in violation 
of any statute, rule, regulation or common law shall be considered null and void, with the 
remaining provisions in the Agreement remaining viable and in effect. 
 

Section 32. Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of a Party to insist upon strict performance of 
any of the covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred 
in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, 
agreements, or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 33.  Written Notice. All written communications regarding enforcement or alleged 

breach of this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the addresses listed below, unless notified 
to the contrary. Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective 
upon the date of both emailing and mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed 
sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated below: 

NAME OF OWNER: CITY: 
Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC 
Attn. Steve Novotny 
7809 Pacific Avenue 
Tacoma WA 98408 
powermystro@gmail.com 

Mayor 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard WA 98366 
rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov  
 
Copies shall also be transmitted to the 
City Clerk and City Attorney at the 
above address. 

Section 34. Time is of the essence. All time limits set forth herein are of the essence. The 
Parties agree to perform all obligations under this Agreement with due diligence. 

 
Section 35.  Covenant of Good Faith and Cooperation.  The Parties agree to take further 

actions and execute further documents, either jointly or within their respective power and 
authority, to implement the intent of this Agreement.  Each Party covenants to use its best efforts 
and work cooperatively in order to secure the benefits and rights under this Agreement. The Parties 
shall not unreasonably withhold approvals or consents provided for in this Agreement.  Each Party 
shall execute and deliver to the other all further documents as are reasonably necessary to carry 
out this Agreement, including the Transportation Improvement Project, the property dedications, 
and Development Project, as may be necessary to provide a Party with a full and complete 
enjoyment of its rights and privileges under this Agreement.   

Section 36.  Interpretation.  This Agreement has been reviewed and revised by legal counsel 
for both Parties, and no presumption or rule construing ambiguity against the drafter of the 
document shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement.  

Page 136 of 358

mailto:rputaansuu@


 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 12 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

Section 37.  Counterparts.  The Agreement may be signed in two or more counterpart copies 
with the same effect as if the signature of each counterpart copy were on a single instrument.  Each 
counterparty shall be deemed as an original as to the Party whose signature it bears, and all such 
counterparts shall constitute one document.   

Section 38. Entire Agreement. The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together 
with the Exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other 
representative of the Parties, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering 
into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement. The entire 
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is contained in this 
Agreement and exhibits thereto. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on this        day of 

   , 2023. 
 
BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS QOZB, LLC CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
 
By:       By:       
      Steve Novotny            Robert Putaansuu 
Its:       Its: Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
 NAME      Jennifer S. Robertson 
Attorney for Owner     Attorney for Port Orchard 
        

ATTEST: 
 
 
              
       Brandy Wallace, MMC 
       Port Orchard City Clerk 
 
 
EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT: 
 
Exhibit A   –  Legal Description of the Property being developed by Owner 
Exhibit B   –  Map of the Property and the Development Project and with permits listed in Section  

2 identified 
Exhibit C   –  Transportation Improvement Project Property dedication map 

Page 137 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 13 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

NOTARY BLOCK FOR PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
)  ss. 

COUNTY OF KITSAP  ) 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Robert Putaansuu is the person 
who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath 
stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Mayor of Port 
Orchard to be the free and voluntary act of such Party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the 
instrument. 
 

Dated:     , 2023. 
  
       
 
       

(print or type name) 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
State of Washington, residing at: 

          
My Commission expires:   

  

Page 138 of 358



 
Development Agreement for Funding Transportation Improvements & Right of Way Dedication 
Blueberry Apartments 
Page 14 of 16 
iManage\366922\0047\10600329.v3-3/30/23 

NOTARY BLOCK FOR BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS QOZB, LLC 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
)  ss. 

COUNTY OF     ) 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Steve Novotny  is the person who 
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that (he/she) signed this instrument, on oath 
stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the    
of Blueberry Apartments QOZB, LLC, a Washington limited liability company to be the free 
and voluntary act of such Party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 

Dated:     , 2023. 
 
       
 
       

(print or type name) 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
State of Washington, residing at:  

        
 

My Commission expires:  

Page 139 of 358



Kitsap County 

Parcel Details 

Q. Search ii Details T Q Maps T !! Services T l! Tax Bill T t!4 Print 

Tax Statement 

Parcel#: 022301-4-043-2007 

**NO SITUS ADDRESS ** 

View: Receipt(s) on file 
[Click here to Print] 

[Click here to Pay by Credit Card - 3rd party fee applies] 

[Click here to Pay by E-Check - Free] 

Account Number 

022301-4-043-
2007 

02231E 

Peter J Boissonneau 

MAKE REMITTANCES PAYABLE TO: 
Kitsap County Treasurer 
PO Box 169 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

•• For Informational Purposes Only ..... 

Process Number 1040187 

axpayer Name: 
BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS QOZB LLC 

Tax Property Description 

THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER, SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 23 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, W.M., IN 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING 
AT A POINT 990 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2, THENCE SOUTH 330 FEET; 
THENCE WEST 660 FEET; THENCE NORTH 330 FEET; THENCE EAST 660 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; EXCEPT RAMSEY ROAD SE; AND 
EXCEPT THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN SHORT SUBDIVISION NO. 2586, 
RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 8103110065;AND EXCEPT THAT 
PORTION CONVEYED TO KITSAP COUNTY FOR BLUEBERRY ROAD SE 
UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 200904300075; AND EXCEPT THE EAST 30 FEET 
FOR BETHEL ROAD. 

VALUE I NFORMATION FOR TAX 

2022 2023 

Land: $112,230 $120,180 

Buildings, etc.: $0 $0 

TOTAL VALUE: $112,230 $120,180 

TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE:(Land + Buildings, etc. minus Qualifying Exemptions) 

2023 WEB TAX STATEMENT 

Printed:03/02/2023 

BLUEBERRY APARTMENTS QOZB LLC 
7809 PACIFIC AVENUE 
TACOMA, WA 98408 

GENERAL TAX DISTRIBUTION 

2022 2023 

STATE GENERAL $311.47 STATE GENERAL $298.34 
REGIONAL REGIONAL 

$36.52 $33.19 
LIBRARY IBRARY 

LOCAL SCHOOL $320.67 OCALSCHOOL $253.28 

COUNTY $86.19 OUNTY $78.29 
CITY $142.67 ITY $134.73 
PORT S25.98 PORT $23.69 
FIRE $192.02 FIRE $183.99 
PUD $5.92 PUD $5.37 
2022 Total: $1,121.44 2023 Total: $1,010.88 

C urrent Taxes 

l<\SSESSMENT 2022 2023 

Noxious Weed $2.04 $2.04 

l<\smt Total $2.04 $2.04 

$112,230 
:023 General Property Tax + 

$120,180 !Assessments= $1,012.92 

evy Code 0810 

rclick here for Levy Information] 

General Levy Rate per $1000 
8.4116 

Voled Rate - 25.1 % Voter Approved 

Parcel Location: No address on file 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $1,012.92 
First half taxes paid after April 30th will 
incur interest plus penalty computed on the 
FULL year amount (RCW 84.56.020). 

LU23-Dev Agreement-01

Page 140 of 358

jkrukoff
New Stamp



Page 141 of 358



Page 142 of 358



LU23-Dev Agreement-01Page 143 of 358

jkrukoff
New Stamp



LU23-Dev Agreement-01Page 144 of 358

jkrukoff
New Stamp



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
   Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8C Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract Prepared by: Tony Lang 
 With Miles Resources, LLC for the 2023  Public Works Director 
 Citywide Asphalt Repair Project       Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: May 3, 2023 

 
Summary: The City needs to routinely repair asphalt on City streets. By this Resolution, the City Council would 
authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with Miles Resources, LLC for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair 
Project (the “Project”). On December 2, 2022, the City was awarded a Fuel Tax Grant (TIB#3-W-153(001)-1) 
from the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board (TIB), in the amount of $325,976, to partially 
fund the Project. Pursuant to Resolution No. 036-22, Section 5 Bid Procedures, the City’s Public Works 
Department prepared an Invitation to Bid, published a bid solicitation in the Kitsap Sun and Daily Journal of 
Commerce on March 24 and March 31, 2023, and on March 24, 2023, staff uploaded the bid documents to the 
Washington Builder’s Exchange and the City’s Webpage. 
 
On April 19, 2023, by the 10:00 am bid deadline, the City Clerk received six (6) sealed bids.  After confirming 
that there were no objections made and that there were no challenges to the Public Opening process, the six 
(6) sealed bids were opened and read aloud by the City Clerk.  Bids received prior to the April 19, 2023, 10:00 
am deadline are as follows:  
  

Name of Contractor Bid Total 
Miles Resources, LLC $867,629.60 
Lakeside Industries, Inc. $934,235.51 
Tucci & Sons, Inc. $942,653.82 
Granite Construction Company $974,243.40 
Puget Paving & Construction, Inc. $1,067,400.58 
Central Paving, LLC $1,104,763.21 

 
The City Clerk then prepared a Bid Tabulation form, and the Public Works Department prepared a Bid 
Evaluation form (including applicable taxes, labor, equipment, material, and fees), resulting in the initial 
determination that the lowest qualified, responsible, and responsive bid was provided by Miles Resources, 
LLC.  
 
On April 20, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department Staff completed the MRSC Mandatory Bidder 
Responsibility Checklist and confirmed that the Miles Resources, LLC bid of $867,629.60 was the lowest 
qualified, responsible, and responsive bid. The Public Works Department also reviewed all materials and  
 

Page 145 of 358



Business Item 8C 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 confirmed that the bidding requirements for this public work have been followed. On May 1, 2023, 
 the City received TIB approval to award the contract. 
 
 Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution approving a contract 
 with Miles Resources, LLC for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair project in the amount of 
 $867,629.60 (applicable taxes included).  
 
 Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8:  Transportation 
 
 Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution approving a contract with Miles Resources, 
 LLC for the City Wide Asphalt Repair project in the amount of $867,629.60. 
 
 Fiscal Impact:  Road repairs are budgeted in the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget. (002.05.542.30.40).  TIB 
 grant funds in the amount of $325,976 were awarded for a portion of this project. 
 
 Alternatives:    Do not approve and provide further guidance 
 
 Attachments: Resolution  
  Contract    
  TIB Letter 

Page 146 of 358



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING A 
CONTRACT WITH MILES RESOURCES, LLC FOR THE 2023 CITY WIDE ASPHALT 
REPAIR PROJECT AND DOCUMENTING PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES. 
  
WHEREAS, the City routinely repairs asphalt on City streets and identified the need for 

the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair Project (the “Project”); and  
 
WHEREAS, on December 2, 2022, the City was awarded a grant from the Washington 

State Transportation Improvement Board Fuel Tax Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 26, 2023, the City entered into an agreement with the 

Washington State Transportation Improvement Board to accept the grant and receive Fuel Tax 
grant funds in the amount of $325,976 to fund a portion of the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s Procurement Policies and Procedures, Resolution No. 

036-22, Section 5 Bid Procedures, the City’s Public Works Department prepared an Invitation to 
Bid for this Project, advertised in the Kitsap Sun and Daily Journal of Commerce on March 24 
and March 31, 2023, and on March 24, 2023, staff uploaded the bid documents to the 
Washington Builder’s Exchange and the City’s Webpage for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 19, 2023, by the 10:00 am bid deadline, the City Clerk received six 

(6) sealed bids; and  
 
WHEREAS, after confirming that there were no objections made and that there were no 

challenges to the Public Opening process, the six (6) Sealed Bids were opened and read aloud 
by the City Clerk; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk prepared a Bid Tabulation form and the Public Works 

Department prepared a Bid Evaluation form, resulting in an initial determination that the 
lowest qualified, responsible, and responsive Bid was provided by Miles Resources, LLC; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 20, 2023, the City’s Public Works Department completed the MRSC 
Mandatory Bidder Responsibility Checklist for Miles Resources, LLC, and confirmed that Miles 
Resources, LLC submitted the lowest qualified, responsible, and responsive Bid, and further 
confirmed that all applicable bidding procedures were followed for this Project; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor’s Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described above 
for this particular contract by Resolution; now, therefore,  
 

Page 147 of 358



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
 THAT:  The City Council approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute a contract with 
 Miles Resources, LLC, for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair project, and to take all 
 actions necessary consistent with this authorization to effectuate this approval;  
 

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
 hereon. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of May 2023.   
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 148 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

CONTRACT 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
2023 CITY WIDE ASPHALT REPAIR 

 CONTRACT NO. _______ 

THIS CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made and entered into this 9th day of May, 2023, by and between 
the City of Port Orchard, a municipality incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of 
Washington, hereinafter called the “City,” and Miles Resources, LLC, hereinafter called the 
“Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH: 

I. General Provisions.  
 

A. Description of Work. 

The Contractor, in consideration of the covenants, agreements and payments to be performed 
and made by the City, hereby covenants and agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials, 
equipment and supplies required for, and to execute, construct and finish in full compliance with 
the Contract Documents, 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair Project. The Contractor further agrees to 
perform all such work for the Contract Price stated in the Contractor’s Bid Proposal dated April 
19, 2023, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 
Contractor further represents that the services furnished under this Agreement will be 
performed in accordance with and as described in the attached plans and specifications and with 
the Port Orchard Municipal Code, the City’s Public Works Standards, which includes (but is not 
limited to) the 2021 edition of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and 
Municipal Construction (which shall apply except where noted otherwise). All of these standards 
are by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof. Contractor further represents 
that the services furnished under this Agreement will be performed in accordance with generally 
accepted professional practices within the Puget Sound region in effect at the time such services 
are performed. 

The Contract Documents include: 

Exhibit A -a confirmed copy of the Proposal made by the Contractor on April 19, 2023, 
together with the Instructions to Bidders. 

 Exhibit B – The Project Manual for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair Project. 

Exhibit C – Retainage Options 

All Exhibits to this Contract are by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 
if set forth in full. 

Page 1 of 41Page 149 of 358

hdraper
Highlight



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

B. Time of Completion. 

Time is of the essence of this Contract. It is agreed that the work covered by this Contract shall 
start within 14 calendar days after Notice to Proceed is issued and that all construction shall be 
complete within 75 working days after the Notice to Proceed Date. 

 C. Liquidated Damages. 

It is further agreed that the City will suffer damage and be put to additional expense in the event 
that the Contractor shall not have the specified portions of the work completed in all its parts in 
the time specified, and as it may be difficult to accurately compute the amount of such damage, 
the Contractor expressly covenants and agrees to pay to the City liquidated damages, the sum as 
calculated by the equation shown in Section 1-08.9 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications, for 
each and every working day said work is not complete beyond the time shown in the Proposal.   

II. Non-Discrimination. 

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors 
in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; 
including but not limited to compliance with the following Pertinent Non-Discrimination 
Authorities:  

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U .S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21.  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
(42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property 
has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U .S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age);  

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage 
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 
1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of 
the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the 
Federal-aid recipients, sub- recipients and contractors, whether such programs or 
activities are Federally funded or not);  

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private 
transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 

Page 2 of 41Page 150 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 
49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;  

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);  

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately 
high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income 
populations;  

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes 
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with 
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful 
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);  

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).  

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 
42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of 
Transportation subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted 
programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively 
ensure that its contracts comply with these regulations. 

Also, in accordance with Title VI, the City is required to include the following clauses in every 
contract subject to Title VI and its related regulations. 

Therefore, during the performance of this Contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest agrees as follows:  

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor will comply with the Acts and the 
regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be 
amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part 
of this Contract.  

2. Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during this 
Contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 
disability, income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as 
set forth in Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, 

Page 3 of 41Page 151 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

including employment practices when this Contract covers any activity, project, or 
program set forth in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In 
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Contractor for 
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or 
leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the 
Contractor of the Contractor’s obligations under this Contract and the Acts and the 
Regulations relative to Non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, 
sex, age, disability, income-level, or LEP.  

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor will provide all information and reports 
required by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto and will 
permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its 
facilities as may be determined by the City or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where any information 
required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses 
to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the City or the FHWA, as 
appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.  

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the 
Non-discrimination provisions of this Contract, the City will impose such contract 
sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited 
to:  

1. withholding payments to the Contractor under the Contract until the Contractor 
complies; and/or  

2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending the Contract, in whole or in part.  

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one 
through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant 
thereto. The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement 
as the City or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the 
Contractor may request the City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 
City. In addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation 
to protect the interests of the United States.  

 

 

Page 4 of 41Page 152 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

III. Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW 

Contractor understands that her/his bid response documents, and any contract documents may 
be subject to release under the Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW and the City may be 
required to disclose such documents upon a request.  Contractor acknowledges that s/he has 
been advised to mark any records believed to be trade secrets or confidential in nature as 
“confidential.”  If records marked as “confidential” are found to be responsive to the request for 
records, the City as a courtesy to the Contractor, may elect to give notice to Contractor of the 
request so as to allow Contractor to seek a protective order from a Court.  Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees that any records deemed responsive to a public records request may 
be released at the sole discretion of, and without notice by, the City. 

IV. Termination  

The City may terminate this contract for cause or for convenience.  

1. Termination for Cause. The City may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to 
its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, 
or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following 
events: Contractor fails to complete the work or any portion thereof with sufficient 
diligence to ensure substantial completion of the work within the contract time;  
Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit of its 
creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency; Contractor fails in a 
material way to replace or correct work not in conformance with the Contract 
Documents, Contractor repeatedly fails to supply skilled workers or proper materials or 
equipment;  Contractor materially disregards or fails to comply with laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or Contractor is 
otherwise in material breach of any provision of the contract. Upon termination, the City 
may, at its option, take possession of or use all documents, materials, equipment, tools, 
and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by Contractor to maintain 
the orderly progress of, and to finish, the work, and finish the work by whatever other 
reasonable method it deems expedient.  

2. Termination for Convenience. The City may, upon written notice, terminate (without 
prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for the 
convenience of the City.  

3. Settlement of Costs. If the City terminates for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled 
to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred 
prior to the effective date of the termination, plus a reasonable allowance for overhead 
and profit on work performed prior to termination, plus the reasonable administrative 
costs of the termination, but shall not be entitled to any other costs or damages, 
whatsoever, provided however, the total sum payable upon termination shall not exceed 
the Contract Sum reduced by prior payments. 

Page 5 of 41Page 153 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

V. Corporate Surety Bond 

With this Contract, Contractor is furnishing a Corporate Surety Bond in the amount of  

_________________________________ Dollars ($____________) with ____________________ 
as Surety, to ensure full compliance, execution and performance of this Contract by the 
Contractor in accordance with all its terms and provisions. 

  
VI. Independent Contractor.   

The parties intend that an Independent Contractor-Employer Relationship will be created by this 
Agreement and that the Contractor has the ability to control and direct the performance and 
details of its work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.  

 
VII. Employment of State Retirees.  

The City is a “DRS-covered employer” which is an organization that employs one or more 
members of any retirement system administered by the Washington State Department of 
Retirement Systems (DRS). Pursuant to RCW 41.50.139(1) and WAC 415-02-325(1), the City is 
required to elicit on a written form if any of the Contractor’s employees providing services to the 
City retired using the 2008 Early Retirement Factors (ERFs), or if the Contractor is owned by an 
individual who retired using the 2008 ERFs, and whether the nature of the service and 
compensation would result in a retirement benefit being suspended. Failure to make this 
determination exposes the City to significant liability for pension overpayments. As a result, 
before commencing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall determine whether any of its 
employees providing services to the City or any of the Contractor’s owners retired using the 2008 
ERFs, and shall immediately notify the City and shall promptly complete the form provided by the 
City after this notification is made. This notification to DRS could impact the payment of 
retirement benefits to employees and owners of Contractor. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless the City from any and all claims, damages, or other liability, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs, relating to a claim by DRS of a pension overpayment caused by or 
resulting from Contractor’s failure to comply with the terms of this provision. This provision shall 
survive termination of this Agreement.  
  

Page 6 of 41Page 154 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

VIII.  Changes.   

The City may issue a written change order for any change in the Contract work during the 
performance of this Agreement.  If the Contractor determines, for any reason, that a change 
order is necessary, Contractor must submit a written change order request to the person listed 
in the Notice provision section of this Agreement, within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date 
Contractor knew or should have known of the facts and events giving rise to the requested 
change. If the City determines that the change increases or decreases the Contractor's costs or 
time for performance, the City will make an equitable adjustment. The City will attempt, in good 
faith, to reach agreement with the Contractor on all equitable adjustments.  However, if the 
parties are unable to agree, the City will determine the equitable adjustment as it deems 
appropriate.  The Contractor shall proceed with the change order work upon receiving either a 
written change order from the City or an oral order from the City before actually receiving the 
written change order.  If the Contractor fails to require a change order within the time specified 
in this paragraph, the Contractor waives its right to make any claim or submit subsequent change 
order requests for that portion of the contract work.  If the Contractor disagrees with the 
equitable adjustment, the Contractor must complete the change order work; however, the 
Contractor may elect to protest the adjustment as provided in subsections A through E of Section 
IX entitled, “Claims,” below. 

The Contractor accepts all requirements of a change order by: (1) endorsing it, (2) writing a 
separate acceptance, or (3) not protesting in the way this section provides.  A change order that 
is accepted by Contractor as provided in this section shall constitute full payment and final 
settlement of all claims for contract time and for direct, indirect and consequential costs, 
including costs of delays related to any work, either covered or affected by the change. 

IX. Claims.  If the Contractor disagrees with anything required by a change order, another 
written order, or an oral order from the City, including any direction, instruction, interpretation, 
or determination by the City, the Contractor may file a claim as provided in this section.  The 
Contractor shall give written notice to the City of all claims within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the occurrence of the events giving rise to the claims, or within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
the date the Contractor knew or should have known of the facts or events giving rise to the claim, 
whichever occurs first.  Any claim for damages, additional payment for any reason, or extension 
of time, whether under this Agreement or otherwise, shall be conclusively deemed to have been 
waived by the Contractor unless a timely written claim is made in strict accordance with the 
applicable provisions of this Agreement.  

At a minimum, a Contractor's written claim shall include the information set forth in subsections 
A, items 1 through 5 below. 

 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE A COMPLETE, WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF CLAIM WITHIN THE TIME 
ALLOWED SHALL BE AN ABSOLUTE WAIVER OF ANY CLAIMS ARISING IN ANY WAY FROM THE 
FACTS OR EVENTS SURROUNDING THAT CLAIM OR CAUSED BY THAT DELAY. 

Page 7 of 41Page 155 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

A. Notice of Claim.  Provide a signed written notice of claim that provides the following 
information: 

1. The date of the Contractor's claim; 

2. The nature and circumstances that caused the claim; 

3.  The provisions in this Agreement that support the claim; 

4. The estimated dollar cost, if any, of the claimed work and how that estimate was 
determined; and 

5. An analysis of the progress schedule showing the schedule change or disruption if 
the Contractor is asserting a schedule change or disruption. 

B. Records.  The Contractor shall keep complete records of extra costs and time incurred as 
a result of the asserted events giving rise to the claim.  The City shall have access to any of the 
Contractor's records needed for evaluating the protest. 

The City will evaluate all claims, provided the procedures in this section are followed.  If the City 
determines that a claim is valid, the City will adjust payment for work or time by an equitable 
adjustment.  No adjustment will be made for an invalid protest. 

C. Contractor's Duty to Complete Protested Work.  In spite of any claim, the Contractor shall 
proceed promptly to provide the goods, materials and services required by the City under this 
Agreement. 

D. Failure to Protest Constitutes Waiver.  By not protesting as this section provides, the 
Contractor also waives any additional entitlement and accepts from the City any written or oral 
order (including directions, instructions, interpretations, and determination). 

E. Failure to Follow Procedures Constitutes Waiver.  By failing to follow the procedures of 
this section, the Contractor completely waives any claims for protested work and accepts from 
the City any written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations, and 
determination). 

X. Limitation Of Actions.   

CONTRACTOR MUST, IN ANY EVENT, FILE ANY LAWSUIT ARISING FROM OR CONNECTED WITH 
THIS AGREEMENT WITHIN 120 CALENDAR DAYS FROM THE DATE THE CONTRACT WORK IS 
COMPLETE OR CONTRACTOR’S ABILITY TO FILE THAT CLAIM OR SUIT SHALL BE FOREVER BARRED.  
THIS SECTION FURTHER LIMITS ANY APPLICABLE STATUTORY LIMITATIONS PERIOD. 

  

Page 8 of 41Page 156 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

XI. Warranty.   

Upon acceptance of the contract work, Contractor must provide the City a two-year warranty 
bond in the amount of twenty percent (20%) of the contract price a form and amount acceptable 
to the City.  The Contractor shall correct all defects in workmanship and materials within two (2) 
years from the date of the City’s acceptance of the Contract work, including replacing vegetation 
that fails to thrive.  In the event any parts are repaired or replaced, only original replacement 
parts shall be used—rebuilt or used parts will not be acceptable.  When defects are corrected, 
the warranty for that portion of the work shall extend for one  (1) additional year from the date 
such correction is completed and accepted by the City.  The Contractor shall begin to correct any 
defects within seven (7) calendar days of its receipt of notice from the City of the defect.  If the 
Contractor does not accomplish the corrections within a reasonable time as determined by the 
City, the City may complete the corrections and the Contractor shall pay all costs incurred by the 
City in order to accomplish the correction. 

XII. Indemnification.   

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents 
and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, including all 
legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the Contractor's performance 
of this Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the sole 
negligence of the City. 

The City's inspection or acceptance of any of Contractor's work when completed shall not be 
grounds to avoid any of these covenants of indemnification. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor 
and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers, the Contractor's liability 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Contractor's negligence. 

It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein 
constitutes the contractor's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely 
for the purposes of this indemnification.  The parties further acknowledge that they have 
mutually negotiated this waiver. 

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT. 

  

 

 

Page 9 of 41Page 157 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

XIII. Insurance.   

The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representative, employees 
or subcontractors. 

No Limitation. Contractor’s maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement shall not be 
construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or 
otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.  

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Contractor shall obtain insurance of the types described 
below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be 
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form 
CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop gap liability, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal injury and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract. The Commercial 
General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide the Aggregate Per Project 
Endorsement ISO form CG 25 03 11 85. There shall be no endorsement or modification of 
the Commercial General Liability insurance for liability arising from explosion, collapse or 
underground property damage. The City shall be named as an insured under the 
Contractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work 
performed for the City using ISO Additional Insured endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and 
Additional Insured-Completed Operations endorsement CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute 
endorsements providing equivalent coverage.  

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington. 

4. Builders Risk insurance covering interests of the City, the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors in the work. Builders Risk insurance shall be on 
a all-risk policy form and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and 
physical loss or damage including flood and earthquake, theft, vandalism, malicious 
mischief, collapse, temporary buildings and debris removal. This Builders Risk insurance 
covering the work will have a deductible of $5,000 for each occurrence, which will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. Higher deductibles for flood and earthquake perils may 
be accepted by the City upon written request by the Contractor and written acceptance 
by the City. Any increased deductibles accepted by the City will remain the responsibility 

Page 10 of 41Page 158 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

of the Contractor. The Builders Risk insurance shall be maintained until final acceptance 
of the work by the City. 

B. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.   

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and a $2,000,000 products-
completed operations aggregate limit. 

3. Builders Risk insurance shall be written in the amount of the completed value of 
the project with no coinsurance provisions. 

C. Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability and 
Builders Risk insurance: 

1. The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the 
City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City 
shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

2. The Contractor’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.  

D. Contractor’s Insurance for Other Losses.  The Contractor shall assume full responsibility 
for all loss or damage from any cause whatsoever to any tools, Contractor’s employee-owned 
tools, machinery, equipment, or motor vehicles owned or rented by the Contractor, or the 
Contractor’s agents, suppliers or contractors as well as to any temporary structures, scaffolding 
and protective fences. 

E. Waiver of Subrogation.  The Contractor and the City waive all rights against each other 
any of their Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, each of the other, for 
damages caused by fire or other perils to the extend covered by Builders Risk insurance or other 
property insurance obtained pursuant to the Insurance Requirements Section of this Contract or 
other property insurance applicable to the work. The policies shall provide such waivers by 
endorsement or otherwise. 

F.  Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best 
rating of not less than A:VII. 

G.  Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish the City with original certificates and a 
copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional 

Page 11 of 41Page 159 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

insured endorsement, evidencing the Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability 
insurance of the Contractor before commencement of the work. Before any exposure to loss may 
occur, the Contractor shall file with the City a copy of the Builders Risk insurance policy that 
includes all applicable conditions, exclusions, definitions, terms and endorsements related to this 
Project. 

H.  Subcontractors.  Contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor of every tier obtain at a 
minimum the same insurance coverage and limits as stated herein for the Contractor (with the 
exception of Builders Risk insurance). Upon request the City, the Contractor shall provide 
evidence of such insurance. 

XIV. WORK PERFORMED AT CONTRACTOR'S RISK. 

Contractor shall take all necessary precautions and shall be responsible for the safety of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of the contract work and shall utilize 
all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at Contractor's own risk, and 
Contractor shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles 
used or held for use in connection with the work. 

XV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Non-Waiver of Breach.  The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of 
the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred 
by this Agreement in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or 
relinquishment of those covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in 
full force and effect. 

B. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  If the parties are unable to 
settle any dispute, difference or claim arising from the parties’ performance of this Agreement, 
the exclusive means of resolving that dispute, difference or claim, shall only be by filing suit 
exclusively under the venue, rules and jurisdiction of the Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap 
County, Washington, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute resolution 
process.  In any claim or lawsuit for damages arising from the parties' performance of this 
Agreement, each party shall pay all its legal costs and attorney's fees incurred in defending or 
bringing such claim or lawsuit, including all appeals, in addition to any other recovery or award 
provided by law; provided, however, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the 
City's right to indemnification under Section XII of this Agreement. 

C. Written Notice.  All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties 
at the addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.  
Any written notice hereunder shall become effective three (3) business days after the date of 
mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the 

Page 12 of 41Page 160 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or such other address as may be hereafter 
specified in writing. 

D. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by either party without the written 
consent of the non-assigning party shall be void.  If the non-assigning party gives its consent to 
any assignment, the terms of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and no further 
assignment shall be made without additional written consent. 

E. Modification.  No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of 
the City and Contractor. 

F. Entire Agreement.  The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with 
any Exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other 
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering 
into or forming a part of or altering in any manner this Agreement.  All of the above documents 
are hereby made a part of this Agreement.  However, should any language in any of the Exhibits 
to this Agreement conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the terms of this 
Agreement shall prevail. 

G. Compliance with Laws.  The Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and 
municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the future become applicable 
to Contractor's business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this 
Agreement or accruing out of the performance of those operations. 

H. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original, and all of which will together constitute this one Agreement.IN 
WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused these presents to be duly executed. 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
  
By:   
 Robert Putaansuu,  Mayor 

CONTRACTOR 

By:   

Title:   

Address:   

   

ATTEST: 

  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 13 of 41Page 161 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
  
Charlotte Archer, City Attorney 
 
NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
CONTRACTOR:     CITY: 
 
NAME _____________________________  NAME: K. Chris Hammer, P.E., City Engineer 
ADDRESS __________________________  ADDRESS: 216 Prospect Street 
TELEPHONE ________________________  TELEPHONE: (360) 876-4991 
Email _____________________________  Email: publicworks@portorchardwa.gov 
 

With a copy to the City Clerk at the same address

Page 14 of 41Page 162 of 358

mailto:publicworks@portorchardwa.gov


  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

 EXHIBIT   C   
5% RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION1 

Contractor: _______________________________________________________________ 

Project Name: _____________________________________________________________ 

Date: __________________________________ Project Number:  __________ 

Pursuant to RCW 60.28.010, as amended, you may exercise an option as to how the 5% retainage under this 
contract will be invested. Please complete and sign this form indication your preference. If you fail to do so 
you will miss the benefit of any interest earned. Select one of the following options: 
 

1. Savings Account: Money will be placed in an interest-bearing account. The interest       will be 
paid to you directly, rather than kept on deposit. If this is your choice, then please complete 
attached SAVINGS ACCOUNT AGREEMENT.  Please state the name of your bank.     
      Bank: ____________________________________________________________ 

 
2.       Escrow/Investments: The City will deliver retainage checks to a selected bank, pursuant to an 
escrow agreement. The bank will then invest the funds in securities or bonds selected by you, and 
interest will be paid to you as it accrues. If this is your choice, then please complete attached ESCROW 
AGREEMNT. 
 

Preferred Bank: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Securities/Bonds: ___________________________________________________ 

     
3.      Guarantee Deposit: Retainage will be held by the City. No interest is payable to the Contractor. 

 
Retainage is normally released 45 days after final acceptance of the work or following receipt of Labor and 
Industries/Department of Revenue clearance, whichever date is the later. Retainage on landscaping work 
may be longer, due to its seasonal nature. However, if this project is subject to grant funding, then the 
retainage may also be held until such time as the Contractor meets its obligations to the City to provide 
required information and documentation for compliance with the grant funding requirements. 
 
State law allows for limited early release of retainage in certain circumstance. 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Contractor’s Signature 
         ______________________________ 
        Title 
       

 

1 If the Contractor opts to post a retainage bond under RCW 60.28.011, such bond shall be in a form acceptable to the 
City, shall be with a surety with a minimum of A.M. Best financial strength rating of a minimum of A-. 

Page 15 of 41Page 163 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

   SAVING ACCOUNT AGREEMENT 
 

TO BANK: _______________________         SAVINGS ACCOUNT NO: ___________________ 
 
BANK’S ADDRESS: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
                                     _____________________________________________________________ 
 
AGENCY:   CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard WA 98366 

 
CONTRACT NO: ________________________________________ 
 
PROJECT TITLE:         
 
The estimated completion date of contract is: _________________________________________ 
 
The undersigned, ______________________________________________________, herein referred to as 
the CONTRACTOR, has directed the CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, Washington, hereinafter referred to as the 
AGENCY, to deliver to you its warrants which shall be payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly. Such 
warrants are to be held and disposed of by you in accordance with the following instructions and upon the 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
INSTRUCTIONS 

1. Warrants or checks made payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly upon delivery to you shall be 
endorsed by you and forwarded for collection. The moneys will then be placed by you in an interest-
bearing savings account. 

2. When and as interest on the savings account accrues and is paid, you shall collect such interest and 
forward it to the CONTRACTOR at its address designated below unless otherwise director by the 
CONTRACTOR. 

3. You are not authorized to deliver to the CONTRACTOR all or any part of the principal held by you 
pursuant to this agreement, except in accordance with written instruction from the AGENCY. 
Compliance with such instructions shall relieve you of any further liability related thereto. 

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as follows: 
Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and shall not be deducted 
from any moneys placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless the AGENCY directs 
the release to the CONTRACTOR, whereupon you shall be granted a first lien upon such moneys 
released and shall be entitled to reimburse yourself from such moneys for the entire amount of your 
fees as provided for herein above. In the event that you are made a party to any litigation with respect 
to the moneys held by you hereunder, or in the event that the conditions of this agreement are not 
promptly fulfilled, or that you are required to render any service not provided for in these 

Page 16 of 41Page 164 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

instructions, or that there is any assignment of the interests of this agreement, or any modification 
hereof, you shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for such extraordinary services from the 
CONTRACTOR and reimbursement from the CONTRACTOR for all costs and expenses, including 
attorney fees occasioned by such default, delay, controversy or litigation. 

5. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY and 
accepted by you. 

6. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY. 
You are not a party to nor bound by any instrument or agreement other than this. You shall not be 
required to take notice of any default or any other matter nor be bound by nor required to give notice 
or demand, nor required to take any action whatever except as herein expressly provided. You shall 
not be liable for any loss or damage not caused by your own negligence or willful misconduct. 

7. The foregoing provisions shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representative and 
heir of the Parties hereto. 

  
___________________________________                      CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
Contractor                                                                                  Agency 
 
BY:_________________________________                   BY:______________________________ 
Title: ________________________________                     
Date: ________________________________                  Date: _____________________________  
           
Address: _____________________________           

 
The above savings account agreement and instruction received and accepted this _______________ day of 
_______________, 20___ 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                                        Bank Name 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                            Authorized Bank Officer     
              
              

Page 17 of 41Page 165 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

ESCROW AGREEMENT 

TO BANK: __________________________  ESCROW NO.: ______________________________ 
 
BANK’S ADDRESS: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
                                   ______________________________________________________________ 
AGENCY:                    CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard WA 98366 

 
CONTRACT NO.: ___________________________________ 
 
PROJECT TITLE:_________________________________________________________ 
 
The estimated completion date of contract is: ________________________________ 
 
The undersigned, _____________________________________________, herein referred to as the 
CONTRACTOR, has directed the CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, Washington, hereinafter referred to as the 
AGENCY, to deliver to you its warrants which shall be payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly. 
Such warrants are to be held and disposed of by you in accordance with the following instructions 
and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.  
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

1. Warrants or checks made payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly upon delivery to you 
shall be endorsed by you and forwarded for collection. The moneys will then be used by you 
to purchase, as directed by the CONTRACTOR, bonds or other securities chosen by the 
CONTRACTOR and approved by the AGENCY. Attached is a list of such bonds, or other 
securities approved by the AGENCY. Other bonds or securities, except stocks may be 
selected by the CONTRACTOR, subject to express written approval of the AGENCY. Purchase 
of such bonds or other securities shall be in a form which shall allow you alone to reconvert 
such bonds or other securities into money if you are required to do so by the AGENCY as 
provided in Paragraph 4 of this Escrow Agreement.  

2. When and as interest on the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement accrues and 
is paid, you shall collect such interest and forward it to the CONTRACTOR at its address 
designated below unless otherwise directed by the CONTRACTOR. 

3. You are not authorized to deliver to the CONTRACTOR all or any part of the securities held 
by you pursuant to this agreement (or any moneys derived from the sale of such securities, 

Page 18 of 41Page 166 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

or the negotiation of the AGENCY’S warrants) except in accordance with written instructions 
from the AGENCY. Compliance with such instruction shall relieve you of any further liability 
related thereto. 

4. In the event the AGENCY orders you to do so in writing, you shall within thirty-five (35) days 
of receipt of such order, reconvert into money the securities held by you pursuant to this 
agreement and return such money together with any other moneys held by you hereunder, 
to the AGENCY. 

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as 
follows: 
Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and shall not be 
deducted from any property placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless 
the AGENCY directs the release to the CONTRACTOR of the securities and moneys held 
hereunder whereupon you shall be granted a first lien upon such property released and shall 
be entitled to reimburse yourself from such property for the entire amount of your fees as 
provided for herein above. In the event that are made a party to any litigation with respect 
to the property held by you hereunder, or in the event that the conditions of this escrow are 
not promptly fulfilled or that you are required to render any service not provided for in these 
instructions, or that there is any assignment of the interest of this escrow or any modification 
hereof, you shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for such extraordinary services 
from the CONTRACTOR and reimbursement from the CONTRACTOR for all costs and 
expenses, including attorney fees occasioned by such default, delay, controversy or 
litigation. 

6. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY 
and accepted by you. 

7. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the CONTRACTOR and the 
AGENCY with respect to this escrow and you are not a party to nor bound by any instrument 
or agreement other than this; you shall not be required to take notice of any default or any 
other matter nor be bound by nor be bound by nor required to give notice or demand , nor 
required to take action whatever except as herein expressly provided; you shall not be liable 
for any loss or damage not caused by your own negligence or willful misconduct. 

 
 

  

 

 
  

Page 19 of 41Page 167 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

The foregone provision shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representative, and 
heir of the Parties hereto. 

  
_______________________________________       CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
Contractor                                                                     Agency 
 
By: ____________________________________      By: __________________________________ 
Title: __________________________________           
Date: __________________________________      Date: _________________________________ 
Address: ________________________________ 
 
 

 
The above escrow agreement and instruction received and accepted this ___________ day of  
___________, 20__. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                                                                        Bank Name 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Authorized Bank Officer 
 

 SECURITIES AUTHORIZED BY AGENCY 
1. Bills, certificates, notes or bonds of the United States; 
2. Other obligations of the United States or its agencies; 
3. Obligation of any corporation wholly-owned by the government of the United States; 
4. Indebtedness of the Federal Nation Mortgage Association; and 
5. Time deposits in commercial banks. 

  

Page 20 of 41Page 168 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
_________________________PROJECT 

PW PROJECT NO. 2023-003 
Bond to City of Port Orchard, Washington 

Bond No. _____________ 
 

We,___________________________________,and____________________________________ 
 (Principal)      (Surety) 
 
a _________________________________ Corporation, and as a surety corporation authorized 
to become a surety upon Bonds of Contractors with municipal corporations in Washington State, 
are jointly and severally bound to the City of Port Orchard, Washington (“Owner”), in the penal 
sum of _________________________________________________________ Dollars 
($_________________), the payment of which sum, on demand, we bind ourselves and our 
successors, heirs, administrators, executors, or personal representatives, as the case may be. This 
Performance Bond is provided to secure the performance of Principal in connection with a 
contract dated_____________, 20___, between Principal and Owner for a project entitled 
________________________ (“Project”) – Public Works Project No. 2023-003 (“Contract”). The 
initial penal sum shall equal 100 percent of the Total Bid Price, including all applicable state sales 
tax, as specified in the Proposal submitted by Principal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, this Performance and Payment Bond shall be satisfied and released only upon 
the condition that Principal: 
 

Faithfully performs all provisions of the Contract and changes authorized by Owner in the 
manner and within the time specified as may be extended under the Contract; 
 
Pays all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material-persons, 
and all other persons or agents who supply labor, equipment, or materials to the Project; 
 
Pays the taxes, increases and penalties incurred on the Project under Titles 50, 51 and 82 
RCW on:  (A) Projects referred to in RCW 60.28.011(1)(b); and/or (B) Projects for which 
the bond is conditioned on the payment of such taxes, increases and penalties; and 
 
Posts a two-year warranty/maintenance bond to secure the project. Such bond shall be 
in the amount of twenty percent (20%) of the project costs.  
 

Provided, further that this bond shall remain in full force and effect until released in writing by 
the City at the request of the Surety or Principal. 
 
 
The surety shall indemnify, defend, and protect the Owner against any claim of direct or indirect 

Page 21 of 41Page 169 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

loss resulting from the failure: 
 

Of the Principal (or any of the employees, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors
 of the Principal) to faithfully perform the Contract, or 
 
Of the Principal (or any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor of the Principal) to pay 
all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material person, or 
any other person who provides supplies or provisions for carrying out the work. 

 
The liability of Surety shall be limited to the penal sum of this Performance and Payment Bond. 
 
No change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work 
to be performed under the Contract shall in any way affect Surety’s obligation on the 
Performance Bond. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, extension of time, alteration, or 
addition to the terms of the Contract or the Work, with the exception that Surety shall be notified 
if the Contract time is extended by more than twenty percent (20%). 
 
If any modification or change increases the total amount to be paid under the Contract, Surety’s 
obligation under this Performance and Payment Bond shall automatically increase in a like 
amount. Any such increase shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the original amount of 
the Performance and Payment Bond without the prior written consent of Surety. 
 
This Performance and Payment Bond shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State 
of Washington, and venue shall be in Kitsap County, Washington. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument in two (2) identical 
counterparts this _______ day of _________________, 20 ___. 
 
___________________________________         
 Principal     Surety 
 
              
 Signature of Authorized Official  Signature of Authorized Official 
            
       By       
 Printed Name and Title   Attorney in Fact (Attach Power of Attorney) 
 
Name and address of local office of          
Agent and/or Surety Company:         
              
Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the current Authorized Insurance List in the 
State of Washington per Section 1-02.7 of the Standard Specifications. 
  

Page 22 of 41Page 170 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Corporation, Partnership, or Individual 

 
STATE OF     ) 
      )ss. 
COUNTY OF     ) 
 
On this _____ day of____________, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and 
for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally 
appeared________________________, to me known to be the (check one of the following 
boxes): 
⌂ _______________________ of __________________________________, the 
 corporation, 
⌂ _______________________ of __________________________________, the 
 partnership, 
 
⌂ individual, 
 
that executed the foregoing instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said ⌂ 
corporation, ⌂ partnership, ⌂ individual for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on 
oath stated that ⌂ he ⌂she was authorized to execute said instrument. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 
 
              
       Print or type name 
 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, 
       in and for the State of Washington 
 
       Residing at      
  
       My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Notary Seal with Ink Stamp 

Page 23 of 41Page 171 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

 
 

SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF     ) 
      )ss. 
COUNTY OF     ) 
 
On this _______ day of________________, 20_____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 
Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally 
appeared___________________, to me known to be the _____________________________ 
of________________________________, the corporation that executed the foregoing 
instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of 
said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that ⌂ he ⌂ 
she was authorized to execute said instrument. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written. 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Print or type name 
 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, 
       in and for the State of Washington 
       Residing       
       My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

  

  

  

  

  

 Notary Seal With Ink Stamp 

Page 24 of 41Page 172 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
MAINTENANCE/WARRANTY BOND 

 Note:  This form must be completed at Contract Completion.   Before the Performance Bond (or 
the retainage when the performance bond is waived) can be released, the City must receive the two 
year Maintenance/Warranty Bond 

      
       Project #:     
       Contract #:________________________ 
       Surety Bond #:                                                             
       Date Posted:      
                                                            Expiration Date:    
RE: Project Name:           
 Owner/Developer/Contractor:        
 Project Address:            

 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That we,         ______         (hereinafter 
called the "Principal"), and     , a corporation organized under the laws of 
the State of     , and authorized to transact surety business in the State of 
Washington (hereinafter called the "Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto the  City of Port 
Orchard, Washington, in the sum of         ______ 
dollars ($   ) 20% of the total contract amount,  lawful money of the United 
States of America, for the payment of which sum we and each of us bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents.  THE 
CONDITIONS of the above obligation are such that:   

 WHEREAS, the above named Principal has constructed and installed certain 
improvements on public property in connection with a project as described above within the City 
of Port Orchard; and  

 WHEREAS, the Principal is required to post a bond for the twenty-four (24) months 
following written and final acceptance of the project in order to provide security for the 
obligation of the Principal to repair and/or replace said improvements against defects in 
workmanship, materials or installation during the twenty-four (24) months after written and final 
approval/acceptance of the same by the City;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, this Maintenance Bond has been secured and is hereby submitted to 
the City.  It is understood and agreed that this obligation shall continue in effect until released in 
writing by the City, but only after the Principal has performed and satisfied the following 
conditions:  

A. The work or improvements installed by the Principal and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Bond are as follows: (insert complete description of work here) 

B. The Principal and Surety agree that the work and improvements installed in the above-
referenced project shall remain free from defects in material, workmanship and installation (or, 

Page 25 of 41Page 173 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

in the case of landscaping, shall survive,) for a period of twenty-four (24) months after written 
and final acceptance of the same and approval by the City.  Maintenance is defined as acts carried 
out to prevent a decline, lapse or cessation of the state of the project or improvements as 
accepted by the City during the twenty-four (24) month period after final and written acceptance, 
and includes, but is not limited to, repair or replacement of defective workmanship, materials or 
installations.   

C. The Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, carefully replace and/or repair any 
damage or defects in workmanship, materials or installation to the City-owned real property on 
which improvements have been installed and leave the same in as good condition or better as it 
was before commencement of the work.   

D. The Principal and the Surety agree that in the event any of the improvements or 
restoration work installed or completed by the Principal as described herein, fail to remain free 
from defects in materials, workmanship or installation (or in the case of landscaping, fail to 
survive), for a period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of approval/acceptance of the 
work by the City, the Principal shall repair and/replace the same within ten (10) days of demand 
by the City, and if the Principal should fail to do so, then the Surety shall: 

 1. Within twenty (20) days of demand of the City, make written commitment to the 
City that it will either: 

a). remedy the default itself with reasonable diligence pursuant to a time 
schedule acceptable to the City; or 

b). tender to the City within an additional ten (10) days the amount necessary, 
as determined by the City, for the City to remedy the default, up to the 
total bond amount.   

Upon completion of the Surety's duties under either of the options above, the Surety shall 
then have fulfilled its obligations under this bond.  If the Surety elects to fulfill its 
obligation pursuant to the requirements of subsection D(1)(b), the City shall notify the 
Surety of the actual cost of the remedy, upon completion of the remedy.  The City shall 
return, without interest, any overpayment made by the Surety, and the Surety shall pay 
to the City any actual costs which exceeded the City estimate, limited to the bond amount. 

 2. In the event the Principal fails to make repairs or provide maintenance within the 
time period requested by the City, then the City, its employees and agents shall have the 
right at the City's sole election to enter onto said property described above for the 
purpose of repairing or maintaining the improvements.  This provision shall not be 
construed as creating an obligation on the part of the City or its representatives to repair 
or maintain such improvements. 

E. Corrections.  Any corrections required by the City shall be commenced within ten (10) 
days of notification by the City and completed within thirty (30) days of the date of notification.  
If the work is not performed in a timely manner, the City shall have the right, without recourse 
to legal action, to take such action under this bond as described in Section D above. 

Page 26 of 41Page 174 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

F. Extensions and Changes.  No change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the work 
to be performed by the Principal shall affect the obligation of the Principal or Surety on this bond, 
unless the City specifically agrees, in writing, to such alteration, addition, extension or change.  
The Surety waives notice of any such change, extension, alteration or addition thereunder.   

G. Enforcement.  It is specifically agreed by and between the parties that in the event any 
legal action must be taken to enforce the provisions of this bond or to collect said bond, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to collect its costs and reasonable attorney fees as a part of the 
reasonable costs of securing the obligation hereunder.  In the event of settlement or resolution 
of these issues prior to the filing of any suit, the actual costs incurred by the City, including 
reasonable attorney fees, shall be considered a part of the obligation hereunder secured.  Said 
costs and reasonable legal fees shall be recoverable by the prevailing party, not only from the 
proceeds of this bond, but also over and above said bond as a part of any recovery (including 
recovery on the bond) in any judicial proceeding.  The Surety hereby agrees that this bond shall 
be governed by the laws of the State of Washington.  Venue of any litigation arising out of this 
bond shall be in Kitsap County Superior Court. 

H. Bond Expiration.  This bond shall remain in full force and effect until the obligations 
secured hereby have been fully performed and until released in writing by the City at the request 
of the  Surety or Principal. 

 DATED this        day of     , 20__. 

 

SURETY COMPANY     DEVELOPER/OWNER 

(Signature must be notarized)   (Signature must be notarized) 

 

By:       By:      

Its:             Its:         

Business Name:       Business Name:       

Business Address:       Business Address:       

City/State/Zip Code:       City/State/Zip Code:       

Telephone Number:       Telephone Number:       

 
CHECK FOR ATTACHED NOTARY SIGNATURE 
 ______Developer/Owner (Form P-1)   
 ______Surety Company (Form P-2)  
         

  

Page 27 of 41Page 175 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

 
FORM P1-NOTARY BLOCK 
 
(Developer/Owner) 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that                                                 is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged as the 
_________________________________ of _________________________________that 
(he/she) signed this instrument, on oath stated that (he/she) was authorized to execute the 
instrument and acknowledged it to be (his/her) free and voluntary act for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 
       Dated: ______________________________  
       ___________________________________  
       ___________________________________ 
                            (print or type name) 
 
       NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
       State of Washington, residing 
       at: _________________________________  
 
       My Commission expires: _____________  
 
  

Page 28 of 41Page 176 of 358



  
Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003  
Contract #________  
   

FORM P2-NOTARY BLOCK 
 
(Surety Company) 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF     ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that                                                 is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged as the 
_________________________________ of _________________________________that 
(he/she) signed this instrument, on oath stated that (he/she) was authorized to execute the 
instrument and acknowledged it to be (his/her) free and voluntary act for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
       Dated:  _____________________________  
           ___________________________________ 
                   
       ____________________________________            
                            (print or type name) 
        
       NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
       State of Washington, residing 
       at: _________________________________  
       My Commission expires:  ______________ 

 
 

Page 29 of 41Page 177 of 358



PROPOSAL 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
2023 CITY WIDE ASPHALT REPAIR 

PROJECT NO. PW2023-003 

To: Mayor and City Council 
City of Port Orchard, Washington 

Contractor: 
State License No.: 

Miles Resources, LLC 
MILESRL897RK 

1-------ue_at.e~·------;;=0=4aaa/a::::19=/=2=02=3==:--====~--------------------- 
Month/Day/Year 

Bidder's Declaration and Understanding 

-- 1P= 1 · e1:__ eG are.s=;- a s e- as-car-efotly;;:::exnmlncd-the-Cur1ttacLO-ocJ:Jamnm1e~nn1t;s:s=f::ri;o2t;;;;:r:tnrn::;;=====-:- 
construction of the project, that s/he has personally inspected the site, that s/he has satisfied 
her/himself as to the quantities involved, including materials and equipment, and conditions of 
work involved, including the fact that the description of the quantities of work and materials, as 
included herein, is brief and is intended only to indicate the general nature of the work and to 
identify the said quantities with the detailed requirements of the Contract Documents, and that 
this Proposal is made according the provisions and under the terms of the Contract Documents, 
which Documents are hereby made a part of this Proposal. The Bidder further declares thats/he 
has exercised her/his own judgment regarding the interpretation, of subsurface information and 
has utilized all data, which s/he believes pertinent from City and other sources and has made 
such independent investigations as the Bidder deems necessary in arriving at her/his conclusions. 

Bidder understands that any bid response documents may be subject to release under the Public 
Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW and the City may be required to disclose bid responses upon a 
request. Bidder acknowledges that s/he has been advised to mark any records believed to be 
trade secrets or confidential in nature as "confidential." If records marked as "confidential" are 
found to be responsive to the request for records, the City as a courtesy to the Bidder may elect 
to give notice to Bidder of the request so as to allow Bidder to seek a protective order from a 
Court. Bidder acknowledges and agrees that any records deemed responsive to a public records 
request may be released at the sole discretion of, and without notice by, the City. 

Contract Execution 

The Bidder agrees that if this Proposal is accepted, s/he will, within fourteen (14) calendar days after 
Notice of Award, complete and sign the Contract in the form annexed hereto, and will at that time 
deliver to the City executed copies of the Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment bond, the 
Certificate of Insurance, and other documentation required by the Contract Documents, and will, to 
the extent of her/his Proposal, furnish all machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of 
construction and do the work and furnish all the materials or services necessary to complete all work 
as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. 

\CV 3/ 18/22 JR 
v of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT ti PW2023-003 

Page 10 

Jers Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
/ 

Page 30 of 41Page 178 of 358



Start of Construction and Contract Completion 

The Bidder further agrees that within 14 calendar days of CONTRACT START DATE, s/he will meet 
with engineering personnel and begin work no earlier than N/A, and complete the construction 
within 75 working days of START DATE. 

Lump Sum and Unit Price Work 

The Bidder further proposes to accept as full payment for the work proposed herein the amounts 
computed under the provisions of the Contract Documents and based on lump sum and unit price 
amounts, it being expressly understood that the unit prices are independent of the exact 
quantities involved. The Bidder agrees that the lump sum prices and the unit prices represent a 
true measure of the labor, services, and materials required to perform the work, including all 
allowances for overhead and profit for each type and unit of work called for in these Contract 
acumen s. 

If any material, item, or service required by the Contract Documents has not been mentioned 
specifically, the same shall be furnished and placed with the understanding that the full cost to 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT II PW2023-003 

Page 11 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 31 of 41Page 179 of 358



SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT PRICES 
2023 CITY WIDE ASPHALT REPAIR 

Project No. PW2023-003 

NOTE: Unit prices for all items and the total amount bid must be shown. The Project must be bid 
in its entirety, including all bid items as specifically listed in the Proposal, in order to be considered 
a responsive bid. Where conflict occurs between the unit price and the total amount named for 
any items, the unit price typed or printed and entered in ink shall prevail. The Contracting Agency 
reserves the right to award all work bid according to the lowest qualified responsive bid tendered, 
available funds, and as it best serves the interest of the Contracting Agency. All work awarded 
will be made to the same Contractor/bidder. 

Item Estimated SP /STD Descri tion of Item/ Total Unit Price Total Amount 
No. Quantity Amount in Words 

Schedule A- Base Bid/Old Cllfton Overlay 
1 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC $ 5,000.00 

a, 

$ Five Thousand Dollars 
(Total Amount in Words) 

2 Lump STD (1-09) Mobilization LS$ $ 
Sum 10,000.tP '2_0lOtJ0. O'J 

s 1'hir 0. olt a,~ 
(Total Amount in Words) 

3 Lump STD (1-07) SPCC Plan LS S 1"5(:) ,(')() $ 75[::).ClO 
Sum 

s~ea 1-lond~ ;;-~ ~~ Do I l()U"s 
(Total Amou~ Words) 

4 Lump STD (1-10) $ 
Sum Control vJ 'k, 00()_. Q'D 

$ -1YVO 
(Total Amount in Words) 

5 400 LF SP (2-02) Removing Asphalt Cone. LF $ $ 1,/ ovo.oo Curb tQ .oo 
$ 11/0i,t[ ~01~~~"' J. J ol f0 

(Total Amount in Words) 

6 280TN STD (4-04) Crushed Surfacing Base $ 
Course (Shoulder Ballasting) 

$ Wt 

Rev 3/ I 8/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal Page 32 of 41Page 180 of 358



Item Estimated SP / STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

7 2390TN 

8 398SY 

9 2000SY 

STD (5-04) 

SP (5-04) 

HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 
(Overlay) 

s 1ilo ~l)ttdr,J ,£- 

SP (5-04) Planing Bituminous 

HMA CL. 1/2" PG S8-22 SY$ $ 
(Roadway Reconstruction) 4J.,lf0 H,, '7 J ~. 0'1> 

$ 4 lYtCl'1 -ti'l., fl j(t"l.4/ 6 ev lvt lttt-vJ rtJ $iv. kt111 ~ 0lltq 
(Total Amount in Words) 1 

SY $(J ,~O 
Pavement 

(Total Amount in Words) 

1U 3Y8 SY 

11 400 LF 

12 1 FA 

13 3 EA 

14 8 EA 

1S 1 EA 

STU (~-U4) Pavement Repalr Incl. Haul 

SP (S-04) 4" HMA Wedge Curb 

SP (S-04) Crack Sealing 

SY$.J9,":>0 

s f,.,\ e..vt: n :t]1\o,, '&o.n.d Se»-u, lbndc-ed k.>f'~ - 0 ne Ool lar.r 
(Total Amount in Words) 

LF $ 
f,.00 

$ 

FA $6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 

$ Six Thousand Dollars 

STD (7-05) Adjust Catch Basin 

(Total Amount in Words) 

$ 3,DDC.OC) 

(Total Amount in Words) 

STD (7-05) Adjust Manhole EA S/,"OOJY" $ °' Do~ o~ u .u 1:>, u. '--' 

s f .. ,~ht 1b.ouSCU1 d Dollcu:S 
(Total Amount in Words) 

SP (7-12) Adjust Valve Box EA$ S'QC>. CC> $ ~00. 00 

(Total Amount in Words) 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal Page 33 of 41Page 181 of 358



Item Estimated SP /STD Description of Item/ Total Unit Price Total Amount 
No. Quantity Amount in Words 

16 5 EA STD (8-02) Inlet Protection EASJtc.oo s s-~D.oa 
$ f-h,e ~rJ~ f~~ t:}oll~r~ 

(Total~ tin Words) 

17 14700 LF STD (8-22) Paint Line LF$ C) ,1S' s \ L D .:l s-. oo 

S~lf~~t.:il 1hou~().J-\o( 1 wt.'l}h,kf1 ~t... DC> u~cs 
(Total Amount in rds) 

18 180 SF STD (8-22) Plastic Crosswalk Line (Type SF~ '?.5"0 $ l,3~D. ot) 
A Thermoplastic) 

s O "'e.... , ""- c,~l5 ~n J --r'-":c:c.c... ~~~ dee d f,£:hj Qo u~ cs 
(Total Amount in Words) 

E SID (8-22) p l:mi .c..Stofill .oe..(.!¥p j.s:Q $ ~1.S:D 
Thermoplastic) 

SSevrt\. llimd.eed focw ~,,r() Del let.CJ: I fi¾ Cuif--s 
(Total Afuoont in Words) 

20 17EA STD(8-22) PlasticTrafficArrow(TypeA EA$1u,C~00 $ 1-/1'-fJ.C),OD 
Thermoplastic) 

S:fouc rhouscn.nol four fh.ill\dcrd -rweV\~ Ool/o,,..rs 
(Total Amount in Words) 

Schedule A-Total Base Bid/Old Clifton Overlay $ ~gq,h3l/ .fD 
Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

Schedule B - Sidney Rd. 
101 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC 

$2,500.00 
$ 2,500.00 

$ Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

102 Lump 
Sum 

STD (1-09) 

103 Lump 
Sum 

STD (1-10) 

(Total Amount in Words) 

Mobilization LS$ $ 
'1 G'OV. oo 1,~00. o o 

$ s-e ✓r VI ,Vvl ~ 1,U ().Vl d -B\lc. ~!,th.A G'a 4 o !/ ~ '3 . 
(Total Amount in Words) 

$ Qj•oo.0f) 
d0i 

104 852 SY 

(Total Amount in Words) 

STD (5-04) Pavement Repair Excavation SY$ '5~ 1 SD $;} '1, (/JC( 0, 0 0 
Incl. Haul 

sr:1.UeYl~ S:twc..o., :rhooso.n.d Sb. tluodeed rJ ,ntlf ~ollCA,~ 
(Total Amount in Words) 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City WideAsphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 34 of 41Page 182 of 358



Item Estimated SP / STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

105 90TN SP (5-04) 

106 852 SY 

107 10510 LF 

108 3 EA 

SP (5-04) 

STD (5-04) 

Crushed Surfacing Base TN $ q $ 12. / b 
Course for Pavement Repair 0, 00 VJ 00. o 
s 131·3L1t }LtvV:$a.n,.J o-n, ~ uNlrtJ dotlaa 

(Total Amount in Words) 

HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 SY$ ,J $ a r 1 (2/} bl 
(Roadway Reconstruction) Vfl .00 ?VJ 1 0"{ • 

$ Thi 1+q f.i· ("(; {\,1v f.(S tn-d G lVtn nundaJ £,J "'-7 f;,u- 41>1/"1"5, 
(Total Amount in Words) 

Crack Sealing LF $ $ 

SP (7-12) Adjust Valve Box 

109 1290 LF 

110 200SF 

111 40 LF 

STD (8-22) Paint Line 

(Total Amount in Words) 

LF$O,75"" 

s ~\M ~nctrrd S,""nii ~o Uc« cs J f;~ Cea+s 
(Total ount in Words) 

STD (8-22) Plastic Crosswalk Line (Type SF ~ry, S-0 $ 11 'S 00, 0 0 
A Thermoplastic) 

S Dne Ila au '°"vi d f,ve 1-h md ced Do /la cs 
(Total Amount in Words) 

STD (8-22) Plastic Stop Line (Type A LF $ t\ 
1
"'=;,0 $ t-f (p O. 0 Q 

Thermoplastic) 

sf°' >c l-\undced S1"-- ~ et.es 
(Total AmoGnt in Words) 

112 2 EA STD (8-22) Plastic Traffic Arrow (Type A EA$ .,2l.Pe>, CO 
Thermoplastic) 

s Bv.e_ lhmd~ecf LA,eV\!j ~D l la rs 
$ S"Jo,oo 

(Total Am nt in Words) 

Total Schedule B- Sidney Rd. $ I ?Jf bl?/· fiD 
I 

Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

Schedule C - Bethel Rd. 
201 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC 

$2,500.00 
$ 2,500.00 

$ Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
(Total Amount in Words) 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal Page 35 of 41Page 183 of 358



Item Estimated SP/ STD Description of Item / Total Unit Price Total Amount 
No. Quantity Amount in Words 

202 Lump STD (1-09) Mobilization LS$ s 
Sum lvi~ooo./)-o I 0~ 000, /)O 

$ s, Ytt:<V) f\,1 ~ IA.7a, V\4 • ~ Oll ,~ .. 
(Total Amount in Words) 

203 Lump STD (1-10) Project Temporary Traffic LS$ s 
Sum Control JJ1,10o.oo 

$ f<vM hu 
(Total Amount in Words) 

204 40SY STD (2-02) Removing Cement Concrete SY$ $ 
Sidewalk ~Ot>,00 l LLooo. o'D 
$ 1 W ( I✓{. J11ovl} f.Wl.fit A,o[~-~ 

(Total Amount in ords) 
205 1550 SY STD (5-04) Pavement Repair Excavation SY$,2°t .~ $ J..-it::; I., J '5', ~ 0 

Incl. Haul 

$_~tut +kums ~a~!~!F~fruetdg"'"'h.n=8~ 

206 160TN SP (5-04) TN$ $ 
O'D 

$ 
(Total Amount in Words) 

207 1550 SY SP (5-04) HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 SY$ $ 

208 750 LF STD (5-04) Crack Sealing LF $ "? $ 
,0'0 1./l,fo.ov 

s 1'v\Jt? fVl11U.htijd #t2 ~AA~tac!, ~-.p~ ckfllllLQ 
(Total Amount in Words) 

209 3 EA STD (7-05) Adjust Manhole EAS/1000,00 s '5,Doe>. o o 

s :::Z::bctr -rbou so-...nd.. ~o llCU"S 
(Total Amount in Words) 

210 60 LF STD (8-04) Cement Concrete Pedestrian LF $ $ 
Curb /5'0.VV 1, /)0{}. oo 
$ 1h {( ~ ~u Uzflvtd i! ot[g~ 

(Total Amount in Words) 
211 60 LF STD (8-04) Cement Concrete Traffic LF $ fo.oo $ 

Cf and Gutter ~L ()1>0, 00 
$ V\ ( ( (, _yh o Ll~ avu/ dollaa 

(Total Amount in Words) 

212 2EA STD (8-14) EA$ $ 1_ovo. OD 

(Total Amount in Words) 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT ti PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 36 of 41Page 184 of 358



Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

213 35 SY STD (8-14) 

214 630 LF 

215 280 SF 

STD (8-22) 

STD (8-22) 

Cement Concrete Sidewalk SY$ 1~ $ 
vj, Ol) i,}Z~, {J'O 

s 1w o -& o ~ a'1 J 6 i K -.-h_u_n~h....:..,.._d_hx f:::v-£ a d t.t l11,.1 
(Tedi Amount in Words) / 

Paint Line LF $ C), 15 $ t-{ '1 .l, 5-0 

$ :four 1-h.md<'eol Se vr l'.\fil-, rue Go llvs 4 t}F+u Cen-fs 
(Total A~nt in Words) J 

Plastic Crosswalk Line (Type SF "1, S-0 $ :l, \ I DO• (::)0 
A Thermoplastic) 

S 1::IA,;)o -r ho11so...nd One. :Hund reel Do uses 
(Total Amount in Words) 

216 40 LF STD (8-22) Plastic Stop Line (Type A LF $ 11.5""0 $ l-[ (.o(J , 0 0 
Thermoplastic) 

--- -$ -fon-e -tn~-nel"l~~~~~~~~!j~~r~s- 
217 4 EA STD (8-22) Plastic Traffic Arrow (Type A EA $,,2fo0, DD $ I 10'10, 0 0 

Thermoplastic) 

$0(\e_ rbauso..n.d foeti Go I la.v"S 
(Total Am tin Words) 

Total Schedule C- Bethel Rd. $ i J o, 112. r;o 
Item Estimated SP /STD Description of Item/ Total Unit Price Total Amount 
No. Quantity Amount in Words 

Schedule D - Shop Facility 
301 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC$ $ 2,500.00 

2,500.00 
$ Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

(Total Amount in Words) 

302 Lump STD (1-09) Mobilization LS$ $ 
Sum "1,000.0-;, LI, o oo» 0 

s four 1'Vl~ l,t >'f.vt ~ A011tf3 
(Total Amount in Words) 

303 240TN STD (5-04) HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 TN$ $ 
(Paved Lot) 4" Depth Jvto,oo 
s 1hit r. 

Sub Total Schedule D- Shop Facility 

Tax 9.3% 

$ '1 °' I oo. D 0 
1:;,1zq.1° . $ 

Total Schedule D- Shop Facility 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 37 of 41Page 185 of 358



Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

Schedule E - Decant Facility 
401 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC 

$2,500.00 
$ 2,500.00 

$ Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

402 Lump 
Sum 

STD (1-09) 

(Total Amount in Words) 

Mobilization LS$ 
'211700,"" s 1"vVP .,h,,iou)a.n-4 £.vv ✓11.IA-odn-d 

(Total Amount in Words) 

403 40TN STD (5-04) HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 TN$ I "'O (JO 
(Pav~ Lot) 4" Depth vi , 
$ Y'i ✓ t ft.,p U.211.vtd ~;, ki nn drr d 

$ 
~ ~00,DO 

(Total Amount in Words) 

~S1:.tl, Total Sehefhlle E DecaM-FaeH' - -~- ~~~ 

Tax 9.3% $ 

Total Schedule E- Decant Facility 

Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

Schedule F - Carl Pickle Dr. 
501 CALC STD (1-04) Minor Changes CALC 

$2,500.00 
$ 2,500.00 

$ Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
(Total Amount in Words) 

502 Lump STD (1-09) Mobilization LS$ $ 
Sum iL t.pt;o.oo i h~O. oo 

s 1wYJ J1.1~wjavtJ_ >~K. V\U1tdred -N:/jb/ dbl[~ 
(Total Amount in Words) 

503 Lump STD (1-10) Project Temporary Traffic LS$ $ 
Sum Control "'lttf Qo, oo '11 f OD, o iJ 

J ' 
$ ;-l,lfl/f fuo "-~ 1,11t,tl._ (-,vv hwndnd rloll~,1 

(Total Amount in Words) 

504 88SY STD (5-04) Pavement Repair Incl. Haul SY $[{:)Q1QQ $ ~18Cb,oD 

(Total A unt in Words) 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT ff PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 38 of 41Page 186 of 358



Item Estimated SP/ STD 
No. Quantity 

Description of Item/ Total 
Amount in Words 

Unit Price Total Amount 

505 lOTN SP (5-04) 

506 88SY SP (5-04) 

507 130 LF 

508 160 LF 

STD (5-04) 

STD (8-22) 

Crushed Surfacing Base 
Course for Pavement Repair 

TN$ qo, (JO 

$ i} i vl L Mt,tr\Jn d d o/1 VJ 
$ qoo. 0-n 

(Total Amount in Words) 

HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58-22 SY$ 11 OD $ n I_ o 
( Roadway Reconstruction) '1 Z , '2 ~-, tp. O 

s Tut<t: fvi0ust~ 6i)C ht-trtJHJ ru'vic ry G•)l dolln 
(Total Amount in Words) 

CrackSealing LF$ '3,00 $ ?;qo,oo 
s 1h rtt ~ ,u1 drtJ n if\ if , do I ut,J___;__ _ ____..'---'--_ 

$ 

(Total Amount/in Words) 

• '5'" _s_.....,/2 .... a-'-'--,o_o_ 

Total Schedule F - Carl Pickle Dr. 

Schedule A - Base Bid/ Old Clifton Overlay Total 
Schedule B - Sidney Rd. Total 
Schedule C - Bethel Rd. Total 
Schedule D - Shop Facility Total (Tax Included) 
Schedule E - Decant Facility Total (Tax Included) 
Schedule F - Carl Pickle Dr. Total 
Schedule A lihrough F- Totai ·· · · · · 

SALES TAX- Rule 171 (Schedules A, B, C, F) 
In accordance with Section 1-07.2(1) State Sales Tax (DOR rule 171): Work performed on City, 
County, or Federally-owned land, the Contractor shall include Washington State retail sales 
taxes in the various unit bid prices or other amounts. These retail sales taxes shall include those 
the Contractor pays on purchases of materials, equipment, and supplies used or consumed in 
doing the work. 

SALES TAX-Rule 170 (Schedules D and E) 
Retailing/Retail Sales Tax rule WAC 458-20-170: Washington state retail sales tax added as percent{%) 
in addition to contract bid price; sales tax shown as separate line item. 

Rev 3/18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 39 of 41Page 187 of 358



The undersigned Bidder hereby agrees to start construction on this project, if awarded, no later 
than fourteen (14) calendar days after Notice to Proceed and to complete the project within the 
time stipulated in the Contract. By signing below, Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following 
Addenda to the Bid Documents: 

1 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
2023 CITY WIDE ASPHALT REPAIR 

PROJECT NO. PW2023-003 

4/3/2023 
Addendum No. 

2 
Date of Receipt 

4/14/2023 
Addendum No. Date of Receipt 

Addendum No. Date of Receipt Addendum No. Date of Receipt 

NOTE: Failure to acknowledge receipt of Addenda may be considered as an irregularity in the Bid 
Proposal and Owner reserves the right to determine whether the bid will be disqualified. 

By signing below, Bidder certifies that s/he has reviewed the insurance provisions of the Bid 
Documents and will provide the required coverage. 

The undersigned Bidder hereby certifies that, within the three-year period immediately 
preceding the bid solicitation date for this Project, the Bidder is not a "willful" violator, as defined 
in RCW 49.48.082, of any provision of chapters 49.46, 49.48, or 49.52 RCW, as determined by a 
final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Department of Labor and 
Industries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction. 

OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR BIDDER: 

"I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that 
the foregoing is true and correct." 

Signature: 

Printed Na~ a 
Bradley Griffith 
Vice President/ General Mana er 
Business Address: 
400 Valley Ave NE 
Pu allu , WA 98372 

Date: 

4/19/2023 
Location or Place Executed (City, State): 

253-383-3585 

NOTES: If the Bidder is a co-partnership, give firm name under which business is transacted; 
proposal must be executed by a partner. If the Bidder is a corporation, proposal must be executed 
in the corporate name by the president or vice-president (or any other corporate officer 
accompanied by evidence of authority to sign). 

Rev 3/ 18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT ti PW2023-003 

Page 20 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 40 of 41Page 188 of 358



STATE OF WA ---------- 
)ss. 

COUNTY OF Pierce 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Bradley Griffith signed 
this proposal, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the proposal and 
acknowledged it as the Vice President/ General Manager (title) of 
Miles Resources, LLC (name of party on behalf of whom proposal was 
executed) and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes 
mentioned in this proposal. 

Dated this 19th day of __._A.>pp ..... ri .... l _ 

Anna Lear 
Printed Name 

My Commission Expires: 6/12/2024 

Rev 3/ 18/22 JR 
City of Port Orchard 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair PROJECT # PW2023-003 

Page 21 

Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Seal 
Page 41 of 41Page 189 of 358



 

 

Washington State 
Transportation Improvement Board

TIB Members 
 

Chair 
Mayor Glenn Johnson 

City of Pullman 
 

Vice Chair 
Councilmember Sam Low 

Snohomish County 
 

Amy Asher 
Mason Transit Authority 

 
Aaron Butters, PE 
HW Lochner Inc. 

 
Susan Carter 

Hopelink 
 

Kent Cash, PE 
Port of Vancouver  

 
Barbara Chamberlain 

WSDOT 
 

Elizabeth Chamberlain 
City of Walla Walla 

 
Dongho Chang, PE 

WSDOT 
 

Scott Chesney 
Spokane County 

 
Vicky Clarke 

Cascade Bicycle Club and Washington 
Bikes 

 
Mike Dahlem, PE 
City of Sumner 

 
Commissioner Al French 

Spokane County 
 

Councilmember Hilda Guzmán 
City of Granger 

 
Commissioner Scott Hutsell 

Lincoln County 
 

Les Reardanz 
Whatcom Transportation Authority 

 
Peter Rogalsky, PE 

City of Richland 
 

Mayor Kim Roscoe 
City of Fife 

 
Maria Thomas 

Office of Financial Management 
 

Jennifer Walker 
Thurston County 

 
Jane Wall 

County Road Administration Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ashley Probart 
Executive Director 

 
P.O. Box 40901 

Olympia, WA 98504‐0901

Investing in your local community 

May 1, 2023 

Mr. Chris Hammer, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA  98366-5304 

Dear Mr. Hammer: 

Based on your Updated Cost Estimate for the 2022 Overlay Award project, TIB # 
3-W-153(001)-1, your authorized TIB funds are $325,976, which reflects a 
decrease of $41,648.    
 
You may now award the construction contract. 
 
We would be happy to assist you with any questions. You can contact Chris 
Langhoff, TIB Project Engineer, at (360) 586-1157 or via e-mail at 
ChrisL@TIB.wa.gov. 
 
Sincerely,  

 

Ashley Probart 
Executive Director 

Page 190 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8D Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending  Prepared by: Debbie Lund 

 POMC Chapter 2.60 Related to   HR Director 
 Council Compensation     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0008 
  Atty Review Date: May 1, 2023 

 
Summary:  At the request of the Council, the Finance Committee discussed the compensation they receive 
at their January 20, 2023, meeting. The full Council then discussed the matter at their work study session 
on March 21, 2023. Staff was asked to bring forward an Ordinance to revise the compensation for council 
members from the current $12,000 per year to $13,000 per year, effective at the beginning of the next 
term in office for each council position (2024 or 2026, depending on the position). This modification 
represents the first council pay increase since 2014.  
 
The Ordinance and the associated pay change will allows for a total amount of compensation that can be 
paid in 26 increments, which allows for councilmember pay cycles to match to the pay cycle of all other 
City employees, i.e. bi-weekly. This aids staff in eliminating the current extra work performed to pay 
councilmembers on a pay cycle that differs from all other City employees. Because councilmembers cannot 
increase the compensation for their current terms in office, the pay increase and associated pay cycle will 
take effect January 1, 2024 for Council positions 1, 4, 5 and At Large. Council positions 2, 3, and 6 will 
convert to the new pay cycle and amount effective January 1, 2026.  
 
In addition, the Council requested that an annual cost of living amount, tied to the Seattle-Tacoma-
Bellevue CPI-U, June to June index, be tracked so that at the beginning of each new term for a particular 
position, Councilmember pay will be increased in a manner to keep up with inflation, provided that no 
modification is less than 0% and no greater than 4%. The At Large council position is elected every two 
years and will see a pay change at the beginning of each term. All other positions will see a pay change 
every 4 years, with positions 1, 4 and 5 being on one cycle and positions 2, 3, and 6 being on another cycle.   
 
As an example, if adopted, the following cyclical increases would occur at the start of each new term:  

 
As of January 1, 2024: 

• Council posi�ons 1, 4, 5 and at-large begin receiving $13,000 per year, paid bi-weekly, or 
$500 per check.  

• Council posi�ons 2, 3, and 6, remain at the current $12,000 per year, paid semi-monthly.  
 
As of January 1, 2025: 

Council pay remains as it was in 2024, staff tracks the June to June CPI-U. 
 
As of January 1, 2026:  

Page 191 of 358



Staff Report 8D 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

• Council posi�ons 2, 3, 6 will be converted to bi-weekly pay days. Posi�ons 2, 3, 6 and at-large 
will be paid the $13,000 per year, plus the CPI from June 2024 (we will refer to this as “A%”) 
plus CPI from June 2025 (refer to this as “B%”), provided that “A” and “B” are not less than 
0% and not more than 4%.  

o Therefore, posi�ons 2, 3, 6 and at-large will be paid $500 plus “A%” plus “B%” per 
payday.  

• Council posi�ons 1, 4, and 5 con�nue to receive $500 on each bi-weekly pay day.  
 
As of January 1, 2027:  

Council pay remains as it was in 2026. Staff tracks staff tracks the June to June CPI. 
 

As of January 1, 2028:  
• Council posi�ons 1, 4, 5 and at-large will be paid their $500 bi-weekly amount established in 

2024 plus the CPI from June 2024 (“A%”) plus CPI from June 2025 (“B%”) plus CPI from June 
2026 (“C%”) plus CPI from June 2027 (“D%”), provided that each CPI included is not less than 
0% and are capped at 4%.  

• Council posi�on “at-large” will be paid their bi-weekly amount from established in 2026, 
which has already taken into considera�on “A%” and “B%” plus the new “C%” and “D%”  

• Council posi�ons 2, 3, 6 con�nue to receive pay in accordance with the January 1, 2026 
calcula�ons ($500 plus “A%” + “B%”) 

 
This process continues. Of note: this method means that the salaries of all seven council members 
will never be the same. Each time the position is re-elected, the new term plays catchup and 
leapfrogs the other council positions not in the same election cycle. Since the at-large position is 
elected every two years, that position will always be in the highest paid group of councilmembers.  

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Council approve the Ordinance as presented.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to adopt an Ordinance, as presented, which amends Chapter 2.60 of the 
Port Orchard Municipal Code related to Council Compensation.  
 
Fiscal Impact: $4,000 increase to the 2024 budgeted cost for councilmember salaries.  
 
Alternatives:  Not approve as presented and provide alternative guidance.  
 
Attachments: Ordinance and red lined version of Chapter 2.60 POMC (for information only) 

Memorandum from City Attorney regarding proposed methodology (sent separately 
under attorney client privilege).  

 
 

Page 192 of 358



 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2.60 POMC, PERTAINING TO COMPENSATION FOR 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 
PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, at the March 21, 2023, City Council work study session, the City Council 

reviewed and considered the compensation of council members; and 
 
WHEREAS, the compensation of Port Orchard City Council members has not changed 

since 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the compensation of City Council positions should 

be kept commensurate with the demands of the position in order to promote qualified 
candidates to run for office; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City to convert the 

pay schedule for Councilmembers to the same bi-weekly pay schedule as all other City employees 
to reduce staff time required due to current, differing pay schedules; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Constitution, Article XI, Sec. 8, provides that any change 

to the Council salary can only take effect at the start of the next term of office for that Council 
position; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds adoption of these amendments to be in the best interest 

of the City and residents; now, therefore, 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.   Amendment. The title of Section 2.60.010 of the Port Orchard Municipal 

Code is hereby amended to be “Compensation.”   
 
SECTION 2.  Amendment. Port Orchard Municipal Code Section 2.60.010 is hereby 

amended to read as follows:  
 
2.60.010 Compensation. City council members shall receive $500 for each two week pay 
period, provided there shall be 26 pay periods per year. City council members will be paid 
in accordance with the regular payroll schedule for other City employees.  
 
SECTION 3. Port Orchard Municipal Code section 2.60.020 is hereby amended to read as 

follows:  

Page 193 of 358



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

2.60.020 Cost of living adjustment. During each year of a City council member’s term, the 
Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue CPI-U June to June index will be tracked. The cumulative total of 
the CPI effect on the council member’s salary will be applied at the beginning of next term 
of office for the position, provided that each annual CPI included in the cumulative total 
shall not be less than 0% or more than 4%.  
 
SECTION 4. The salary modifications set out herein shall commence on January 1, 2024 

as to council positions 1, 4, 5 and At Large, and on January 1, 2026 as to council positions 2, 3 and 
6.  

 
SECTION 5.   Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 6.   Publication. This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 

consisting of the title.  
 

SECTION 7.   Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect on January 1, 2024, as provided by law, provided further that the salary adjustments set 
out herein shall be effective as stated herein. 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 
 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney   John Clauson, Councilmember 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Page 194 of 358



Chapter 2.60 
COMPENSATION FOR CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
Sections: 

2.60.010 Per-meeting rate.Compensation 
2.60.020 Repealed.Cost of living adjustment 
2.60.030  Nonattendance. 
2.60.040 Other compensation. 

 
2.60.010 Per-meeting rateCompensation. 
 
City council members shall receive compensation in the amount of $1,000 per month$500 for each 
two week pay period, provided there  shall be 26 pay periods  per year. City councilmembers will 
be paid in accordance with the regular payroll schedule for other City employees. (Ord. 040-17 
§ 1; Ord. 020-13 § 1; Ord. 020-05 § 1; Ord. 1593 § 1, 1993; Ord. 1533 § 1, 1991). 
 
2.60.020 Cost of living adjustment. 
 
Repealed by Ord. 020-05. During each year of a City council member’s term, the Seattle-Tacoma- 
CPI-U June to June index will be tracked. The cumulative total of the CPI effect on the council 
member’s salary will be applied at the beginning of next term of office for the position, provided 
that each annual CPI included in the cumulative total shall not be less than 0.0% or more than 
4.0%. (Ord. 1593 § 1, 1993; Ord. 1533 § 1, 1991). 
 
2.60.030 Nonattendance. 
 
(1) No single council member may be excused for more than four meetings per calendar year 

(not to include illness and job conflict nonattendance). Acceptable excuses shall be: 
 

(a) Vacation; 
 

(b) Bereavement; 
 

(c) Unusual or unforeseen circumstances such as serious illness in the family, accident, or 
transportation carrier delay. 

 
(2) In the event a council member misses four or more consecutive meetings, the council shall 

appoint a committee of three council members to meet with the subject council member to 
discuss that member’s ability to perform the duties of that office and then return a 
recommendation to the whole council as to the continued retention of that member in the 
council. (Ord. 040-17 § 2; Ord. 035-08 § 1; Ord. 1593 § 1, 1993; Ord. 1533 § 1, 1991). 

 
2.60.040 Other compensation. 
 
(1) Reimbursement for meals shall be allowed if the mutually agreed time of meeting is during 

a meal time. 

Page 195 of 358



 
(2) Reimbursement for mileage shall be made if the meeting is outside the city limits. This would 

apply to attendance at an approved convention or investigative trip. (Ord. 1873 § 1, 2002; 
Ord. 1593 § 1, 1993; Ord. 1533 § 1, 1991). 

 
 

Page 196 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8E Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond, AICP 

 20.26.020 and 20.132.060 to Include   DCD Director 
 Signage as an Eligible Development      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
 Standard Addressed through a  Atty Review Date: N/A 
 Development Agreement   

 
Summary:  Port Orchard Municipal Code (POMC) Chapter 20.26 POMC contains standards and procedures 
governing the City’s use of development agreements, which can be entered into between the City and 
applicants to provide flexibility in the application of development standards. In October 2020, the City Council 
amended POMC Chapter 20.26, clarifying the standards that may be addressed in a development agreement, 
providing more specificity on the application and processing requirements and the decision type, and to 
strengthen requirements for additional public benefit for development agreements.  

Currently, POMC 20.26.020 omits the City sign code from those development standards which may be 
modified through a development agreement. The proposed ordinance would amend POMC 20.26.020 and 
20.132.060 to allow the approval of a Master Sign Plan utilizing alternative development standards by a 
development agreement. Development Agreements can be advantageous to the City and to applicants in 
allowing flexibility in applying development standards that often lead to better project design and 
infrastructure improvements which benefit the public. 

Staff discussed the revisions to POMC 20.26.020 and 20.132.060 with the Land Use Committee on January 25, 
2023 where the Committee directed staff to continue with the current proposal as drafted and subsequently 
introduced the item to the Planning Commission at the February 7 Planning Commission meeting. Staff 
notified the Department of Commerce of the proposed changes after the issuance of a SEPA Determination 
of Nonsignificance on February 8, 2023.  

The Planning Commission, after hearing testimony in support of the proposed ordinance at a properly noticed 
public hearing on March 7, 2023, recommended approval of the ordinance to the City Council. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to POMC 20.26.020 and 
20.132.060 as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an ordinance amending Port Orchard Municipal Code 
20.26.020 and 20.132.060, as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None foreseen. 
 

Page 197 of 358



Business Item 8E 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Alternatives:  Do not approve the proposed amendment or provide staff direction to develop 
 alternatives. 
 
 Attachments: Ordinance 

     
 

Page 198 of 358



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____  
                      

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
RELATING TO THE CITY’S DEVELOPMENT CODE WITH REGARD TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS AND THE CITY SIGN CODE;  AMENDING 
SECTION 20.26.020 OF THE PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD 
THE SIGN CODE CHAPTER 20.132 POMC TO THE LIST OF CODE 
PROVISIONS WHICH MAY BE MODIFIED BY A DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT; AMENDING SECTION 20.132.060 OF THE PORT ORCHARD 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE THAT MASTER SIGN PLANS MAY BE 
APPROVED BY USE OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR 
CORRECTIONS AND SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

   
  WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70B.170, the City Council has the authority to review and 
enter into development agreements that govern the development and use of real property within 
the City; and   
  

WHEREAS, such agreements are advantageous to both municipalities and applicants by 
facilitating certainty and stability in the land use permitting process, while also providing 
flexibility in the innovative application of local development standards, often leading to enhanced 
project design and infrastructure improvements for the public; and   
  
  WHEREAS, the City Council adopted standards and procedures governing the City’s use 
of development agreements, codified at Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 
(POMC) which was last updated by Ordinance No. 030-20; and   
  
  WHEREAS, when a project includes signage the City’s sign code (Chapter 20.132 POMC) 
applies; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement section 20.26.020 that sets forth the code 
chapters that are subject to Development Agreements does not currently include the City sign 
code; and 

 
WHEREAS, for mixed use developments, a master sign plan is required in accordance with 

POMC 20.132.060; and 
 
WHEREAS, allowing master sign plans to be approved by Development Agreement may 

result in a better result for both project proponents and for the public at large;  
 

Page 199 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 2 of 9 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the amendments to those regulations set 
forth in this ordinance to enhance the City’s ability to utilize development agreements for the 
benefit of the City and public; and     
  
  WHEREAS, this Ordinance was submitted to the Department of Commerce for review on  
February 8, 2023, and review was granted on April 9, 2023; and   
  
  WHEREAS, on February 8, 2023, the City’s SEPA official issued a determination of 
nonsignificance for the proposed revisions, and there have been no appeals; and  
  
  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the substance of this 
Ordinance on March 7, 2023, and recommended adoption by the City Council; and  
  
  WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the recommendation from the 
Planning Commission, all public comment, and the Ordinance, finds that this Ordinance is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the Growth 
Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW, and that the amendments herein are in the best interests 
of the residents of the City and further advance the public health, safety and welfare; now, 
therefore,  
  
  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  
  

SECTION 1.  Findings and Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted and 
incorporated as findings in support of this Ordinance.  

  
SECTION 2. Section 20.26.020 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 
 
20.26.020 Form of agreement, effect and general provisions. 

(1) Form. A development agreement shall set forth the development 
standards and other provisions that apply to and govern and vest the 
development, use, and mitigation of the development of the real property for the 
duration specified in the agreement. 

(a) For the purposes of this chapter, “development standards” may 
include, but are not limited to: 

(i) Project elements such as residential densities, nonresidential densities 
and intensities or building sizes; 

(ii) The amount and payment of impact fees imposed or agreed to in 
accordance with any applicable provisions of state law, any reimbursement 

Page 200 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 3 of 9 

provisions, other financial contributions by the property owner, inspection fees, 
or dedications; 

(iii) Mitigation measures, development conditions, and other 
requirements under Chapter 43.21C RCW; 

(iv) Design standards such as maximum heights, setbacks, landscaping, and 
other development features; 

(v) Affordable housing; 
(vi) Parks and open space preservation; 
(vii) Phasing; 
(viii) Review procedures and standards for implementing decisions; 
(ix) A build-out or vesting period for applicable standards; and 
(x) Any other development requirement or procedure deemed appropriate 

by the city council. 
(b) In order to encourage innovative land use management and provide 

flexibility to achieve public benefits, a development agreement adopted pursuant 
to this chapter may impose development standards that differ from the following 
development regulations of this code; provided, that any development standards 
imposed by the development agreement shall be consistent with the 
comprehensive plan: 

(i) Chapter 20.08 POMC, Vesting; 
(ii) Chapter 20.12 POMC, Definitions; 
(iii) Chapter 20.30 POMC, Introduction to Zoning, Land Uses, and Building 

Types; 
(iv) Chapter 20.32 POMC, Building Types; 
(v) Chapter 20.33 POMC, Greenbelt District; 
(vi) Chapter 20.34 POMC, Residential Districts; 
(vii) Chapter 20.35 POMC, Commercial and Mixed Use Districts; 
(viii) Chapter 20.36 POMC, Industrial Districts; 
(ix) Chapter 20.37 POMC, Civic and Open Space Districts; 
(x) Chapter 20.38 POMC, Overlay Districts; 
(xi) Chapter 20.39 POMC, Use Provisions; 
(xii) Chapter 20.40 POMC, Site and Lot Dimensions; 
(xiii) Chapter 20.41 POMC, Transfer of Development Rights Program; 
(xiv) Chapter 20.54 POMC, Nonconformities; 
(xv) Chapter 20.68 POMC, Accessory Dwelling Units; 
(xvi) Chapter 20.80 POMC, Subdivisions – General Provisions; 
(xvii) Chapter 20. 82 POMC, Administration and Enforcement; 
(xviii) Chapter 20.84 POMC, Boundary Line Adjustments; 
(xix) Chapter 20.86 POMC, Short Subdivisions; 
(xx) Chapter 20.88 POMC, Subdivisions – Preliminary Plats; 
(xxi) Chapter 20.90 POMC, Subdivisions – Final Plats; 

Page 201 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 4 of 9 

(xxii) Chapter 20.94 POMC, Binding Site Plans; 
(xxiii) Chapter 20.96 POMC, Vacation and Alteration of Final Plans and 

Short Plats; 
(xxiv) Chapter 20.98 POMC, Improvements; 
(xxv) Chapter 20.100 POMC, Development Standards – Subdivision Design; 
(xxvi) Chapter 20.120 POMC, Development Standards – General 

Provisions; 
(xxvii) Chapter 20.122 POMC, Building Elements; 
(xxviii) Chapter 20.124 POMC, Development Standards – Parking and 

Circulation; 
(xxix) Chapter 20.127 POMC, Design Standards; 
(xxx) Chapter 20.128 POMC, Landscaping; 
(xxxi) Chapter 20.129 POMC, Significant Trees; 
(xxxii) Chapter 20.132 POMC, Sign Code; 
(xxxiii) Chapter 20.139 POMC, Residential Design Standards; 
(xxxiiiiv) Chapter 20.162 POMC, Critical Areas Regulations; 
(xxxiv) Chapter 20.164 POMC, Shoreline Master Program; 
(xxxvi) Chapter 20.182 POMC, Impact Fees. 
(c) A development agreement shall not modify any provision of this code 

that is not identified in subsection (1)(b) of this section. 
(d) A development agreement may modify the provisions of this code only 

if the city council determines that the requested modifications are necessary to 
provide flexibility to achieve public benefits and provide superior outcomes than 
those that would result from strict compliance with the other applicable 
development standards. 

(e) Any approved development standards that differ from those other 
applicable development standards shall not require any further zoning 
reclassification, variance from city standards or other city approval apart from 
development agreement approval. 

(f) Subsequently adopted standards which differ from those in the 
development agreement shall apply to the subject site where necessary to address 
a serious threat to public health and safety or where the development agreement 
specifies a time period or phase after which certain identified standards may be 
modified. Building permit applications shall be subject to the building and 
construction codes in effect when the building permit application is deemed 
complete. 

(2) Decision Type. Development agreements are a Type V action and shall 
be reviewed and approved pursuant to the procedures in Chapter 20.22 POMC 
and this chapter, except that if the development agreement is consolidated with 
a new or pending Type I, II, III or IV project permit application as defined in RCW 

Page 202 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 5 of 9 

36.70B.020, the city council’s decision to approve, deny, or modify the 
development agreement may be appealed pursuant to Chapter 36.70C RCW. 

(3) Effect. Development agreements are not project permit applications 
and are not subject to the permit processing procedures in Chapter 36.70B RCW 
or Chapter 20.24 POMC. A development agreement shall constitute a binding 
contract between the city and the property owner and the subsequent owners of 
any later-acquired interests in the property identified in the development 
agreement. A development agreement governs the project identified in the 
development agreement during the term of the development agreement, or for 
all or that part of the build-out period specified in the development agreement, 
and may not be subject to an amendment to a zoning ordinance or development 
standard adopted after the effective date of the agreement, except as set forth in 
this chapter. A permit or approval issued/granted by the city after execution of a 
valid development agreement must be consistent with the development 
agreement. 

(4) Limitations. 
(a) A development agreement shall be limited to a 20-year term if any 

provision of the agreement requires the city to: 
(i) Refrain from exercising any authority that it would have otherwise been 

able to exercise in the absence of the development agreement; 
(ii) Defer application to the subject property of any newly adopted 

development regulations that would otherwise apply to the property identified in 
the agreement; or 

(iii) Allow vesting beyond the applicable deadlines for a phased 
development. 

(b) The development agreement shall also contain a proviso that the city 
may, without incurring any liability, engage in action that would otherwise be a 
breach if the city makes a determination on the record that the action is necessary 
to avoid a serious threat to public health and safety, or if the action is required by 
federal or state law. 

(c) The full costs of drafting and processing the development agreement 
shall be reimbursed by the owner or applicant prior to final city council action on 
the agreement to the extent such costs exceed the initial application fee. 

(5) Developer’s Compliance. The development agreement shall include a 
clause stating that the city’s duties under the agreement are expressly conditioned 
upon the property owner’s substantial compliance with each and every term, 
condition, provision and/or covenant in the development agreement, all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations and the property owner’s 
obligations as identified in any approval or project permit for the property 
identified in the development agreement. 

Page 203 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 6 of 9 

(6) No Third Party Rights. Except as otherwise provided in the development 
agreement, the development agreement shall create no rights enforceable by any 
party who/which is not a party to the development agreement. 

(7) Liability. The development agreement shall include a clause providing 
that any breach of the development agreement by the city shall give right only to 
damages under state contract law and shall not give rise to any liability under 
Chapter 64.40 RCW, the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. 
Constitution, or similar state constitutional provisions. 

(8) Termination, Modification and Extension. Every development 
agreement shall have an identified, specific termination date. Upon termination, 
any further development of the property shall conform to the development 
regulations applicable to the property at the time of permit application. The city 
shall not modify any development agreement by extending the termination date 
unless the city council makes legislative findings that the additional benefits to the 
city provided by the developer in exchange for such extension of the development 
agreement outweigh the impacts from the development authorized by the 
extension. In no case shall an extension include the extension of provisions that 
are inconsistent with state or federal law at the time of such extension. Any 
request for a modification shall be consistent with the city’s development 
regulations applicable to the property at the time of the request, not the original 
execution date of the development agreement. Any extensions granted shall be 
for no more than a length of 10 years. No more than two extensions of up to 10 
years shall be granted. Extensions may not be granted unless an application for an 
extension is made no later than 180 days prior to the termination date in the 
development agreement or prior to the termination of any extension of a 
development agreement. 
 
SECTION 3.  Section 20.132.060 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code is hereby amended 

to read as follows: 
 

  20.132.060 Master sign plans. 
(1) Approval Required. Before the city will issue any sign permit relating to 

space in a proposed new mixed use, nonresidential, multitenant building(s), or 
multitenant site development, the city must first approve a master sign plan for 
the building(s) and/or site development. In addition, a master sign plan may be 
voluntarily developed and maintained by the owner or agent of any new or 
existing nonresidential use. As an alternative to the procedures included in this 
section, an applicant may apply for approval under the development agreement 
procedures under chapter 20.26 POMC. If a development agreement is utilized, 
then the development agreement procedures shall replace the procedures in this 
section, provided, however, that the applicant will still provide the information 

Page 204 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 7 of 9 

listed in subsection 3 below as part of the review under the development 
agreement procedures. 

(2) Review Procedures. A master sign plan is a Type I permit per POMC 
20.22.030. The community development director shall make the decision on the 
master sign plan without a hearing. Refer to Chapter 20.24 POMC for application, 
review and approval procedures. 

(3) Application Requirements. A complete master sign plan application 
shall consist of the following: 

(a) A complete master sign plan application, including the applicant’s 
name, address, phone number and email address. If the applicant is not the 
property owner(s), then the property owner(s) must be identified and the 
application must include an affidavit from the property owner(s), verifying that 
the property owner(s) has given permission to the applicant for the submission of 
the master sign plan application. No sign may be placed upon real property 
without the consent of the real property owner(s); 

(b) A site plan drawn to legible scale, indicating the location of all buildings, 
driveways and pavement areas, landscape areas, abutting streets and proposed 
freestanding signs on the site; 

(c) Elevation drawings of each building on a site that indicates proposed 
sign locations on each of the buildings; 

(d) Maximum allowable signage on each elevation based upon a five 
percent calculation of all facades; 

(e) The master sign plan application shall identify the sign features and sign 
types proposed to be used on each building and the proposed location. In 
addition, a statement shall be included which describes the manner in which the 
building or site owner wishes to allocate allowable signage among tenants and 
where specific tenant signage shall be located; 

(f) A narrative description of the development to demonstrate that the 
master sign plan meets the required design standards of this chapter; and 

(g) Fees. Payment of the appropriate fee for a master sign plan. 
(4) Criteria for Approval. All signs in the master sign plan must meet the 

criteria for approval in POMC 20.132.050, Sign permits. In addition, all of the signs 
in the master sign plan: 

(a) Shall be architecturally similar and visually related to each other 
through the incorporation of common design elements. Up to two sign types may 
be used on any one building. All sign cabinets, trim caps and all sign supports such 
as poles and braces shall be of a common color; 

(b) Shall be architecturally integrated with the buildings included in the 
master sign plan; and 

(c) Must not obscure the view of other signs which are consistent with this 
chapter. 

Page 205 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 8 of 9 

(5) Notice of Final Decision. See POMC 20.132.050, Sign permits. 
(6) Expiration of Master Sign Plan. Once a master sign plan is approved, the 

signs depicted in the approved plan must be installed within 180 days or the 
master sign plan will expire. The director may grant a 180-day extension to the 
master sign plan if such a request is made in writing prior to the expiration of the 
master sign plan and provided that the sign plan remains consistent with the sign 
regulations. Building permits and street use permits for any signs shown in the 
master sign plan shall expire in accordance with other applicable code provisions. 
No sign may be erected under an expired master sign plan, even if the associated 
sign permit, building permit or street use permit has not expired. 

(7) Amendment to Master Sign Plan. An application for an amendment to 
an approved master sign plan may be made at any time, subject to the same 
limitations, requirements and procedures as those that apply to an original 
application in this section. Tenants whose signs are included in the amendment 
application need the property owner’s consent to file such application. In order to 
approve any such amendment, the director shall consider the existing signs on the 
building(s) subject to the approved plan when determining whether the 
application meets the criteria for approval in subsection (4) of this section. 
 

  SECTION 4.  Severability. If any sentence, section, provision, or clause of this Ordinance 
or its application to any person, entity or circumstance is for any reason held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remainder of the Ordinance, or the application of the provision to other 
persons, entities, or circumstances is not affected. 
 

SECTION 5.  Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this Ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, Ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 
 

SECTION 6.  Publication and Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
five (5) days after posting and publication as required by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may 
be published in lieu of the entire Ordinance, as authorized by state law. 
  
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 

 

 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

Page 206 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 9 of 9 

 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   SPONSOR:    
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney  Scott Diener, Councilmember 
 
 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Page 207 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8F Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending POMC  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond, AICP 

 20.24.040 Addressing Counter   DCD Director 
 Completeness and Electronic Permit      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
 Submittals Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  Port Orchard Municipal Code (POMC) Chapter 20.24.040 contains requirements for determining 
development applications to be counter complete. The determination of a counter complete application is 
important to the City and to applicants in determining submittal date and calculating permitting timelines. Since 
the adoption of POMC 20.24.040 the City has seen an increase in electronic submittals and has deployed the 
Camino system for online submittals.  While the interpretation of the existing code has allowed the City to 
maintain acceptable processing periods, clarifying electronic submittals and the payment of associated permitting 
fees through the code amendment provides more certainty to all users of this section of Code.  
 
Staff introduced the proposed amendment to the Planning Commission at the April 4, 2023 Planning Commission 
meeting. Subsequently, the City of Port Orchard SEPA Responsible Official issued a Determination of 
Nonsignificance (DNS) on April 10, 2023. Staff notified the Department of Commerce of the proposed changes 
after the issuance of the DNS and requested 15-day expedited review on April 10, 2023. The Department of 
Community Development did not receive comments regarding the proposed code amendment or the DNS. 
Additionally, the SEPA DNS was not appealed by the May 8, 2023 appeal deadline. 
 
The Planning Commission, after conducting a properly noticed public hearing on the proposed ordinance on 
March 2, 2023, recommended that the City Council approve the ordinance.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to Port Orchard Municipal Code 
20.24.040 as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an ordinance amending Port Orchard Municipal Code 20.24.040, as 
presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None foreseen. 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the proposed amendment or provide staff direction to develop alternatives. 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 

     

Page 208 of 358



ORDINANCE NO. ____      
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
REVISIONS TO PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE (POMC) 20.24.040 TO PROVIDE 
CLARIFICATION ON ELECTRONIC SUBMITTALS, TIMING OF FEE PAYMENT AND THE 
TIMELINE TO DETERMINE AN APPLICATION COUNTER COMPLETE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on June 13, 2017, the Port Orchard City Council adopted ordinance 019-17 

establishing a new unified development code (Title 20 POMC); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City may adopt amendments to the City’s development regulations 

pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend POMC Chapter 20.24.040 (Counter-

completeness) in order to provide clarification on electronic submittals, timing of fee payment 
and the timeline to determine an application counter complete.; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 10, 2023, the City submitted to the Department of Commerce a 

request for expedited review of the proposed revision POMC 20.24.040, pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.106(3)(b); and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 10, 2023, the City’s SEPA official issued a determination of non-

significance for the proposed adoption of revisions POMC 20.24.040, and there have been no 
appeals; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 2, 2023, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public hearing 

on the proposed adoption of revisions to POMC 20.24.040, and the Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the proposed ordinance to the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the recommendation from the 

Planning Commission, all public comment, and the Ordinance, finds that this Ordinance is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the Growth 
Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW, and that the amendments herein are in the best 
interests of the residents of the City and further advance the public health, safety and welfare; 
now, therefore, 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council adopts all of the “Whereas” sections of this ordinance as 
findings in support of this ordinance. 

 

Page 209 of 358



  Ordinance No. __-23 
  Page 2 of 3 

     
 

SECTION 2.  The Port Orchard Municipal Code, Section 20.24.040 is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

 
20.24.040 Counter-completeness. 

(1) Applications may either be submitted to the city in any of the following 
manners: brought in person to the city, or applications may be mailed to the city, 
or submitted electronically using the city’s online permits system. All three of 
these systems are acceptable methods for counter-complete review. However, 
in no case will an application be deemed counter-complete until such time as the 
minimum required permit fee is remitted in full.   

(2) An application is counter-complete if the director finds that the application 
purports and appears to include the information required by the master permit 
application and associated permit application(s) and all required fees have been 
paid; provided, no effort shall be made to evaluate the substantive adequacy of 
the information in the application(s) in the counter-complete review process. No 
effort shall be made to determine ownership of land as part of the counter-
complete review process.  

(3) The director shall make a counter-complete determination regarding an 
application brought in person to the city while the applicant is present. If the 
director decides that the application is counter complete, then the applicant 
shall pay the appropriate fees at the time of submittal. For applications mailed to 
the city or submitted electronically, the counter-complete determination shall be 
made within two business days from the date of receipt of all application 
components, including the receipt of any required fees. If the city does not 
provide a counter-complete determination for a mailed application, the 
application shall be deemed counter-complete as of the third business day from 
receipt provided that all fees are included with the mailed application. If the city 
does not provide a counter-complete determination for an electronically 
submitted application, the application shall be deemed complete within five 
business days of the online submittal only if the fees are received no later than 
four business days following the submittal. No application shall be automatically 
deemed counter-complete due to the passage of time unless the fees are timely 
received in accordance with this section.   

(4) If the director decides the application is counter-complete, then the 
application may be submitted and the appropriate fee shall be paid by the 
applicant.  

(54)  If the director decides the application is not counter-complete, then the city 

Page 210 of 358



  Ordinance No. __-23 
  Page 3 of 3 

     
 

shall reject and return the application and identify in writing what is needed to 
make the application counter-complete.   
 

 SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 
should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 
 

SECTION 4.  Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 

 
SECTION 17.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper 

of the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after the date of publication.  A 
summary of this ordinance in the form of the ordinance title may be published in lieu of 
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
  

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 
 
 
                         

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 

           
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       SPONSOR: 
 
 

                         
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney    Scott Diener, Councilmember 
 
 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   

Page 211 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8G Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Adopting the  Prepared by: Nick Bond, AICP 

 2023 Comprehensive Plan Amendments  Development Director 
      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City initiated one amendment to the Comprehensive Plan by the deadline of January 31, 
2023.  The proposed amendment includes changing the land use designation and zoning designation of 
properties fronting SE Meline Road from Commercial to Low-Density Residential and Commercial Mixed Use 
(CMU) to Residential 1 (R1) respectively.  
 
SE Meline Road is an east-west oriented Local Access designated, dead-end street that is approximately a 
quarter mile in length. It is located south of the Sedgwick and State Highway 16 interchange, behind the Port 
Orchard Lowe’s store. The current City of Port Orchard zoning designation along SE Meline is CMU – 
Commercial Mixed-Use that turns into Greenbelt as the road terminates to the west. The Comprehensive 
Plan Map designation is Commercial. The subject properties are developed with detached houses and single-
family residential land uses. However, the CMU district does not permit detached houses as a building type 
nor permit single-family residential as a land use resulting in non-conforming uses and building types. 
Infrastructure in the area is insufficient to support land uses permitted in the CMU district without significant 
financial investment. Further, access to the properties likely reduces the feasibility or desirability of any 
commercial uses that may be permitted in CMU district.  
 
This amendment proposes a Low-Density Residential designation in the Comprehensive Plan Map and a 
Residential 1 designation in the Zoning Map. The R1 district is most compatible with the existing development 
and would rectify existing non-conforming uses and building types. This amendment would allow property 
owners to make improvements according to the development standards associated with the more 
compatible zoning designation of R1 and would preclude them from limitations set by POMC 20.54 
Nonconformities. 
 

The City Council reviewed and approved the Comprehensive Plan amendment docket at the February 14, 
2023 City Council meeting. The Planning Commission was tasked with reviewing the proposed 
amendments and making a recommendation to the City Council after holding a public hearing. The 
Planning Commission set March 7, 2023 as the scheduled public hearing to solicit public input and 
provide a recommendation to the City Council. Staff provided Notice of Hearing consistent with the 
requirements of the Port Orchard Municipal Code on February 21, 2023. The Department of Community 
Development received seven letters and one e-mail related to the proposal. At the March 7, 2023 
Planning Commission public hearing, the Planning Commission heard testimony from affected property 

Page 212 of 358



Business Item 8G 
Page 2 of 2 

 

  

owners and provided a recommendation of approval of the 2023 Comprehensive Plan Amendments as 
presented. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.470 and 36.70A.106, the City may 
annually adopt amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Recommendation:  City staff recommends that the City Council approve an Ordinance adopting the 2023 
amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an Ordinance adopting the 2023 amendments to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None foreseen. 
 
Alternatives:  Revise the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments; do not adopt amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Ordinance  
2. Existing Comprehensive Plan Map 
3. Amended Comprehensive Plan Map 
4. Existing Zoning Map 
5. Amended Zoning Map 
6. Public Comment 

     
 

Page 213 of 358



ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
RELATING TO THE PORT ORCHARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED 
UNDER THE STATE OF WASHINGTON’S GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT, 
CHAPTER 36.70A RCW; ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE PARKS 
ELEMENT OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT 
TO THE LAND USE DESIGNATION MAP OF THE PORT ORCHARD 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND TO THE LEGISLATIVE ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CORRECTIONS, AND 
PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, with the passage of the Washington State Growth Management Act in 1990 

(GMA), Chapter 36.70A RCW, local governments are required to adopt a comprehensive plan that 
outlines strategies to accommodate the needs of a growing population; and 

 
 WHEREAS, in June 1995, the City Council adopted a Comprehensive Plan for the City of 
Port Orchard and its urban growth area pursuant to the requirements set forth in the GMA; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard completed its most recent periodic update of its 
Comprehensive Plan in June 2016, as required by the GMA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City may annually adopt amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
pursuant to RCW 36.70A.470 and 36.70A.106; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City initiated an application for Comprehensive Plan amendments by the 
required deadline date of January 31, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amendment submittal affects properties along SE Meline Road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the properties along SE Meline Road are identified by Kitsap County Assessor 
Parcel Numbers 112301-3-010-2007, 112301-3-009-2000, 112301-3-003-2006, 112301-3-002-
2007, 4800-000-023-0106, 112301-3-048-2003, 112301-3-005-2004, 112301-3-047-2004, 
112301-3-008-2001, 112301-3-011-2006, and 112301-3-012-2005; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amendment submittal proposes a revision and update to the Land Use 
Designation Map of the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the impacted properties are currently designated Commercial in the Port 
Orchard Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the properties are currently designated Commercial Mixed Use in the 
adopted Port Orchard Zoning Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amendment submittal proposes a revision and update to the adopted 
City of Port Orchard Zoning Map; and 

Page 214 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan amendment would redesignate the properties Low-
Density Residential in the Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan amendment would redesignate the properties 
Residential 1 in the adopted Port Orchard Comprehensive Zoning Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 25, 2023, the City Council Land Use Committee publicly reviewed 
the 2023 Comprehensive Plan amendments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 14, 2023, the City Council approved the 2023 Comprehensive Plan 
amendment docket consistent with POMC 20.04.060; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 15, 2023, notice of the proposed amendments to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan was sent to the Washington State Department of Commerce at least sixty 
days before the amendments were adopted, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.106; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 15, 2023, a SEPA Determination of Non-Significance was issued, 
and provided to the public, agencies, and other interested parties in accordance with the 
requirements of POMC Chapter 20.04.080, and published in the newspaper of record and on the 
City website, and emailed to the Washington Department of Ecology; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 21, 2023, a Notice of Hearing was published in the City’s 
newspaper of record advertising a public hearing to be held by the Planning Commission on the 
proposed 2023 Comprehensive Plan amendment, and the notice was provided to the public, 
agencies and other interested parties in accordance with the requirements of POMC Chapter 
20.04.080; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 21, 2023, a Notice of Hearing was mailed to property owners 
within 300 feet of impacted properties regarding the proposed 2023 Comprehensive Plan 
amendment and Legislative Zoning Map amendment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Department of Community Development received eight letters regarding 
the proposal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 7, 2023, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and took 
public testimony on the 2023 Comprehensive Plan amendments and Legislative Zoning Map 
amendment; and voted unanimously to recommended approval of the amendments to City 
Council; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on May 9, 2023, the City Council held a Regular Meeting, considered all public 
testimony received, considered the Planning Commission’s recommendation and find it in the 
public interest to adopt the proposed amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan; now, 
therefore 

 

Page 215 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.    The City Council hereby adopts the above recitals as findings in support 
of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the amendments adopted by this Ordinance are 

consistent with the goals and policies of the City’s adopted 2016 Comprehensive Plan and are 
consistent with the state Growth Management Act and other applicable law. 

 
SECTION 3.  The City Council finds that the amendments adopted by this Ordinance will 

not, individually or cumulatively, result in adverse effects to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City Council finds that no adverse impacts to the environment are 

anticipated to result from the amendments adopted by this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5.   The City Council finds that the amendments adopted by this Ordinance 

are consistent with the land uses and growth projects which were the basis of the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan, are compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 
neighborhoods, and are not anticipated to cause adverse impacts to public services or facilities. 

 
SECTION 6. Adoption of Amendments to Comprehensive Plan. In accordance with 

the above-described Findings and Conclusions, the City Council hereby amends the Port 
Orchard Comprehensive Plan by approving and adopting the 2023 amendments to the Port 
Orchard Comprehensive Plan. Such amendments are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit 1 and 
incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. The amendments include revisions to 
the update to the Land Use Designation Map of the Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan and the City 
of Port Orchard Zoning Map. 

 
 SECTION 7. Severability. If any sentence, section, provision, or clause of this 
Ordinance or its application to any person, entity or circumstance is for any reason held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remainder of the Ordinance, or the application of the provision to 
other persons, entities, or circumstances is not affected. 
 

SECTION 8. Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this Ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, Ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 
 

SECTION 9.  Publication and Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect five (5) days after posting and publication as required by law.  A summary of this 
Ordinance may be published in lieu of the entire Ordinance, as authorized by state law. 
  
 

Page 216 of 358



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 

 

 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Sponsored by:    
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney   Scott Diener, Councilmember 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Exhibit 1: 2022 Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan including: 

1. Land Use Designation Map of the Comprehensive Plan 
2. The City of Port Orchard Zoning Map  

Page 217 of 358



S i n c l a i r  I n l e t

SID
NE

Y

HE
NR

Y H
AN

SO
N

CEDAR

BA
YV

IEW

STATE HWY 16

TRE
MON

T

SID
NEY

RU
SS

EL
L

SEDGWICK

BE
TH

EL

OLD CLIFTON

LAWRENCE
ADMIRALTY
HEIGHTS

MILE HILL

HA
MI

LTO
N

TU
FT

S

LAUREL

LOVELL

STATE HWY 3

HORSTMAN

BEA
CH

STATE HWY 16

SKMALL
ACCESS

3R
D

OY
ST

ER
BA

Y

WH
ITT

IER

MI
TC

HE
LL

BELFAIR VALLEY

RE
TS

IL

AN
DE

RS
ON

HIL
L

BERRY LAKE

HA
RR

IS

DECATUR

BAY

KID
D

MCCORMICK WOODS

UNION

FEI
GLE

Y

HA
RR

ISO
N

PO
TT

ER
Y

LO
NG

 LA
KE

HA
WK

ST
ON

E

BASSWOOD

MA
PL

E

PA
YS

EN
O

KA
RC

HE
R

JA
CK

SO
N

AD
VA

NT
AG

E

FIR
CR

ES
T

RO
OS

EV
ELT

ASPEN

DE
CAT

UR

CONIFER PARK

SWEANY

VIL
LA

PROPERTY

LID
ST

RO
M

OL
NE

Y

CA
NY

ON

TREMONT

PO
TT

ER
Y

SOUTH KITSAP

HOPI

ROOSEVELT

JOYCE

SUNN FJORD

FLAIZ

COMPASS

JEFFERSON

EARHART

TREMONT

AR
NO

LD

INW
OO

D

KE
NM

OR
E

STATE HWY 3

KITSAP ORCHARD

CL
OV

ER
 VA

LLE
Y

FOX
GLOVE

LAPUSH

MC
CO

RM
ICK

WO
OD

S

MADRONA

HID
DE

N
AC

RE
S

BASIL

WILKINS

HA
RR

ISO
N

REDSPRUCE

DWIGHT

STATE HWY 16

SU
RR

EY

FLO
WE

R

MCCA
LL

STATE HWY 3

TAMARACK

TR
AC

Y

C

CL
IN

E

B

PA
NC

HO
VIL

LA

DAVIS

BE
TH

EL

ME
RI

FRONE

REGENCY

CARMAE

LAUREL

SH
ER

MA
N

AN
DA

SIO

HE
AT

HE
R

VILLA CARMEL

ST PAULS

LA
ND

OV
ER

HOLLY

ROSS

ST ANNS

MELCHER

ALO
NAH

WA
RN

ER

MA
LO

TT

LAZULI

CY
PR

ES
S

LIN
CO

LN

SANDBAR
DEKALB

STATEHWY3

FIREWEED

CO
TT

MA
N

ABDULA
VALE

PROSPECT

BAK
ER

HE
IGH

TS

TRAVERA

COPPER CREEK

MC
CA

RY RUBY

OR
CH

AR
D

MAPLE

BE
TH

EL
 BU

RL
EY

YORKSHIRE

PORT

RO
CK

WE
LL

SROUFE

PUGET SOUND

NAUTICAL

KELBY

MAY

SE
AT

TL
E

ANDOVER

HUNTINGTON

HA
RO

LD

SERENADE

SALMONBERRY

PAL
M

BERGER

REGENCY

KITSAP

BERGER

STATE
HWY

3

MADRONA

BECKY

SAM
CH

RIS
TO

PH
ER

SO
N

BA
LS

AM

FR
ON

T

FIR

1S
T

BIELMEIER

MAHALI

NAVIGATION

SALMONBERRY

SWEANY

GA
RF

IEL
D

NOVAK AZALEA

PROSPECT

PO
RT

OR
CH

AR
D

OLGA

ASPEN

GUY
WETZEL

VALE

ATKINSON

BR
AN

SO
N

LA
KE

VIE
W

PIC
KF

OR
D

GUTHRIE

4TH

OL
IVI

NE

LUND

LO
G C

AB
IN

AH
ER

N

WARBLER

RA
MS

EY

DWIGHT

GALEEL

CH
AN

TIN
G

WE
ST

MALTESE

QUARRY

AZTEC

CO
NV

ER
SE

MA
RIT

IM
E

CH
AR

LES
TO

N
BE

AC
H

CA
SE

CO
SID

NE
Y

SE
DG

WI
CK

LO
OP

GOLDENROD

PLEASANT

OLD CLIFTON

BERGER

JONES

PH
ILL

IPS
CA

BR
IN

I

GA
RR

ISO
N

MUIR

SUMMIT

WOLVES

CHA
TTE

RTO
N

MORTON

DIVISION

RITZ

CED
ARC

ANY
ON

MAHAN

EAGLECREST

CHESTER

SW
IFT

CA
LE

B

LO
DG

EP
OL

E

AU
DR

EY

PA
R F

OR
E

PIN
E T

RE
E

PA
RK

STATION

TAYLOR

PE
RD

EM
CO

BUCKINGHAM

DEKALB

TROON

TAYLOR

OL
YM

PIC

CLEVELAND
GR

AN
DR

IDG
E

VIS
TA

RA
MAA

BANDERA

SCENIC VIE
W

WATER

HARDING

KENDALL

TIBURON

AN
DE

RS
ON

3RD

PHIPPS

LOWREN

NAUTICAL
COVE

SISKIN

SHORT ORLANDO

BARTOLATZ

ASH
RID

GE

BECK

DEKALB

HILLRIDGE

HIG
HEVERETT

HASTINGS

KC

VE
LA

DA
NA

NORTH VAN DECAR

SE
IFO

RD

CARL
PICKEL

WE
ST

CO
NV

ER
SE

KRISTA

SAM NICHOLS

AUSTIN

GALWAY

EDMONDS

REDWOOD

HUL
L

WIGEON

SINCLAIR
VIEW

BAY

SHE
RMAN HEIGHTS

CA
RO

L

CED
AR

GLE
NN

KE
NT

FOSS

DUSTY

TIFFANY

HEPBURN

HO
WA

RD

AU
ST

IN

RO
OS

EV
ELT

1ST

IRVIN

STANDREWS

AU
ST

IN

GR
AN

T

BLUEBERRY

GILLE
TTE

CE
LE

ST
E

BE
LL

IN
GH

AM

ES
SE

X

SEATTLE

WE
ST

AR

ALDER

OLYMPIA

ALPHA

CAMELLIA

DE
SO

TO

PINE TREE

TENBY

VA
RD

ON

CH
AS

E

HID
DE

N
TE

RR
AC

E

CHARLESTON BEA
CH

ST
AT

EH
WY

16

GL
EN

WO
OD

TAYLOR

HI
GG

IN
S

VIO
LET

VAU
GH

N

STATE HWY 16

LANCASTER

LUMSDEN

VILLAGE

COLVEA

DEKALB

HO
LM

ES

FAR
RA

GU
T

DUNDEE

CAMERON

RIDGE
ROCK

LA
UR

A

SH
ER

MA
N LARCH

DI
VIS

IO
N

C

MYST
ERY

CA
RN

AT
IO

N
GA

RR
ISO

N

FIR
CRE

ST

GR
AN

T

DOGWOOD

SMITH

FERN VISTA

SIN
CLA

IR

MC
KIN

LEY

2N
D

BAKER

FIRMONT

DR
AG

ON

HIDDENCREEK

DWIGHT

PETERS

BIR
CH

WILLO
W

ASH

CALAVERAS

MARCIA

HA
RR

ISO
N

SOLID

CLAY

CALISTOGA

DUCHESS

SA
GE

STATE
HWY 16

ILLINOIS

MA
RL

IN

FAY

MELCHER

CRAWFORD COLUSA

SUMMER

OREGON

KE
LL

S

BE
RW

ICK

OA
KH

UR
ST

SP
UR

LIN
G

COLLINS

RED FOX

KELBY

ED
WA

RD
S

CROSSWAY

VIV
IAN

PER
RY

MILLER

EGRET

VIK
IN

G

SH
AW

N

SEAHAWKS
HO

OV
ER

MCCO
RM

ICK
WOO

DS

FAN
TAI

L

NESS

ROYALWOOD

CA
TA

LP
A

ELWOOD

CRABB

EMPRESS

PA
CIF

IC
FIR

S

LORI LINDA

MARYMAC

BA
YV

IEW
CASTLEWOOD

CR
ES

T

PH
ILL

IPS

BLACKBERRY
HILL

KIL
LEE

N

MOOREA

CAB
RIN

I

BR
AS

CH

OU
R

WE
ST

STATE
HWY 304

PENNSWOOD

ARIE

FR
ON

TA
GE

GOLDMAUR

LAND
SUMMIT

GRANAT

LA 
LIN

DA

DE
L T

OR
ME

Y

GR
AN

D
FIR

SUNSET

BOTHWELL

FL
OW

ER

KERRI

GR
EE

N
TR

EE

SAXON

DOVER

DOCMINOR

LAFOLLETTE

POLAR STAR

WA
TE

R

DU
RA

ND

CELEBRITY

FEDDOCK

WATERSHED

CA
RR

CEDARVALE

LIMERICK

PLISKO

WASHINGTON

PLYMOUTH

RIF
LEB

IRD

RO
CK

Y C
RE

EK

CARMAE

VAN SKIVER

CA
NY

ON

WE
ST

BELFORD

TREMONT

JUNIPER

INW
OO

D

COUNTRYCLUB

FLOWER
MEADOWS

LA
GU

NA

GLEN
EAG

LE

GREENBRIAR

SACCO

RO
LA

ND

SHAMROCK

ZIO
N

BO
NN

IEV
ILL

E

CR
EE

KV
IEW

LIPPERT

BIRCH

SUNSHINE

SP
OK

AN
E

LUNDBERG

IND
IGO

PO
INT

E

AU
DR

EY

LO
NE

 BE
AR

KIRA

IN
DE

PE
ND

EN
CE

RE
DE

MP
TIO

N

EV
AN

S

PO
RT

LA
ND

FOREST PARK

FRONE

CA
TH

IE

DI
LL

TAFT

HARRIET

RA
INB

OW
RID

GE

THORSON

DALEA

YO
SE

MI
TE

AIK
EN

GA
RR

ISO
N

DEAN

LOVELL

FL
OW

ER

SOUNDRIDGE

SPRAGUE

TID
EP

OO
L

HI
LL

SK
IPP

INS
TONE

BR
AM

E

TU
RL

EY

SAND DOLLAR

FREEDOM

KELOWNARADEY

BEA
UT

YL
AK

E

CLAIR

EISE
NHOWER

DUNRAVEN

HANSON

JOSHUA

ARLINGTON

ELLIS

GR
IFF

ITH
S

STATE HWY 16

JARSTAD

LA
RI

LL

HERON
RIDGE

CAVALRY

MC
CO

OL

MARBETH

EMELIA

EH
LE

RT
WO

OD
S

VIS
TA

LIDER

KE
PP

EL

OBRIAN

BENS

AHLSTROM

BA
KK

EN

CR
ES

T

BRAVO

VA
ND

EC
AR

HI
GH

ER
GR

OU
ND

CAMAS

PARSONS
GREEN

KARLI
JO

SL
IN

HUDSON

GRANADA

PA
RK

ST
ON

E

POPLAR

GREENSHORES

JAY
BIR

D

RICHMOND

HARPER

JA
SO

N

AIK
EN

DURFEY

COOK

GE
IG

ER

DO
GW

OO
D

HIL
L

KODA

SALMONBERRYCREEK

TU
RN

BER
RY

VALLAIR

SQ
UA

RE
LA

KE

PO
T H

OL
E

BANCROFT

CH
AN

TIN
G

CONCEPT

SYLVIS

CHARLEST
ON

WE
AT

HE
RS

CA
RL

SO
N

WHITECAP

ES
TO

NI
A

HILLWOOD
HONEY

KE
RR

Y

WINTER SPRINGS

SH
ER

LY
N

EV
ER

GR
EE

N

HO
OV

ER

PA
RK

WO
OD

IVES MILL

FOREST VILLA

MAPL
E

PR
EST

WI
CK

CO
LO

NI
AL

MELINE

BR
IAR

WO
OD

STATE HWY16 WBOFF

HOVDE

FE
RA

TE

ROSE

CEDAR

STATE HW
Y 3

LAKE FLORA

DEPOT

CA
SE

CO

STA
TE H

WY 3

STATEHWY16 EB ON

WENT
WOR

TH
TRO

ON

HE
RS

HE
Y

PIO
NE

ER

BR
OA

DS
TO

NE

HA
WK

S N
ES

T

STATEHWY 16 EB OFF

VAL
LEY

VIE
W

STATE HWY 16 EB ON

WEXFORD

MU
IRK

IRK

DONATO

MARTELL MOBILE
CA

RL
PIC

KEL

SA
LM

ON
BE

RR
Y

FR
AN

WA
Y

WE
YE

RS

LIESEKE

ST
AT

E H
WY

304

CHARL
EST

ON

CA
MP

US

ST
EA

MB
OA

T

STATION

DEEP LAKE

SC
HW

EIT
ZE

R

CASTLETON

BETHEL
VALLEY

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
2021 

Comprehensive Plan Map
Land Use Designation

Greenbelt

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Commercial

Urban Industrial

Public and Community Spaces

Urban Growth Area
Port Orchard UGA

®
0 1,200 2,400 3,600 4,800600

Feet

 

City of Port Orchard Department of Community Development 

216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA  98366 
Phone: (360) 874-5533        Fax: (360) 876-4980 

www.cityofportorchard.us 

This map was created from existing map sources,
not from field surveys. While great care was taken
in using the most current map sources available,
no warranties of any sort, including accuracy, fitness,
or merchantability accompany this product. The user
of this map assumes responsibility for determining its 
suitability for its intended use. 
This map is not a substitute for field survey.

Page 218 of 358



S i n c l a i r  I n l e t

SID
NE
Y

HE
NR
Y  H
AN
SO
N

CEDAR

BAK
ER

HE
IGH
TS

BA
Y V
IEW

SQ
UA
RE
LA
KE

STATEHWY 16

SID
NE
Y

GU Y  WETZ EL

RU
SS
EL
L

SEDGWICK

BE
TH
EL

OLD 
CLIF
TON

LAWRENCE

M ILE HILL

HA
MI
LT
ON

TU
FT
S

U NNAM ED

LOV ELL

STATE HWY  3

HORSTM AN

BE
AC
H

STATE HWY  3

STATEHWY 16

3R
D

OY
ST
ER
BA
Y

STA
TE

HW
Y

16

WH
ITT
IER

FIRCREST

M I
TC
HE
LL

BELFAIR V ALLEY

RE
TS
IL

AN
DE
RS
ON
HIL
L

BERRY  LAKE

HA
RR
IS

BAY

KID
D

M CCORM ICKWOODS

SOU TH

UNION

FE
IGL
EY

HA
RR
ISO
N

PO
TT
ER
Y

HI
GG
IN
S

HA
WK
ST
ON
E

MA
PL
E

PA
Y S
EN
O

KA
RC
HE
R

JA
CK
SO
N

AD
VA
NT
AG
E FIR
CR
ES
T

ROOSEV ELT

M APLECREST

ADA

FE
RN

SWEANY

VIL
LA

LID
ST
RO
M

OL
NE
Y

DE
CA
TU
R

CA
NY
ON

TREM
ONT

SOU THKITSAP

PO
TT
ER
Y

HOPI

RO
OS
EV
ELT

JOY CE

SU NNFJOR
D

CO
M P
AS
S

JEFFERSON

HA
WT
HO
RN
E

EARHART

TREM ONT

AR
NO
LD

KE
NM
OR
E

STAT
EHW

Y 3

KITSAP

SM ITH

FOX
GLOV E

M CCALL

LAPU SH

M C
CO
RM
ICK
WO
OD
S

M A
DR
ON
A

VIC
TO
RY

STATEHWY 16

NA
TIO
NA
L

BASIL

WILKINS

HA
RR
ISO
N

RED
SPRU CE

DWIGHT

STATEHWY 16

SU
RR
EY

FL
OW
ER

M C
CA
LL

STAT
E HW

Y  3

GREENDALE

TAM ARACK

TR
AC
Y

C

CL
IN
E

B

PA
NC
HO

VIL
LA

DAV IS

BE
TH
EL

FRONE

CARM AESH
ER
M A
N

M ARITIM E

AN
DA
SIO

HE
AT
HE
R

ST P
AU L
S

LANDOV ER

HOLLY

ROSS

ST ANNS

SIN
CL
AIR

M ELCHER

ALO
NAH

WA
RN
ER

M A
LO
TT

LAZ U LI

TENNIS

LIN
CO
LN

SANDBAR
DEKALB

FIREWEED

CO
TT
M A
N

ABDU LA

V ALE

PROSPECT

TRAV ERA

COPPERCRE
EK

MC
CA
RY RU B

Y

ON
AL
AS
KA

OR
CH
AR
D

M APLE

KODA

Y ORKSHIRE

PORT

RO
CK
WE
LL

SROU FE

PU GETSOU ND

STARV
IEW

NAU TICA
L

KELBY

M AY

SE
AT
TL
E

HU NTINGTON

HA
RO
LD

SERENADE

SALM ONBERRY

ANNIES

HU
MP
HR
EY

BERGER

REGENCY

KITSAP

BERGER

STAT
E

HWY  
3

M ADRONA

BECKY

SA
M

CH
RIS
TO
PH
ER
SO
N

BA
LS
AM

FR
ON
T

FIR

1S
T

BIELM EIER

M AHALI

NAV IGATION

LIDSTROM HILL

SALM ONBERRY

LLOY D

FR
ED
ER
IC
K

GA
RF
IEL
D

NOV A
K

AZ ALEA

PO
RT
OR
CH
AR
D

GU Y
WETZ EL

SEQU OIA

CL
OV
ER
V A
LLE
Y

V ALE

ATKINSON

BR
AN
SO
N

BETHELV ALLE
Y

PIC
KF
OR
D

4TH

OL
IV I
NE

LU ND

AH
ER
N

WARBLER

RA
MS
EY

DWIGHT

GALE
EL

CH
AN
TIN
G

WE
ST

M ALTESE

QU ARRY

AZ TEC

CO
NV
ER
SE

M A
RI
TIM
E

CH
AR
LE
ST
ON

BE
AC
H

CA
SE
CO

SID
NE
Y

SE
DG
WI
CK

LO
OP

GOLDENROD

PLEASANT

OLD
CLIFTON

BERGER

JONES

PH
ILL
IPS

CA
BR
IN
I

GA
RR
ISO
N

STOCKTON

M U IR

HID
DE
NA
CR
ES

WOLV ES

CH
ATT
ERT
ON

DIV ISION

RIT
Z

CE
DA
R

CA
NY O
N

M AHAN

EAGLECREST

CHESTER

CA
LE
B

LO
DG
EP
OL
E

AU
DR
EY

PA
R

FO
RE

PIN
E T
RE
E

STATION

TAY LOR

PE
RD
EM
CO

GREBE

BU CKINGHAM

TROON

TAY LOR

GR
AN
DR
IDG
E

VIS
TA
RA
M AA

BANDERA

WATER

HAR
DIN
G

DIV ISION

KENDALL

3RD

PHIPPS

LOW
REN

NAU TICAL
COV E

SISKIN

SHORT ORLANDO

BARTOLATZ
AS
HR
IDG
E

BECK

DEKALB

HILLRIDGE

HIG
H

HASTINGS

BE
TH
EL
 BU
RL
EY

KC

VE
LA

DANA

NORTHV ANDECAR

CHAWLA

SE
IFO
RD

CARL
PICKEL

WE
ST

CO
NV
ER
SE

KRISTA

SAM  NICHOLS

AU STIN

GAL
WAY

EDM ONDS

REDWOOD

HU
LL

WIG
EON

ST
AR
LE
T

BAY

SHERM
ANH

EIG
HTS

CA
RO
L

HIG
HV
IEW

CE
DA
R

GL
EN
N

KE
NT

DU STY

TIFFANY

HEPBU RN

HO
WA
RD

AU
ST
IN

RO
OS
EV
EL
T

DI
ON
AS

1ST

IRV IN

STANDREWS

AU
ST
IN

GR
AN
T

BLU EBERRY

GIL
LET
TE

CE
LE
ST
E

JABIRIN

BE
LL
IN
GH
AM

ES
SE
X

SEATTLE

WE
ST
AR

OLY M PIA

ALPHA

CAM ELLIA

JERRY

DE
SO
TO

PIN
ET

REE

TENBY

VA
RD
ON

CH
AS
E

HID
DE
N

TE
RR
AC
E

GL
EN
WO
OD

TAY LOR

HI
GG
IN
S

V IO
LE
T

COUNTRYCLU B

STATEHWY 1
6

LANCASTER

SHELTON

LU M SDEN

COLV EA

DEKALB

2ND

HO
LM
ES

BAKER

DU NDEE

RIDG
E

ROC
K

SH
ER
MA
N

DI
V IS
IO
N

C

M Y
STE
RY

GA
RR
ISO
N

GR
AN
T

DOGWOOD

SM ITH

FE
RN
 V I
ST
A

M C
KIN
LE
Y

CE
DA
R

RI
DG
E

2N
D

GA
RD
EN

GAZ EBO

DR
AG
ON

HIDDENCREEK

DWIGHT

BIR
CH

WIL
LOW

ASH

44TH

RO
SE

CALAV ERAS

M ARCIA

HA
RR
ISO
N

SOLID

CLAY

SAGE

KE
LP

CALISTOGA

DU CHESS

SA
GE

STATE
HWY  16

ILLINOIS

FAY

M ELCHER

CRAWFORD COLU SA

SU M M ER

OREGON

KE
LL
S

BE
RW
IC
K

OAKHU RST

SP
UR
LIN
G

RED FOX

KELBY

ED
WA
RD
S

VIV
IAN

PE
RR
Y

ORLANDO

M ILLER

EGRET

VIK
IN
G

SH
AW
N

SEAHAWKS

M C
CO
RM
ICK

WO
OD
S

CE
DA
R

CR
ES
CE
NT

FAN
TAI
L

ROY ALWOOD

BIR
CH

ELWOOD

EM PRESS

FAIR
WAY

PA
CIF
IC
FIR
S

M ARY M AC

BA
Y V
IEW

CAST
LEW
OOD

CR
ES
T

PH
ILL
IPS

BLACKBERRY
HILL

KIL
LE
EN

SHIPV IEW

M OOREA

BR
AS
CH

WILLIAM S
OU
R

WE
ST

FAIRWINDS

PENNSWOOD

ARIE

FR
ON
TA
GE

KENFIG

GOLDM AU R

GRANAT

LA
 LI
ND
A

DE
L T
OR
M E
Y

GR
AN
D

FIR

SU NSET

BOTHWELL

KERRI

GR
EE
N

TR
EE

SAXON

LAFOLLETTE

POLAR STAR

WA
TE
R

DU
RA
ND

CELEBRITY

WATERSHED

CA
RR

CEDARV ALE

LIM ERICK

PLISKO

WASHINGTON

PLY M OU TH

RIF
LE
BIR
D

CARM AE

V AN SKIV ER

CA
NY
ON

WE
ST

BELFORD

TREM ONT

FLOWER
M EADOWS

LA
GU
NA

GLE
NEA
GLE

GREENBRIAR

SACCO

RO
LA
ND

SHAM ROCK

ZIO
N

BO
NN
IEV
ILL
E

CA
BR
INI

CR
EE
K V
IEW

LIPPERT

BIRCH

SP
OK
AN
E

LU NDBERG

IND
IGO
PO
INT
E

AU
DR
EY

LO
NE
 B
EA
R

KIRA

IN
DE
PE
ND
EN
CE

RE
DE
M P
TIO
N

EV
AN
S

PO
RT
LA
ND

FORESTPARK

FRONE

CA
TH
IE

PIPERBERRY

DI
LL

TAFT

HARRIET

RA
INB
OW
RID
GE

WINDY SONG

THORSON

DALE
A

YO
SE
M I
TE

AIK
EN

GA
RR
ISO
N

DEAN

LOV ELL

FL
OW
ER

SPRAGU E

TID
EP
OO
L

HI
LL

SK
IPP
INS

TON
E

BR
AM
E

TU
RL
EY

SANDDOLLAR

FREEDOM

KELOWNARADEY

BE
AU
TY
LA
KE

CLAIR

EIS
ENH
OW
ER

DU NRAV EN

HANSON

JOSHU A

ARLINGTON

ELLIS

PO
IN
DE
XT
ER

GR
IFF
ITH
S

LA
RI
LL

M C
CO
OL

M ARBETH

EM ELIA

EH
LE
RT
WO
OD
S

V IS
TA

LIDER

LA
NS
IN
G

KEPPEL

BENS

FRONE

AHLSTROM

BA
KK
EN

CR
ES
T

BRAV O

VA
ND
EC
AR

HIGHER
GROU ND

CAM AS

DELIA

KARLI

JO
SL
IN

HU DSON

GRANADA

PA
RK
ST
ON
E

POPLAR

JA
YB
IR
D

RICHM OND

HARP
ER

JA
SO
N

AIK
EN

DU RFEY

COOK

STATEHW
Y 3

GE
IG
ER

DOGWOOD

HILL

TU
RN
BE
RR
Y

V ALLAIR

PO
T H
OL
E

CH
AN
TIN
G

CONCEPT

SY LV IS

CHA
RLE
STO
N

WE
AT
HE
RS

CA
RL
SO
N

WHITECAP

ES
TO
NI
A

HILLW
OOD

HONEY

KE
RR
Y

WINTER SPRINGS

SH
ER
LY
N

EV
ER
GR
EE
N

HO
OV
ER

PA
RK
W
OO
D

SAL
M O
NB
ER
RY

IV ES M ILL

FORESTV ILLA

M A
PLE

PR
ES
TW
ICK

CO
LO
NI
AL

SU NSHINE

M ELINE

BR
IAR
W
OO
D

BLACKJACK

STATEHWY 16WBOFF

STATEHWY 16WBOFF

HOV DE

FE
RA
TE

ROSE

CEDAR

STA
TEH

WY
3

DEPOT

CA
SE
CO

STA
TE H
WY
 3

STATEHWY 16EBON

LAKE
FLOR

A

WE
NT
WO
RT
H

TR
OO
N

HE
RS
HE
Y

PIO
NE
ER

BR
OA
DS
TO
NE

HA
WK
S N
ES
T

STATEHWY 16EB
OFF

VA
LL
EY
 V I
EW

STATE
HWY 16EBON

WEXF
ORD

M U
IRK
IRK

DONATO

M ARTELL M OBILE

CA
RL

PIC
KE
L

FR
AN
WA
Y

WE
Y E
RS

LIESEKE

ST
AT
EH
WY

304

CHA
RLE
STO
N

CA
MP
U S

ST
EA
M B
OA
T

STATION

DEEP LAKE

SC
HW
EIT
Z E
R

CASTLETON

      CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
2023 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP

Greenbelt
Low-Density Residentia l
M edium _ Density Residentia l
High-Density Residentia l
Com m ercia l
U rba n Industria l
Public a nd Com m unity Spa ces

Urban Growth Area
Port Orcha rd U GA

®

0 1,200 2,400 3,600 4,800600
Feet

 

City of Port Orcha rd Depa rtm ent of Com m unity Developm ent 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orcha rd, WA  98366 
Phone: (360) 874-5533        Fa x: (360) 876-4980 

www.cityofportorcha rd.us 

This m a p wa s crea ted from  existing m a p sources,
not from  field surveys. While grea t ca re wa s ta ken
in using the m ost current m a p sources a va ila ble,
no wa rra nties of a ny sort, including a ccura cy, fitness,
or m ercha nta bility a ccom pa ny this product. The user
of this m a p a ssum es responsibility for determ ining its 
suita bility for its intended use. 
This m a p is not a  substitute for field survey.

Da te Sa ved: 2/9/2023 10:32:12 AM

City of Port Orcha rd Officia l Com prehensive Pla n M a p a s a dopted
by Ordina nce _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  on _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ .
						
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Robert Puta a nsuu, M a yor

ATTEST:
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Bra ndy Wa lla ce, M M C, City Clerk
APPROV ED AS TO FORM :				 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 	
Cha rlotte A. Archer, City Attorney				

Sponsored by:  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Scott Diener, Councilm em ber

PU BLISHED:  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ _
EFFECTIV E DATE: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ _

The officia l signed M a p m a y be viewed a t the City Clerk’s office.

Page 219 of 358



S i n c l a i r  I n l e t

SID
NE

Y

HE
NR

Y H
AN

SO
N

CEDAR

BA
YV

IEW

STATE HWY 16

BAK
ER

HE
IGH

TS

TRE
MON

T

SID
NE

Y

SQ
UA

R E
LA

KE

RU
SS

EL
L

SEDGWICK

BE
TH

EL

OLD CLIFTON

LAWRENCE
ADMIRALTY
HEIGHTS

MILE HILL

HA
MI

LTO
N

TU
FT

S

LOVELL

STATE HWY 3

HORSTMAN

BEA
CH

STATE HWY

16 STATE HWY 16

SKMALL
ACCESS

3R
D

STATE HWY 3OY
S T

E R
BA

Y

WH
ITT

IER

MI
TC

HE
LL

FIRCREST
BELFAIR VALLEY

RE
TS

IL

AN
DE

RS
ON

HIL
L

BERRY LAKE

HA
RR

IS

DECATUR

BAY

KID
D

MCCORMICK WOODS

UNION

FEI
GLE

Y

HA
RR

ISO
N

PO
TT

ER
Y

HA
WK

ST
ON

E

MA
PL

E

PA
YS

EN
O

KA
RC

HE
R

JA
CK

SO
N

AD
VA

NT
AG

E FIR
CR

ES
T

RO
OS

EV
ELT

DE
CAT

UR

ADASWEANY

VIL
LA

PROPERTY

LID
ST

RO
M

OL
NE

Y

CA
NY

ON

PO
TT

ER
Y

TREMONT

SOUTH KITSAP

HOPI

RO
OS

EVE
LT

JOYCE

SUNN FJORD

COMPASS

JEFFERSON

EARHART

TREMONT

AR
NO

LD

STATE HWY 3

KITSAP

SMITH

FOX
GLOVE

LAPUSH

MC
CO

RM
ICK

WO
OD

S

MA
DR

ON
A

VIC
TO

RY

STATE HWY 16

NA
TIO

NA
L

BASIL

WILKINS

HA
RR

ISO
N

REDSPRUCE

DWIGHT

SU
RR

EY

FLO
WE

R

MC
CA

LL

STATE HWY 3

GREENDALE

TAMARACK

TR
AC

Y

C

CL
IN

E

B

PA
NC

HO
VIL

LA

DAVIS

BE
TH

EL

FRONE

CARMAE

LAUREL

SH
ER

MA
N

AN
DA

SIO

HE
AT

HE
R

VILLA CARMEL

ST PAULS

LA
ND

OV
ER

HOLLY

ROSS

ST ANNS

MELCHER

ALO
NAH

WA
RN

ER

MA
LO

TT

LAZULI

LIN
CO

LN

SANDBAR
DEKALB

FIREWEED

CO
TT

MA
N

ABDULA

VALE

PROSPECT

TRAVERA

COPPER CREEK

MC
CA

RY RUBY

OR
CH

AR
D

SIN
CL

AIR

MAPLE

YORKSHIRE

PORT

CONIFER PARK

RO
CK

WE
LL

SROUFE

STA
TE

HW
Y

16

PUGET SOUND

STARVIEW

NAUTICAL

KELBY

MAY

SE
AT

TL
E

ANDOVER

HUNTINGTON

HA
RO

LD

SERENADE

SALMONBERRY

BERGER

REGENCY

KITSAP

BERGER

STATE
HWY

3

HU
MP

HR
EY

MADRONA

BECKY

SA
M

CH
RIS

TO
PH

ER
SO

N

BA
LS

AM

FR
ON

T

FIR

1S
T

BIELMEIER

NAVIGATION

SALMONBERRY

LLOYD

GA
RF

IEL
D

NOVAK AZALEA

HOQUIAM

PROSPECT

PO
RT

OR
CH

AR
D

GUY
WETZEL

VALE

ATKINSON

CLOVER VALLEY

BR
AN

SO
N

PIC
KF

OR
D

GUTHRIE

4TH

OL
IVI

NE

LUND

AH
ER

N

WARBLER

RA
MS

EY

DWIGHT

GALEEL

WE
ST

MALTESE

QUARRY

AZTEC

CO
NV

ER
SE

MA
RIT

IM
E

CH
AR

LE
ST

ON
BE

AC
H

CA
SE

CO
SID

NE
Y

SE
DG

WI
CK

LO
OP

GOLDENROD

PLEASANT

BERGER

JONES

PH
ILL

IPS
CA

BR
IN

I

GA
RR

ISO
N

MUIR

SUMMIT

WOLVES

CHATT
ERT

ON

HID
DE

NA
CR

E S

MORTON

DIVISION

RITZ

CED
ARC

ANY
ON

MAHAN

EAGLECREST

CHESTER

SW
IFT

CA
LE

B

LO
DG

EP
OL

E

AU
DR

EY

PA
R F

OR
E

PIN
E T

RE
E

PA
RK

STATION

TAYLOR

PE
RD

EM
CO

BUCKINGHAM

DEKALB

MA
HA

LI

TROON

TAYLOR

OL
YM

PIC

CLEVELAND

GR
AN

DR
IDG

E

VIS
TA

RA
MAA

BANDERA

WATER

HARDING

KENDALL

TIBURON

AN
DE

RS
ON

3RD

PHIPPS

LOWREN

NAUTICAL
COVE

SISKIN

SHORT ORLANDO

BARTOLATZ
ASH

RID
GE

BECK

DEKALB

HILLRIDGE

HIG
HEVERETT

HASTINGS

KC

VE
LA

DA
NA

BE
TH

EL
 BU

RL
EY

NORTH VAN DECAR

CHAWLA

SE
IFO

RD

CARL
PICKEL

WE
ST

CO
NV

ER
SE

KRISTA

SAM NICHOLS

AUSTIN

GALWAY

EDMONDS

REDWOOD

HUL
L

WI
GE

ON

BAY

SHE
RMAN HEIGHTS

CA
RO

L

GLE
NN

KE
NT

DUSTY

TIFFANY

HEPBURN

HO
WA

RD

RO
OS

EV
ELT

DI
ON

AS

1ST

IRVIN

STANDREWS

AU
ST

IN

GR
AN

T

BLUEBERRY

GILLE
TTE

CE
LE

ST
E

JABIRIN

BE
LL

IN
GH

AM

ES
SE

X

SEATTLE

WE
ST

AR
ALDER

ALPHA

CAMELLIA

DE
SO

TO

PINE TREE

TENBY

VA
RD

ON

CH
AS

E

HID
DE

N
TE

RR
AC

E

CHARLESTON BEA
CH

GL
EN

WO
OD

TAYLOR

HI
GG

IN
S

VIO
LET

VAU
GH

N

COUNTRYCLUB

STATE HWY 16

LANCASTER

LUMSDEN

COLVEA

DEKALB

2ND

HO
LM

ES

FAR
RA

GU
T

BAKER

DUNDEE

CAMERON

RIDGE
ROCK

LA
UR

A

SH
ER

MA
N

DI
VIS

IO
N

C

MYST
ERY

CA
RN

AT
IO

N
GA

RR
ISO

N

DIVISION

GR
AN

T

DOGWOOD

SMITH

FERN VISTA

MC
KIN

LEY

2N
D

GAZEBO

DR
AG

ON

HIDDENCREEK

DWIGHT

BIR
CH

WILLO
W

ASH

44TH CALAVERAS

MARCIA

HA
RR

ISO
N

SOLID

CLAY

CALISTOGA

DUCHESS

SA
GE

STATE
HWY 16

ILLINOIS

FAY

MELCHER

CRAWFORD COLUSA

SUMMER

OREGON

KE
LL

S

BE
RW

ICK

KE
NM

OR
E

OA
KH

UR
ST

SP
UR

LIN
G

RED FOX

KELBY

CROSSWAY

VIV
IAN

PER
RY

ORLANDO

MILLER

EGRET

VIK
IN

G

SH
AW

N

SEAHAWKS

MCCO
RM

ICK
WOO

DS

FAN
TAI

L

ROYALWOOD

ELWOOD

EMPRESS

PA
CIF

IC
FIR

S

LORI LINDA

MARYMAC

BA
YV

IEW

CR
ES

T

PH
ILL

IPS

BLACKBERRY
HILL

KIL
LEE

N

MOOREA

BR
AS

CH

WILLIAMS
OU

R

WE
ST

STATE
HWY 304

PENNSWOOD

ARIE

FR
ON

TA
GE

GOLDMAUR

GRANAT

LA
LIN

DA

DE
L T

OR
ME

Y

GR
AN

D
FIR

SUNSET

BOTHWELL

KERRI

GR
EE

N
TR

EE

SAXON

DOCMINOR

LAFOLLETTE

POLAR STAR

WA
TE

R

DU
RA

ND

CELEBRITY

WATERSHED

LODGEPOLE

CA
RR

CEDARVALE

LIMERICK

PLISKO

WASHINGTON

PLYMOUTH

RIF
LEB

IRD

CARMAE

VAN SKIVER

CA
NY

ON

WE
ST

BELFORD

TREMONT

JUNIPER

LA
GU

NA

GLEN
EAG

LE

GREENBRIAR

SACCO

RO
LA

ND

SHAMROCK

ZIO
N

BO
NN

IEV
ILL

E

CR
EE

K V
IEW

CAB
RIN

I

LIPPERT

BIRCH

STATE HWY 16

SP
OK

AN
E

LUNDBERG

IND
IGO

PO
INT

E

AU
DR

EY

LO
NE

 BE
AR

KIRA

IN
DE

PE
ND

EN
CE

RE
DE

MP
TIO

N

EV
AN

S

PO
RT

LA
ND

FOREST PARK

FRONE

CA
TH

IE

PIPERBERRY

DI
LL

TAFT

HARRIET

RA
INB

OW
RID

GE

WINDYSONG

DALEA

YO
SE

MI
TE

PIERSON

AIK
EN

GA
RR

ISO
N

DEAN

LOVELL

FL
OW

ER

SPRAGUE

TID
EP

OO
L

HI
LL

SK
IPP

INS
TONE

BR
AM

E

TU
RL

EY

SAND DOLLAR

FREEDOM

KELOWNARADEY

BEA
UT

YL
AK

E

CLAIR

EISE
NHOWER

DUNRAVEN

HANSON

JOSHUA

ARLINGTON

ELLIS

PO
IN

DE
XT

ER

GR
IFF

ITH
S

JARSTAD

LA
RI

LL

HERON
RIDGE

MC
CO

OL

MARBETH

EMELIA

EH
LE

RT
WO

OD
S

VISTA

LIDER

KE
PP

EL

OBRIAN

BENS

AHLSTROM

BA
KK

EN

CR
ES

T

BRAVO

VA
ND

EC
AR

HI
GH

ER
GR

OU
ND

CAMAS

DELIA

DONNEGAL

KARLI

JO
SL

IN

HUDSON

GRANADA

PA
RK

ST
ON

E

POPLAR

JAY
BIR

D

RICHMOND

HARPER

JA
SO

N

AIK
EN

DURFEY

COOK

GE
IG

ER

DO
GW

OO
D

HIL
L

KODA

TU
RN

BER
RY

VALLAIR

PO
T H

OL
E

BANCROFT

CH
AN

TIN
G

CONCEPT

SYLVIS

CHARLEST
ON

WE
AT

HE
RS

CA
RL

SO
N

WHITECAP

ES
TO

NI
A

HILLWOOD
HONEY

KE
RR

Y

WINTER SPRINGS

SH
ER

LY
N

EV
ER

GR
EE

N

HO
OV

ER

PA
RK

WO
OD

IVES MILL

SAL
MONBER

RY

FOREST VILLA

MAPL
E

PR
EST

WI
CK

CO
LO

NI
AL

SUNSHINE

MELINE

BR
IAR

WO
OD

BLACKJACK

STATE HWY 16 WBON

STATE HWY16 WBOFF

HOVDE

FE
RA

TE

ROSE

CEDAR

STATE HW
Y 3

DEPOT

CA
SE

CO

STATEHWY16 EB ON

LAKE FLORA

WENT
WOR

TH
TRO

ON

HE
RS

HE
Y

PIO
NE

ER

BR
OA

DS
TO

NE

HA
WK

S N
ES

T

VAL
LEY

VIE
W

STATE HWY 16 EB ON
WEXFORD

MU
IRK

IRK

DONATO

MARTELL MOBILE

CA
RL

PIC
KEL

FR
AN

WA
Y

WE
YE

RS

LIESEKE

ST
AT

EH
WY 304

CA
MP

US

ST
EA

MB
OA

T

STATION

DEEP LAKE

SC
HW

EIT
ZE

R

CASTLETON

BETHEL
VALLEY

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
2021 

Zoning Map
Rub y Cre e k Ove rlay District (Se e  POMC 20.38.300)
McCorm ic k Village  Ove rlay District (Se e  POMC 20.38.200)
Downtown He ight Ove rlay District (Se e  POMC 20.38.600)
Vie w Prote ction Ove rlay District (Se e  POMC 20.38.800)
Se lf Storage  Ove rlay District (Se e  POMC 20.38.700)

Zoning Designation
Gre e nb e lt (GB)
Re sid e ntial 1 (R1)
Re sid e ntial 2 (R2)
Re sid e ntial 3 (R3)
Re sid e ntial 4 (R4)
Re sid e ntial 6 (R6)
N e ighb orhood  Mixe d  Use  (N MU)
Busine ss Profe ssional Mixe d  Use  (BPMU)
Com m e rc ial Mixe d  Use  (CMU)
Downtown Mixe d  Use  (DMU)
Gate way Mixe d  Use  (GMU)
Com m e rc ial Corrid or (CC)
Com m e rc ial He avy (CH)
Ind ustrial Fle x (IF)
Light Ind ustrial (LI)
Civic and  Institutional (CI)
Parks and  Re c re ation (PR)
Pub lic Facilitie s (PF)

Urban Growth Area
Port Orc hard  UGA

®

0 1,200 2,400 3,600 4,800600
Fe e t

 

City of Port Orc hard  De partm e nt of Com m unity De ve lopm e nt 
216 Prospe ct Stre e t, Port Orc hard , W A  98366 
Phone : (360) 874-5533        Fax: (360) 876-4980 

www.cityofportorc hard .us 

This m ap was c re ate d  from  e xisting m ap sourc e s,
not from  fie ld  surve ys. W hile  gre at care  was take n
in using the  m ost curre nt m ap sourc e s availab le ,
no warrantie s of any sort, inc lud ing ac curacy, fitne ss,
or m e rc hantab ility ac c om pany this prod uct. The  use r
of this m ap assum e s re sponsib ility for d e te rm ining its 
suitab ility for its inte nd e d  use . 
This m ap is not a sub stitute  for fie ld  surve y.

Date  Save d : 12/27/2021 2:12:42 PM

City of Port Orc hard  Offic ial Z oning Map as ad opte d
b y Ord inanc e  0**-21 on ****, 2021.
						
__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Rob e rt Putaansuu, Mayor

ATTEST:
__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Brand y Rine arson, MMC, City Cle rk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:				 
__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _	
Charlotte  A. Arc he r, City Attorne y				

Sponsore d  b y:  

__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Sc ott Die ne r, Counc ilm e m b e r

PUBLISHED:  ***, 2021
EFFECTIVE DATE: ****, 2021

The  offic ial signe d  Z oning Map m ay b e  vie we d  at the  City Cle rk’s offic e .

Page 220 of 358



S i n c l a i r  I n l e t

SID
NE
Y

HE
NR
Y  H
AN
SO
N

CEDAR

BAK
ER

HE
IG
HT
S

BA
Y V
IEW

SQ
U A
RE
LA
KE

STATEHWY 16

SID
NE
Y

RU
SS
EL
L

SEDGWICK

BE
TH
EL

OLD 
CLIF
TON

LAWRENCE

M ILE HILL

HA
MI
LT
ON

TU
FT
S

LOV ELL

STATE HWY  3

HORSTM AN

BE
AC
H

STATE
HW
Y3

STATEHWY 16

SK
M ALL
ACCESS

3R
D

OY
ST
ER
BA
Y

STA
TE

HW
Y

16

WH
ITT
IER

FIRCREST

M I
TC
HE
LL

BELFAIR V ALLEY

RE
TS
IL

AN
DE
RS
ON
HIL
L

BERRY  LAKE

HA
RR
IS

DECATU R

BAY

KID
D

M CCORM ICKWOODS

SOU TH

UNION

FEI
GL
EY

HA
RR
ISO
N

PO
TT
ER
Y

HA
WK
ST
ON
E

MA
PL
E

PA
Y S
EN
O

KA
RC
HE
R

JA
CK
SO
N

AD
VA
NT
AG
E FIR
CR
ES
T

ROOSEV ELT

DE
CA
TU
R

ADA

FE
RN

SWEANY

VIL
LA

LID
ST
RO
M

OL
NE
Y

CA
NY
ON

TREM
ONT

SOU THKITSAP

PO
TT
ER
Y

HOPI

RO
OS
EV
ELT

JOY CE

SU NNFJOR
D

CO
M P
AS
S

JEFFERSON

EARHART

TREM ONT

AR
NO
LD

KE
NM
OR
E

STAT
EHW

Y 3

KITSAP

SM ITH

FOX
GLOV E

M CCALL

LAPU SH

M C
CO
RM
ICK
 WO
OD
S

M A
DR
ON
A

VIC
TO
RY

STATEHWY 16

NA
TIO
NA
L

BASIL

WILKINS

HA
RR
ISO
N

REDSPRU CE

DWIGHT

STATEHWY 16

SU
RR
EY

FL
OW
ER

M C
CA
LL

STAT
E HW

Y  3

GREENDALE

TAM ARACK

TR
AC
Y

C

CL
IN
E

B

PA
NC
HO

VIL
LA

DAV IS

BE
TH
EL

FRONE

CARM AESH
ER
M A
N

AN
DA
SIO

HE
AT
HE
R

V ILLACARM
EL

ST P
AU L
S

LANDOV ER

HOLLY

ROSS

ST ANNS

SIN
CL
AIR

M ELCHER

ALO
NAH

WA
RN
ER

M A
LO
TT

LAZ U LI

LIN
CO
LN

SANDBAR
DEKALB

FIREWEED

CO
TT
M A
N

ABDU LA

V ALE

PROSPECT

TRAV ERA

COPPERCRE
EK

MC
CA
RY RU B

Y

ON
AL
AS
KA

OR
CH
AR
D

M APLE

KODA

Y ORKSHIRE

PORT

CONIFER PARK

RO
CK
WE
LL

SROU FE

PU GETSOU ND

STARV IEW

NAU TICA
L

KELBY

M AY

SE
AT
TL
E

HU NTINGTON

HA
RO
LD

SERENADE

SALM ONBERRY

ANNIES

HU
MP
HR
EY

BERGER

REGENCY

KITSAP

BERGER

STAT
E

HWY  
3

M ADRONA

BECKY

SA
M

CH
RIS
TO
PH
ER
SO
N

BA
LS
AM

FR
ON
T

FIR

1S
T

BIELM EIER

M AHALI

NAV IGATION

LIDSTROM HILL

SALM ONBERRY

LLOY D

GA
RF
IEL
D

NO
V AK AZ ALEA

PROSPECT

PO
RT
OR
CH
AR
D

GU Y
WETZ EL

SEQU OIA

CL
OV
ER
V A
LLE
Y

V ALE

ATKINSON

BR
AN
SO
N

BETHELV ALLE
Y

PIC
KF
OR
D

4TH

OL
IV I
NE

LU ND

AH
ER
N

WARBLER

RA
MS
EY

DWIGHT

GALE
EL

CH
AN
TIN
G

WE
ST

M ALTESE

AZ TEC

CO
NV
ER
SE

M A
RI
TIM
E

CH
AR
LE
ST
ON

BE
AC
H

CA
SE
CO

SID
NE
Y

GOLDENROD

PLEASANT

OLD
CLIFTON

BERGER

GIV ENS

JONES

PH
ILL
IPS

CA
BR
IN
I

GA
RR
ISO
N

M U IR

SU M M IT

HID
DE
NA
CR
ES

WOLV ES

CH
ATT
ER
TO
N

DIV ISION

RIT
Z

M AHAN

EAGLECREST

CHESTER

CA
LE
B

LO
DG
EP
OL
E

AU
DR
EY

PA
RF
OR
E

PIN
E T
RE
E

PA
RK

STATION

TAY LOR

PE
RD
EM
CO

GREBE

BU CKINGHAM

TROON

TAY LOR

GR
AN
DR
IDG
E

VIS
TA
RA
M AA

BANDERA

WATER

HAR
DIN
G

DIV ISION

KENDALL

AN
DE
RS
ON

3RD

PHIPPS

LOW
REN

NAU TICAL
COV E

SISKIN

SHORT ORLANDO

BARTOLATZ
AS
HR
IDG
E

BECK

DEKALB

HILLRIDGE

HASTINGS

BE
TH
EL
 BU
RL
EY

KC

VE
LA

DA
NA

NORTH V ANDECAR

CHAWLA

SE
IFO
RD

CARL
PICKEL

WE
ST

CO
NV
ER
SE

KRISTA

SAM  NICHOLS

AU STIN

GAL
WAY

EDM ONDS

REDWOOD

HU
LL

WIG
EON

ST
AR
LE
T

BAY

SHERM
ANH

EIG
HTS

CA
RO
L

CE
DA
R

GL
EN
N

HA
LE
S

KE
NT

DU STY

TIFFANY

HEPBU RN

HO
WA
RD

RO
OS
EV
EL
T

DI
ON
AS

1ST

IRV IN

STANDREWS

AU
ST
IN

GR
AN
T

BLU EBERRY

GIL
LET
TE

CE
LE
ST
E

JABIRIN

BE
LL
IN
GH
AM

SEATTLE

WE
ST
AR

ALDER

OLY M PIA

ALPHA

CAM ELLIA

JERRY

DE
SO
TO

PIN
ET

REE

TENBY

VA
RD
ON

CH
AS
E

HID
DE
N

TE
RR
AC
E

GL
EN
WO
OD

TAY LOR

HI
GG
IN
S

V IO
LE
T

COUNTRY
CLU B

STATEHWY
16

LANCASTER

SHELTON

LU M SDEN

COLV EA

DEKALB

2ND

HO
LM
ES

FA
RR
AG
U T

BAKER

DU NDEE

CAM ERON

RIDGE
ROCK

LA
UR
A

SH
ER
M A
N

DI
V IS
IO
N

C

M Y
STE
RY

CA
RN
AT
IO
N

GA
RR
ISO
N

DIV ISION

GR
AN
T

DOGWOOD

SM ITH

FE
RN
 V I
ST
A

M C
KIN
LE
Y

CE
DA
R

RI
DG
E

2N
D

GAZ EBO

DR
AG
ON

HIDDENCREEK

DWIGHT

BIR
CH

WIL
LOW

ASH

44TH CALAV ERAS

M ARCIA

HA
RR
ISO
N

SOLID

CLAY

SAGE

KE
LP

CALISTOGA

DU CHESS

SA
GE

STATE
HWY  16

ILLINOIS

FAY

M ELCHER

CRAWFORD COLU SA

SU M M ER

OREGON

KE
LL
S

BE
RW
IC
K

OAKHU RST

SP
UR
LIN
G

ST
AT
EHW
Y 16

EB

OFF

RED FOX

KELBY

ED
WA
RD
S

VIV
IAN

PE
RR
Y

ORLANDO

M ILLER

EGRET

VIK
IN
G

SH
AW
N

SEAHAWKS

M C
CO
RM
ICK

WO
OD
S

CE
DA
R

CR
ES
CE
NT

FAN
TAI
L

ROY ALWOOD

BIR
CH

ELWOOD

EM PRESS

BR
AD
Y

FAIR
WAY

PA
CIF
IC
FIR
S

M ARY M AC

BA
Y V
IEW

CR
ES
T

PH
ILL
IPS

BLACKBERRY
HILL

KIL
LE
EN

SHIPV IEW

M OOREA

BR
AS
CH

WILLIAM S
OU
R

WE
ST

FAIRWINDS

PENNSWOOD

ARIE

FR
ON
TA
GE

KENFIG

GOLDM AU R

GRANAT

LA
 LI
ND
A

DE
L T
OR
M E
Y

GR
AN
D

FIR

SU NSET

BOTHWELL

KERRI

GR
EE
N

TR
EE

SAXON

DOC
M INOR

LAFOLLETTE

POLAR STAR

WA
TE
R

DU
RA
ND

CELEBRITY

WATERSHED

CA
RR

CEDARV ALE

LIM ERICK

PLISKO

WASHINGTON

PLY M OU TH

RIF
LE
BIR
D

CARM AE

V AN SKIV ER

CA
NY
ON

WE
ST

BELFORD

TREM ONT

GLE
NEA
GLE

GREENBRIAR

SACCO

RO
LA
ND

SHAM ROCK

ZIO
N

BO
NN
IEV
ILL
E

CA
BR
INI

CR
EE
K V
IEW

LIPPERT

BIRCH

SP
OK
AN
E

LU NDBERG

IND
IGO

PO
INT
E

AU
DR
EY

LO
NE
 B
EA
R

WI
LK
IN
S

KIRA

IN
DE
PE
ND
EN
CE

RE
DE
M P
TIO
N

EV
AN
S

PO
RT
LA
ND

FORESTPARK

CA
TH
IE

PIPERBERRY

DI
LL

TAFT

HARRIET

RA
INB
OW
RID
GE

WINDY SONG

THORSON

DALE
A

YO
SE
M I
TE

AIK
EN

HAY WORTH
GA
RR
ISO
N

DEAN

LOV ELL

FL
OW
ER

SPRAGU E

TID
EP
OO
L

HI
LL

SK
IPP
INS

TON
E

BR
AM
E

TU
RL
EY

SANDDOLLAR

FREEDOM

KELOWNARADEY

BE
AU
TY
LA
KE

CLAIR

EIS
ENH
OW
ER

DU NRAV EN

HANSON

JOSHU A

ARLINGTON

ELLIS

PO
IN
DE
XT
ER

GR
IFF
ITH
S

LA
RI
LL

M C
CO
OL

M ARBETH

EM ELIA

EH
LE
RT
W
OO
DS

V IS
TA

LIDER

KEPPEL

OBRIAN

BENS

FRONE

AHLSTROM

BA
KK
EN

CR
ES
T

BRAV O

VA
N
DE
CA
R

HIGHER
GROU ND

CAM AS

DELIA

KARLI

JO
SL
IN

HU DSON

GRANADA

PA
RK
ST
ON
E

POPLAR

JA
YB
IR
D

RICHM OND

HARP
ER

JA
SO
N

AIK
EN

DU RFEY

COOK

STATEH
WY 3

GE
IG
ER

DOGWOOD

HILL

TU
RN
BE
RR
Y

V ALLAIR

PO
T H
OL
E

CH
AN
TIN
G

CONCEPT

SY LV IS

WE
AT
HE
RS

CA
RL
SO
N

WHITECAP

ES
TO
NI
A

HILLW
OOD

HONEY

KE
RR
Y

WINTER SPRINGS

SH
ER
LY
N

EV
ER
GR
EE
N

HO
OV
ER

PARKW
OOD

SAL
M O
NBE
RRY

IV ES M ILL

FORESTV ILLA

M A
PLE

PR
ES
TW
ICK

CO
LO
NI
AL

SU NSHINE

M ELINE

BR
IAR
W
OO
D

BLACKJACK

STATEHW
Y 16W

BOFF

STATEHW
Y 16WBOFF

HOV DE

FE
RA
TE

ROSE

CEDAR

STATE
HWY

3

DEPOT

CA
SE
CO

STA
TE H
WY
 3

STATEHWY 16EBON

LAKE
FLOR

A

WE
NT
WO
RT
H

TR
OO
N

HE
RS
HE
Y

PIO
NE
ER

BR
OA
DS
TO
NE

HA
WK
S 
NE
ST

STATEHW
Y
16EB

OFF

VA
LL
EY
 V I
EW

STATEHWY 16EBON
WEXF

ORD

M U
IRK
IRK

DONATO

M ARTELL M OBILE

CA
RL

PIC
KE
L

FR
AN
WA
Y

WE
Y E
RS

LIESEKE

ST
AT
EH
WY

304

CHA
RLE
STO
N

CA
MP
U S

ST
EA
M B
OA
T

STATION

DEEP LAKE

SC
HW
EIT
Z E
R

CASTLETON

      CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
          2023 ZONING MAP

Zoning Designation
Greenbelt (GB)
Residentia l 1 (R1)
Residentia l 2 (R2)
Residentia l 3 (R3)
Residentia l 4 (R4)
Residentia l 6 (R6)
Neighborhodd M ixed U se (NM U )
Business Professiona l M ixed U se (BPM U )
Com m ercia l M ixed U se (CM U )
Downtown M ixed U se (DM U )
Ga tewa y M ixed U se (GM U )
Com m erca il Corridor (CC)
Com m ercia l Hea vy (CH)
Industria l Flex (IF)
Light Industria l (LI)
Civic a nd Institutiona l (CI)
Pa rks a nd Recrea tion (PR)
Public Fa cilities (PF)

Urban Growth Area
Port Orcha rd U GA

®

0 1,200 2,400 3,600 4,800600
Feet

 

City of Port Orcha rd Depa rtm ent of Com m unity Developm ent 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orcha rd, WA  98366 
Phone: (360) 874-5533        Fa x: (360) 876-4980 

www.cityofportorcha rd.us 

This m a p wa s crea ted from  existing m a p sources,
not from  field surveys. While grea t ca re wa s ta ken
in using the m ost current m a p sources a va ila ble,
no wa rra nties of a ny sort, including a ccura cy, fitness,
or m ercha nta bility a ccom pa ny this product. The user
of this m a p a ssum es responsibility for determ ining its 
suita bility for its intended use. 
This m a p is not a  substitute for field survey.

Da te Sa ved: 2/9/2023 10:32:12 AM

City of Port Orcha rd Officia l Z oning M a p a s a dopted
by Ordina nce _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  on _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ .
						
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Robert Puta a nsuu, M a yor

ATTEST:
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Bra ndy Wa lla ce, M M C, City Clerk
APPROV ED AS TO FORM :				 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 	
Cha rlotte A. Archer, City Attorney				

Sponsored by:  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Scott Diener, Councilm em ber

PU BLISHED:  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ _
EFFECTIV E DATE: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20_ _ _ _

The officia l signed M a p m a y be viewed a t the City Clerk’s office.

Page 221 of 358



Page 222 of 358



Page 223 of 358



Page 224 of 358



Page 225 of 358



Page 226 of 358



Page 227 of 358



Page 228 of 358



From: Harold Hord <harold97531@gmail.com> 

Sent: Friday, February 24, 2023 8:12 AM 

To: Planning Mailbox 

Subject: Meline rd rezone  

 

Port orchard planning, I believe rezoning the property to res 2 from the commercial zoning that it is now 

would be a more fluid transition giving the property owners more flexibility and accommodate 

everyone’s needs. At this time I’m strongly against my property being rezoned to Res 1 and wish port 

orchard highly consider the Res 2 option. Thank you for allowing my input. Harold Hordyk parcel 

#112301-3-012-2005 

Page 229 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8H Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Adopting Prepared by: Debbie Lund 

 Personnel Policies Related to Purchasing of  HR Director 
 Clothing and Work Boots     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  Human Resources continues to review existing City personnel policies and, when appropriate, 
make recommendations for revisions and adoption of new policies. Human Resources was made aware of 
departments authorizing clothing allowances and purchasing City-branded clothing for some employees. 
In an effort to document current practices and provide for consistency amongst the various City 
departments, Human Resources is proposing a new personnel policy 12.6, related to the purchase and 
wear of City-branded clothing for non-represented employees and a new personnel policy 12.7, related to 
the purchase of work boots for certain field employees. Those policies are attached as Exhibit A to the 
proposed resolution.  
 
These proposed policies were shared with City staff in April for review and comment. These policies are 
proposed for non-represented staff only as union employees either already have language in their 
respective collective bargaining agreement or have an established past practice within their respective 
departments.  
 
Recommendation: In support of the Council’s guiding principal to “raise the bar,” staff recommends that 
the City Council adopt the attached resolution establishing personnel policies to standardize the purchase 
of City-branded clothing and work boots for non-represented staff. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a resolution, establishing new City personnel policies related 
to the purchase of City-branded clothing and work boots for non-represented employees.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: All purchases approved by the Department Director must utilize budgeted funds.   
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the Resolution and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution and Exhibit A 

Page 230 of 358



RESOLUTION NO.  ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
PERSONNEL POLICIES RELATED TO THE PURCHASING OF CITY-BRANDED CLOTHING 
AND WORK BOOTS FOR EMPLOYEES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Human Resources Department continues to review and, where appropriate, 
recommend modifications and additions to personnel policies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has an obligation to purchase and provide safety related clothing items for 
employees whose occupations require those items; and 
  
 WHEREAS, some field employees are required to have specialized footwear including steel-toed 
shoes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, management has expressed an interest in providing its employees at least one City-
branded article of clothing so that employees may represent the City at work and at special events; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to standardize its policies relating to the purchase of City-branded 
clothing for its non-represented employees; now, therefore; 
 
  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
THAT: Personnel policies related to clothing with a City logo and work boot allowance for non-
represented employees are hereby adopted in substantially the same form as attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. The Mayor is directed to incorporate these new policies into the City’s 
existing Personnel Policy Manual and take all necessary steps to implement these policies.  
 
THAT: In accordance with Resolution 034-10, the Mayor has the authority to amend the 
personnel policies and procedures, including those adopted by this Resolution, as needed 
with notification to the City Council.  

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested by the 

City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 9th day of May 2023. 
 
 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 231 of 358



Exhibit “A” 
 
 
 
NEW POLICY to address purchase of City logo clothing for employees 
 
12.6 CLOTHING WITH CITY LOGO 
 
 The City will purchase for each non-temporary, non-represented employee branded/logo 
clothing to promote the City and to readily identify City employees at work and public events. 
Clothing is limited to one item per calendar year for office staff, two items per calendar year for 
field staff and three items per calendar year for parking enforcement staff. Department Directors 
shall be responsible for ordering the items and must have budgeted funds available for the 
purchase of the clothing. Employees may wear the branded items of clothing while representing 
the City. Employees should also understand that their conduct while wearing branded clothing 
reflects upon the City, regardless of whether the employee is on duty; employees are therefore 
expected to conduct themselves in a professional and respectful manner while wearing City-
branded clothing. Branded items that are faded, frayed, or otherwise in poor condition, at the 
discretion of the Department Director, must be destroyed. Upon separation from employment, 
branded clothing items must be returned, destroyed or otherwise treated in a manner that prevents 
the clothing from being worn in public. Nothing in this policy restricts the City from purchasing 
additional clothing for the work-related safety or personal protection items for an employee, 
including but not limited to, reflective clothing, raincoats, rubber boots, coveralls, etc. for an 
employee.  Individual departments shall develop a process and budget for the purchase of work-
related safety or personal protective items, which shall be consistent with applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations and any applicable collective bargaining agreement, and shall be 
approved by the Mayor or designee. 
 
 
 
NEW POLICY to document current limited practice of providing a clothing/boot allowance to 
some employees. 
 
12.7 WORK BOOT ALLOWANCE 

 
Upon the request of the Department Director, the Mayor may authorize certain non-

represented employees to receive a boot allowance of $175 per calendar year. Employees 
eligible for a boot allowance are those whose job duties require construction, inspection or 
enforcement work in the field requiring specialized footwear such as steel toed shoes/boots. 
Department Directors are responsible for budgeting for the allowance. If approved, an allowance 
of $175 will be paid in January of each year. New employees, and current employees who have 
not yet received an allowance in 2023, will receive a pro-rated portion of the allowance based 
on the number of working months remaining in the calendar year. The Deputy Police Chief will 
be eligible to receive a boot allowance under the same terms and conditions as those outlined in 
the collective bargaining agreement between the City and the represented Sergeant employees.  

Page 232 of 358



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8I Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing Prepared by: Charlotte Archer 
 a Memorandum of Understanding with  City Attorney 
 Kitsap Regional Library for Design Work     Atty Routing No: 366922-0011 
 for the Community Events Center Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City and the Kitsap Regional Library (“KRL”) have worked collaboratively to develop, 
design, and finance the construction and long-term operation of the South Kitsap Community Event 
Center (“CEC”), a special events center to provide a new and expanded space for library services, as well 
as new community event and meeting space to serve the public in downtown Port Orchard. KRL and the 
City have collaboratively designed the exterior and interior of the CEC to ensure its dual function as a 
library and a public events space. The parties continue to negotiate a long-term agreement to govern 
construction, operation and long-range financing commitments for the project. In the interim, KRL 
requested modifications to the design for the designated KRL portion of the CEC and committed to 
paying for the design costs associated with that work.  
 
In 2020, the City retained architectural and engineering firm Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. (“RFM”) for the 
design of the CEC (City Contract No. C066-20). KRL’s requested modifications to the design triggered 
Amendment No. 10 to the City’s contract with RFM for design services, and KRL has committed to paying 
for that work. Staff have negotiated a Memorandum of Understanding with KRL that allocates these 
costs to KRL, and stipulates that KRL will reimburse the City for the costs incurred through Amendment 
No. 10.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding with KRL for design work identified in Amendment No. 10 to Contract 
No. C066-20 and KRL’s commitment to payment therefor.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding with KRL for design work for the Community Events Center.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: Amendment No. 10 is for an additional $18,683.00, plus reimbursable expenses and 
applicable taxes. By this Memorandum of Understanding, KRL commits to reimbursing the City for these 
expenses. 
 
Alternatives:      Do not approve and provide alternative guidance 

Page 233 of 358



Business Item 8I 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Attachments: Resolution 
   Memorandum of Understanding  
   Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. C066-20 and Attachment 1 thereto  

 

Page 234 of 358



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, PERTAINING 
TO EMERGENCY HOUSING, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH KITSAP REGIONAL LIBRARY FOR 
CERTAIN DESIGN COSTS FOR THE SOUTH KITSAP COMMUNITY EVENTS CENTER. 
  
WHEREAS, since 2018, the City, the Kitsap County Public Facilities District, and the 

Kitsap Regional Library (“KRL” have worked collaboratively to develop, design and finance the 
construction of the South Kitsap Community Event Center (“CEC”), a special events center to 
provide a new and expanded space for library services, as well as new community event and 
meeting space to serve the public in downtown Port Orchard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and KRL have worked collaboratively to design the exterior and 

interior of the CEC to ensure its dual function as a library and a public events space, and are 
currently negotiating a long-term financing and project partnership agreement to reflect the 
partners’ commitments and roles for construction, and use of the CEC; and  

 
WHEREAS, in 2020, the City entered into a Professional Services Agreement, City 

Contract C066-20 with architectural firm Rice Fergus Miller, Inc., (RFM) for design of the CEC, 
including limited design of the space to be occupied by KRL; and  
 

WHEREAS, KRL has requested modifications to the design for the designated KRL 
portion of the CEC and committed to paying the City for the costs associated with those design 
modifications;  

 
WHEREAS, the design work attendant to the requested modifications are set out in 

Amendment No. 10 to the City’s agreement with RFM for design; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and KRL have negotiated a Memorandum of Agreement to allocate 

the costs associated with Amendment No. 10 to KRL; now, therefore,  
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
 are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 

THAT: The City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of 
 Understanding with KRL for Design Work for the South Kitsap Community Events Center, 
 and to take all actions consistent with this authorization and necessary to effectuate its 
 intent.  
 

Page 235 of 358



Resolution No. ____ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 9th day of May 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 236 of 358



IMANAGE\366922\0001\10668590.v1-5/4/23 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD  

AND THE KITSAP REGIONAL LIBRARY 
FOR DESIGN WORK FOR THE SOUTH KITSAP COMMUNITY EVENT CENTER 

 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING pertains to the financing of certain 
design work for the South Kitsap Community Event Center, in Port Orchard, Washington 
(“MOU”), made and entered into upon mutual execution by and between the City of Port Orchard 
(“City”) and the Kitsap Regional Library (“KRL”), a Kitsap County Rural Library District.   

 
WHEREAS, since 2018, the City, the Kitsap County Public Facilities District, and KRL 

have worked collaboratively to develop, design and finance the construction of the Port Orchard 
Community Event Center (“CEC”), a special events center and library space to be constructed on 
Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4650-011-001-0001, located at 619 Bay Street, Port Orchard, 
Washington 98366 (the “Property”); and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the City entered into a Professional Services Agreement, Contract 
C066-20 (“PSA”) with architectural firm Rice Fergus Miller, Inc., (RFM) for design of the CEC, 
including limited design of the space to be occupied by KRL; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City and KRL are currently negotiating a financing and project partnership 

agreement (“FPP Agreement”) to govern complete final design, construction and operations of the 
CEC; and  

 
WHEREAS, in the interim, KRL has requested modifications to the design for the 

designated KRL portion of the CEC and committed to paying for the costs associated with those 
design modifications;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  
 

1. Kitsap Regional Library shall pay the City the amount set out on Amendment No. 10 to 
the PSA, which is Attachment 1 hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. This 
amount reflects the necessary additional design work to the KRL designated tenant space 
in the CEC, as set out on Attachment 1 hereto. KRL’s payment shall be due within 30 days 
after its receipt of an invoice from the City. 
 

2. The City will execute Amendment No. 10 to the PSA in order to incorporate the scope of 
work set out on Attachment 1.  
 

3. The Parties acknowledge that this MOU shall be incorporated into the FPP Agreement but 
does not otherwise impact or set precedent for the terms and conditions the parties are 
currently negotiating in the FPP Agreement.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year set 

forth above. 

Page 237 of 358



IMANAGE\366922\0001\10668590.v1-5/4/23 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD  KITSAP COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
 
 
             
By: Robert Putaansuu, Mayor   By: Jason Driver, Director  
 
Dated:      Dated:       
 
 

Page 238 of 358



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8J Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 10 to  Prepared by: Charlotte Archer 
 Contract No. 066-20 with Rice Fergus  City Attorney 
 Miller for Design Work to Library Space    Atty Routing No: 366922-0011 
 for the Community Events Center Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City and the Kitsap Regional Library (“KRL”) have worked collaboratively to develop, design, 
and finance the construction and long-term operation of the South Kitsap Community Event Center (“CEC”), a 
special events center to provide a new and expanded space for library services, as well as new community 
event and meeting space to serve the public in downtown Port Orchard. KRL and the City have collaboratively 
designed the exterior and interior of the CEC to ensure its dual function as a library and a public events 
space. KRL requested modifications to the design for the designated KRL portion of the CEC and committed 
to paying for the design costs associated with that work.  
 
In 2020, the City retained architectural and engineering firm Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. (“RFM”) for the design of 
the CEC (City Contract No. C066-20). KRL’s requested modifications to the design triggered Amendment No. 
10 to the City’s contract with RFM for design services, and KRL has committed – via a Memorandum of 
Understanding, approved earlier this evening – to paying for that work. Amendment No. 10 authorizes RFM 
to move forward with the additional design services to modify design within areas of the CEC intended for 
dedicated use by the Library in the amount of $18,683.00.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 10 to Contract 
C066-20 for design work to modify design within areas of the CEC intended for dedicated use by the Library 
in the amount of $18,683.00.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. 
C066-20 with Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. for additional design work for the Community Events Center.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: Amendment No. 10 is for an additional $18,683.00, plus reimbursable expenses and applicable 
taxes. By this Memorandum of Understanding, KRL commits to reimbursing the City for these expenses. 
 
Alternatives:      Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments: Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. C066-20 and Attachment 1 thereto  
   Courtesy copy of Contract No. 066-20 

 

Page 239 of 358



 

IMANAGE\366922\0001\10668567.v1-5/4/23 

 

 

Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. C066-20 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

RICE FERGUS MILLER, INC. 

 

THIS AMENDMENT to Contract No. C066-20 (“Amendment”) is made effective as of the 9th day 

of May, 2023, by and between the City of Port Orchard (“City”), a municipal corporation, organized under 

the laws of the State of Washington, and Rice Fergus Miller, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of 

the State of Washington, located and doing business at 275 5th St., Bremerton, WA 98337 (“Consultant”).  

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2020, the City executed a Professional Services Agreement with Consultant 

for the South Kitsap Community Event Center Project (the “Project”) (“Underlying Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 1 to the Underlying 

Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work (work within the scope of 

the initial Request for Qualifications); and   

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 2 to the 

Underlying Agreement, adding additional scope of work (work within the scope of the initial Request for 

Qualifications); and  

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 3 to the 

Underlying Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work (work within 

the scope of the initial Request for Qualifications); and  

WHEREAS, on January 25, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 4 to the 

Underlying Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work due to 

unforeseen on-site conditions; and  

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 5 to the 

Underlying Agreement, extending the contract term to accommodate the scope of work; and  

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 6 to the 

Underlying Agreement, updating the scope and fee for tasks 4 and 5 of C082-19; and 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, the City and the Consultant executed Amendment No. 7 to the 

Underlying Agreement, adding additional design work related to shoreline improvements and permitting; 

and  

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2022, the City and the Consultant executed Amendment No. 8 to the 

Underlying Agreement, adding additional design work LEED Certification feasibility; and  

WHEREAS, in February 2023, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 9 to the 

Underlying Agreement, adding a modification to the architectural plans to meet LEED silver certification; 

and  

WHEREAS, the City received funding from the Kitsap Public Facilities District (“KPFD”) via an 

Page 240 of 358



 

IMANAGE\366922\0001\10668567.v1-5/4/23 

Agreement between the City and the PFD (C082-19) for this 8-phase Project, which will result in a 

Community Event Center; and  

WHEREAS, the Consultant was selected as the most qualified firm to perform all phases of the 

Project, and to date the Consultant and City and have completed phases 1-3 as set out in C082-19; and 

WHEREAS, the City has learned that a condition of funding building and library construction from 

state funds is LEED certification; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes, on behalf of the Kitsap Regional Library, to add design modifications 

to the CEC space to be occupied by the Library to the scope of work and has prepared this Amendment No. 

10 to Contract No. C066-20 for this purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that funding for the additional scope of work set out in 

Amendment #10 will be provided by the Kitsap Regional Library; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize their agreement to so amend the Underlying 

Agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 In consideration of the mutual benefits accruing, it is agreed by and between the parties thereto as 

follows:  

1. The Underlying Agreement, including previous Amendments Nos. 1-9, is amended as follows 

(amendment shown in legislative marks):   

a. The Scope of Work is amended to add the tasks as set out on Attachment 1 hereto 

(Amendment #10 Request). 

b. The total contract cost is increased by $18,683.00, plus reasonable reimbursable expenses 

associated with performing the tasks in Attachment 1, and applicable taxes, all as set out on 

Attachment 1 hereto (Amendment #10 Request).  

c. The contract term remains with a termination date of December 31, 2024, unless extended 

or earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the Underlying Agreement. 

 

2. In all other respects, the Underlying Agreement between the parties shall remain in full force and 

effect, amended as set forth herein, but only as set forth herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the day and year set 

forth above. 
 

Page 241 of 358



 

IMANAGE\366922\0001\10668567.v1-5/4/23 

 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, 
WASHINGTON 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 
 

Dean Kelly, Principal

Rice Fergus Miller, Inc.

Page 242 of 358



275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 Bremerton, WA 98337 

(360) 377-8773   rfmarch.com

April 6, 2023 

Nick Bond 

Development Director 

City of Port Orchard 

216 Prospect St 

Port Orchard, WA  98366 

Re: South Kitsap Community Events Center 

Amendment 10 Request 

KRL Revisions 

RFM Project:  2020002.00 

Dear Nick, 

Rice Fergus Miller (RFM) is pleased to present the following Letter of Proposal to amend our 

contract for the above referenced project.   

I. Project Description

Kitsap Regional Library (KRL), the designated tenant on the first level of the above referenced 

project, has requested changes to our design of their space.   

II. Scope of Services

The project previously completed the Design Development phase and is moving into 

Construction Documents phase.  The following scope is to revise the design and drawings based 

on the attached comments from KRL.     

The following disciplines are affected by the requested changes and are included in this scope of 

work: 

• Architectural

• Structural Engineer

• Mechanical Engineer

• Electrical Engineer

III. Exclusions and Additional Services

This contract amendment is specific to the described revisions as illustrated in the attached plan 

comments.  No other changes are covered in this contract amendment. 

IV. Owner Responsibilities

It is our understanding that City of Port Orchard and Kitsap Regional Library will provide full 

information, including a program, setting forth its design objectives, constraints, and criteria; and, 

the services of other consultants not included here when such services are deemed to be 

necessary. 

ATTACHMENT 1 to Amendment No. 10 to Contract No. C066-20

Page 243 of 358



South Kitsap Community Events Center        

Amendment 10 - KRL Revisions 

April 6, 2023 

 

 

 

V. Schedule 

We have a critical deadline of July 1, 2023 to complete building permit submittals prior to the 

WA State code cycle change.  In order to meet this, we have begun the architectural work to 

implement these changes.  Consultants will need to start their work as soon as possible in this 

month of April to stay on schedule.  We are requesting immediate approval of this proposal.   

VI. Compensation 

For the Scope of Services outlined above for Rice Fergus Miller and its consultants, 

compensation shall be a Fixed Fee of Eighteen thousand six hundred eighty three dollars 

(18,683.00); plus, reimbursable expenses and any applicable taxes. 

VII. Terms of Agreement 

Please provide an amendment to our South Kitsap Community Events Center contract upon 

accepting this proposal.   

VIII. Summary 

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on your project. We look forward to discussing our 

proposal further and working with you.  Please contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely,      

Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. 

Dean Kelly, Principal 

Architect  
 
Attachment:     230405 KRL Plan Revisions 

Page 244 of 358



UP

DN

R
E

F
D

W

1. FURNITURE IS SHOWN FOR COORDINATION PURPOSES ONLY - NIC.
2. ALL LIBRARY SHELVING PROVIDED BY KRL - NIC.
3. COORDINATE POWER LOCATIONS W/ MEP.
4. REFERENCE A/V DELIVERABLE FOR EQUIPMENT NOT SHOWN.

5' DIAMETER TURNING SPACE CLEAR FLOOR SPACE
30" X 48" UNO

B

A

2 3

C

5 6 7 8 9 1110 12

A.1

D

E

F

A.2

41.1

B.1

1 11.1

E.1

F.1

NOTE: ALL FURNITURE IN THIS 
AREA INTENDED TO BE MOVABLE

PROGRAM
STORAGE

107

OFFICE

119

LOUD WORK
ROOM

117

STAFF ADA RR

113

ALL GENDER
RESTROOMS

104

DATA

114

JAN

112

STAIR 4

S4.1

ELEC ROOM

121

PARTNER OFFICE

109

VESTIBULE

101

ADULT READING
AREA

106

EVENT LOAD

123

OFFICE

120
BREAK ROOM

115

ADA RR

111

LIBRARY FLEX
SPACE

105

FRIENDS
COLLECTION

103

STAIR 3

S3.1

STOR

116

SPRINKLER

122

FUTURE TENANT
SPACE

124

GENERAL
READING AREA

108

SHARED BUILDING
LOBBY

102

STAIR 1

S1.1

ELEV 1

E1

ELEV 2

E2

OFFICE

110

KIDS READING
AREA

126

TEEN READING
AREA

127

LIBRARY STACKS

128
LIBRARY STACKS

129

STAFF WORK
ROOM

118

TWEEN READING
AREA

125

RECEPTION

132

MDF

133
JAN

130

275 FIFTH STREET, SUITE 100
BREMERTON, WA 98337
360-377-8773
RFMARCH.COM

D
R
A
FT

PROJECT #

ISSUE DATE

SHEET #

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AHJ APPROVAL STAMP

D
A

T
E

/ T
IM

E
 P

R
IN

T
E

D
:

9/
30

/2
02

2 
4:

42
:2

0 
P

M
A

ut
od

es
k 

D
oc

s:
//S

K
C

E
C

 (
S

ou
th

 K
its

ap
 C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
 C

en
te

r)
/2

02
00

02
 P

O
C

E
C

 -
 2

02
2.

rv
t

2020002

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

A80.01

FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 1

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

61
9 

B
A

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

, W
A

 9
83

66

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 C

O
M

M
.

E
V

E
N

T
S

 C
E

N
T

E
R

NOTES & LEGEND - FF&E PLAN

0 16'4' 8'1/8" = 1'-0"1
FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 1

REVISION SCHEDULE

OPERABLE GLASS PARTITION SYSTEM
TO SECURE KRL SPACE WHEN LIBRARY
IS CLOSED BUT EVENT CENTER IS OPEN

MAINTAINS ACCESS TO LOBBY AND TO
MAIN GROUND LEVEL FLEX SPACE, WITH
ACCESS TO PLAZA

DESIRE TO RELOCATE PARTNER OFFICE
TO SECOND FLOOR AND REALLOCATE
THIS SPACE TO KRL FUNCTIONS

additional stack space
or enclosed program
room

DOORS TO THIS ROOM CAN SIMPLY BE
LOCKED WHEN THE LIBRARY IS CLOSED

TEEN SPACE CAN BE REDUCED.
REWORK LAYOUT OF SPACE TO INCLUDE
SOME OF ADULT COLLECTION HERE.
REMOVE BUILT IN BANQUETTE SEATING
TO MAXIMIZE FLEXIBILITY

soft seating zone along windows - shorten stacks in this area and
relocate some to general reading area

ADD EXTERIOR DOOR FOR FRIENDS OF
THE LIBRARY SPACE. UTILIZE THIS
SPACE FOR BOTH THEIR 'STORE' AND
STORAGE. 

HAS GOOD ACCESS TO COVERED PLAZA
FOR MOBILE DISPLAYS IN CONJUNCTION
WITH EVENTS IN PLAZA AS WELL AS A
DEDICATED ENTRANCE THAT COULD BE
ACCESSED WHEN THE REST OF THE
BUILDING IS CLOSED. 

STORAGE

STORE

INCLUDE DISPLAY SCREEN AND
MEETING TABLES TO MAKE A FLEXIBLE
SPACE FOR PROGRAMS. SHELVING
DESIGN COULD BE RETHOUGHT TO KEEP
DESIGN INTENT HERE - BUT MAYBE
HIGHLIGHTS SOME OF OUR DESIGN
STORY INSTEAD OF THE ADULT READING
COLLECTION

INCREASE SIZES OF OFFICE.

 NEED ACOUSTIC SOLUTION FOR OPEN
WORKSTATIONS - COULD BE FURNITURE
SOLUTION, IE. CUBICLES

WILL NEED TO EVALUATE
STORAGE CAPACITY FOR LIBRARY
SUPPORT SPACES

low ceiling, approx 4-8

remove exit, not req. shift
exterior door, add window
to office?

eliminate
closet, create
storage
casework area
outside of
offices, green
rect.

i think we can get most all
teen collection on walls

KRL WOULD LIKE MORE ROOM FOR THE
KIDS COLLECTION - REWORK PARTIAL
HEIGHT WALLS, SHELVING, AND STACKS
TO INCREASE SIZE OF SPACE
DEDICATED HERE

this area would work better with only
1 circulation route. huddle desk and
tech stations into one thing

DING DING DING

9'
-7

"
4'-0

10'-0

7'-10"

7'-9"

12'-5"

7'-0

ELEV.̀ No.̀ 2
FRONT

SEE ̀ NOTES ̀ 9̀ &̀ 25
(REF:-PWBO)

C.O.P.

ELEV.̀ No.̀ 1

4'-0̀ CL.̀ OPNG.

5'-8"̀ R.O.

5'-
5̀3

/8"̀
CL

̀C
AR

̀R
AI
LS

̀&

5'-5̀ 9/16"̀ CAR̀ INSIDE

7'-
10̀

15
/16

"̀C
AR

̀IN
SI
DE

7'-9"̀ R.O.̀ @̀ MAIǸ FLOOR
1'-11̀ 1/4"

4'-1̀ 3/16"̀ CL̀ CAR

9̀ 11/16"=À DIM̀ (IF̀ APPLICABLE)

2'-9̀ 1/4"

4"
7'-9"̀ CLEAR̀ HOISTWAY ̀ &̀ PIT

9'-
7"̀

CL
EA

R̀
HO

IS
TW

AY
̀&

̀P
IT

15'-10"̀ TOTAL ̀ HOIS

2'-3̀ 1/2"

7̀ 1/2"

7

358.71 sf

Page 245 of 358



UP

DN

R
E

F
D

W

1. FURNITURE IS SHOWN FOR COORDINATION PURPOSES ONLY - NIC.
2. ALL LIBRARY SHELVING PROVIDED BY KRL - NIC.
3. COORDINATE POWER LOCATIONS W/ MEP.
4. REFERENCE A/V DELIVERABLE FOR EQUIPMENT NOT SHOWN.

5' DIAMETER TURNING SPACE CLEAR FLOOR SPACE
30" X 48" UNO

B

A

2 3

C

5 6 7 8 9 1110 12

A.1

D

E

F

A.2

41.1

B.1

1 11.1

E.1

F.1

NOTE: ALL FURNITURE IN THIS 
AREA INTENDED TO BE MOVABLE

PROGRAM
STORAGE

107

OFFICE

119

LOUD WORK
ROOM

117

STAFF ADA RR

113

ALL GENDER
RESTROOMS

104

DATA

114

JAN

112

STAIR 4

S4.1

ELEC ROOM

121

PARTNER OFFICE

109

VESTIBULE

101

ADULT READING
AREA

106

EVENT LOAD

123

OFFICE

120
BREAK ROOM

115

ADA RR

111

LIBRARY FLEX
SPACE

105

FRIENDS
COLLECTION

103

STAIR 3

S3.1

STOR

116

SPRINKLER

122

FUTURE TENANT
SPACE

124

GENERAL
READING AREA

108

SHARED BUILDING
LOBBY

102

STAIR 1

S1.1

ELEV 1

E1

ELEV 2

E2

OFFICE

110

KIDS READING
AREA

126

TEEN READING
AREA

127

LIBRARY STACKS

128
LIBRARY STACKS

129

STAFF WORK
ROOM

118

TWEEN READING
AREA

125

RECEPTION

132

MDF

133
JAN

130

275 FIFTH STREET, SUITE 100
BREMERTON, WA 98337
360-377-8773
RFMARCH.COM

D
R
A
FT

PROJECT #

ISSUE DATE

SHEET #

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AHJ APPROVAL STAMP

D
A

T
E

/ T
IM

E
 P

R
IN

T
E

D
:

9/
30

/2
02

2 
4:

42
:2

0 
P

M
A

ut
od

es
k 

D
oc

s:
//S

K
C

E
C

 (
S

ou
th

 K
its

ap
 C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
 C

en
te

r)
/2

02
00

02
 P

O
C

E
C

 -
 2

02
2.

rv
t

2020002

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

A80.01

FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 1

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

61
9 

B
A

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

, W
A

 9
83

66

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 C

O
M

M
.

E
V

E
N

T
S

 C
E

N
T

E
R

NOTES & LEGEND - FF&E PLAN

0 16'4' 8'1/8" = 1'-0"1
FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 1

REVISION SCHEDULE

soft seating zone along windows - need power in floor and walls

ADD EXTERIOR DOOR FOR FRIENDS OF
THE LIBRARY SPACE. UTILIZE THIS
SPACE FOR BOTH THEIR 'STORE' AND
STORAGE. 

HAS GOOD ACCESS TO COVERED PLAZA
FOR MOBILE DISPLAYS IN CONJUNCTION
WITH EVENTS IN PLAZA AS WELL AS A
DEDICATED ENTRANCE THAT COULD BE
ACCESSED WHEN THE REST OF THE
BUILDING IS CLOSED. 

STORAGE

STORE

KRL WOULD LIKE MORE ROOM FOR THE
KIDS COLLECTION - REWORK PARTIAL
HEIGHT WALLS, SHELVING, AND STACKS
TO INCREASE SIZE OF SPACE
DEDICATED HERE

DING DING DING lockable storage
cabinets for a/v and
program storage

wall stack
spaces

shift window

self check and printer

assist and
storage,

need floor
power

shipment
table, furniture

only

additional exit
additional exit

operable walls

door change

eliminate wall
and door

ENCLOSABLE PROGRAM SPACE

elminate
built in

seating,
change
shelving

tech
area

furniture work
stations

3 small librarian
offices, 6 x 8.5

door change

change to
office

footprint

if possible
eliminate door

elevator model TBD

add window
adjust windows

final shelving layout
TBD

Page 246 of 358



D
W

18
" M

IN
.

18
" M

IN
.

1. FURNITURE IS SHOWN FOR COORDINATION PURPOSES ONLY - NIC.
2. ALL LIBRARY SHELVING PROVIDED BY KRL - NIC.
3. COORDINATE POWER LOCATIONS W/ MEP.
4. REFERENCE A/V DELIVERABLE FOR EQUIPMENT NOT SHOWN.

5' DIAMETER TURNING SPACE CLEAR FLOOR SPACE
30" X 48" UNO

B

A

2 3

C

5 6 7 8 9 1110 12

A.1

D

E

F

A.2

41.1

B.1

1 11.1

E.1

F.1

ALL GENDER
RESTROOMS

202

LARGE MEETING

203

STAIR 4

S4.2

UPPER LOBBY /
PRE-FUNCTION

201UPPER HALLWAY

205

MEDIUM MEETING

209

SMALL MEETING

210

SMALL MEETING

208

EVENT STOR

211
STAIR 3

S3.2

ELEV MACH

223

ADA RR

215

ADA RR

214

ELEV MACH

217

ELEV 1

E1

ELEV 2

E2

STAIR 1

S1.2

STAIR 2

S2.2

UPPER HALLWAY

216

?

?

PHONE BOOTH

220

PHONE BOOTH

221

PHONE BOOTH

219

STAGING KITCHEN

213

AV

212

PHONE BOOTH

218

COWORKING
SPACE

225

NOTE: ALL FURNITURE IN THIS 
AREA INTENDED TO BE MOVABLE

NOTE: MULTIPLE FURNITURE CONFIGURATIONS 
TO OCCUR IN THIS ROOM. ALL FURNITURE IS 
MOVABLE. FURNITURE TO BE STORED IN EVENT 
STORAGE ROOM WHEN NOT IN USE.

LARGE EVENT
SPACE B

207

LARGE EVENT
SPACE A

206

NOTE: ADDITIONAL 
FURNITURE FOR EVENT 
SPACE STORED IN THIS ROOM

275 FIFTH STREET, SUITE 100
BREMERTON, WA 98337
360-377-8773
RFMARCH.COM

D
R
A
FT

PROJECT #

ISSUE DATE

SHEET #

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AHJ APPROVAL STAMP

D
A

T
E

/ T
IM

E
 P

R
IN

T
E

D
:

9/
30

/2
02

2 
4:

42
:2

2 
P

M
A

ut
od

es
k 

D
oc

s:
//S

K
C

E
C

 (
S

ou
th

 K
its

ap
 C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
 C

en
te

r)
/2

02
00

02
 P

O
C

E
C

 -
 2

02
2.

rv
t

2020002

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

A80.02

FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 2

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

61
9 

B
A

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, P

O
R

T
 O

R
C

H
A

R
D

, W
A

 9
83

66

P
O

R
T

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 C

O
M

M
.

E
V

E
N

T
S

 C
E

N
T

E
R

NOTES & LEGEND - FF&E PLAN

0 16'4' 8'1/8" = 1'-0"1
FF&E PLAN - LEVEL 2

REVISION SCHEDULE

ELEV 2

E2

18" M
IN

.

ELEV MACH

217

ELEVATOR AND MACHINE ROOM

4'-0
10'-0

7'-10"

7'-9"

12'-5"

7'-0

ELEV.̀ No.̀ 2
FRONT

SEE ̀ NOTES ̀ 9̀ &̀ 25
(REF:-PWBO)

C.O.P.

ELEV.̀ No.̀ 1

4'-0̀ CL.̀ OPNG.

5'-8"̀ R.O.

5'-
5̀3

/8"̀
CL

̀C
AR

̀R
AI
LS

̀&

5'-5̀ 9/16"̀ CAR̀ INSIDE

7'-
10̀

15
/16

"̀C
AR

̀IN
SI
DE

7'-9"̀ R.O.̀ @̀ MAIǸ FLOOR
1'-11̀ 1/4"

4'-1̀ 3/16"̀ CL̀ CAR

9̀ 11/16"=À DIM̀ (IF̀ APPLICABLE)

2'-9̀ 1/4"

4"
7'-9"̀ CLEAR̀ HOISTWAY ̀ &̀ PIT

9'-
7"̀

CL
EA

R̀
HO

IS
TW

AY
̀&

̀P
IT

15'-10"̀ TOTAL ̀ HOIS

2'-3̀ 1/2"

7̀ 1/2"

7

5'-9" (MIN. TYP.)
 [1753]3'-0"
 [914] DOOR

ERU (IF REQ'D)

LIGHT SW.
(NOT BY OTIS)

(NOT BY OTIS)VALVE

F
7'-4" (MIN. TYP.)

 [2235]

TROUGHING CUTOUT: 6" [152] x 6" [152]
LOCATION VARIES (NOT BY OTIS)

CLEAR 3'-6"
[1067]

PARTNER OFFICE SPACE

ADD WINDOW

Page 247 of 358



UP

R
E

F
D

W

B

A

2 3

C

5 6 7 8 9 1110 12

A.1

D

E

F

A.2

41.1

B.1

1 11.1

E.1

F.1

PROGRAM

STORAGE

107

OFFICE

119

LOUD WORK

ROOM

117

STAFF RR

113
ALL GENDER

RESTROOMS

104

DATA

114

JAN

112

STAIR 4

S4.1

ELEC ROOM

121

OFFICE

109

VESTIBULE

101EVENT LOAD

123

OFFICE

120
BREAK ROOM

115

ADA RR

111

LIBRARY FLEX

PROGRAM

105

FRIENDS

COLLECTION

103

STAIR 3

S3.1

STOR

116

SPRINKLER

122

FUTURE TENANT

SPACE

124

GENERAL

READING AREA

108

SHARED BUILDING

LOBBY

102

STAIR 1

S1.1

ELEV 1

E1

ELEV 2

E2

OFFICE

110

KIDS READING

AREA

126

TEEN READING

AREA

127

LIBRARY STACKS

128

TECH

129

STAFF WORK

ROOM

118

TWEEN READING

AREA

125

MDF

133

JAN

130

PROGRAM

STORAGE

106
THIS ENTIRE SPACE AVAILABLE

FOR KRL PROGRAMS
 (APPROX 1200 SF)

KRL OFFICE
REVISIONS IN
PROGRESS

STOREFRONT
PROVIDES
VISIBILITY INTO
LIBRARY, ACOUSTIC
SEPARATION FROM
NOISY PROGRAMS,
AND AFTER-HOURS
SECURITY

Page 248 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

1 of 10 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 
THIS Agreement is made effective as of the 29th day of July 2020, by and between the City of Port 

Orchard, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Washington, whose address is: 
 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON   (hereinafter the “CITY”) 

216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
 
Contact:  Mayor Robert Putaansuu   Phone: 360.876.4407 Fax:  360.895.9029 
 
 and Rice Fergus Miller, Inc., a corporation, organized under the laws of the State of Washington, 

doing business at: 
 
275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 
     (hereinafter the “CONSULTANT”) 

  
Contact: Steven M. Rice Phone: 360-377-3778  Fax:______________ 

  
for professional services in connection with the following Project: 
 

The Port Orchard Downtown Community Event Center Project 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. Services by Consultant.   
 

A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit "B." The services performed by the Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work 
without prior written authorization from the City.  In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all 
times comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and regulations applicable to the performance of such 
services.  The Consultant shall perform the services diligently and completely in accordance with 
professional standards of conduct and performance for Consultant’s profession. 

 
B. The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of Work.  

Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall be agreed to by the 
parties and incorporated in written amendments to the Agreement. 
  
2. Schedule of Work. 

 
A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in accordance 

with the tasks identified within Exhibit “B” and the terms of this Agreement.   If delays beyond the 
Consultant's reasonable control occur, the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether an 
extension is appropriate. 

 

Page 249 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller	

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

2 of 10 
 

B. The Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon receipt of a written Notice to 
Proceed. 
3. Terms.  This Agreement shall commence on July 29, 2020 (“Commencement Date”) and shall 

terminate March 31, 2022 unless extended or terminated in writing as provided herein.  The City 

reserves the right to offer two (2) one-year extensions prior to contract expiration to retain 

the selected company’s services. 

 
4. Compensation.  
  LUMP SUM.  Compensation for these services shall be a Lump Sum of $400,000.00. 

ϒ  

 

5. Payment. 

 
A. The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City 

monthly after services have been performed, along with monthly invoices in a format acceptable to the City 
for work performed to the date of the invoice.  

 
B. All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within thirty (30) days of receipt of a proper 

invoice.  If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the Consultant of the same 
within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and 
the parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion. 

 
 C. The Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement available 
for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a longer period is 
required by a third-party agreement.  Copies shall be made available on request.  
 
 D. On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall comply 
with all federal and state laws applicable to independent contractors, including, but not limited to, the 
maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all items of income and expenses of the 
Consultant’s business, pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 51.08.195, as required by law, to 
show that the services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties, which is subject to Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance.   

 
E. If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement, the Consultant will 

correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may withhold payment for such work 
until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.  

 
6. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws  

 
A. The Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed, color, 
national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by federal, state, or 
local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.  

 
B. Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control and 

direct the performance and details of the work authorized under this Agreement, the work must meet the 
approval of the City and shall be subject to the City’s general right of inspection to secure the satisfactory 

Page 250 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

3 of 10 
 

completion thereof.  The Consultant agrees to comply with all federal, state and municipal laws, rules and 
regulations that are now effective or become applicable within the term(s) of this Agreement to the 
Consultant’s business, equipment and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement or 
accruing out of the performance of such operations.    
 

C. The Consultant shall obtain a City of Port Orchard business license prior to commencing 
work pursuant to a written Notice to Proceed. 

 
D. Violation of this Paragraph 6 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for 

cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in whole or in part, and may result 
in ineligibility for further work for the City.  

 
7. Relationship of Parties.  The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will 
be created by this Agreement.  As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade which encompasses the specific service provided to the City hereunder, no agent, employee, 
representative or sub-consultant of the Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, 
representative or sub-consultant of the City.  In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an 
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details of the work, the 
City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.  None of the benefits provided by 
the City to its employees, including but not limited to compensation, insurance, and unemployment 
insurance, are available from the City to the employees, agents, representatives or sub-consultants of the 
Consultant.  The Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this Agreement.  The City may, 
during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to perform the same or similar 
work that the Consultant performs hereunder.   
 

8. Suspension and Termination of Agreement  
 

A. Termination without cause.  This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time for 
public convenience, for the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the Consultant’s assignment for the 
benefit of creditors.  

 
B. Termination with cause.  This Agreement may be terminated upon the default of the 

Consultant and the failure of the Consultant to cure such default within a reasonable time after receiving 
written notice of the default.   

 
C. Rights Upon Termination.   

1. With or Without Cause.  Upon termination for any reason, all finished or unfinished 
documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be submitted to the City, and the Consultant shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for 
any satisfactory work completed prior to the date of termination, not to exceed the total 
compensation set forth herein.  The Consultant shall not be entitled to any reallocation of cost, 
profit or overhead. The Consultant shall not in any event be entitled to anticipated profit on work 
not performed because of such termination. The Consultant shall use its best efforts to minimize 
the compensation payable under this Agreement in the event of such termination.  Upon 
termination, the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or 
otherwise. 

 

Page 251 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus MillerN/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

4 of 10 
 

2. Default.  If the Agreement is terminated for default, the Consultant shall not be 
entitled to receive any further payments under the Agreement until all work called for has been 
fully performed. Any extra cost or damage to the City resulting from such default(s) shall be 
deducted from any money due or coming due to the Consultant. The Consultant shall bear any extra 
expenses incurred by the City in completing the work, including all increased costs for completing 
the work, and all damage sustained, or which may be sustained, by the City by reason of such 
default. 
 
D. Suspension. The City may suspend this Agreement, at its sole discretion.  Any 

reimbursement for expenses incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to the Consultant's reasonable 
expenses, and shall be subject to verification.  The Consultant shall resume performance of services under 
this Agreement without delay when the suspension period ends. 

 
E. Notice of Termination or Suspension.  If delivered to the Consultant in person, termination 

shall be effective immediately upon the Consultant’s receipt of the City’s written notice or such date as 
stated in the City’s notice of termination, whichever is later.  Notice of suspension shall be given to the 
Consultant in writing upon one week's advance notice to the Consultant.  Such notice shall indicate the 
anticipated period of suspension.  Notice may also be delivered to the Consultant at the address set forth in 
Section 15 herein. 
 

9. Standard of Care.  The Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill 
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately accredited and 
licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by the Consultant under 
this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in similar circumstances. 

 
10. Ownership of Work Product.   
 

A. All data, materials, reports, memoranda, and other documents developed under this 
Agreement whether finished or not shall become the property of the City, shall be forwarded to the City at 
its request and may be used by the City as it sees fit. Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to 
paragraph 8 above, all finished or unfinished documents, reports, or other material or work of the Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City.  Any reuse or modification of such documents, 
reports or other material or work of the Consultant for purposes other than those intended by the Consultant 
in its scope of services under this Agreement shall be at the City’s risk. 

B. All written information submitted by the City to the Consultant in connection with the 
services performed by the Consultant under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at 
least the same extent as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business.  If such 
information is publicly available or is already in the Consultant’s possession or known to it, or is rightfully 
obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no responsibility for its disclosure, 
inadvertent or otherwise.  The Consultant is permitted to disclose any such information only to the extent 
required by law, subpoena or other court order. 
  
11. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk.  The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary 
and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents and sub-consultants in the performance of 
the work hereunder, and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose.  All work shall be done at 
the Consultant’s own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss of or damage to materials, 
tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use in connection with the work.   

Page 252 of 358

mwhisenant
Inserted Text

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

5 of 10 
 

 
12. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, 
including all legal costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of 
the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries or damages caused by the sole 
negligence of the City.   
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, 
in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused 
by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers, the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the 
Consultant's negligence.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement.  
 
IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE 
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF 
IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES 
OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE 
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER.   
 

13. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or 
employees. 
 

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 

Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described below: 
 

1.  Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, the policy 
shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

 
 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 

00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall cover 
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors and personal injury 
and advertising injury.  The City shall be named by endorsement as an additional 
insured under the Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City.   

 
3.  Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington.  
 
4.  Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 

 
B. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 

 

Page 253 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller	

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

6 of 10 
 

Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.   
 

3. Workers’ Compensation Employer’s Liability each accident $1,000,000, Employer’s 
Liability Disease each employee $1,000,000, and Employer’s Liability Disease – 
Policy Limit $1,000,000. 
 

4. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 
per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
C. Other Insurance Provisions 

 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for 
Automobile Liability, Professional Liability (as to Sections C.2 and C.4), and Commercial 
General Liability insurance:  

 
1. The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  

Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall 
be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
2. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any policy cancellation, 

within two business days of their receipt of such notice.   
 

3. The City will not waive its right to subrogation against the Consultant. The 
Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed acknowledging that the City will not waive 
their right to subrogation. The Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to waive the 
right of subrogation against the City, or any self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage 
maintained by the City. 
 
 

4. If any coverage is written on a “claims made” basis, then a minimum of a three (3) year 
extended reporting period shall be included with the claims made policy, and proof of 
this extended reporting period provided to the City.   

  
D. Acceptability of Insurers  

 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

 

E. Verification of Coverage 
 

The Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, 
evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 
 

Page 254 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



Page 255 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

8 of 10 
 

 B. Modification.  No waiver, alteration, modification of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and 
the Consultant.  
 
 C. Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.  If any 
provision of this Agreement is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of 
any other provision.   
 
 D. Entire Agreement.  The written provisions of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits 
attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative of the City, 
and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or altering 
in any manner whatsoever, the Agreement or the Agreement documents.  The entire agreement between 
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and the Exhibits 
attached hereto, which may or may not have been dated prior to the execution of this Agreement.  All of 
the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and form the Agreement document as fully 
as if the same were set forth herein.  Should any language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement conflict 
with any language contained in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.   
 
18.  Title VI 

The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 
42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation 
subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the 
Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, must affirmatively insure that its contracts 
comply with these regulations. 

Therefore, during the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest agrees as follows:  

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Consultant will comply with the Acts and the Regulations 
relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time to 
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.  

2. Nondiscrimination: The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during this 
Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 
disability, income-level, or LEP in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant will not participate directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations as set forth in 
Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, including employment 
practices when this Agreement covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 
49 C.F.R. part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be 
performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each 
potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s 

Page 256 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
n/a

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



Page 257 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard and __________ 

Public Works Project No. _________ 

Professional Service Agreement Contract No. ________ 
S:\2020002 South Kitsap Community Event Center\2-Admin\Contract\RFM Agreement\MASTER 2018 Prof Svcs Agreement SEC 1.29.18 (with SEC edits) 7.18.19 - STAN EDITS (Charlotte 

A. Archer) FINAL.docx  Rev 7/18/2019 

10 of 10 
 

APPENDIX A 

During the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not 
limited to:  

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:  

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U .S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21.  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 
U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been 
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of sex);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U .S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age);  

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC§ 471, Section 4 7123), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs 
or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub- 
recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);  

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis 
of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places 
of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as 
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38;  

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);  

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and 
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;  

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination 
because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take 
reasonable steps to -ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. 
Reg. at 74087 to 74100);  

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).  

 

Page 258 of 358

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
Rice Fergus Miller

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
N/A

mwhisenant
Typewritten Text
066-20



275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 Bremerton, WA 98337 

(360) 377-8773 rfmarch.com 

 

 

1 of 5 

SOUTH KITSAP COMMUNITY EVENT CENTER 

DRAFT SCOPE OF WORK PREPARED BY RFM  

PRESENTED TO CITY OF PORT ORCHARD JULY 1, 2020 

 

This document is in response to TASK 1 and TASK 2 of the “PFD ILA Third Draft (with NB and 

SEC edits) 10.30.19 (2). 

 

ILA TASK 1 
+ 

ILA TASK 2 
= “PHASE 1” SCOPE OF WORK PER RFQ 

RFM PHASE 1A RFM PHASE 1B 

 

• Provides road map for logical sequence of scope pieces -- site selection, programming 

for space needs, and concept building design   

• Identifies logical midpoint of combined consultant-supplied design services in response 

to City’s desire to proceed sequentially. 

• Provides the ability to explore and potentially augment space needs with beneficial 

uses not currently identified in ILA. 

• Tailors public outreach and acknowledges need for outreach to master plan 

stakeholders 

• Adds activities and deliverables desired by the City now: 

o Test multiple site options (up to three) with conceptual design for suitability 

and quality of outcomes at each site 

o Produce one schematic design (not three) based on agreed upon space program 

at selected site 

o Provide Preliminary CEC Monetary Operational Feasibility Report 

o Coordinate project attributes to City of Port Orchard’s consultant performing 

Downtown Subarea Plan 

• This draft scope does not (yet) address required deliverables for the purposes of this 

discussion but assumes they are pursuant to how activities are split between RFM 

Phase 1A and Phase 1B 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT B - REVISED 7/29/20

Page 259 of 358



South Kitsap Community Center 

RFM Scope of Work_DRAFT 

July 2, 2020 

 

 

2 of 5 

RFM PHASE 1A:  

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 

 

DEFINE THE PROJECT IN BASIC TERMS & REACH PRELIMINARY DESIGN PACKAGE 

(APPROX. 15% OVERALL; APPROX 30% SCHEMATIC DESIGN) 

 

Draft Management Plan 

• Assist City to produce Draft Management Plan. 

• Determine design team level of responsibility for project management; fit for City 

• Discuss preliminary project budget creation and responsibility for maintenance. 

• Discuss project timeline and milestone deliverables 

• Determine frequency of meetings and get them scheduled ahead on calendars 

 

Establish Goals and Objectives 

• City of Port Orchard (COPO) 

• Kitsap Regional Library (KRL) 

• Kitsap Public Facilities District (KPFD) 

• Other Key Stakeholders (Kitsap Bank, Port Of Bremerton, Sound West Group, 

Kitsap Transit, etc.) 

 

Public Outreach & Communication 

• Initiate public outreach for site attributes and for space needs 

• Restart continuous communication platforms 

• Get public outreach meetings scheduled ahead on calendars 

 

Space Programming/Needs Assessment 

• Conduct space & site programming  

o With Kitsap Regional Library for library  

o With Columbia Hospitality for event center 

o With other identified key stakeholders (Kitsap Bank, City Of Port Orchard, 

etc.) 

o With public and user groups via outreach 

o For other uses the design team may promote 

• Prepare Draft Space Programming Report 

 

Site Analysis & Selection 

• Identify approximately three sites for consideration 

• Conduct factfinding: utilities, preliminary geotechnical, preliminary environmental, 

zoning, shorelines, etc. 

• Prepare comparison matrix: ownership, opportunities and restrictions, attributes 

for CEC program, developable envelope, ability to catalyze other development, 

ability to boost property values and merchant business, parking, access and 

transportation, etc. 

EXHIBIT B - REVISED 7/29/20

Page 260 of 358



South Kitsap Community Center 

RFM Scope of Work_DRAFT 

July 2, 2020 

 

 

3 of 5 

• Develop preliminary design scheme (building and site concept) in order to test 

each site; describe and contrast outcomes (performance vs. goals and objectives, 

layout, function, other benefits); determine preferred alternative.  

EXHIBIT B - REVISED 7/29/20

Page 261 of 358



South Kitsap Community Center 

RFM Scope of Work_DRAFT 

July 2, 2020 

 

 

4 of 5 

RFM PHASE 1B:  

SCHEMATIC DESIGN 

 

FURTHER DEFINE THE PROJECT, PROVIDE PRELIMINARY OPERATIONAL 

FEASIBILITY & REACH SCHEMATIC DESIGN PACKAGE (APPROX. 25% OVERALL; 

xx% SCHEMATIC DESIGN) 

 

Market Analysis, Financial Viability, and Risk Assessment  

• Conduct event center analysis with market information and preliminary 

operational feasibility report 

• Produce City Of Port Orchard portion of the feasibility study report. 

 

Public Outreach & Communication 

• Continue public outreach for preferred alternative 

• Maintain continuous communication platforms 

 

Space Programming/Needs Assessment  

• Review Kitsap Public Facilities District feasibility study report findings; finalize 

space programing as needed. 

• Verify/confirm space needs and shared use scenarios with building users and key 

stakeholders. 

• Provide Preliminary CEC Monetary Operational Feasibility Report 

 

Site Analysis  

• Prepare technical report to inform architectural and site design. 

o Final geotechnical, final utilities capacity, preliminary storm drainage report  

o Level 2 environmental, if needed  

o Biological Evaluation 

o Topographic Survey 

o Archeological and Cultural Resources Report including inadvertent 

discovery plan 

• Provide shorelines mitigation and preliminary engineering report. 

 

Property Ownership/Master Plan 

• Assist City to work with public and private entities to determine ownership of the 

CEC property and proposed building. 

• Update proposed Master Plan (?)  

• Coordinate project attributes to City Of Port Orchard’s consultant performing 

Downtown Subarea Plan. 

 

Schematic Design   

• Based on updated program information and feedback from the public and City 

Council, further develop preferred alternative preliminary design scheme (building 

and site) to approximate __% schematic level   

EXHIBIT B - REVISED 7/29/20

Page 262 of 358



South Kitsap Community Center 

RFM Scope of Work_DRAFT 

July 2, 2020 

 

 

5 of 5 

• Provide schematic level cost estimate and present to the City Council. 

 

 

Task 2 City Council Action.  City to review preferred alternative with public entities and 
decide whether to accept additional $600,000 (estimated) for Task 3.  
 
 
Notes: 

 

Design Team fees support inherent management responsibilities, including meetings.   

 

EXHIBIT B - REVISED 7/29/20

Page 263 of 358



SOUTH KITSAP COMMUNITY EVENT CENTER JULY  10, 2020

FEES PER KPFD-CPO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

ILA

TASK

RFQ

TASK

RFM

PHASE
CONSULTANTS

PROPOSED

FEE
DURATION TASKS DELIVERABLES

ARCH

TRANSPORTATION 

STRUCTURAL 

CIVIL

SURVEY 

SHORELINE

GEOTECH 

ENVIRONMENTAL

BIOLOGIST

HOSPITALITY

1.4 1.2.3

ARCH

LANDSCAPE

STREETSCAPE 

TRANSPORTATION

STRUCTURAL

CIVIL 

SURVEY 

SHORELINE

GEOTECH

HOSPITALITY

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

ENVIRONMENTAL

BIOLOGIST

ARCHAEOLOGICAL

CULTURAL

COST ESTIMATING

2 1.2.9

$200,000

PER ILA/RFQ

9-12 MONTHS

PROPOSED

7 MONTHS

$200,000

PER ILA/RFQ

6-9 MONTHS

PROPOSED

9 MONTHS

CITY COUNCIL & KPFD SITE SELECTION:  MARKET ANALYSIS, FINANCIAL VIABILITY & RISK ASSESSMENT

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  FEASIBILITY STUDY TO START ILA TASK 3

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACT

DRAFT MANAGEMENT PLAN

PUBLIC OUTREACH REPORT

SPACE PROGRAMMING REPORT

(3) SITE ASSESSMENT ALTERNATIVES WITH     

      DESIGN CONCEPT FOR EACH

HIGH LEVEL TRAFFIC, GEOTECH, STRUCTURAL, 

      SURVEY, SHORELINE, GEOTECH, 

      ENVIRONMENTAL AND BIOLOGIST 

      NARRATIVES FOR EACH SITE ALTERNATIVE

INVESTIGATIVE REPORTS FOR SELECTED SITE:

      ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

      PRELIM STORMWATER DRAINAGE REPORT

      PRELIM GEOTECH REPORT

      BIOLOGICAL EVALUATION

      TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY & CRITICAL AREAS

      SHORELINE CODE ANALYSIS

      ARCHAEOLOGICAL & CULTURAL RESOURCES   

            REPORT (INCLUDING INADVERTENT 

            DISCOVERY PLAN)

      UTILITIES CAPACITY EVALUATION 

            (WATER/SEWER)

      TRAFFIC REPORT

PRELIMINARY SCHEMATIC DESIGN 

      CONCEPT PLANS

      COST ESTIMATE

      SPACE PROGRAMMING & PUBLIC OUTREACH 

            REPORT

SCHEMATIC DESIGN AND SITE PLAN

DRAFT SCOPE FOR ILA TASK 3

1

1.1

1.2.1

1.2.2

2

1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.2.8

1A

1B

PROJECT PLANNING

ESTABLISH GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

COORDINATE EXISTING MASTER 

PLANNING EFFORTS

REVIEW HISTORICAL PUBLIC INPUT

PUBLIC OUTREACH

SPACE PROGRAMMING

NEEDS ASSESSMENT

CONCEPT PLANNING

HIGH LEVEL SITE ASSESSMENT

REVIEW KPFD'S FEASIBILITY REPORT

PUBLIC OUTREACH

SPACE PROGRAMMING

NEEDS ASSESSMENT

INVESTIGATION OF SELECTED SITE

PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/MASTER PLAN

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

DETERMINE SCOPE FOR ILA TASK 3

EXHIBIT B

Page 264 of 358



 
 
 
 
 

275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 
Phone: (360) 377-8773 
rfmarch.com 

 

  

2020 Hourly Billing Rates 

Date of Proposal:  

Project:  

Project No.:  

 
The hourly billing rates shall be annually adjusted in accordance with normal salary review practices 
of Rice Fergus Miller. 
 

Principal in Charge:  $ 275.00 

Senior Planner:  $ 175.00 - $ 275.00 

Project Manager:  $ 130.00 - $ 190.00 

Project Architect:  $ 120.00 - $ 190.00 

Staff Architect:  $ 125.00 - $ 160.00 

Project Designer:  $ 115.00 - $ 190.00 

Staff Designer:  $ 115.00 - $ 155.00 

Interior Designer:  $   90.00 - $ 160.00 

Technical Designer:  $   95.00 - $ 155.00 

Production Support:  $   85.00 - $ 155.00 

Graphics Visualization:  $ 115.00 - $ 125.00 

Project Coordinator:  $   80.00 - $ 120.00 

Administrative Support Staff:  $   80.00 - $ 120.00 

 

EXHIBIT B

Page 265 of 358



SOUTH KITSAP COMMUNITY EVENTS CENTER

PHASE 1 PROPOSED SCHEDULE

YEAR 

MONTH JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

WEEK STARTING DATE 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 1 8 15 22 29

ILA

TASK

RFQ

TASK

RFM

PHASE

1.1 PROJECT PLANNING

7/21 CITY STUDY SESSION - CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

7/28 CITY BUSINESS SESSION - CONTRACT APPROVAL

1.2.1 
PUBLIC OUTREACH & 

PROGRAMMING

1.2.2
SITE ASSESSMENT & 

CONCEPT PLAN

12/15 CONCEPT DESIGN PRESENTATION

1.4 1.2.3

1.2.4
REVIEW KPFD 

FEASIBILITY REPORT

1.2.5

ASSESS SITE 

ALTERNATIVES FOR 

OWNERSHIP

1.2.6
FINAL SITE 

INVESTIGATION

1.2.7 
PRELIMINARY 

SCHEMATIC DESIGN 

COST ESTIMATES

PUBLIC OUTREACH

1.2.8 SCHEMATIC DESIGN

2 1.2.9

DESIGN MEETINGS

2020 2021 2022

RFM PHASE 1A

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

RFM PHASE 1B

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
MAXIMUM SCHEDULE VARIANCE

C
IT

Y
/
K

P
F

D
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

1
/
1

2
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

C
IT

Y
/
K

P
F

D
 F

E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y

T
O

 S
T

A
R

T
 I

L
A

 T
A

S
K

 3

1 1A

CITY/KPFD SITE SELECTION

2 1B

CITY FEASIBILITY STUDY TO START ILA TASK 3

EXHIBIT B

Page 266 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8K Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: Fathoms O’ Fun Festival 54th Grand  City Clerk 
 Parade       Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a special event application for the Fathoms O’ Fun Festival 54th Grand Parade, 
scheduled for Saturday, June 24, 2023. The application state’s the following: 

 
EVENT: 54th Fathoms O’ Fun Annual Grand Parade 
TYPE:  Parade 
DATE(S): Saturday, June 24, 2023 
TIME: Setup starts 1:45 p.m., open to public at 6:00 p.m. until approximately 7:45 p.m. with 

teardown completed by 8:00 p.m. 
LOCATION: Downtown Port Orchard 
CLOSURE(S):  Port Orchard Boulevard (1:45pm to 7:30pm); Bay Street/SR166, from Port Orchard 

Boulevard through Bethel Road (5:30pm to 7:45pm) 
 

The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring safety 
measures and traffic control are in place.  
 
The applicant is requesting closure of Bay Street/SR166 and several side streets. They are working with 
WSDOT for their approval. In the meantime, pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.050(4), staff 
shall bring forward the special event application to the City council for approval when the event requires 
a street or highway closure. 
 
Staff are in support of the highway and road closures as presented and are continuing to work on the 
final details of the event with the applicant, ensuring the highway and street closures are to the safety 
and traffic control standards outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 

Page 267 of 358



Business Item 8K 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for 54th Fathoms O’ Fun Annual Grand 
Parade event, scheduled for Saturday, June 24, 2023, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments 

Page 268 of 358



Page 269 of 358



Page 270 of 358



Page 271 of 358



Page 272 of 358



Page 273 of 358



Page 274 of 358



Page 275 of 358



Page 276 of 358



Page 277 of 358



Page 278 of 358



Page 279 of 358



Page 280 of 358



Page 281 of 358



Traffic Control and Detour Plan 
Grand Parade

Fathoms O' Fun

June 3, 2022

NTS

Drawn By:

Date:

Scale:

LEGEND:
Detour Route
Uniformed Police OfficerP
Water Barrier

Local Traffic Only Sign

Event VolunteerV

SR 166 Closure

N

LTO
Businesses Open SignBO

Parade Check-InCheck in

Start of ParadeStart

End of ParadeEnd

I

I

V
Check in

EndBO

RTO Right Turn Only Sign

Note: Road Closed
Ahead sign to be placed
at Olney Road and Bay
Street East

Type III Barrier x2

I

P

Integrity Flagger

G

Portable Toilet

Gabage Can

Type: III

Type: III

Type: III

Type: III

Type: III

Ty
pe

: I
II

Ty
pe

: I
II

I

Type: III

Start

Integrity Truck

Type: III

Start

Start

Type: III

Type: III

Start

City/PoB ToiletR

R

R

R

P P P

H Portable Toilet - Handi

H H
P

P

P P

P

P

P
P

P

P

P

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G G

G G

GG

GG

G

G

South Kitsap Mall 
Float Trailors & 

Support Vehicles

Bethany Lutheran 
Float Set Up

Staging Area - Port Orchard Blvd.

Gravity Coffee/
NOVUS Glass 
Horse & Trailor 
Parking Area

Shuttle Stop #3

Shuttle Stop #2

WMP 
Shuttle Stop #1

Type: III

SEA Sepcial Event Ahead Sign

RCA

DA

Road Closed Ahead Sign

Detour Ahead Sign

SEA

RCA

DR

DA

RTO

Detour Right Sign

D
R

D
R

RT
O

No Left Turn / Block Turn 
Lane

SEA RCA

DA

SEA
RCA
DA

500' between signs 
with DA Sign at 

Mitchell Ave.

No Right Turn / Block Turn 
Lane

Note: Eastbound 
Tremont W has (2) 
through lanes and (1) 
left turn lane at 
intersection with Port 
Orchard Blvd. Left turn 
lane will be blocked.

Note: See Enlarged 
Intersection for details 
of SW Bay St./166, Port 
Orchard Blvd. and High 
Street.

Note: See Enlarged 
Intersection for details 
of Bay St./166, Bay St, 
Bethel Ave. and Maple 
Ave.

Start
DL Detour Left Sign

DL

DL

Start

Type: III

I

Start

Start

RTO

RCA

RCA

D
L

Page 282 of 358



Page 283 of 358



Page 284 of 358



Page 285 of 358



Page 286 of 358



Page 287 of 358



Page 288 of 358



Page 289 of 358



Page 290 of 358



Page 291 of 358



Page 292 of 358



Page 293 of 358



Page 294 of 358



Page 295 of 358



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Crrv oF PoRT Oncreno
Public Works Director
z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA g8g66
Voice: (S6o)BZ6-q99r o Fax: (S6o) 8Z6-+g8o
mdorsey@ cityofportorchard.us
www. cityofportorchard.us

SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION REVIEW

City Clerk's Office

Tony Lang - Public Works Director

April S,2o2g

RE Special Event Application - Fathoms Grand Parade zo23

In response to the above-referenced Special Event Application dated January gr,2o2g,
the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department has the following comments that
need to be met prior to approval:

Road Closures: An updated Traffic Control Plan needs to be submitted showing the
appropriate modifications have been implemented on the plan based on Public Works
comments from last year. The current TCP submitted still shows comments from last
year. No modifications to the TCP have been implemented in the plan.

Event volunteers and/or flaggers shall not abandon their designated posts unless
appropriately relieved from responsibility by another volunteer or flagger for the entire
length of the event. Bay St shall remain closed until confirmation has been received that
there are no obstructions remaining on Bay St. that may pose a hazard to motorists,
vendors, gpectators, and participants.

Sanitation Control and Cleaninq: Placement of the garbage dumpster in Lot 3 shall
require a Street Use Permit.

U:\l_Adminstrotion\D_AdminProgroms&lnitioiives\EVENTS\Grond Porode - Fothoms\2023
Page 296 of 358



1 890

oLlc
Ponr Oncuano Pouce DnpenrMENT

Senvrcs . HoNon. INTEGRTTY

MEMORANDUM

T0: Brondy Wolluce, City (lerk

FR0M: Molt Brown, (hief of Police

SUBJtfi: 2023 - Folhoms 54rh Grqnd Porode

DATE: April 3,2023

There are no additional safety concerns with the special event plan for the Fathoms 54tl'Grand
Parade. The police department will develop an internal operations plan to manage public safety
the 3,000 spectators and participants anticipated to attend the event.

The following conditions need to be met before final approval:

F.vent organizers, traffic control staff, and involved city Departments must meet in-
person at least once during the planning process to discuss finaltraffic and public safety
plans.

Event organizers must provide cellular phone numbers for all lead contact persons
involved with the event and with traffic control.
Event organizers must develop a plan with downtown businesses to accommodate
employees affected by the street closure.

a

a

Page I of I

Page 297 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Dayna Katu la < Dayna.Katu la @ kitsappublichealth.org >

Monday, March 27, 2023 12:58 PM

Brandy Wallace

RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Hi Brandy,

Approve

Thanks!

Dayna Katula, RS I Program Manager
Food & Living Environment Program
Kitsap Public Health District
345 5tn St., Suite 300 | Bremerton, WA 98337
(3601728-2301 office I (360) 633-9018 cell I (3601728-2235 Main
Davna. Katu la (o kitsappublichealth.ors I kitsappublichealth.ore

x

x

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwallace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March t7,2023 3:28 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gow; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<Dayna. Katula @kitsappublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofbreme rton.org>
Subject: RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

x

IWARNING | : Were you expecting this email? lt originated from outside the Health District and contains a linl< or
attachment. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have been waiting to receive this email. lf you are unsure
please contact lT.

Page 298 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Angela Garcia

Monday, April 3, 202310:29 AM
Brandy Wallace

RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Brandy,

No comments from me on this one.

Thanks,

Angela Garcia CBO/CFM

Deputy Director Community Development
Building Official/Fire Code Official
City of Port Orchard
(360) 874-3L30

Please note that my email address has changed to aqarcia@portorchardwa.gov . Please update your address book
accordingly.

Please make official submittals to the Permit Center at permitcenter@portorchardwa.gov to ensure maintenance of an

accurate Record.

From : Bra ndy Wa I lace < bwa I lace @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: Friday, March t7,2023 3:28 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ portofbremerto n.org>

Subject: RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Looks like the original files were to big to send as is. I am resending in a Zip file in hopes you can receive them

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
www. porto rcha rdwa.gov

1

Page 299 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Business Licensing

Tuesday, March 21,2023 2:29 PM

Brandy Wallace; Tony Lang; Dan Schoonmaker; Angela Garcia; Josie Rademacher;

Business Licensing; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell; Dayna Katula

Chris Esguerra; Matt Brown;Jenine Floyd; Kathy Garcia

RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

No comment, they have an active City license.

Thank you,

Susan Unser

Accounting Assistant ll
City of Port Orchard
16 Prospect Street
Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360)874-ss2s I p6O) 89s-9029 FAX

Please visit our website at https://portorchardwa.gov/

From : Bra ndy Wa I lace < bwa I lace @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: Friday, March L7,2023 3:28 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gow; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy G a rcia <kathyg @ po rtofbrem e rton.org>
Subject: RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Looks like the originalfileswere to big to send as is. lam resending in a Zip file in hopes you can receive them.

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
www. porto rcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911.

1

Pleose consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Page 300 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>

Friday, March 24,2023 3:35 PM

Brandy Wallace

Sonya Zierden
FW: [EXTERNAL] RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Parade Details and Maps Reduced size.zip

Kitsap Transit has no issues with the proposed parade. Our last bus departs the PO Ferry terminal at 5:30pm and need

access through before they closure similar to last year.

Kevin Futrell, f D
Kitsap Transit, Transit Service Planner

360-478-6224 (office)

lntraoffice Ext, 1004

360-900-7095 (cell)

From: B ra ndy Wa I lace <bwa I lace @ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: March L7,2023 3:28 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna. katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ portofbremerton.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Looks like the original files were to big to send as is. I am resending in a Zip file in hopes you can receive them.

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
www. po rtorcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911.

Pleose consider the environment before printing this e-mqil.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notify the sender via e-

mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

Page 301 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Hurguy, Josh <jhurguy@skfr.org >

Friday, March 24,202311:34 AM
Brandy Wallace

Goodwin, Cody
RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Good morning, Brandy,

SKFR has no concerns with this event. We will need some space dedicated for unit staging in the area of Sidney and Bay,

north and south of the intersection, which has been handled via incident planning in conjunction with POPDfor past

events. We will have a bike team on hand, and I imagine we will be staffing up the EOC at Station 31 with PD again.

Thanks,

Josh

From: Bra ndy Wa I lace < bwa I lace @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March, IT,2023 3:28 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; Prevention <Prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofb rem e rton.o rg>

Subject: RE: Special Event - Fathoms 54th Grand Parade

Looks like the original files were to big to send as is. I am resending in a Zip file in hopes you can receive them.

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
httos://lin k.edsepi lot.com/s/eceOa8c4/L5wJ 2 i E u oGoSi Lw?u= htto://www. oo rtorcha rdwa.sov/

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 91-1.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-moil.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notify the sender via e-

mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

Page 302 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8L Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: South Kitsap 2023 Graduation  City Clerk 
 Cruise       Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a Special Event application for the South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise, 
scheduled for Friday, June 9, 2023. The application state’s the following: 

 
EVENT:           South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise 
TYPE:               Parade of Cars 
DATE(S):           Friday, June 9, 2023 
TIME: Setup starts on 6/9 at 6:30PM, Cruise will start at 7PM until approximately 8:30PM 
LOCATION: Downtown Port Orchard Bay Street/SR166 
CLOSURE(S):  Orchard Avenue, Port Street, Frederick Avenue, Sidney, Port Orchard Blvd, Parts of 

Kitsap Street and Cline Avenue and parking lots 1 and 2. 
 

The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring safety 
measures and traffic control are in place.  
 
The applicant is requesting closure of Bay Street/SR166 and several side streets. They are working with 
WSDOT for their approval. In the meantime, pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.050(4), staff 
shall bring forward the special event application to the City council for approval when the event requires 
a street or highway closure. 
 
Staff is in support of the highway and road closures as presented and is continuing to work on the final 
details of the event with the applicant, ensuring the highway and street closures are to the safety and 
traffic control standards outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 
 

Page 303 of 358



Business Item 8L 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for the South Kitsap 2023 Graduation 
Cruise event, scheduled for Friday, June 9, 2023, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments 

Page 304 of 358



H

Sprcrnl Evrrur PeRMtr ApplrcRnoru
(Ponr OncxnRo Murrrrqpnl Cooe 5.94 aruo 5.95)

sTANDARD PRocEssrNG rer: Sso.oo

Event Overview

Event Details

Name of event: South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise
Location of event: Downtown port Orchard

Type of Event: lk/Run e ndor Fair ncert

D Block Party tr Othe Car Cruise

Event or Organization Website

TBD

Description of event:

Graduation Car Cruise for the graduating South Kitsap High School Class of 2023

Set Up Starts: Take Down Complete:

Start Day:

Friday
Start Date:

61912023
Start Time:

6:30PM
End Day:

Friday
End Date:

619t2023
End Time:
9:00PM

Event Dates/Times: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees Expected Daily Attendance:
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Day:

Friday
Date:

619t2023
Start Time:

7:00PM
End Time

8:30PM 200 300 8

Day Date Start Time: End Time

Day Date Start Time: End Time

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for additional days or details)

Certified flaggers will be used at required locations. Volunteers to assist as needed

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/202j

Page 3 of 12

Page 305 of 358



Does your event require a paid fee for participants and/or spectators?
lves

Does your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators? lv"t ,/ tlo

Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s)

$o

Admission Fees:

Orga nization I nformation *

*Pleose note the organizotion informotion provided moy be shored lor inquires mode on event detqils

lnsurance

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the
City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

s1,000,000 tia bility; s1,000,000 Bodily I nj u ry

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure.hubinternational.com/.

Parking Impacts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? no M ruot npplicable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)? You may submit a map to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below.

Parallel Street Parking will only be impacted. Marina, Street, and Public Parking are still

Name of Organization Whiskey Gulch CoffeePub
Do you have an active City Business License? {Y"' o What is your UBI number? 603126597
Point of Contact Name Eric Worden / Kim Shaw / Robert McGee (360-710-6321)

Street Address:

2065 Bay Street

Mailing Address: (if different from s!reet address)

PO BOX 594

City: porl Orchard State:1ry4 Zip: 99366 citY: potl orchard State: zip
98366

Phone: 360-71 0-9025 Alternate Phone: 360-516-371 Email: 5r"uSeeclean@gmail.com

available through Harrison for use and transit access

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/70/2023

Page 4 ol 12Page 306 of 358



Use of City Streets and/or Stdte Highwoy

STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (most common is Bay Street/SR166)? lZ'", I'o
lf yes, which highway: lTaay street/sR 166 Sedgwick Road Hill Drive

For Stste Highway Closures, the sponsoring orgonizotion must submit the opplicotion to the city at least 720 colendor doys
before the event dote, lJpon city opprovol of the event, the sponsoring orgonizdtion sholl seek permission from the Wdshington
State Depdrtment of Tronsportqtion (WSDO| by completing an online opplicotion. Once permission is gronted from WSDOT,

d copy of the Letter of Acknowledgment or on Agreement will need to be provided to the city 45 days prior to the event.
WSDOT's online opplicotion is locoted oa https://www.wsdot.wa,eov/contact/events/special-events

CITY PROPERTY/STREETS (Right-of-wavl: Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94,020(7) states "Right-of-way (RoW)" means

any road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public travel and

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof
which are designated as portions of the state highway system,"

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property/ right-of-way? ZJt", I*"
lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply)

City Park(s):

Zee Park McCormick Turner Rockwell Park
age Park ParkIt:ul Powers

rk I Park ivens Park

Lot 1: between Orchard and Frederick streets on the north side of Bay Street

Lot 2: between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay St.

Lot 3: five rows of parking west of Harrison Ave and east of and parallel to the library

Lot 4: all parking east of Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west ofthe Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City Hall property in front of the,Police department

Lot 6: abutting the landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb St intersection

Lot 7: all parking spaced located on the library property which is limited to library staff only

Lot 8: employee parking lot east of City Hall adjacent to Prospect Alley which is between Kitsap Street and Prospect
Street.

Sidewalks will be open for public viewing and use to businesses

Parking Lot(s):

Sidewalk(s)

{

Parking lots to be utilized by spectators prior to event.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/202j

Page 5 of 12
Page 307 of 358



Street(s): Bay Street between Harrison and Kitsap. Approx. event time 60-90minutes

lf requesting street or highwqy closure, lill out the "Detoils of Closure" section below ond provide a troffic control plon of
the ored impacted.

Traffic Control Plan

A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closures and must be submitted with this application.
See example Site Plan. The following is required to be on the plan(s):

V
n

Detour route(s) n and Bicycle routes

Signs/Barriers: How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, who is putting them up, who will be taking them

down, etc.

Certified flaggers: how many will there be, where will they be stationed, what time will they be there, what time will

they be gone, etc.

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to manage the road closures, provide the following
information:

Details of Closure(s):

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 6 of 12

fZuotunr""rs: how many, where, how long, etc.

Name of the Traffic control company: Sound pacific Construction
Point of Contact Name:

Trissa White

Phone:

253-514-6226

Alternate Phone: Email:

trissa@sou nd pacificconst.com

Street Name: Between
/rrnc< <iraail.

And
lrrncc cfroail.

Start Date: Start Time End Date End Time:

Bay St. Kitsap Cline 61912023 6:30pm 619t2023 9:00pm

Bay St. Frederick Harrison il il il

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use.)

See site plan for access restrictions to Bay from Orchard, Frederick, Sydney, Robert Geiger

Page 308 of 358



Al coh ol Sa le s/Se rvi ce s

The sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board (WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees for alcohol

sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit. Visit the WSLCB website, https://lcb.wa.eov/ for
additional information and to apply for the appropriate license / Permit.

Will alcohol be sold or consumed at your event? Z*o
*lf yes, you must contqct the Washington Stote Liquor and Canndbis Boord for o speciol liquor license.

Food Soles/Service

You will need to reoch out to the Kitsap Public Heqlth District as they may require a temporory lood establishment permit.
Visit their website qt https:/lkitsappublichedlth.ora/FoodSafetv/food vendors.php or call (360) 728-2235 lor informotion.

Will your event have any food service and/or Zln" tf yes, how many:

Zln" tf yes, how many:

Zln. tf yes, how many:

Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:

An operotlonol permit is required for mobile food preporotion vehicles equipped with opplionces thot
produce smoke or grease-loden vopors or utilize LP-gos systems or CNG systems. Contoct Community
Development.

Food Truck Safetv Handout
Mobili Food Preparation Vehicle Permit Apolication

Garboge ond Recycling

Will your event have professional catering?

Will your event have food truck(s)?

a

a

Collection Stations: How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

errbrg" 00Recycle

Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or will it be managed by a vendor?

Self-Haul List vendor/company, if applicable:

Detail your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood:

There is no waste anticipated for this event. Local businesses will be patronized

City garbage cans are available for incidental refuse

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

PageT of !2

Page 309 of 358



Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be available to the public for your event: See Site Plan

Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amount of users recommended in the FEMA Speciol Events

Contingency Plonning: Job Aids Manuol.

No. of users (50% male and50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets

Up to 240 3

250 to 499 4

500 to 900 6

1,000 to 1,999 12

2,000 to 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Master Multi-Vendor Event License

willyour event have vendors?flv", fZuo
lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event? 

0

lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ or food? [Yes Eho - lf you indicated Yes, please see the Food section on Page

4 of this application.

POMC 5,96, if your event hqs two or more vendors engaged in public property vending, you ore required to have o Master
Multi-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVEL fee is $t5.00 per doy or $200 per month. POMC 5.96.020(3)(q) stotes the
sponsor ol the master event sholl provide o list oI porticipdting vendors, their business nqmes, their addresses ond their Stote

Tax Revenue ldentilication Numbers to the city clerk within three working doys after the first doy of the operation,

. No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

r Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.
o Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed
each day along with vending devices.

r Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The
location shall be deemed the vending site.

r Utility service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the
adjacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the
sidewalk.

r No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.
r A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet, Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on which
the vending device stands.

. lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising
signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

o No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
*,r"iy;'{,"?,,1

Page 310 of 358



Tents

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size: Does the tent have sides? E Yes E no E ruot applicable

Moy be required to obtqin o permit per POMC 20.200,076,Pp1ease contact Community Development (360) 574-5533,

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary signs? EYes flrrro

POMC 20.732.290'"lemporary sign" (which may include special event sign) means any sign that is used temporarily and is
not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, including any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent
support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials including, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh products of
less than 2O-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products without polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or drawn
with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs mdde of any other materials shall be considered permanent and are subject to the
permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (360) 874-5533 if
you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

Amplified Sound

Does your event have any amplified sound?

Noise levels generoted sholl not be in excess of allowoble levels, consistent with POMC 9.24.050. For more informotion
pleose contact the Port Orchsrd Police Depqrtment (360) 876-1700.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 9 of 12

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sound below

Day

6t9t2023
Date:
6t9t2023

Start Time
6:30pm

End Time:
9:00pm

Day Date: Start Time: tnd ltme:

Day Date Start Time: End Time:

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.g., 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background music, etc.)

Music and DJ PA / Stage at the Brick House 2nd Floor Deck (714 Bay Street)

Describe what equipment will be used for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps)

PA / Music Speakers
Describe schematics and direction of amplified sound (show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed

See site plan

Page 311 of 358



DETOUR

AHEADROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

ROAD

CLOSED

DETOUR

D
E
TO

U
R

DETOUR

DETOUR

DETOUR

D
E

T
O

U
R

DETOUR

DETOUR

DETOUR

Bay St 

will be

closed

June 9

6:308:30

use detour

PCMS Board

ROAD CLOSED

TO

THRU TRAFFIC

DETOUR

DETOUR

ROAD

CLOSED
DETOUR

ROAD CLOSED

TO

THRU TRAFFIC

DETOUR

PAGE 2 Detour Route Overview

PCMS Boards Will Be placed in advance one week prior

www.invarion.com

Page 312 of 358



ROAD

CLOSED

ROAD

CLOSED
DETOUR

ROAD CLOSED

TO

THRU TRAFFIC

DETOUR

ROAD CLOSED

TO

THRU TRAFFIC

DETOUR

D
E

T
O

U
R

DETOUR

DETOUR
DETOUR DETOUR

D
E

T
O

U
R

D
E

T
O

U
R

PAGE 1 overview of Bay St.

Plan is to have light at Sidney And Bay St, to be blacked out during parade. Volunteers will be at each road closure.

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

www.invarion.com

Page 313 of 358



ROAD

WORK

AHEAD

LEFT LANE

CLOSED

AHEAD

Staging Area

Extra staging

Staging Area Port Orchard Blvd
PAGE 3

Arrow Board

www.invarion.com

Page 314 of 358



Site Map
A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

Vendors:

Beer Garden:

Signage:

Tents:

Public entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours:

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes:

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

Restrooms:

V
Y

n

NOV

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

V

V
V

a
V

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

No Not applicable

Release

I certify that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance

By applying for this special event permit, the organization or entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including

attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant or on the
applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the
City.

V

The inlormotion on this form is considered a public record and is subject to public disclosure lqws in Chapter 42.56 RCW.

l, as the President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions listed above.

Robert p. McGee yi,3;'|,]::::',:,1|j;,,, Robert p. McGee 3t21t2o2s

Yes

Date

,/

Signature of President/Chair of Organization Print Name

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/70/2023

Page 10 of 12

Page 315 of 358



CIry OF PORT OnCHeRu
D BpenruENT oF Conanaumry DnvsLopMENT

z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA qBS66
Phone: (g6o) 8Z+-SS33 . planning@portorchardwa.gov

Date:

To:

From

RE:

April21,2023

Brandy Wallace, City Clerk

Josie Rademacher, Assistant Planner

2023 Event Application for South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

The Department of Community Development has reviewed the 2023 Public Event application for
the following event:

Pubf ic Event Application: South Kitsap 2Q23 Graduation Cruise

Date: Friday, June 9, 2023

Location: Downtown Port Orchard

Organization: Whiskey Gulch Cotfee Pub

DCD has the following comments on this application

Event Signage Requirements:

1. All such temporary signage shall be subject to the requirements of Port Orchard
M unicipal Code 20.1 32.27 O.

Per POMC 20.132.270 (sXa) City Right-of-Way Outside of the Roadway. Temporary
signs are prohibited in the roadway. Temporary signs on city right-of-way placed outside
of the roadway must comply with the following requirements:

(a) Location. Allowed only between the property line and the back of the nearest
curb, or where no curb exists, between the property line and the nearest edge of
the roadway pavement. Siqns mav not be placed on sidewalks, drivewavs or other
paved areas designed for pedestria n or vehicular use. in roundabouts or center
medians. or as conditioned in a street use permit.

2. For fudher signage information, please contact the City of Port Orchard Department of
Community Development at (360) 874-5533.

Page 316 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
lo:

Kevin Futrell < kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>
Friday, March 24,2023 9:47 AM
Brandy Wallace; Tony Lang; Dan Schoonmaker; Angela Garcia; Josie Rademacher;

Business Licensing; prevention@skfr.org; Dayna Katula

Chris Esguerra; Matt Brown;Jenine Floyd; Kathy Garcia

RE: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise
Cc:

Subject:

Kitsap Transit has two bus routes that operate during the proposed Bay Street closure. Kitsap Transit will cancel the
remaining trips for the night for those two routes. At 6:30pm, there are four buses that are scheduled to depart the PO

Ferry terminal. lf the closure can start after those buses depart (or 6:35pm), Kitsap Transit would be fine with the
closure.

Please advise

Kevin Futrell, JD
Kitsap Transit, Transit Service Planner

360-478-6224 (office)

lntraoffice Ext. 1004

360-900-7095 (cell)

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwa I lace @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: March 23,202310:00 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrellckevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula@kitsappublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jfloyd @ portorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ portofbremerton.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Good morning,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise taking
place june 9,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments by a/77/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360) 876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
www. porto rcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911.

1

Page 317 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Angela Garcia
Thursday, March 23,2023 3:37 PM

Brandy Wallace

Re: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Brandy,

I have no comments on this one
Thanks,

Angela

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy XCover Pro, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Bra ndy Wallace <bwallace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 23,202310:OO:18 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org <prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrellckevinf@kitsaptransit.com>;
Dayna Katula <dayna.katula@kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofb rem e rton.o rg>

Subject: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Good morning,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise taking
place June 9,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV a/I7/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360) 876-7030
Fax (360) 895-9029
www. po rtorcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency servicesAre available 24 hours a day
by calling 911.

1

Please consider the environment before printing this e-moil.

Page 318 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dayna Katula < Dayna.Katula@kitsappublichealth.org>
Thursday, March 23,202312:58 PM

Brandy Wallace

RE: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Hi Brandy,

No comment.

Thanksl

Dayna Katula, RS I Program Manager
Food & Living Environment Program
Kitsap Public Health District
345 6l'' St., Suite 300 | Bremerton, WA 98337
(3601728-2301 office | (360) 633-9018 cell | (3601728-2235 Main
Davn a. Katu la (o kitsappublichealth.ore I kitsa ppu blichealth.ore

x

x

From : Bra ndy Wa I lace <bwa I lace @ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 23,202310:00 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<Dayna. Katula @ kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ po rtofbrem e rton.o rg>

Subject: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

IWARNING l: Were you expecting this email? lt originated from outside the Health District and contains a link or
attachment. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have been waiting to receive this email. lf you are unsure
please contact lT.

1
Page 319 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Hurguy, Josh <jhu rguy@skfr.org >

Friday, March 24, 2023 1 1:17 AM
Brandy Wallace

Goodwin, Cody
RE: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Good morning, Brandy,

SKFR has no concerns with this event. Any public safety concerns will be addressed in conjunction with POPD.

Thanks,

Josh

From: Brandy Wallace <bwa llace@ portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 23,202310:00 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia
<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing
<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; Prevention <Prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula
<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd
<jf loyd @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy G a rcia <kathyg@ portof bre me rto n.o rg>
Subject: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Good morning,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for the South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise taking
place June 9, 2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV a/fi /2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
https://link.edsepilot.com/s/12252740lNvaThJwnFUOh43ZPkUc2OA?u=http://www.portorchardwa.sov/

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day
by calling 911.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-moil.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notify the sender via e-
mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

1
Page 320 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

My apologies. I'm out of the office the rest of the day. lf needed today, I'm hoping an email will suffice. The PD does not
have any additional public safety concerns.

--Matt

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy XCover Pro, an AT&T 4G LTE smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

Matt Brown

Friday, May 5, 202311:30 AM
Brandy Wallace; Tony Lang

Re: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

From: Bra ndy Wa I lace <bwa I lace @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 5, 2023 77:!8:07 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>

Subject: FW: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

Do you have a memo to provide as part of the council packet for your status of their approval based on the last meeting

we had with the event organizers?

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (350) 895-9029
www. oo rtorcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 9L1.

Pleose consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Please be aware that e-mails which pertain to City business may be considered public records and may be subject to
public disclosure laws. lf you think that you have received this e-mail message in error, please notif,/ the sender via e-

mail or telephone at (360) 876-7030.

From: Brandy Wallace
Sent: Thursday, March 23,20231-0:00 AM
To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Jenine Floyd

<jf loyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Kathy Ga rcia <kathyg@ portofbreme rton.org>
Subject: Special Event - South Kitsap 2023 Graduation Cruise

1

Page 321 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8M Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma  City Clerk 
        Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a special event application for The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma, as celebration 
of life, scheduled for Saturday, May 27, 2023. The application state’s the following: 

 
EVENT: The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma 
TYPE: Celebration of Life Ceremony 
DATE: Saturday, May 27, 2023 
TIME: Setup starts at 8:00am, open to public at 9:00am until 11:00am, cleanup to be 

completed by 11:30am  
LOCATION: Kitsap County Administrative Building, 614 Division Street 
CLOSURE(S):  Division Street, from Sidney Avenue to Cline Avenue and Dwight and Austin Avenue to 

Cline Avenue  
 

The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring safety 
measures and traffic control are in place. The applicant will have the Kitsap County Sheriff’s office 
control traffic from Sidney to SR166 for a funeral procession upon departing from Division Street after 
the Ceremony. 
 
Staff are in support of the road closures as presented and will continue to ensure the event meets the 
safety and traffic control standards outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for T The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma 
event, scheduled for Saturday, May 27, 2023, as presented. 
 

Page 322 of 358



Business Item 8M 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments 

Page 323 of 358



SprcrRl Evrrur Penurr ApplrcRrroru
(Ponr Oncunno Murrrrqpnl Cooe 5.94 nno 5.96)

sTANDARD PRocEssrNG res: $50.oo

Event Overview

Event Details

Nameof event: The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma
Location of event: Kitsap County Administration Building, Division Stree, Port Orchard

Type of Event: I lrestivat k/Run I lnaraoe I lvenoor rair I lConcert

n Block Party ! Othe Vet Ceremony

Event or Organization Website:

https ://www. kitsapgov. com/hs/PagesA/AB-Ru nto-Tahoma.aspx

Description of event:

Each year the Kitsap County Board of Commissioners, Kitsap County Coroner's Office, Kitsap
County Veterans Advisory Board, and Combat Veterans lnternational host The Unforgotten,
Run to Tahoma. This is a ceremony held on the Saturday of the Memorial Day weekend at the
county administration building and honors deceased veterans whose remains have not been
^l^i*'^..1 t.,{^mil.,^r{Fi^^A^f^FhrrFi^l nf+^F-^alnhra{innnf lifa^^16mnht, rra{arannramaincara

Set Up Starts: Take Down Complete

Start Day:

Saturday
Start Date:

0512712023
Start Time
0800

End Day:

Saturday
End Date:

0512712023
tnd ltme:
1 130

Event Dates/Times: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees
-1 100

Expected Daily Attendance:
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Day:

Saturday
Date:

05t27t2023
Start Time:

0900
End Time

1 100 250 300 25

Day: Date Start Time: End Time

Day: Date Start Time: tnd Irme

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for additional days or details)

A brief ceremony will be held to honor the deceased veterans at the Kitsap County
Administration building on Division Street. lmmediately following the ceremony the cremains
will be excorted to the Tahoma National Cemetery.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/70/2023

Page 3 of 12
Page 324 of 358



Does your event. require a paid fee for participants and/or spectators? Yes o

Does r eve nt require qinimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators? /es ,/ \o
Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s):

No admission or participation fees are required or requested

Admission Fees:

Orga nization I nformation *

*Please note the orgonization informotion provided moy be shared for inquires made on event detoils

Insurgnce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the
City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

s1,000,000 Liability; s1,oo0,oo0 Bodily tnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure.hubinternational.com/.

Parking lmpacts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? Yes ruo fZ ruot npplicabte
lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)? You may submit a map to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below.

Sufficient parking will be available at designated Kitsap County parking areas.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/10/2023

Page 4 of 72

Name of Organization: Kitsap County Veterans Advisory Board
Do you have an active City Business License?

Jv"t What is your UBI number? p74
Point of Contact Name Richard Becker
Street Address:

6955 Cadmar Ln NW

Mailing Address: (if different from street address)

City: Seabeck State: 1ry4 Zip: 9g3gg City: State: zip:

Phone:360-337-491 
1

Alternate Phone Email: r5""1er@kitsap.gov

Page 325 of 358



Use of City Streets and/or State Highway

STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (most common is Bay Street/SR166)? Z*"
lf yes, which highway: Street/SR 166 Sedgwick Road

For Stote Highwoy Closures, the sponsoring orgonizotion must submit the applicotion to the city ot leost 720 colendor days

before the event dste. Upon city opproval of the event, the sponsoring orgonization sholl seek permission from the Woshington

Stote Deportment of Trqnsportstion (WSDOT) by completing an online opplicotion. Once permission is gronted from WSDOT,

q copy of the Letter of Acknowledgment or on Agreement will need to be provided to the city 45 doys prior to the event.

WSDOfs online dpplication is locofed af.' https://www.wsdot.wa.govlcontact/events/special-events

CITY PROPERTY/STREETS (Rieht-of-wav): Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" means

any road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public travel and

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof

which are designated as portions of the state highway system."

l_lruril" HittDrive

ZJ'", [*"Will this event require closure of any of the below public property/ right-of-way?

lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply):

City Park(s):

n Zee Park McCormick Turner
llage Park rk

I Powers

Park ntral Park Park

Parking Lot(s):

Rockwell Park

Lot l-: between Orchard and Frederick streets on the north side of Bay Street

Lot 2: between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay St.

Lot 3: five rows of parking west of Harrison Ave and east of and parallel to the library

Lot 4: all parking east of Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west ofthe Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City Hall property in front of the Police department

Lot 6: abutting the landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb 5t intersection

Lot 7: all parking spaced located on the library property which is limited to library staff only

Lot 8: employee parking lot east of City Hall adjacent to Prospect Alley which is between Kitsap Street and Prospect
Street.

Sidewalk(s):

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 5 of 12
Page 326 of 358



Street(s):
We request the closure of Division Street for the safety of attendees between the

hours of 0930 and 1 100

ll requesting street or highwoy closure, fill out the "Details of Closure" section below and provide o troflic control plon of
the sred impacted.

Traffic Control Plan:

A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closures and must be submitted with this application.
See example Site Plan. The following is required to be on the plan(s):

Detour route(s) and Bicycle routes how many, where, how long, etc.

Signs/Barriers: How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, who is putting them up, who will be taking them

down, etc.

Certified flaggers: how many will there be, where willthey be stationed, what time will they be there, what time will

they be gone, etc.

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to manage the road closures, provide the following
information:

Name of the Traffic Control company: N/A
Point of Contact Name:

Phone: Alternate Phone: Email

Details of Closure(s)

Street Name:
lrrnq< cfroafl
Between

lernsc qtrpoll.
And Start Date Start Time End Date: End Time:

Division Sydney 0930Cline 0512712023 0512712023 1 100

+e{Tront- 4'ffi71tu -14€O- fi54+t+w€ivisiurr 11rc)
fiffiW-€Rt6-€ydnef 4-ffi.|ftT -ft-fs_ 113e-

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use.)

Elite Riders will serve as intersection road guards ,

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 6 of 12

Page 327 of 358



Al cohol Sa I e s/Se rvi ce s

The sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board (WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees for alcohol

sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit. Visit the WSLCB website, https://lcb.wa.gov/ for

additional information and to apply for the appropriate license / Permit.

Will alcohol be sold or consumed at your event *

*lf yes, you must contoct the Woshington Stote Liquor ond Connobis Boord lor o speciol liquor license

Food Soles/service

You will need to reoch out to the Kitsop Public Heqlth District ds they moy require o temporary food estoblishment permit.
Visit their website ot https://kitsappublichealth,oro/FoodSafetvlfood vendors,php or cqll (360) 728-2235 lor information.

M*o

Will your event have any food service and/or

Will your event have professional catering?

Zlu"

Zln"
Zln"

lf yes, how many:

lf yes, how many:

lf yes, how many:Will your event have food truck(s)?

Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:

An operationol permit is required for mobile food preporotion vehicles equipped with oppliances thot
produce smoke or greaseJoden vapors or utilize LP-gos systems or CNG systems. Contoct Community
Development.

Food Truck Safetv Handout
Mobile Food Preparation Vehicle Permit Application

Gorbage and Recycling

a

a

Collection Stations: How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

1
Recycle

1
baroage

Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or will it be managed by a vendor?

N/A
Self-Hau o List vendor/company, if applicable:

Detail your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood:

WaFte management will be accomplished by using receptacles available at

SArntnt$btii/-r bl.r;.'Wfnh aS in P{eU\c.^,tO tg1

the Kitsap County

d,rr(,

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

PageT of 72

Page 328 of 358



Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be available to the public for your eve Sufficient restroo

Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amou

Contingency Plonning: lob Aids Monuql.

Master Multi-Vendor Event License

Will your event have vendors?!v"t lZruo
lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event?

N/A
lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ or food? [Yes Eho - lf you indicated Yes, please see the Food section on page

4 of this application.

POMC 5.96, if your event hos two or more vendors engoged in public property vending, you ore required to hove o Mqster
Multi-Vendor Event License (MMVEL| The MMVEL fee is $75.00 per day or $200 per month. POMC 5.96.020(g)(s) stotes the
sponsor of the mqster event shall provide o list of porticipoting vendors, their business nomes, their oddresses ond their Stote
Tox Revenue ldentification Numbers to the city clerk within three working doys ofter the lirst doy of the operotion,

. No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

r Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.
o Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed
each day along with vending devices.

r Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The
location shall be deemed the vending site.

r UtilitY service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the
adjacent property owner, Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the
sidewalk.

. No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.

. A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-
half feet. Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on which
the vending device stands.

e lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising
signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

o No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 8 of 12

(-
th

e,Hg I

No. of users (50% male and 50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets
Up to 240 3

250 to 499 4

500 to 900 6

1,000 to 1,999 12

2,0001o 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Page 329 of 358



Tents

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? ot Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size
N/A

Does the tent have sides? E Yes ENo E ruot applicable

Moy be required to obtdin o permit per POMC 20,200.076.Pp1eose contsct Community Development (360) 874-5533,

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary signs? [Yes

Amplified Sound

Does your event have any amplified sound?

Elruo

POMC 20.732,290'nlemporary sign" (which may include special event sign) means any sign that is used temporarily and is

not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, including any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent
support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials including, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh products of
less than 20-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products urlthout polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or drawn
with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs made of any other materials shall be considered permanent and are subject to the
permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (350) 874-5533 if
you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

ft"'[to

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sound below:

Day:

Saturday
Date:
05t27t2023

Start Time
0930

End Time
1 100

Day Date Start Time End Time

Day Date Start Time End Time

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.9., 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background music, etc.)

Assuming good weather, patriotic music will be played as an interlude to the ceremony at 0930, voice presentations during the ceremony at
1000, and patriotic music following the ceremony at 1045 to 1 100. lf inclement weather, ceremonies will be held in the Commissioners
Chambers.

Describe what equipment will be used for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps):

Two mid-sized speakers will be placed on 6 foot tall stands.
Describe schematics and direction of amplified sound (show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed

Speakers will be directed from the administration building toward the county court house

Noise levels generoted shall not be in excess of ollowable levels, consistent with POMC 9.24.050. For more informotion
pleose contoct the Port Orchard Police Depsrtment (360) 876-1700.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 9 of 12

Page 330 of 358



Page 331 of 358



The Unforgoflen, Ru,nt
Celebrqlion of Life

Advisory Board

ns lnternational

to Tq

We know you will

the lives of dep

county coroner and e

nalCemetefy

lives of

i

,t4ftot.ycles no later tha'6'g ffi'ffi i

Page 332 of 358



Site Mop
A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

V
V
V
V

Public entrances and exits: lZ r",

V
V

NoZ,
No

No

NOZ,
No

No

Vendors:

Beer Garden

Signage:

Tents:

Road closures and detours

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes;

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

Restrooms:

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

Not applicable

Release

I certify that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organization or entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including
attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant or on the
applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the
City.

The inlormation on this form is considered o public record ond is subject to public disclosure lqws in Chopter 42.56 RCW.

l, as the President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions listed above.

Richard Becker Bi1[|,ry.;!tu:,r',,?:;?1r ?.Ti8r Richard Beck er o1*t2o23

Date

NoYes

Signature of President/Chair of Organization Print Name

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 10 of 12

Page 333 of 358



Cnv or Ponr OncHann
Public Works Director
z16 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA g8S66
Voice: (S6o)8Z6-+99r o Fax: (S6o) 8Z6-+g8o
mdorsey@ cityofportorchard. us
www. cityofportorchard. us

TO:

FROM

DATE:

SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION REVIEW

City Clerk's Office

Tony Lang - Public Works Director

March 31,2023

RE Special Event App lication - The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma
ln response to the above-referenced Special Event Application dated February 2,2023,
the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department has the following
comments/requirements that need to be addressed prior to final approval:

Sanitation Control and Cleaninq: The event sponsor to coordinate and obtain approval
from Kitsap County Administration staff regarding the cleaning and disposal of
garbage/refuse, as stated in the application. The event sponsor shall also coordinate
and obtain approval from Kitsap County Administration staff regarding event attendees'
use of Kitsap County's restroom facilities, as stated in their application.

Road Closures
Public Works to place corresponding street closure Type ll barricades in accordance
with the event holder's provided map; The associated street closure will be as follows:
Division (Cline Ave to Sidney Ave) from 9:30 AM and 11:00 AM. Public works cannot
support a rolling closure from Division to SR16. All signaled intersections need to be
controlled through appropriate law enforcement support or an approved traffic control
plan with licensed flaggers. Please provide a modified traffic control plan or
acknowledge that the procession will commence without obstructing controlled/signaled
intersections.

Relation to Res. 057-09
This event is a non-grandfathered event. The event holder shall reimburse the city for
any associated costs incurred by the public works department for provided traffic control
(including labor, materials, and equipment).

U :\ I _Adminstrotion\D_AdminProgroms&lnitiotives\EVENTS\The Unforgotlen- Run to
Tohomo\2023

Page 334 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Richard Becker < RBecker@kitsap.gov>

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 10:36 AM
Brandy Wallace
RE: Unforgotten Run-Special Event Application

Hello Brandy. I hope your week is going well

Thank you once again for getting our planning group together last Friday. ljust want to follow up with you on the
question of traffic control. Sheriff John Gese confirmed with me yesterda that his officers will control traffic at key

intersections from the Division Street and Sydney intersection to SR16 to support The Unforgotten: Run to Tahoma
funeral procession. My point of contact in the Sheriffs Department is Officer Schon Montague.

As an aside, I received word that a third set of remains will be part of the memorial service at the Kitsap County

Administration Building and procession to Tahoma National Cemetery. I don't expect this will increase the numbers of
event participants.

I hope this helps. Please contact me if you have any questions

With gratitude,

Richard Becker
Kitsap County Department of Human Services

Veterans Program Analyst / Veterans Advisory Board Coordinator
RBecker@ kitsap.gov
360-337-48L1

From: Bra ndy Wa llace <bwa I lace @ portorcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, April t8,2023 2:01 PM

To: Richard Becker <RBecker@kitsap.gov>

Subject: RE: Unforgotten Run-Special Event Application

ICAUTION: This message originated outside of the Kitsap County mail system. DO NOT CLICK on links or open

attachments unless you were expecting this email. lf the email looks suspicious, contact the Helpdesk immediately at

360-337-5555, or email at Helpdesk@kitsap.eovl

Great. I have it on the staff calendar. See you Friday at L2. You can meet me at my window, or on the 3'd floor in the

Council chambers.

Best Wishes,

1

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

Page 335 of 358



Ponr OncHenn Porrcr DnpaRTMENT
Snnvrcs . HoNon. hqrecRrrY

MIMORANDUM

T():

FR()M:

SU BJIIT

DATE:

Brondy Wolloce, tily tlerk
Moll Brown, [hief of Police

The Unforgollen Run lo lohomo

Morch 21, 2023

There are no additional safety concerns with the special event plan for The Unforgotten Run top
Tahoma.

Elite Riders may not serve as intersection road guards. Only certified flaggers may stop traffic.
Alltraffic laws and signals must be observed.

Public Works will develop a more refined traffic control map for inclusion in the application.

Page 1 of I

Page 336 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Kevin Futrell < kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>
Wednesday, March 8,2023 12:44 PM

Brandy Wallace

RE: [EXTERNAL] Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Fallen Soldier - 052822.pdf

Brandy,

Looking at last years' emails, Kitsap Transit detoured off of Division and requested that the procession not leave Division

until around L1:03am. Someone had called me back and indicated they would do that. I don't remember if it was PO

Police or the event coordinator. We would like that again.

l've attached the memo I sent out to our staff last year

Kevin Futrell, f D

Kitsap Transit, Transit Service Planner

360-478-6224 (office)

lntraoffice Ext. 1004

360-900-7095 (cell)

From: Bra ndy Wa I lace <bwa I lace @ portorcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: March 3,2023 2:29 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Ellen Ferguson

<eferguso n @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Jen ine Floyd <jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>

Subject: IEXTERNAL] Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma taking place May

27,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV 3122/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
www. po rto rcha rdwa.gov

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911.

1
Page 337 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Hurguy, Josh <jhurguy@skfr.org >

Friday, March 24,2023 11:22 AM
Brandy Wallace

Goodwin, Cody
RE: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Good morning, Brandy,

Sorry I am couple of days late with this response !

SKFR has no concerhs with this event. Any public safety concerns will be addressed in conjunction with POPD.

Thanks,

Josh

From: Brandy Wallace <bwallace@portorcha rdwa.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 3,2023 2:29 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; Prevention <Prevention@skfr.org>; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsa ppublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Ellen Ferguson

<efe rguson @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>; Je ni ne Floyd <jfloyd @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>

Subject: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents for The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma taking place May

27,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV 3/22/2023.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orchard
Direct (360)876-7030
Fax (360) 89s-9029
https://link.edeepilot.com/s/761dcc79lh18dXdl AU BHipBKedime?u=http://www.portorchardwa.eovl

City Hall is open to the public, Monday through Friday 8am to 4:30pm. Emergency services are available 24 hours a day

by calling 911-.

1

Pleose consider the environment before printing this e-moil.

Page 338 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Angela Garcia

Monday, March 6,2023 1:36 PM

Brandy Wallace
RE: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Brandy,

I do not have any comments on this one

Thanks,

Angela Garcia CBO/CFM

Deputy Director Community Development
Bu ild i n g Official/Fire Code Official
City of Port Orchard
(360)874-31_30

Please note that my email address has changed to agarcia@portorchardwa.gov . Please update your address book

accordingly.

Please make official submittals to the Permit Center at oermitcenter@ rtorchardwa.sov to ensure maintenance of an

accurate Record.

From: Brandy Wallace <bwa llace@portorcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: Friday, March 3,2023 2:29 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell<kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<dayna.katula @kitsappublichealth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Ellen Ferguson

<efe rguson @ po rto rcha rdwa.gov>; Je ni ne Floyd <jfloyd @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>

Subject: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Good afternoon,

Attached is a Special Event application and supporting documents forThe Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma taking place May

27 ,2023. Please review the materials and provide me your comments bV 312212O23.

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything further

Best Wishes,

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO

City Clerk/Assistant to the Mayor
City of Port Orcharci

1
Page 339 of 358



Brandy Wallace

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dayna Katula <Dayna.Katula@kitsappublichealth.org>

Friday, March 17,2023 1:49 PM

Brandy Wallace
RE: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

Hi Brandy,

No comment

Thanks!

Dayna Katula, RS I Program Manager
Food & Living Environment Program
Kitsap Public Health District
345 6lr St., Suite 300 | Bremerton, WA 98337
(360) 728-230L office | (360) 633-s018 cell | (360) 728-2235 Main
Davna. Katu la @ kitsappublichealth.ore I kitsappublichealth.ore

x

From: Bra ndy Wa I lace < bwa I lace @ portorcha rdwa.gov>

Sent: Friday, March 3,2023 2:29 PM

To: Tony Lang <tlang@portorchardwa.gov>; Dan Schoonmaker <dschoonmaker@portorchardwa.gov>; Angela Garcia

<agarcia@portorchardwa.gov>; Josie Rademacher <jrademacher@portorchardwa.gov>; Business Licensing

<BLS@portorchardwa.gov>; prevention@skfr.org; Kevin Futrell <kevinf@kitsaptransit.com>; Dayna Katula

<Dayna. Katula @ kitsappublichea lth.org>
Cc: Chris Esguerra <cesguerra@portorchardwa.gov>; Matt Brown <mbrown@portorchardwa.gov>; Ellen Ferguson

<efe rguson @ porto rcha rdwa.gov>; Je nine Floyd <jfloyd @ po rtorcha rdwa.gov>

Subject: Special Event - The Unforgotten-Run to Tahoma

tr

IWARNING l: Were you expecting this email? lt originated from outside the Health District and contains a link or

attachment. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have been waiting to receive this email. lf you are unsure

please contact lT

Page 340 of 358



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 8N Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Parking Lot Closure for Two   Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Consecutive Days for a Special Event:   City Clerk 
 Fathoms O’ Fun 2-Day Summer Festival       Atty Routing No: N/A 
 Craft & Vendor Show Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: City staff received a special event application for a Fathoms O’ Fun 2-Day Summer Festival 
Craft & Vendor Show to take place on Saturday, June 24 and Sunday, June 25, 2023. 
 
The event will feature craft and food vendors, a kids craft booth, and music at the Port of Bremerton 
Gazebo. Setup starts on 6/24 at 6:00 a.m., open to the public between 9:00 a.m. until 10:30 p.m. and 
6/25 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. cleanup completed by 6:00 p.m. 
 
The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.96.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City has received no written concerns regarding this event taking place. 
 
The applicant is requesting use of City parking lot No. 4 to hold their event. With the event taking place 
for two consecutive days, it requires Council approval. POMC 5.94.080 (1) Downtown Parking Lot Usage, 
states in part: 
 

No special event may utilize the downtown parking lots 3 and 4, for two or more consecutive 
days without city council approval. Should a special event request the use of all or a portion of 
the downtown parking lots during a weekday, excluding federal holidays, and the city grants the 
request, the applicant shall compensate the city for lost revenue for the use of the parking lots. 

 
Staff acknowledges the event is not taking place during a weekday and the applicant need not 
compensate the city for loss revenue. 
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are in support of the use as presented and 
are continuing to work on the final details of the event with the applicant, ensuring public safety 
standards are met as outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

   
Recommendation: Staff supports the application as presented. 
 
 

Page 341 of 358



New Item – 8N Summer Festival 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to approve the Fathoms O’ Fun to hold a Summer Festival Craft & Vendor 
Show taking place two consecutive days, Saturday, June 24 and Sunday, June 25, 2023, in parking lot 4, 
as presented. 

 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 

 
Alternatives: Not approve and provide staff with direction. 

 
Attachments: Application 

Page 342 of 358



RECFI

clry OF PORr

FFB O

Sprcnl Evrrur PrRur AppucRnoru
(Ponr OncxnRo Murrrcrpar Cooe 5.94 nruo 5.96)

STANDARD PRocEssrNG ree: $50.00

Event Overview

Event Details

Name of event: Fathoms O' Fun Z-Day Summer Festival Craft & Vendor Show
Location of event: DowntOwn WaterfrOnt _ Lot#4

Type of Event: n rade Mvenoor rair f lconcert

tr Block Party n Ot

Event or Organization Website:

www.fathomsofun.org

Description of event:

A 2-day Summer Festival consisting of craft and food vendors, kids craft booth, and some music
at the Gazebo area

set Up Starts: Take Down Complete:
Start Day:

Saturday
Start Date:
612412023

Start Time:
06:00 set up

End Day:

Sundav
End Date:
612512023

End Time:
6:00 pm

Event Dates/Tlmes: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees
Sat-612412023- 9am; Sun-1 Oam

Expected Dally Attendance'
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Day:

Saturday 6t24t2023
Date Start Time:

9AM
tnd lrme:

10:30 PM 45+ 900 4

Day:

Sunday
Date:

612512023
Start Time:

10 D(N-$A
End Time:

4PM 45+ 500 4

Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Addltional details: (attach addltlonal pages as needed for additional days or details)

Fathoms will have an overnight security person Saturday at the vendor area. Details of the
individual will be provided to POPD.

Clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Appllcatlon
Revlsed 1/10/2023

Page 3 of 12

Page 343 of 358



1t, i

Admission Fees:

Does your evtrat'il.qiire a paid fee for participa nts and/or spectators? ,/ Yes ,/
Do€s your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators?

lYut ,/ !o
Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s):

Only vendors are required to pay a fee, not spectators.

Name of Organization:
Fathoms O'Fun Festival, lnc.

Do you have an active City Business License? ,/ les What is your UBI number? 601 2gg 0gg
Point of Contact Name: Bob Morehouse 360-620-3363/Sharron King 360-871-180S
Street Address: Mailing Address: (if different from street address)

PO Box 312

City: State zip citY: porl orchard State: Zip:
sm86

Phone: 960-971 -1 g0S Alternate Phone: g607g14027 Ema il : plnn"r"ations@wavecable.com

Orga n ization lnformation *

*Please note theorganlzatlon lnformatlon provided may be shored for lnquires made on event detqlls

lnsurdnce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the
City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

$1,000,000 tiability; $1,000,000 Bodily tnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure.hubinternational.com/.

Parking lmpocts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? Mt*M rrroMrvot Appllcable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors {including handicapped parking)? You may submit a map to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below.

Not at this writing, but business will be notified of event via POBSA

Clty of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revlsed 1/10/2023

Page 4 of 12

Page 344 of 358



Use of City Streets and/or State Highwdy

STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (most common is Bay Street/SRLGO)? Z*o
lf yes, whlch hlghway: Street/SR 166 Sedgwlck Road HillDrlve

For State Hlghwdy Cbsures, the sponsorlng orgonlzatlon must submlt the applicatlon to the clty ot least 720 calendar days
before the event ddte. Itpon cW dpproval ofthe event, the sponsorlng orgonization shall seek permlsslon from the Washlngton
State Department of Trdnsportdtion (WSDOT) by completing an onllne application. Once permlssion is granted from WSDOT,

a copy of the Letter ol Acknowledgment or qn Agreement wlll need to be provlded to the ctty 45 days prior to the event.
WSDOYs onllne oppllcation 13 locoted of; https://www.wsdot.wa.eov/contact/events/special-events

CITY PROPERTY/STREETS (Riqht-of-wavl: Port Orchard Munlcipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (RoW)" means

any road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place ln the city open as a matter of right to public travel and

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof
which are designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property/ right-of-way? f]", Mt"
lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply):

City Park(s):

I;:n
Zee Park

Powers

Turner Rockwell Park

Park

Lot L: between Orchard and Frederick streets on the north side of Bay Street

Lot 2: between Frederick Street and Sldney Avenue, north of Bay 5t.

Lot 3: flve rows of parklng west of Harrison Ave and east of and parallel to the library

Lot 4: all parking east of Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west of the Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City Hall property in front ofthe Pollce department

Lot 6: abutting the landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb St intersection

Lot 7: all parking spaced located on the library property whlch ls limited to library staff only

Lot 8l employee parking lot east of City Hall adjacent to Prospect Alley which is between Kltsap Street and Prospect

Street.

Park

Park

Parking Lot{s):

Sidewalk(s)

,l

Clty of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcatlon
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 5 of 12

Page 345 of 358



Street(s) nla

lf tequesting street or highwoy closure, fill out the ilDetails ol Closure" section below and provide d trdfflc control ptan of
the area impoded.

Traffic ControlPlan:

A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closures and must be
See example Site Plan. The following is required to be on the plan(s):

Itted with this appllcatlon.

Detour route(s) and Eicycle routes many, where, how long, etc.

Signs/Barriers: How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, is putting them up, who will be taking them
down, etc.

Certlfled flaggers: how many will there be, where will they be what time will they be there, what time will
they be gone, etc.

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to
information:

the road closures, provide the following

Details of Closure(s|:

Name of the Traffic Control company:

Point of Contact Name: I

I
Phone Email:

Street Name
lrrarn a+raa+l'
Between And

t-'^-^ -+,^^+l \ oate: Start Time: End Date: End Time:

I

I
pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use.)itional details: (attach

City of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Application
Revtsed 7/10/2023

Page 6 of 12

Page 346 of 358



Al co hol Sa les/Se rvices

The sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board (WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees for alcohol
sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit. Visit the WSLCB website, https://lcb.wa.Eov/ for
additional information and to apply for the appropriate license / permit.

Will alcohol be sold or consumed at your

*lf yes, you must contoct the Washlngton State Liquor dnd Conndbls Board lor o speciol liquor llcense.

Food Sales/Service

You will need to reach outto the Kitsap Public Heafth Distrlct osthey may require a temporary food establlshment permlt,
Vlslt their webslte ot httos://kitssppublichealth.oro/FoodSdfeV/food vendors.p,hp or call (360) 72&2235 for lnformatlon.

Will your event have any food service and/or satesfffies flu"
mn"

lf yes, how many:
45

Will your event have professional catering? lf yes, how many;

3

M*o

zh", [h"Will your event have food truck(s)? lf yes, how many:

Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:

An operotionat permit is required for moblle food preporotion vehicles equipped with oppliances thot
produce smoke or greose-loden vapors or utilize LP-gds systems or CNG systems. Contact Community
Development.

r Food TruckSafetv Handout
r Mobile Food Preparation Vehicle Permit Application

Garbage and Recycling

Collection Stations: How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

Recycle 2 6
Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or will it be managed by a vendor?

Self-Haul List vendor/company, if a pplicable:

Detail your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood:

Waste Management dumpster will be placed in the last parking stall closest to the Library and

boardwalk in Lot#3.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcation
Revlsed 1/10/2023

PageT of 12

Page 347 of 358



Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be availabre to the pubric for your event: see attached list

Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amount of users recommended in the FFMA Special Events
Contingency Plonning: lob Aids Monual.

No. of users (50% male and 50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets
up to 240 3

250 to 499 4
500 to 900 6

1,000 to 1,999 t2
2,000 to 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Master Multi-Vendor Event License

Will your event have vendors?fiV"t [ruo
lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event?

45+
lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ or fooaa Ehes f]to - lf you indicated Yes, please see the Food se*ion on page

4 of this application,

POMC 5.96, if your event hos two or more vendors engaged in public propefi vending, you are requtred to have o Mastet
Multi-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVEL fee is $75.00 per day or 5200 per month. \OMC 5.96.020(3)(q) stqtes the
sponsor of the mqster event shall provlde d list ol paflclpatlng vendors, thelr buslness names, thelr oddresses and thelr State
Tqx Revenue ldentlflcotlon Numbers to the clty clerk wlthln three working days after the tlrst day of the operqtton,

. No publlc vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

o Vending devices must be remowed from vending sites daily betweeh the hours of 1O:OO p-m- and 6:OO a.m.
e Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed
each day along with vending devices.

o Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The
location shall be deemed the vending site.

o Utllity service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the
adJacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the
sidewalk.

. No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.
o A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet. Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on which
the vending device stands,

. lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising
signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

r No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 7n0/2023

Page 8 of 12

Page 348 of 358



Tents

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? Zh", Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size:
VendorTents 10x10 or 10x20

Does the tent have sides? EIyes E rrro E Not appllcable
May be requlred to obtoln o permlt per POMC 20.200.076.Pp1eose contoct Communlty Development (960) 874-s533,

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary signs? ElYes nruo

POMC 20.732.290 "Temporary sign" {whlch may lnclude speclal event sign) means any slgn that is used temporarily and ls
not permanently mounted, painted or othenrvlse afflxed, excludlng portable signs as deffned by thls chapter, lncludlng any
poster, banner, placard, stake slgn or sign not placed ln the ground wlth concrete or other means to provlde permanent
support, stablllty and rot preventlon. Temporary slgns may only be made of nondurable materlals lncluding, but not llmlted
to, paper, corrugated board, flexlble, bendable or foldable plastlcs, foamcore board, vlnyl canvas or vlnyl mesh products of
less than 20-ounce fabrlc, vlnyl canves and vlnyl mesh products wlthout polymeric plastlclzers and slgns palnted or drawn
wlth water soluble paints or chalks. Slgns made of any other materlals shall be considered permanent and are subject to the
permanent slgn regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (360) 87+5533 if
you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

Amplified Sound

Does your event have any amplified sound? Et* No

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sbund below:

Day:

Sun
Date:
6t26

Start Time:
12 appxo

End Time;
3 pm approx

Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Day: Date: Start Time: End Time:

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.9., 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background musig etc.)

Background music (not confirmed as of this writing)...single musician playing electric guitar

Describe what equipment will be used for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps)

Musicians on small pa system at Marina Gazebo

Desribe schematics and direction of amplified sound (show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed

Towards vendor area

Nolse levels generated shall not be ln excess of allowable levels, consistent with POMC 9.24.050, For more lnlormotlon
please contqd the Port Orchdrd Poltce Depdftment (360) 876-7700.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revtsed 1/10/2023

Page 9 of 12

Page 349 of 358



Site Mdp
A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

f,l ,", No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Vendors:

Beer Garden:

Signage:

Tents:

Publlc entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours:

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes:

Garbage/Rerycling:

Barricades:

First Ald:

Parking:

Restroomsl

71,",

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not appllcable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

n

n
V
n
V

V

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

V

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

Yes No Not appllcable

Release

I certifiT that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organization or entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including

attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant or on the
applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the
City.

The information on thls lorm ls consldered a puhlic recod and ls subJect to publlc dlsclosure lqws in Chapter 42,56 RCW.

l, as the President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions llsted above.

Sharron E King B:1[?'y,;'Sffii.?';iT,3155|Lq sharron Kins 1131123

Signature of President/Chair of Organization Print Name Date

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcation
Revised 7/70/2023

Page 10 of 12

Page 350 of 358



FATHOMS O' FUN 2.DAY SUMMER FESTIVAL CRAFT & VENDOR SHOW

lune 24-25,2A23

l:-
I -t {- i' t \r ir

.rtJ

ilh
xlJ

lli:
E{ i

t'

{r '.I
I

t
li'F\ { \

-t A
I
Il

t

q
l

r,

I
I
I

lr

a

IItl

n

It

-1il

:

F

'n

t

I
il

l'

I
I

)

ti

l,

$
Dtit
i*.
d at

l*,'

3 Regular toilets
& 2 Handicap
toilets placed at
POB Restroom
Facility

Red dashes = Fire Lane

Green-Dumpster
Yellow dots - garbage cans

Red Square-First Aid
Solid Black - Sign Barricade
Blue dots- recycle cans

Blue Square/Rectangular - Vendor Areas

9ht?N-

Page 351 of 358



35’

35’
38’

38’

30’

40’

FOOD 
TRUCK 20’

    VENDORS 

   VENDORS
  4 spaces = 40’

V

2
3

’

2
2

’

V

  FO
F  PA

RK
IN

G

V

VV

Kona Ice 

C      

      

Genera
to

rs

V

V

V

V

V

  10 spaces = 100’

  5
 s

p
a

c
e

s 
=

 5
0

’

  5
 sp

a
c

e
s =

 5
0

’

  6
 sp

a
c

e
s =

 6
0

’

  7
 sp

a
c

e
s =

 7
0

’

  7
 sp

a
c

e
s =

 7
0

’

V
V

Dumpster

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

VENDOR
PARKING

VENDOR
PARKING

C
O

O
K

IN
G

C
O

O
K

IN
G

 
C

O
O

K

2023 SUMMER FESTIVAL CRAFT & VENDOR SHOW

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V
V

20’

2
3

’

Garbage Cans

 
C

O
O

K

20’

Signs-Barricades
Reycle Cans

40’

Page 352 of 358



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of April 25, 2023 
           
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  

Councilmember Chang Present  
 Councilmember Clauson Absent 

Councilmember Cucciardi Present  
Councilmember Diener Present 
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Public Works Director Lang, City Attorney Archer, Utilities Manager J. Brown, City 
Attorney Archer, Police Chief M. Brown, City Clerk Wallace, and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: Finance Director Crocker. 
 
The meeting streamed live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 01:09) 

 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 01:32) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to excuse 
Councilmember Clauson for Business Reasons. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to approve the 
agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
 

Page 353 of 358



Minutes of April 25, 2023 
 Page 2 of 6  

 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Time Stamp: 02:25) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:46) 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 85849 through 85918 including bank drafts in the amount of 

$264,427.02 and EFT’s in the amount of $155,889.13 totaling $420,316.15. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 85842 through 85848 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $235,140.16 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $219,454.59 totaling $454,594.75. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Multijurisdictional Interlocal Agreement Designating Kitsap 

County as the Lead Agency for the Revision of the Kitsap County Comprehensive Solid Waste 
Management Plan (Resolution No. 035-23 and Contract No. 036-23) 

D. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Laboratory-Grade Freezer Unit via 
Sourcewell Contract No. 022422-MML (Resolution No. 036-23 and Purchase Order No. 029-23) 

E. Approval of the April 11, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 
F. Excusal of Councilmember Clauson for Business Reasons 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to approve the 
consent agenda as amended. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
5. PRESENTATION  
 
A. Public Safety Measure (Time Stamp 03:09) 
 
Kitsap County Commissioner Robert Gelder spoke to a Public Safety Sales Tax Kitsap County is 
considering bringing forward to the voters. Any city or county may impose a public safety sales tax 
with at least one-third of the revenues used solely for criminal justice and/or fire protection 
purposes. The maximum rate is 0.3% for counties and the revenue must be shared between cities 
and counties, but the combined city/county rate may not exceed 0.3%. This does require voter 
approval and can only be submitted at a primary or general election. 
 
He mentioned this is an opportunity to partner together to figure out how to generate necessary 
revenue for public safety needs within our community. 
 
B. Strategic Asset Management Plan (Time Stamp 21:42) 
 
Public Works Director Lang provided a presentation which included what asset management is, 
historical timeline, what is a Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP), elements of the SAMP, where 
we are now and next steps. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  

Page 354 of 358



Minutes of April 25, 2023 
 Page 3 of 6  

 
 There were no public hearings. 

 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
There was no executive session. 
 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
A. Adoption of Resolution Pertaining to Asset Management, Adopting an Asset Management 

Policy and Asset Management Program (Time Stamp 34:00) 
  
 MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt the Asset 
 Management  Policy and Asset Management Program as described in Exhibit A of the Resolution. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 037-23) 
 
B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Stripe Rite, Inc. for 2023 Thermoplastic 

Application Project (Time Stamp: 41:03) 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Trenary, to adopt a resolution 
 authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract with Stripe Rite, Inc for the 2023 Thermoplastic 
 Application Project in the amount of $37,628.00. 
 
 At 7:14 p.m., Utilities Manager J. Brown left the meeting. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 038-23 and Contract No. 037-23) 
 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Funding as 

Managed by the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for the State Route 
166/Bay Street Reconstruction Project (Time Stamp 44:46) 

 
 MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt a resolution 
 accepting the FHWA Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 funding and authorizing the Mayor to 
 execute all documents necessary to effectuate this award with WSDOT for the State Route 166/Bay 
 Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Councilmember Chang noted is an employee of WSDOT (Washington State Department of 
 Transportation) and would recuse himself if anyone had any concerns.  

 No one voiced any concerns.  
 

Page 355 of 358



Minutes of April 25, 2023 
 Page 4 of 6  

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 039-23) 
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Glumac, Inc. for LEED Commissioning 

Services (Time Stamp 50:47) 
 
City Attorney Archer mentioned Glumac, Inc. has suggested a modification to the contract template, 
and if anyone has questions, she is happy to step into an executive session if needed.  
 
At 7:30 p.m., Mayor Putaansuu recessed the meeting for a 5-minute executive session pursuant to 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)), regarding potential litigation or potential legal risks associated with a 
proposed action when public discussion would potentially have adverse financial or legal 
consequences for the agency. City Attorney Archer was invited to attend, and City Attorney Archer 
noticed action will follow. 
 

 MOTION: By Councilmember Trenary, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt a  resolution, 
 approving a contract with Glumac, Inc. not to exceed $53,900 as presented. 

 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 040-23 and Contract No. 038-23) 
 
E. Approval of Accepting a Public Fireworks Display Application for a Public Fireworks Display on 

July 1, 2023 (Time Stamp 1:00:47) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to allow staff to 
accept the Fathoms O’ Fun Fireworks Display application, allowing staff to process and approve the 
permit under POMC 5.60. 

  
The motion carried.  
 
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 
There were no discussion items. 
 
10. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp: 1:03:55) 
 
Councilmember Trenary reported on the April 17th Economic Development and Tourism Committee 
meeting. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported the Utilities Committee is scheduled to meet in June. The Finance 
Committee is scheduled to meet in May. He also reported on the April 14th City Council Retreat. 
 
Councilmember Chang reported on the April 25th Transportation Committee meeting. 

Page 356 of 358



Minutes of April 25, 2023 
 Page 5 of 6  

 
11. REPORT OF MAYOR (Time Stamp 1:10:57) 
The Mayor reported on the following: 

• ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) dollars and debt limit. 
• Asked Councilmembers what they thought of the presentation earlier by Commissioner 

Gelder.  
 
After discussion, Councilmembers would like the City to submit a letter stating we cannot support 
the County’s Public Safety Sales Tax in the manner it was presented, as the City, and the voters, need 
more information and the City does not support the full 0.3% sales tax 
 

• Asked Councilmembers if they would like to have a letter of support drafted to the County 
for the Mile Hill shelter. After discussion, Council indicated yes, they would.  

• Legislative updates. 
• Request from Mustangs on the Waterfront to be added to the resolution which grandfathers 

in their event. After brief discussion, Council was not in favor of moving forward. 
• Attended a kickoff meeting for the Kitsap Regional Library Foundation for fundraising efforts 

for the library’s portion of the new Community Events Center. 
• Updates on City Hall clocktower clock options. 
• In accordance with Ordinance 008-20 “Delegating Authority to the Mayor for Creating and 

Modification of Job Descriptions,” he reported his approval of the revised job description for 
the Civil Engineer I position. 

 
12. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 1:35:45) 
 
Public Works Director Lang appreciates the Council’s support with the public works items on the 
agenda tonight.  
 
City Attorney Archer reported that Council had asked the Mystery Lane street vacation to be moved 
to tonight’s agenda but due to continuing conversations with the applicants and their attorneys, it 
has been moved to the next business meeting 
 
Police Chief Brown reported on hiring in the police department. 
 
City Clerk Wallace reported on the importance of the clocktower chimes. 
 
13. CITIZEN COMMENTS (Time Stamp 1:39:53) 
 
Sharron King, Fathoms O’ Fun Festival, thanked Council for voting on the fireworks show application 
so they can move forward, and thanked City Clerk Wallace for setting up a meeting with staff and 
local organizations regarding her event. Lastly, she spoke about the fireworks show and related costs 
and requested more lodging tax funding for the show. 
 

Page 357 of 358



Minutes of April 25, 2023 
 Page 6 of 6  

 
Finance Director Crocker reported on ARPA funding and the City’s annual audit. 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Executive Session was held earlier. 
 
15. GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:48:29) 
 
There was no good of the order. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 358 of 358


	4C 01 STAFF REPORT-ToroMowerProlineH800(Consent Agenda)(10668482.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4C 02 RESOLUTION  -ToroMowerProline-H800(10668481.1)
	4C 03 ERR- Replacement or Additional Purchase Request-Proline H800 Mower
	Proline H800 Mower - Replacement or Additional Purchase Request

	4C 04 Interlocal-GPO Agreement (piggyback)Checklist- CA approved
	4D 01 STAFF REPORT-Vac_Con-SourcewellHD(Consent Agenda)(10668501.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4D 02 RESOLUTION -Vac_Con-SourcewellHD(10668500.1)
	4D 03 1-QUOTE- Vac-Con-PORT ORCHARD WA V311HEN_1000 SW 2023 QUOTE
	4D 04 2-PORT ORCHARD WA VAC-CON DEALER AUTHORIZATION VacCon
	4D 05 3-Interlocal-GPO Agreement (piggyback)Checklist- CA approved
	4E 01-Staff Report EV Chg Sta-NC Electric(10668469.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4E 02-Resolution EV Chg Sta-NC ElectricL-Apvd CA(10668478.1)
	4E 03-Exh A-North Coast Electric Quote
	4E 04 ER&R-Vac-Con - Replacement or Additional Purchase Request
	4F 01 20230414 Retreat Minutes-Summary
	Attachment A - Mayor's Presentation-2023 State of the City
	2023 �State of the City�Mayor’s Report�
	2022 City Accomplishments�
	New Police Officers
	2022 City Accomplishments�
	2022 City Accomplishments�
	2022 City Accomplishments�
	2023-2024 Budget
	Capital Construction Funds Budgeted for 2023-2024~$41 million 
	Capital Highlights 
	Personnel Adjustments in 2023-2024 
	2023-2024 Transportation �Maintenance, Operations, Preservation
	Major Projects in Design Phase
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	City Leadership
	Slide Number 21

	Attachment B - Capital Projects
	Attachment C - Sales Tax
	Attachment D - Placard
	Attachment E - 22 Riverstone
	Attachment F - Midyear Review

	6A 01 LU23-Dev Agreement-01 Blueberry Apartment SR Public Hearing
	Agenda Staff Report

	8A 01 SR Mystery Lane Street Vacation
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8A 02 Ord Mystery Lane Street vacation
	8A 03 Kitsap Law Group - Street Vacation
	8A 04 Kitsap Law Group Letter
	8A 05 Street Vacation Petitions
	8B 01 -SR CC Blueberry Apartments DA Business Item
	Agenda Staff Report

	8B 02 ORD - Blueberry Apartments Development Agreement(10668967.1)
	8B 03 - 1748876v4_Blueberry Apartments Development Agreement DRAFT 3-30-2023(10600329.3)
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	Section 9. Valuation of Property Dedications. The Parties agree to value the Transportation Improvement Project Property to be dedicated will be set as the fair market value as described in this subsection. The Parties shall value the Transportation I...
	Section 10.  Other Impact Fees.  The Development Project is subject to the City’s impact fee requirements of POMC Ch. 20.182. Owner shall pay the applicable impact fees for the Development Project at the rates in effect at the time each fully complete...
	Section 11. Ground Floor Elevation Modification. The Development Project is not subject to the minimum two foot (2’) ground floor elevation requirement that is set forth in POMC 20.32.100 as applicable to all “Apartment” building types, regardless of ...
	Section 12. Default.
	Section 23. Applicable Law, Resolution of Disputes, and Attorneys’ Fees.  It is the Parties’ intent to work cooperatively and to resolve disputes in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  All disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement sha...
	a) USettlement MeetingU.  If any dispute arises between the Parties relating to this Agreement, then the Parties shall meet and seek to resolve the dispute, in good faith, within ten (10) working days after a Party’s request for such a meeting.  The C...
	b) UCourtU. If the Parties cannot resolve the matter in a settlement meeting, then jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington, or the U.S. District Court for Western Washington, a...
	Section 31.  Severability.  This Agreement does not violate any federal or state statute, rule, regulation or common law known; but any provision which is found to be invalid or in violation of any statute, rule, regulation or common law shall be cons...


	8B 04 Exhibit A
	8B 05 Exhibit B
	8B 06 Exhibit C
	8C 01 Staff Report-23-Asphalt Rpr(10668458.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8C 02 Resolution-23-Asphalt Rpr(10668464.1)
	8C 03 CONTRACT-PW2023-003-2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair
	Contract
	I. General Provisions.

	Exhibit B – The Project Manual for the 2023 City Wide Asphalt Repair Project.
	Exhibit C – Retainage Options
	All Exhibits to this Contract are by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.

	II. Non-Discrimination.
	During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to compliance with the following ...
	Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
	The City of Port Orchard, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, nondi...

	III. Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW
	Contractor understands that her/his bid response documents, and any contract documents may be subject to release under the Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 RCW and the City may be required to disclose such documents upon a request.  Contractor acknowl...
	IV. Termination
	The City may terminate this contract for cause or for convenience.
	1. Termination for Cause. The City may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of t...
	2. Termination for Convenience. The City may, upon written notice, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of the City) the contract, or any part of it, for the convenience of the City.
	3. Settlement of Costs. If the City terminates for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred prior to the effective date of the termination, plus a reasonable allow...

	V. Corporate Surety Bond
	With this Contract, Contractor is furnishing a Corporate Surety Bond in the amount of
	The parties intend that an Independent Contractor-Employer Relationship will be created by this Agreement and that the Contractor has the ability to control and direct the performance and details of its work, the City being interested only in the resu...
	NOTICES TO BE SENT TO:
	CONTRACTOR:     CITY:
	NAME _____________________________  NAME: K. Chris Hammer, P.E., City Engineer ADDRESS __________________________  ADDRESS: 216 Prospect Street
	TELEPHONE ________________________  TELEPHONE: (360) 876-4991
	Email _____________________________  Email: publicworks@portorchardwa.gov
	With a copy to the City Clerk at the same address  EXHIBIT   C
	5% RETAINAGE INVESTMENT OPTION0F
	Contractor: _______________________________________________________________
	Project Name: _____________________________________________________________
	Date: __________________________________ Project Number:  __________
	Pursuant to RCW 60.28.010, as amended, you may exercise an option as to how the 5% retainage under this contract will be invested. Please complete and sign this form indication your preference. If you fail to do so you will miss the benefit of any int...
	1. Savings Account: Money will be placed in an interest-bearing account. The interest       will be paid to you directly, rather than kept on deposit. If this is your choice, then please complete attached SAVINGS ACCOUNT AGREEMENT.  Please state the n...
	Bank: ____________________________________________________________
	2.       Escrow/Investments: The City will deliver retainage checks to a selected bank, pursuant to an escrow agreement. The bank will then invest the funds in securities or bonds selected by you, and interest will be paid to you as it accrues. If thi...
	SAVING ACCOUNT AGREEMENT
	TO BANK: _______________________         SAVINGS ACCOUNT NO: ___________________
	BANK’S ADDRESS: _____________________________________________________________
	_____________________________________________________________
	AGENCY:   CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
	216 Prospect Street
	CONTRACT NO: ________________________________________
	PROJECT TITLE:
	The estimated completion date of contract is: _________________________________________
	The undersigned, ______________________________________________________, herein referred to as the CONTRACTOR, has directed the CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, Washington, hereinafter referred to as the AGENCY, to deliver to you its warrants which shall be paya...
	INSTRUCTIONS
	1. Warrants or checks made payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly upon delivery to you shall be endorsed by you and forwarded for collection. The moneys will then be placed by you in an interest-bearing savings account.
	2. When and as interest on the savings account accrues and is paid, you shall collect such interest and forward it to the CONTRACTOR at its address designated below unless otherwise director by the CONTRACTOR.
	3. You are not authorized to deliver to the CONTRACTOR all or any part of the principal held by you pursuant to this agreement, except in accordance with written instruction from the AGENCY. Compliance with such instructions shall relieve you of any f...
	4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as follows:
	Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and shall not be deducted from any moneys placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless the AGENCY directs the release to the CONTRACTOR, whereupon you shall be grant...
	5. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY and accepted by you.
	6. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY. You are not a party to nor bound by any instrument or agreement other than this. You shall not be required to take notice of any default or any other matter n...
	7. The foregoing provisions shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representative and heir of the Parties hereto.
	___________________________________                      CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
	Contractor                                                                                  Agency
	BY:_________________________________                   BY:______________________________
	Title: ________________________________
	Date: ________________________________                  Date: _____________________________
	Address: _____________________________
	The above savings account agreement and instruction received and accepted this _______________ day of _______________, 20___
	____________________________________
	Bank Name
	____________________________________
	Authorized Bank Officer
	ESCROW AGREEMENT
	TO BANK: __________________________  ESCROW NO.: ______________________________
	BANK’S ADDRESS: ______________________________________________________________
	______________________________________________________________
	AGENCY:                    CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
	216 Prospect Street
	Port Orchard WA 98366
	CONTRACT NO.: ___________________________________
	PROJECT TITLE:_________________________________________________________
	The estimated completion date of contract is: ________________________________
	The undersigned, _____________________________________________, herein referred to as the CONTRACTOR, has directed the CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, Washington, hereinafter referred to as the AGENCY, to deliver to you its warrants which shall be payable to yo...
	INSTRUCTIONS
	1. Warrants or checks made payable to you and the CONTRACTOR jointly upon delivery to you shall be endorsed by you and forwarded for collection. The moneys will then be used by you to purchase, as directed by the CONTRACTOR, bonds or other securities ...
	2. When and as interest on the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement accrues and is paid, you shall collect such interest and forward it to the CONTRACTOR at its address designated below unless otherwise directed by the CONTRACTOR.
	3. You are not authorized to deliver to the CONTRACTOR all or any part of the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement (or any moneys derived from the sale of such securities, or the negotiation of the AGENCY’S warrants) except in accordance ...
	4. In the event the AGENCY orders you to do so in writing, you shall within thirty-five (35) days of receipt of such order, reconvert into money the securities held by you pursuant to this agreement and return such money together with any other moneys...
	5. The CONTRACTOR agrees to pay you as compensation for your services hereunder as follows:
	Payment of all fees shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and shall not be deducted from any property placed with you pursuant to this agreement until and unless the AGENCY directs the release to the CONTRACTOR of the securities and money...
	6. This agreement shall not be binding until executed by the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY and accepted by you.
	7. This instrument contains the entire agreement between you, the CONTRACTOR and the AGENCY with respect to this escrow and you are not a party to nor bound by any instrument or agreement other than this; you shall not be required to take notice of an...
	The foregone provision shall be binding upon the assigns, successors, personal representative, and heir of the Parties hereto.
	_______________________________________       CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
	Contractor                                                                     Agency
	By: ____________________________________      By: __________________________________
	Title: __________________________________
	Date: __________________________________      Date: _________________________________
	Address: ________________________________
	The above escrow agreement and instruction received and accepted this ___________ day of  ___________, 20__.
	____________________________________
	Bank Name
	____________________________________
	Authorized Bank Officer
	SECURITIES AUTHORIZED BY AGENCY
	1. Bills, certificates, notes or bonds of the United States;
	2. Other obligations of the United States or its agencies;
	3. Obligation of any corporation wholly-owned by the government of the United States;
	4. Indebtedness of the Federal Nation Mortgage Association; and
	5. Time deposits in commercial banks.

	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND
	CITY OF PORT ORCHARD
	_________________________PROJECT
	PW PROJECT NO. 2023-003
	Bond to City of Port Orchard, Washington
	Bond No. _____________
	We,___________________________________,and____________________________________
	(Principal)      (Surety)
	a _________________________________ Corporation, and as a surety corporation authorized to become a surety upon Bonds of Contractors with municipal corporations in Washington State, are jointly and severally bound to the City of Port Orchard, Washingt...
	NOW, THEREFORE, this Performance and Payment Bond shall be satisfied and released only upon the condition that Principal:
	Faithfully performs all provisions of the Contract and changes authorized by Owner in the manner and within the time specified as may be extended under the Contract;
	Pays all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material-persons, and all other persons or agents who supply labor, equipment, or materials to the Project;
	Pays the taxes, increases and penalties incurred on the Project under Titles 50, 51 and 82 RCW on:  (A) Projects referred to in RCW 60.28.011(1)(b); and/or (B) Projects for which the bond is conditioned on the payment of such taxes, increases and pena...
	Posts a two-year warranty/maintenance bond to secure the project. Such bond shall be in the amount of twenty percent (20%) of the project costs.
	The surety shall indemnify, defend, and protect the Owner against any claim of direct or indirect loss resulting from the failure:
	Of the Principal (or any of the employees, subcontractors, or lower tier subcontractors of the Principal) to faithfully perform the Contract, or
	Of the Principal (or any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor of the Principal) to pay all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, lower tier subcontractors, material person, or any other person who provides supplies or provisions for carrying out t...
	The liability of Surety shall be limited to the penal sum of this Performance and Payment Bond.
	No change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work to be performed under the Contract shall in any way affect Surety’s obligation on the Performance Bond. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, extens...
	If any modification or change increases the total amount to be paid under the Contract, Surety’s obligation under this Performance and Payment Bond shall automatically increase in a like amount. Any such increase shall not exceed twenty-five percent (...
	This Performance and Payment Bond shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State of Washington, and venue shall be in Kitsap County, Washington.
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument in two (2) identical counterparts this _______ day of _________________, 20 ___.
	___________________________________
	Principal     Surety
	Signature of Authorized Official  Signature of Authorized Official
	By
	Printed Name and Title   Attorney in Fact (Attach Power of Attorney)
	Name and address of local office of
	Agent and/or Surety Company:
	Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the current Authorized Insurance List in the State of Washington per Section 1-02.7 of the Standard Specifications.
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	Corporation, Partnership, or Individual
	STATE OF     )
	)ss.
	COUNTY OF     )
	On this _____ day of____________, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared________________________, to me known to be the (check one of the following boxes):
	⌂ _______________________ of __________________________________, the
	corporation,
	⌂ _______________________ of __________________________________, the
	partnership,
	⌂ individual,
	that executed the foregoing instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said ⌂ corporation, ⌂ partnership, ⌂ individual for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that ⌂ he ⌂she was authorized to execute said instrument.
	WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written.
	Print or type name
	NOTARY PUBLIC,
	in and for the State of Washington
	Residing at
	My Commission expires:
	SURETY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	STATE OF     )
	)ss.
	COUNTY OF     )
	On this _______ day of________________, 20_____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared___________________, to me known to be the _____________________________ o...
	WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first above written.
	___________________________________
	Print or type name
	NOTARY PUBLIC,
	in and for the State of Washington
	Residing
	My Commission expires:
	Notary Seal With Ink Stamp
	Note:  This form must be completed at Contract Completion.   Before the Performance Bond (or the retainage when the performance bond is waived) can be released, the City must receive the two year Maintenance/Warranty Bond
	CHECK FOR ATTACHED NOTARY SIGNATURE
	______Developer/Owner (Form P-1)
	______Surety Company (Form P-2)




	8C 04 Port Orchard 3-W-153(001)-1 Bid Award Letter
	8D 01 Staff Report POMC 2.60(10668652.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	8D 02 Ordinance Revising Chapter 2.60.01 - CLEAN(10668653.1)
	8D 03 2.60 Red Line Info Only - CAA Edits(10668679.1)
	Chapter 2.60 COMPENSATION FOR CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

	8E 01 SR - DA Chapter and Sign Code
	Agenda Staff Report

	8E 02 1761272v1_XXX-23 Ordinance Updating DA Chapter and Sign Code Draft 1-6-2023 updated 20230414
	8F 01 SR - Counter Complete
	Agenda Staff Report

	8F 02 ORD 20.24.040 Counter Complete rev 4-21-2023(10659880.1) edits accepted
	8G 01 - SR 2023 Comp Plan Amendments 20230509
	Agenda Staff Report

	8G 02 - Ord 2023 Comp Plan Amdts Rev 4-21-2023(10659862.1) edits accepted
	8G 03 - Existing Comprehensive Plan Map
	8G 04 - Proposed Comprehensive Plan Map
	8G 05 - Existing Zoning Map
	8G 06 - Proposed Zoning Map
	8G 07 Comments 20230227
	Meline rd rezone - Hordyk

	8H 01 Staff Report Personnel Policies re clothing(10663356.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	8H 02 Resolution Personnel Policies re clothing(10663523.1)
	8H 03 Exhibit A clothing policies
	8I 01 SR MOU with KRL for Amend 10 to RFM Contract(10668609.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8I 02 RES - MOU with KRL for RFM Amend. No. 10(10668595.1)
	8I 03 Memorandum of Understanding re Design Costs for CEC(10668590.1)
	8J 01 SR Amend 10 to RFM Contract(10668639.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8J 02 Amendment #10 to C066-20 - 05.04.2023(10668567.1)
	8J 03 Attachment 1 to Amend 10 to Contract with RFM for CEC
	8J 04 066-20  - Rice Fergus Miller, Inc.   - Contract
	8K 01 SR Road Closure-Fathoms Parade
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8K 02 Grand Parade Special Event Application reduced size
	8K 03 Fathoms Parade Staff Comments
	8L 01 SR Road Closure-SK Grad Parade
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8L 02 SK 2023 Grad Cruise Application
	8L 03 SKHS Grad Curise Staff Comments
	8M 01 SR Road Closure-Run to Tahoma
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8M 02 The Unforgotten Run to Tahoma
	8M 03 Unforgotten staff comments
	8N 01 SR Fahtoms parking lot use- Summer Festival
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	8N 02 2-Day Summer Festivial Application
	8O 01 20230425 Minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 01:32)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:46)
	9. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	16. ADJOURNMENT


	ADPDDDE.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Tony Lang
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Description of item: Proline H800 Mower w/ Hi-Lift dump
	Procurement method: Sourcewell
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_2: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_3: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_4: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_5: X
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_6: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_7: 
	Water Sewer Storm Street Public Works DCD Police AdminRow1_8: 
	Addition or ReplacementRow1: 
	Addition or ReplacementRow2: X
	Addition to Fleet Please state business case for addition Replacement Vehicle  Equipment being replaced: 
	Fleet StandardizationRow1: 
	Fleet StandardizationRow2: 
	Requested Vehicle  Equipment DOES NOT follow Standardization  List items that are not fleet standard and reason for addition: 
	Text4: 1025 - Kubota Riding mower
	CostRow1: $42,627.00
	CostRow2: $2,058.80
	Fleet standard cost Additional cost for consideration and business case TOTAL: setup- $859.33, delivery- $859.33, Debris suppression kit- $340.14 
	Department Director: 
	Date: 4/28/2023
	Text2:  $44,685.80 - tax included
	Text3: 42,627.00
	Text1:       X
	ERR Representative: Gretchen Isaksson
	Date_2: 4/27/23
	Button1: 


